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Company open to public investment

Registered Office: Praca D. Jodo I, 28, 4000-295 Porto - Share Capital 5,600,738,053.72 Euros

Registered at Porto Commercial Registry, under the single registration and tax identification number 501 525 882

The 2017 Annual Report is a translation of the “Relatério e Contas de 2017” document delivered by Banco Comercial Portugués,
S.A. to the Portuguese Securities and Market Commission (CMVM), in accordance with Portuguese law.

The sole purpose of the English version is to facilitate consultation of the document by English-speaking Shareholders, Investors
and other Stakeholders, and, in case of any doubt or contradiction between the documents, the Portuguese version of the “Relatério
e Contas de 2017" prevails.

All references in this document to the application of any regulations and rules refer to the respective version currently in force.
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Joint Message of the Chairman of the Board of
Directors and of the CEO

Portugaland Poland registered growth rates above the European average. Mozambique and Angola, despite the macroeconomic
challenges they continue to face, saw their economies begin a process of recovery compared with 2016.

In Portugal, 2017 featured GDP growth of 2.7%, the largest annual increase since 2000. Portugal grew above the average
European Union rate, thereby resuming the process of economic convergence.

The economy grew in a virtuous and sustainable way. Exports maintained their notable performance and productive investment
continued robust, which will have a positive impact going forward. Unemployment, meanwhile, fell to 8.1% at the end of the year,
which has a significant economic and, above all, social impact.

Looking beyond the generic GDP numbers, it's important to highlight the way in which companies are investing, exporting and
reaching out to new markets. For Portugal, this translates into a year of victories, proof that the Portuguese are creative and
daring.

This dynamism allowed Portugal to formally exit the excessive deficit procedure in June of 2017. Some months later came
recognition, in the form of improved ratings from the main ratings agencies.

At Millennium bcp, on various different levels, we knew how to work to take advantage of the improved economic and social
backdrop described above. The main feature of the year was our capacity to repay the total amount of state aid ahead of the
deadline, which allowed us to recover our management autonomy.

We would highlight additionally three key milestones achieved by Millennium bcp in 2017. First, the increase of net profits to 186
million Euros, with positive results in all the geographies where we operate. Second, the addition of more than 300,000 customers
across the group’s operations, of which 100,000 in Portugal. And third, the very significant reduction of NPEs by 1.8 billion Euros,
in Portugal.

In Portugal, the net result rose to 39 million Euros in 2017, with a particular emphasis on the reduction of impaired loans and
provisions. The NPEs (Non Performing Exposures) fell by 1.8 billion Euros, exceeding the annual target of 1 billion Euros. The year
also saw a very favorable trend for overall business, with a particular emphasis on customer addition, to a total 5.4 million
customers.

ActivoBank also saw strong growth of its customer base, adding more than 40,000 new customers in 2017, a 50% increase in the
pace of customer addition compared with the previous year. ActivoBank finished the year with net profit of 2.73 million Euros.

In Poland we proceeded with our ambitious expansion plan, which allowed us to achieve a net profit of 160 million Euros. We
continue to add new customers, many of whom choose digital channels to reach and interact with the bank.

In Mozambique, despite the macroeconomic challenges, Millennium bim increased its results significantly to 85 million Euros
while return on equity rose to 24.2%.

In Angola, we continued to develop our strategic partnership with Banco Millennium Atlantico, while in Switzerland and Macao
we continued to develop those operations.

Overall, 2017 was a year we can characterize as globally positive, in which we strove to ensure the development of the virtuous
triangle that connects our shareholders, our customers and our employees. It was a year of value creation and of normalization
of the bank’s activity. It was also a year in which we were recognized for our successes. Millennium bep received a number of the
most prestigious awards bestowed on the financial sector in Portugal and the other countries where we are present, namely
Mozambique, Poland and Switzerland. In Portugal, we highlight the Consumers’ Choice awards for the banking sector, the “Best
Digital Bank” award from Global Finance magazine, the most personal and innovative bank with the best products for companies
from Data E, and the prize for “Best Commercial Bank” for ActivoBank, from World Finance magazine.

In 2018 we will continue to position ourselves as a leading bank, supporting the economy and families in Portugal and in all of
the countries where we are present.

In conclusion, we would like to say a word of appreciation and thanks to the employees of the bank for their professionalism and
dedication; to the shareholders for believing in this project to build the largest private national bank, and to our customers who
are the reason for all our efforts.

[ S

Antoénio Monteiro Nuno Amado
-Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer
of Directors Vice-Chairman of the Board

of Directors



Executive Committee

Rui Manuel Teixeira Joao Palma Miguel Maya Nuno Amado
Vice-Chairman Vice-Chairman Chairman



Miguel Braganca Conceicgio Lucas Iglésias Soares José Miguel Pessanha
Vice-Chairman
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BCPin 2017

Millennium bcp, a bank ready for the future ...

COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 RATIO

ACCUMULATED NPEREDUCTION

Phased-i (Million euros)
ased-in
3.0
12.8% * 13.2%
1.2
2016 2017 2016 2017
*proforma
NET INCOME CORE NET INCOME *
(Million euros) (Million euros)
1,094.0 1,103.8
186.4
239
—
2016 2017 2016 2017

base

2.5 million active digital

Digital |
customers§ Customers (+16.0%vs 2016)

1 Customer 5.4 million of active Customers
*'ﬁ'@ { (>300,000vs2016)

*Core net income = net interestincome + net feesand commission
income - operating costs.

PORTUGAL

2.4 million active Customers
(approximately +100,000 vs 2016)

=== Customer
é’ké base

Individuals: >220,000 Customers
Companies: >16,000 Customers

:=: Customer
@i‘é acquisition

Eﬁ Digital Individuals: 790,000 active (+15.1%)
customers Companies: 99,400 active (+10.8%)

.. and well positioned in a fFast changing sector, following a restructuring plan already
successfully implemented over the past few years
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A Bank committed to the preservation of cultural heritage, protection of the
environment and to supporting Families, businesses and communities.

DONATIONS
(Million eutros)
19
20
17
2017 2016 2015
TOTAL ENERGY CONSUMPTION
o e %
565
575
200
364
2015 2016 2017

I Direct energy
B |ndirect energy
—e— Electricity consumption (MWh) by employee (¥)

@Includes the cogeneration plant in Portugal, excludes the
data centerin Portugal and data from Mozambique

1

BREAKDOWN BY GENDER
Percentage

B Men EWomen

GHC Emissions *

tCO2e 4.5 42
) !/‘\,
58,439 59,864 55,683
Mi2sie  [hsrs Wi2021
44,903 45,161 41,985
1,020 __979 777
2015 2016 2017

IR Direct emissions (scope 1)
Indirect emissions (Scope 2)

EE Indirect emissions (Scope 3)

—e— Total emissions by employee

) Does not includes Mozambique



Main Indicators

Million euros

@ Chan. %

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 17/16
BALANCE SHEET
Total assets 71,939 71,265 74,885 76,361 82,007 0.9%
Loans and advances to customers (net) (2) 47,633 48,018 51,022 52,729 55744 -0.8%
Total customer funds (2)(3) 71,386 66,978 67,951 64,945 64,713 6.6%
Balance sheet customer funds (2) 52,688 50,434 52,158 51,141 51,174 4.5%
Resources from customers (2) 51,188 48,798 49,847 48,365 47,376 4.9%
Loans to customers (net) / Resources from customers (4) 94% 99% 102% 108% 117%
Shareholders' equity and subordinated debt 7,250 5,927 6,269 6,238 6,945 22.3%
PROFITABILITY
Net operating revenues 2,197 2,097 2,304 2,292 1,769 4.8%
Operating costs 954 780 1,017 1,150 1,295 22.3%
Impairment and Provisions 925 1,598 978 1,316 1,287 -42.1%
Income tax
Current 102 113 91 101 116 -10.0%
Deferred -72 -495 -54 -199 -326
Non-controlling interests 103 122 126 110 94 -15.4%
Net income attributable to shareholders of the Bank 186 24 235 -227 -740
Return on average shareholders' equity (ROE) 3.3% 0.6% 5.3% -6.5% -26.5%
Income before tax and non-controlling interests / Average equity (4)(5) 4.8% -4.5% 7.3% -5.1%  -24.9%
Return on average total assets (ROA) (6) 0.4% 0.2% 0.5% -0.1% -0.8%
Income before tax and non-controlling interests / Average net assets
(4)(5) 0.4% -0.3% 0.5% -0.3% -1.0%
Net interest margin 2.2% 1.9% 1.8% 1.6% 1.1%
Net operating revenues / Average net assets (4)(5) 3.0% 2.8% 3.0% 2.8% 2.1%
Cost to income (4)(5)(7) 44.1% 46.1% 43.9% 51.7% 66.5%
Cost to income - activity in Portugal (4)(5)(7) 44.5% 47.1% 41.1% 53.7% 80.9%
Staff costs / Net operating revenues (4)(5)(7) 24.6% 25.9% 24.7% 28.6% 36.8%
CREDIT QUALITY
Overdue loans (>90 days) / Total loans (2) 5.8% 6.8% 7.3% 7.4% 71%
Total impairment / Overdue loans (>90 days) (2) 113.2% 107.0% 86.2% 82.6% 79.6%
Non-performing exposures 7.658 9.374 10.933 11.906 13.679
Non-performing exposures / Total loans (2) 15.0% 18.1% 20.1% 21.2% 23.0%
Restructured loans (2) 4184 5046 5393 6753 7012
Restructured loans / Total loans (2) 8.2% 9.7% 9.9% 12.0% 11.9%
Cost of risk (net of recoveries) (8) 122b.p.  216b.p. 150b.p.  194b.p. 137b.p.
CAPITAL (9)
Common equity tier | phased-in (10) 13.2% 12.4% 13.3% 11.7% -
Common equity tier | fully-implemented (10) 11.9% 9.7% 10.2% 7.8% -
Own Funds 5,932 5,257 6,207 5,827 6,421
Risk Weighted Assets 40,171 39,160 43,315 43,515 43,926
Core tier | (Basel Il) (4) - - - - 13.8%
Tier | (Basel Il) (4) - - - - 12.9%
Total (Basel 1) (4) - - - - 14.6%
BCP SHARE
Market capitalisation (ordinary shares) 4,111 843 2,887 3,561 3,279
Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share (euros) 0.014 0.019 0.232 -0.259 -1.068
Market values per share (euros) (11)
High 0.2720 0.6459 1.2388  1.8162 1.3695
Low 0.1383 0.1791 0.5374  0.8396  0.5772
Close 0.2720 0.1845 0.6317  0.8487 1.2474

(1) In the scope of the merger process with Banco Privado Atlantico, Banco Millennium Angola was considered a discontinued operation in the first quarter of
2016, with effect on the same item in the activity of 2016 and 2015, given that the information as at 31 December 2015 was restated in the consolidated
financial statements of BCP.

(2) Adjusted from discontinued operations: Millennium bank in Romania (2013); Millennium bcp Gestao de Activos (2014 to 2013); and Banco Millennium in
Angola (2015 to 2013).

(3) Total customer funds of Millennium bcp were redefined, with reference to 31 December 2017, reflecting a broader concept in order to include amounts
held by customers as part of existing agreements for their placement and management, considering comparable amounts for 2016 and 2015.

(4) According to Instruction no. 16/2004 from the Bank of Portugal, as the existing version as of 31 December 2017

(5) Given the booking of Banco Millennium Angola as a discontinued operation between March and May 2016, the consolidated balance sheet includes Banco
Millennium Angola until the completion of the merger with Banco Privado Atlantico, in May 2016, while the respective contribution to consolidated results is
reflected in income from discontinued operations and non-controlling interests during that period, not influencing the remaining items of the consolidated
income statement.

(6) Considering net income before non-controlling interests.

(7) Excludes the impact of specific items.

(8) Adjusted from discontinued operations: Banco Millennium in Angola (2015).

(9) According with CRD IV/CRR phased-in for 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017, and in 2013 compliant with rules from the Bank of Portugal in force.

(10) Includes the impact of the new DTAs regime for capital purposes according with IAS.

(11) Market value per share adjusted from the regrouping of shares, in October 2016, and the capital increase occurred in February 2017.
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Unit 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 Var. % 17/16
CUSTOMERS
Total Customers” Thousands 5,429 5,122 5,036 4,907 4,871 6.0%
Interest paid on deposits and interbak funding Million euros 353 389 661 897 1,148 -9.2%
Claims registered Number 76,918 72,498 79,108 71,348 81,719 6.1%
Claims resolved Percentage 97.7% 93.2% 97.2% 95.1% 98.5% 4.8%
ACESSIBILITIES
BRANCHES Number 1,120 1,163 1,342 1,373 1518 -3.7%
Activity in Portugal 578 618 671 695 774 -6.5%
International activity 542 545 671 678 744 -0.6%
Branches opened on Saturday 118 112 144 140 131 5.4%
Branches with access conditions to people with reduced mobility 802 828 978 981 1,137 -3.1%
Internet Users number 1,830,546 1,700,114 1,541,811 1,377,480 1,352,188 7.7%
Call Center Users number 353,003 261,620 273,610 301,338 230,046 34.9%
Mobile banking Users number 1,617,593 1,268,804 929,401 506,976 339,095 27.5%
ATM Number 2,950 2,965 3,115 3,112 3,341 -0.5%
EMPLOYEES
PORTUGAL EMPLOYEES Number 7,189 7,333 7,459 7,795 8,584 -2.0%
INTERNATIONAL EMPLOYEES = Number 8,538 8,474 9,724 9,845 10,076 0.8%
LABOUR INDICATORS ©
Breakdown by professional category Number
Executive Committee 23 21 23 22 21 9.5%
Senior Management 150 146 171 161 165 2.7%
Management 1,642 1,669 1,702 1,768 1,874 -1.6%
Commercial 9,424 9,453 10,406 10,648 11,013 -0.3%
Technicians BI58i 3,459 3,609 3,641 3,921 21%
Other 1,061 1,167 1,330 1,452 1,711 -9.1%
Breakdown by age Number
<30 2,235 2,225 3,029 3,387 3,710 0.4%
[30-50[ 9,498 9,820 10,673 10,925 11,510 -3.3%
>=50 4,103 3,875 3,550 3,391 3,500 5.9%
Average age Years 41 41 38 37 36 0.0%
Breakdown by contract type Number
Permanent 14,668 14,876 15,904 16,329 17,504 -1.4%
Temporary 1,168 1,044 1,035 1,073 894 11.9%
Trainees 298 0 313 301 329
Employees with working hours reduction Number 187 202 153 155 169 -7.4%
Recruitment rate Percentage 9.7% 8.2% 7.3% 8.1% 6.6% 18.3%
Internal mobility rate Percentage 18.5% 18.0% 16.4% 16.4% 15.9% 2.8%
Leaving rate Percentage 10.3% 9.1% 10.0% 11.1% 9.1% 13.2%
Free association © Percentage
Employees under Collective Work Agreements 99.6% 99.6% 99.5% 99.6% 99.7% 0.0%
Union Syndicated Employees 78.5% 78.9% 72.0% 73.2% 75.9% -0.5%
Hygiene and safety at work (HSW)
HSW visits Number 159 376 194 180 376 -57.7%
Injury rate Percentage 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Death victims Number 0 1 0 0 0
Absenteeism rate Percentage 43% 4.2% 4.0% 3.6% 3.8% 2.4%
Lowest company salary and minimum national salary Ratio il 1.1 19 1.7 1.7 12.3%
ENVIRONMENT =
Greenhouse gas emissions ‘© tCO2eq 55,683 59,864 58,439 65,470 72,691 -7.0%
Electricity consumption ” MWh 63,131 68,055 76,513 88,789 114,402 -7.2%
Production of waste ® t 599 1,332 2,078 1,568 1,294 -55.1%
Water consumption m3 233,857 239,279 358,228 554,307 361,968 -2.3%
SUPPLIERS
Time of payment and time contractually agreed, in Portugal Ratio 1 1 1 1 1 0.0%
Purchase from local suppliers Percentage 86.5% 91.7% 92.8% 86.5% 92.6% -57%
DONATIONS Million euros 19 17 2.0 2.2 3.2 6.2%

Data for 2016 and 2017 does not include Angola, whose operation was discontinued in 2036.

(1) Pro-forma. Excludes Angola. From 2015-207, Total Active Customers in Mozambique, instead of Total Customers

(2) Number of Employees for all o perations except Poland, where are reported Full Time Equivalent (FTE). Does not include Millennium bep Bank & Trust employees.

(3) Employees information (and not FTE) for: Portugal, Poland, Mozambigue and Switzerland

(4) The value reflects only operations where the regimes are applicable. Collective work agreement: Portugal and M ozambique. Syndicate: Portugal and M ozambique.

(5) Data do not include Angola (2013 to 2017)

)
)
)
)
(6) Data do not include M ogambique (2036)
)
(8) Data does not include Switzerland (2013) neither M o zambique (2012 and 2013).
)

(9) Data does not include Switzerland (2012 to 2036), neither M ozambique (2016)

(7) Data include eletricity from public grid. Does not include the cogeneration plant in Portugal neither 2036 energy consumption in M o zambique.
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BCP Group

BRIEF DESCRIPTION

Banco Comercial Portugués, S.A. (BCP, Millennium bcp or Bank) is the largest Portuguese privately-owned bank.
The Bank, with its decision centre in Portugal, operates and acts with respect for people and institutions, focusing
on the Customer, pursuing a mission of excellence, trust, ethics and responsibility, and is a distinguished leader in
various financial business areas in the Portuguese market and a reference institution on an international level. The
Bank also holds a prominent position in Africa through its banking operations in Mozambique (in Angola, Banco
Millennium Angola - BMA merged with Banco Privado Atlantico-BPA) and in Europe through its banking operations

in Poland and Switzerland. Since 2010, the Bank operates in Macau through a full branch.

HISTORY

Incorporation and
organic growth to
attain

a relevant position

Development in
Portugal through
acquisitions

and partnerships

Internationalization
and adoption of a
single brand

Restructuring process
Involving the sale of non-strategic
assets

1985: Incorporation

1989: Launching of
NovaRede

Until 1994 Organic
growth, reaching
market shares of
around 8% in loans and
deposits in 1994

1995: Purchase of Banco
Portugués do Atlantico,
S.A.

2000: Purchase of Banco
Pinto & Sotto Mayor to
CGD and incorporation of
the José de Mello Group
(Banco Mello and Império)

2004: Agreement with the
CGD Group and Fortis
(Ageas) for the insurance
business

1993: Beginning of
operations in the East

1995: Beginning of
operations in Mozambique

1998: Partnership
Agreement with BBG
(Poland)

1999: Establishment of a
greenfield operation
in Greece

2000: Integration of the
insurance operation into
Eureko

2003:

* Establishment of Banque
Privée

* Alteration of the name
of the operation in Poland
to Bank Millennium

* Launch of the single
brand concept,
Millennium

2005:

* Sale of Crédilar

* Sale of BCM, maintaining an offshore
branch in Macau

* Sale of the insurance activity and
partnership agreement with

Ageas for the bancassurance activity

2006:

*Sale of a 50.001% stake in Interbanco
» Completion of the sale of 80.1% of
the share capital of Banque BCP in
France and in Luxembourg

2010: Sale of 95% of Millennium bank
in Turkey and establishment of an
agreement for the sale of the totality of
the branch network and respective
deposits base of Millennium bcp bank
in the USA

2013:

* Sale of the totality of the share capital
of Millennium Bank Greece to Piraeus
Bank

* Sale of 10% of the share capital of
Banque BCP in Luxembourg

*Sale of the totality of the stake in
Piraeus Bank

2014:

* Sale of the totality of the share capital
of Banca Millennium in Romania

* Sale of the totality of the 49% stake
in Non-Life Insurance, held in
Ocidental and Médis

2015:

* Sale of the totality of the share capital
of Millennium bcp Gestao de Ativos

* Sale of 15.41% of the share capital of
Bank Millennium

2016: Merger of Banco Millennium
Angola with Banco Privado Atlantico
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Governance

Banco Comercial Portugués, S.A. has a one-tier management and supervision model, composed of a Board of
Directors, which includes an Executive Committee and an Audit Committee composed of only non-executive
directors. The Company also has a Remuneration and Welfare Board and an International Strategic Board.

In addition, the Group uses a Statutory Auditor and an external auditing firm to audit the individual and
consolidated accounts of the Bank, whose appointment is resolved at the General Meeting.

The members of the governing bodies were elected at the General Meeting of Shareholders held on 11 May 2015
to perform duties for the three-year period 2015/2017.

ORGANISATIONAL CHART OF BCP’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MODEL

General Meeting of Shareholders

ation and Welfare Board

Board for International Board of Directors ! Client Ombud: !
Strategy R '

* Committee for Nominations and Remunerations
* Committee for Corporate Governance, Ethics and
Professional Conduct

* Committee forRisk Assessment

Statutory Auditor

®ROC) [T Audit Committee Companysecretary

Executive Committee

C issions and Sub-C
*Legal Affairs «Credit
* Costs and Investments * NPE Credit
— Costs and Investments Sub-Committee * Capital, Assetsand Liabilities Management
« Companies Customers * Risk
*Human Resources e Credit at Risk
* Retail * Pension Funds Risk Monitoring
— Customer Experience Sub-Committee ¢ Security and Data Quality Commission
— Investment Products Sub-Committee Digital Transformation and Procedures Commission
« Compliance * OperationalRisk and Internal Control Monitoring
— AML Sub-Committee * CrossNetworking

* Pension Fund Monitoring

The General Meeting is the highest governing body of the company, representing the entirety of the shareholders,
and its resolutions are binding for all when adopted under the terms of law and the articles of association. The
General Meeting is responsible for:

e  Electing and dismissing its Board, as well as the members of the management and supervisory bodies, and the
Remuneration and Welfare Board;

e Approving amendments to the memorandum of association;
e Resolving on the annual management report and accounts for the year and proposed appropriation of profits;
e  Resolving on matters submitted upon request of the management and supervisory bodies;

e Resolving on all issues especially entrusted to it by the law or articles of association, or on those not included in the
duties of other corporate bodies.

The Board of Directors (BD) is the governing body of the Bank with the most ample powers of management and
representation, pursuant to the law and the articles of association.

Under the terms of the articles of association in effect, the Board of Directors is composed of a minimum of 17 and
amaximum of 25 members with and without executive duties, elected by the General Meeting for a period of three
years, who may be re-elected. The increase of the number of members of the Board of Directors to 25 was approved
on 9 November 2016.

The Board of Directors which ended its function on 31 December 2017 was composed of 19 permanent members,
with 11 non-executive and 8 executive members.
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The Board of Directors appointed an Executive Committee (EC) composed of 8 of its members, to which it delegates
the day-to-day management of the Bank. During 2017 the Executive Committee was assisted in its management
functions by several commissions and sub-commissions which oversaw the monitoring of certain relevant issues.

The supervision of the company is made by an Audit Committee elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders
and composed of 3 to 5 members, elected together with the majority of the remaining directors. The lists proposed
for the Board of Directors should indicate the members to be part of the Audit Committee and indicate the
respective Chairperson.

The Remuneration and Welfare Board is composed of 3 to 5 members, elected by the General Meeting, the majority
of whom should be independent.

The Company Secretary and the Alternate Secretary are appointed by the Bank's Board of Directors, and their
term-of-office matches that of the Board of Directors that appointed them.

IDENTIFICATION AND COMPOSITION OF THE CORPORATE BODIES

Remuneration Board for
and Welfare International
Board Strategy

Board of Executive Audit
Directors Committee Committee

Anténio Vitor Martins Monteiro (BD Chairman)

Carlos José da Silva (BD Vice-Chairman)

Nuno Manuel da Silva Amado (BD Vice-Chairman and CEO)
Alvaro Roque de Pinho Bissaia Barreto

André Magalhaes Luiz Gomes

Anténio Henriques de Pinho Cardao

Anténio Luis Guerra Nunes Mexia

Cidalia Maria Mota Lopes

Jaime de Macedo Santos Bastos

Jodo Manuel de Matos Loureiro (AC Chairman)

Jodo Nuno de Oliveira Jorge Palma

José Jacinto Iglésias Soares

José Miguel Bensliman Schorcht da Silva Pessanha
Lingjiang Xu

Maria da Conceicdo Mota Soares de Oliveira Callé Lucas
Miguel de Campos Pereira Braganca

Miguel Maya Dias Pinheiro

Raquel Rute da Costa David Vunge

RuiManuel da Silva Teixeira
José Goncalo Ferreira Maury (Chariman of RWB)
José Guilherme Xavier de Basto

José Luciano Vaz Marcos

Manuel Soares Pinto Barbosa
Carlos Jorge Ramalho dos Santos Ferreira (Chairman of BIS)
Francisco de Lemos José Maria

Josep Oliu Creus

On 28June 2017, three new non-executive members of the Board of Directors were co-opted: Ms. Gu Xiaoxu, Mr. Li Cheng and Mr. Zhihua Shen. The evaluation process and
the fit and property is still pending.
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Main Eventsin 2017/

JANUARY

e  Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors on 9 January 2017, which would be ratified by the General Meeting of
Shareholders, for co-opting Lingjiang Xu and Jodo Nuno Palma to perform the functions of members of the Board of
Directors, non-executive and executive, respectively, until the end of the ongoing term of office.

e Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors on 9 January 2017, with the prior favourable opinion of the Audit
Committee, to increase the share capital from 4,268,817,689.20 Euros to 5,600,738,053.72 Euros through a Rights
Offering addressed to shareholders in the exercise of their preference rights and remaining investors who purchased
subscription rights, through the issue of 14,169,365,580 new ordinary, nominative and book-entry shares without
nominal value. The resulting number of ordinary shares of BCP reached 15,113,989,952.

FEBRUARY

e  Early repayment to the Portuguese State, on 9 February 2017, of the remaining Core Tier 1 hybrid capital instruments
amounting to 700 million Euros, which represents the return to normalisation of the activities carried out by BCP, and
had been previously approved by the European Central Bank, provided that the share capital increase concluded by
BCP on this date proved successful.

e  Upwards review by S&P Global Ratings of the rating for LT unsecured senior debt from “B+” to “BB-", following the
upwards review of the BCP rating (Stand Alone Credit Profile - SACP) from “b+” to “bb-" and upwards review of the
counter party rating from “B+” to “BB-" and the subordinated debt rating from “CCC” to “B-", after the completion of
the share capital increase operation.

e Attribution of the Rui Osério de Castro Award/ Millennium bcp by Fundacdo Millennium bep, distinguishing the
development of innovative projects and initiatives in the area of child cancer.

MARCH
e  BCPenters the new European Sustainability index, the "European Banks Index” from the analyst Standard Ethics.

e Creation of Millennium bim Academy (MBA), the first in-house academy of a bank in Mozambique.

APRIL

e Renewal of membership of the ECO Movement - Companies against Fires, a project that aims to contribute to the
prevention of forest fires and raise public awareness on risky behaviour.

MAY

e Issue of mortgage bonds, under the Covered Bonds Programme, amounting to 1.0 billion Euros, 5-year maturity, an
issue price of 99.386% and a 0.75% interest rate per year, resulting in a 65 basis points spread per year, over the 5-year
swap rate;

e The General Meeting of Shareholders was held on 10 May 2017 with the presence of Shareholders owning more than
54.17% of the respective share capital. Among the resolutions adopted, we point out the approval of the management
report, of the individual and consolidated accounts concerning the 2016 financial year, the proposal for the
appropriation of profit for the 2016 financial year, the approval of the statement on the Remuneration Policy of the
Members of the Management and Supervision Bodies, the appointment of two new directors (Lingiang Xu as non-
executive member of the Board of Directors of BCP and Jodo Nuno de Oliveira Jorge Palma as executive member of the
Board of Directors of BCP) and the election of the composition of the Board of the General Meeting of Shareholders for
the triennial 2017/2019;

e  Millennium bcp carries out an internal collection of paper as part of the “Papel por Alimentos” (Paper for Food)
campaign, a solidarity initiative by Entreajuda in support of the national Food Bank.

e Participation by Millennium bcp at a national level in the regular food collection campaigns promoted by the Food Bank.
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JUNE

Resolution of the Board of Directors dated 28 June 2017 regarding the co-optation of three new non-executive
directors: Gu Xiaoxu, Li Cheng and Zhihua Shen, thus increasing the number of Directors to 22, 14 of which are non-
executive;

Signature of the statement expressing the commitment with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals by
Bank Millennium in Poland.

JULY

Granting of a 500 million Euro loan to Millennium bcp by the European Investment Bank for the granting of loans to
SMEs and to medium capitalization companies in Portugal.

AUGUST

Confirmation of its high performance in terms of sustainability by the Ethibel EXCELLENCE Investment Register from
Forum ETHIBEL.

Bank Millennium was part, for the first time, of the sustainability indexes FTSE4Good Emerging Index, from the analyst
FTSE Russell, a reference in the ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance) performance evaluations.

SEPTEMBER

Creation of the “Plataforma de Gestao de Créditos Bancérios, ACE”, together with two other Portuguese Banks, with
the purpose of increasing efficiency and speed in the NPEs and companies restructuring processes.

Celebration of the 30th anniversary of Banco Comercial Portugués on the Portuguese Stock Exchange and of the 25th
anniversary of Bank Millennium on the Warsaw Stock Exchange.

BCP Group confirmed in the Sustainability Index "Ethibel Sustainability Index (ESI) Excellence Europe” from Forum
Ethibel.

Recognition of the "ABC Educacao Financeira" - a financial literacy project for children from pre-school promoted by
Bank Millennium foundation in Poland — with Honorary Sponsorship of the Ministry of Education and the Ombudsman
for Children.

OCTOBER

Launching of another in-house action, “Millennium Solidario," for the collection of food, hygiene products, clothes and
household goods for people and families who had their lives affected by forest fires.

Recognition of the BCP Group regarding the fight against climate change by the non-governmental organization
Carbon Disclosure Project. The Bank was classified in the category "Leadership”, with an "A-".

Millennium bim concluded the 8th edition of the Banking Olympics, a project designed to educate a new generation of
financial services consumers in Mozambique.

NOVEMBER

Issue of subordinated debt eligible for approval by the European Central Bank as level 2 own funds under BCP’s Euro
Medium Term Notes Programme, amounting to 300 million Euros with a 10-year term and early redemption option at
the end of the 5th year and an interest rate of 4.5%, per year, during the first 5 years. The operation was placed with a
very diversified group of European institutional investors, it was the first of this instrument to be issued in the market
by a Portuguese bank after the conclusion of the Financial Aid programme to Portugal, and is part of Millennium bcp’s
strategy of strengthening its total capital ratio and its presence in the international capital market.

Inauguration of the photovoltaic central in Taguspark. The 3,703 panels installed in three buildings of the bank will
enable the production of around 1.320 Mwh per year, representing an estimated savings of 16%.

Completion of the restoration of the Throne Room of Palécio Nacional de Mafra, an intervention made possible due to
the patronage by Fundac&o Millennium bcp.
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DECEMBER

Information on the decision made by the ECB on prudential minimum requirements which must be observed as of 1
January 2018, a decision based on the results of the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP). In addition, BCP
was informed by Banco de Portugal on the capital buffers it must observe in its capacity as “other systemically
important institution” (O-Sll). The own funds minimum requirements to be observed as of 1 January 2018, determined
in view of total risk weighted assets, are the following: CET1 ratio of 8.8125%, T1 ratio of 10.3125% and total ratio of
12.3125%. The buffers include the own funds conservation buffer (1.875%), the countercyclical buffer (0%) and the
buffer for other institutions of systemicimportance (0.1875%). In accordance with the decision made by the BCE within
the scope of SREP, the Pillar 2 requirement for BCP in 2018 is 2.25%, representing a reduction of 0.15 p.p versus 2017.

Participation at a national level in the regular food collection campaigns promoted by the Food Bank.
Group BCP is part of the environmental sustainability index Engaged Tracking 2017 Carbon Rankings.

Inclusion of Bank Millennium in Poland, for the tenth consecutive time, in the RESPECT Index - the first Central and
Eastern European index of socially responsible companies.

Within the scope of its Social Responsibility programme "Mais Mocambique pra Mim", Millennium bim renovated
Nursery 2 of the Neonatology Unit of the Hospital Central de Maputo.

Microcredit Millennium bcp - 6th edition of the Realizar Awards, an annual initiative that distinguishes entrepreneurs.

Millennium bcp participated in the 9th national collection of used batteries promoted by Ecopilhas in favour of IPO
Lisbon.
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BCP Share

2017 was globally positive for the stock markets. The presentation of global robust activity indicators, in both
industry and services, associated with a context featuring by low interest rates, generated gains in the Euro area
and in the USA. In spite of the fact that the North-American Federal Reserve (Fed) increased its interest rate three
times during 2017, the Euro appreciated 14% versus the USD, reflecting also the favourable opinion of the markets
on the European political environment. The year of 2017 also featured anincrease in consumer confidence levels,
a significant trigger due to the impact it has on consumption and, consequently, on the economy.

In Portugal, the PSI 20 closed the year recording 15% gains, exceeding its main European peers, reflecting the
recognition by investors of the improvements in the macroeconomic indicators in Portugal (with economic growth
above the average of the Euro area) and of the significant decline in interest rates for public debt. This
improvement was also perceived by the rating agencies: in September S&P removed the Portuguese republic from
Non-Investment Grade and, in December, Fitch placed the Portuguese Republic in Investment Grade.

During 2017 the Bank strengthened its capital ratios and benefited from the perception by the investors of the
decrease in sovereign risk, rising 47.5%, compared with the 8.1% rise of the European Banks Index (STOXX® Europe
600 Banks).

BCP SHARE - INDICATORS

Units 2017 2016

ADJUSTED SHARE PRICES

Maximum price (€) 0.2720 0.6459

Average price ()] 0.2162 0.3312

Minimum price (€) 0.1383 0.1791

Closing Price (€) 0.2720 0.1845
SHARES AND EQUITY

Number of ordinary shares (in circulation) (M) 15,114 787

Equity attributable to the group (M€) 6,081 4,382

Equity attributable to ordinary shares (1) (M€) 6,021 4,322
AMOUNTS PER SHARE

Adjusted net income (EPS) (2) (3) ()] 0.014 0.019

Book value (4) (€) 0.398 4,586
MARKET VALUING INDICATORS

Closing price as multiple of book value (PBV) 0.68 0.20

Closing Stock Exchange capitalization: (M€) 4,111 843
LIQUIDITY

Volume of transactions (M€) 3,946 2,213

Average daily volume of transactions (M€) 15.5 8.6

Number of shares traded (5) (M) 18,412 6,272

Average daily volume of shares traded (5) (M) 72.2 24.4

Capital Rotation (6) (%) 132.6% 144.2%

1) Equity attributable to the group - Preferential shares

2) Considering the average number of shares in circulation

3) Adjusted to the share capital increase operation completed in February 2017

4) Considering the number of shares after deduction of the number of own shares In the portfolio
5) Adjusted to the share capital increase operation completed in 2017

6) Effective total number of traded shares over the annual average number of shares issued

(
(
(
(
(
(
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The BCP share went up 47.5% in 2017, comparing to a rise of 15.2% in the PSI20 index and of 8.1% in the European
index STOXX® Europe 600 Banks.

In the first quarter of 2017, the BCP share recorded a gain of 6.3%. The BCP share started the year with losses,
pursuant to the disclosure of the share capital increase amounting to 1.3 million Euros in January 2017. However
this trend was inverted and the BCP share began to recover after the completion of the share capital increase, the
admission to trading of the new shares and the early repayment of the remaining value of capital hybrid
instruments, amounting to 700 million Euros.

In the 2nd quarter of 2017, the BCP share recorded an expressive growth (+20.2%), taking advantage of more
positive prospects for the banking sector, the improvement of the macroeconomic context in Portugal and the
upward revisions of the GDP forecasts from the Banco de Portugal and the IMF.

During the 3rd quarter of 2017, the BCP share gained 4.1%, reflecting the upgrade in the rating of the Portuguese
Republic to Investment Grade by S&P, in spite of the fact that the market’s prevailing idea was that the supervisor
would exercise pressure on the reduction by the banks of their non-performing loans and increase the coverage
for NPEs, motivating a transversal negative interpretation which affected some banks, including BCP. The share
was also conditioned by the uncertainty regarding the probability and timing of the increase of the official interest
rates from the ECB, which delays the positive effect caused by higher interest rates on banks’ income.

During the last quarter of 2017, the BCP share surged 10.9%, supported by the several upgrades in the price target
for BCP, the upgrade in the rating of the Portuguese Republic to Investment Grade, attributed by the rating agency
Fitch, and by S&P’s upgrade of BCP’s outlook rating to positive.

ABSOLUTE AND RELATIVE PERFORMANCE

Index Variation 2017
BCP Share 47.5%
PSI Financials 39.4%
PSI20 15.2%
IBEX 35 7.4%
CAC 40 9.3%
DAX 12.5%
FTSE 100 7.6%
MIB FTSE 13.6%
Eurostoxx 600 Banks 8.1%
Dow Jones 25.1%
Nasdaqg 100 31.5%
S&P500 19.4%

Source: Euronext, Reuters, Bloomberg

LIQuIDITY

During 2017 approximately 3.95 billion Euros in BCP shares were traded, corresponding to an average daily
turnover of 15.5 million Euros. During this period, approximately 18.41 billion shares were traded (volumes
adjusted due to the share capital increase), corresponding to an average daily volume of 72.2 million shares. The
capital turnover index came to 132.6% of the average annual number of shares issued.

INDEXES LISTING BCP SHARES

The BCP share is part of over 50 domestic and international stock exchange indexes among which we highlight the
Euronext PSI Financial Services, PSI 20, Euronext 150, and NYSE Euronext Iberian.
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Index Weight
Euronext 150 1.47%
Iberian Index 0.77%
PSI 20 17.04%
PSI General 7.04%
PSI Financial Services 69.09%

Source: Euronext, 29 December 2017

In addition, by the end of 2017, Millennium bcp was also part of the following sustainability indexes: “Ethibel
EXCELLENCE Investment Register”, “Ethibel Excellence Europe”, “Engaged Tracking 2017 Carbon Rankings” and
“European Banks Index”. Bank Millennium, in Poland, is part of the “Respect Index” and of the “FTSE4Good

Emerging Index”.

Sustainability Indexes

member of the
INVESTMENT
REGISTER

EXCELLENCE

included in
SUSTAINABILITY
INDEX

EXCELLENCE Europe

*:*RESPECT

Index

FTSE4Good

RELEVANT FACTS ANNOUNCED TO THE MARKET AND IMPACT ON THE SHARE PRICE

The following table summarizes the relevant facts directly related with Banco Comercial Portugués that occurred
during 2017, as well as the price variations occurred on the following day and on the 5 subsequent days and the
relative evolution versus the main reference domestic and European indexes during the mentioned periods of time.

Var. Var. versus Var. Var. versus
Nr Date Relevant Facts Var. versus STOXX® Var. versus STOXX®
: +1D  PSI20  Europe600 +5D  PSI20  Europe 600
(1D) Banks (1D) (1D) Banks (5D)
1 9Jan  Decision by the Board of Directors ~ -11.3% -10.1% -11.2% -22.9% -20.7% -22.5%
2 9Jan ﬁ]ecsr‘;gjst:’” on the share capital -113%  -10.1%  -112%  -22.9% -20.7%  -22.5%
3 11Jan 2017 Events Calendar -2.8% -2.8% -2.1% 10.6% 10.2% 10.9%
4 12Jan f;:ssi”atfe“c"a”p?t';f'i‘:crr‘;";‘:zh"w o 57%  52% 3.7% 08%  1.1% -0.1%
5 7Feb Registrationofthesharecapital ;40 g gg -62%  -7.6%  -8.5% -9.2%
increase at the Companles reglstry
6 9Feb &Zﬁfg:q‘::::r the capital hybrid 03%  0.1% 1.1% 05%  -0.3% -1.2%
7 10Feb Sggt’é‘g‘fgﬁ_g&gfs’,“ember ofthe 340  -13% -2.3% 26%  1.8% 1.1%
8 23Feb S&P Upgrade -19%  -15% -05%  49%  33% 3.5%
9  3Mar Eg:‘;‘lg’;‘ge””'”m (Poland) 2016 03%  0.2% 0.9% 0.6%  1.4% -0.6%
10 6Mar 2016 Consolidated earnings -3.2% -3.1% -2.9% 1.2% 1.5% -1.3%
11 25Apr E;‘Pr']‘i:gile””‘“m (Poland) 102017 4 400 _q39 -13%  3.6%  22% 3.5%
12 8May 102017 Consolidated earnings 0.8% 0.4% 1.2% -1.7% -1.9% -1.9%
13 10May ResolutionsadoptedbytheAnnual = g 30, g 49 02%  -69%  -4.4% -4.6%

(continues)

General Meeting of Shareholders
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(continuation)

Var. Var. versus Var. Var. versus
Nr Date Relevant Facts Var. versus STOXX® Var. versus STOXX®
: +1D PSI120 Europe 600  +5D PSI20 Europe 600
(1D) Banks (1D) (1D) Banks (5D)
14 23May New issue of mortgage bonds 2.2% 23% 2.1% 6.4% 5.1% 8.3%
15 28Jun Decision by the Board of Directors -2.0% -1.1% -2.6% 1.7% 1.4% -0.4%
16 25)ul E:I[‘r']‘i:gile””‘“m (Poland) TH2017 4 500 _0.9% -16%  -34%  -2.5% -33%
17 27)ul  1H2017 Consolidated earnings -4.7% -3.2% -3.8% -9.4% -8.0% -8.5%
18 1Sep 'p"r?cre”:ﬁfg”sm administrative -15%  -0.9% -07%  -65%  -4.7% -43%
Information on the Platform for the
19 28Sep Integrated Management of past 0.5% -0.1% 0.0% 0.4% -0.6% 0.1%
due loans
20 300ct E:Pr:‘i:gile””‘“m (Poland) 302017 g 6o 0.1% 0.8% 01%  1.9% 1.8%
21 13 Nov 9M2017 Consolidated earnings -0.6% -0.8% 0.3% -0.2% -0.7% 0.6%
22 23Nov g‘;;’;g‘;ﬂ‘l’r:‘a‘t’g dt:zg;te”“al ISSU  01%  0.6% -04%  34%  2.4% 2.3%
23 29Noy [nformation on theissue of 1.0%  0.8% 16%  24%  1.9% 4.5%
Information on the prudential
24 20Dec minimum requirements to be 0.1% 0.3% -0.8% 0.7% 1.0% 1.3%
observed as of 1 )January 2018
25 28Dec 'C”:l‘;rr:';itrm” onthe 2018 Events 07%  03% 09%  102%  5.6% 8.6%

The following graph illustrates the performance of BCP shares over the reference period:
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DIVIDEND PoLicy

Pursuant to the conditions of the issue of Core Tier | Capital Instruments underwritten by the State under Law
number 63-A/2008 and Implementing Order number 150-A/2012, the Bank could not distribute dividends until
the issue was fully reimbursed. This restriction was in effect during the financial years 2013 to 2016.

With the share capital increase concluded in February 2017, the Bank intends to meet the conditions to accelerate
the return to normality, including the potential distribution of dividends, so as to be able to have a dividend pay-
out policy not inferior to 40% of eventual distributable earnings, subject to regulatory requirements.
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FOLLOW-UP WITH INVESTORS

The Bank participated in various events during 2017, having attended 6 conferences and 11 road shows in Europe
and in the USA, where it gave institutional presentations and held one-on-one meetings and group meetings with
investors. More than 540 meetings were held with analysts and institutional investors, which continues to reflect
their significant interest in relation to the Bank.

OWN SHARES

Treasury shares held by entities included in the consolidation perimeter are held within the limits established by
the bank’s by-laws and by the Portuguese Companies Code.

As at 31 December 2017, Banco Comercial Portugués, S.A. held no treasury stock in portfolio, and there were no
purchases or sales of own shares throughout the year. However, the item "Treasury Stock" recorded 323,738 shares
(31 December 2016: 2,689,098 shares) held by customers. Considering that for some of these customers there is
evidence of impairment, the Bank's shares held by these customers were considered as treasury stock and, in
accordance with the accounting policies, written off from equity.

Regarding treasury stock held by associate companies of the BCP Group, pursuant to the note to the financial
statements number 50, as at 31 December 2017, Millenniumbcp Ageas Grupo Segurador, S.G.P.S., S.A. holds
142,601,002 BCP shares (31 December 2016: 8,694,500 shares) amounting to 38,531,000 Euros (31 December
2016: Euros 9,312,000).

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

According to Interbolsa, on 31 December 2017, the number of Shareholders of Banco Comercial Portugués was of
166,960.

By the end of 2017 there were four Shareholders with a qualifying shareholding, two of which with a stake above
5% of the Bank's share capital.

5 :
Shareholding Structure Nr. of Shareholders % of share capital

Individual Shareholders
Bank Employees 2,831 0.23%
Other 159,296 21.89%

Company Shareholders

Institutional 346 23.50%
Qualifying 4 51.49%
Other Companies 4,483 2.89%
TOTAL 166,960 100%
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Shareholders with more than 5 million shares represented 76% of the share capital. During 2017, there was a
significant increase in the percentage of capital held by foreign investors, mostly due to the Bank's share capital
increase made in February 2017.

Nr. of shares per Shareholder Nr. of Shareholders % of share capital
>5,000,000 125 76.17%
500,000 to 4,999,999 964 7.35%
50.000 to 499.999 12,712 10.77%
5,000 to 49,999 43,416 5.05%
< 5,000 109,743 0.65%
TOTAL 166,960 100%

During 2017, the relative weight of the Shareholders in Portugal decreased from 53% to 31%, due mainly to the
completion of the share capital increase operation.

Nr. of Shares (%)

Portugal

31.2%
China

27.1%
Africa

19.6%
United Kingdom / USA

10.9%
Other

11.1%
Total 100%
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Qualified Holdings

On 31 December 2017, the following Shareholders held more than 2% of the share capital of Banco Comercial
Portugués, S.A.:

31 December 2017

0, () H

Shareholder Nr. of Shares % of sh?re % v9t|ng

capital rights

Ch_lado (Luxembourg) S.ar.l., a company held by Fosun International 4,089,789,779 27.06% 27.06%
Holdings Ltd (Fosun Group)

TOTAL FOR FOSUN GROUP 4,089,789,779 27.06% 27.06%

) Sonangol - Sociedade Nacional de Combustiveis de Angola, E.P., 2.946,353,914 19.49% 19.49%

directly

TOTAL FOR SONANGOL GROUP 2,946,353,914 19.49% 19.49%

EDP Pension Fund * 319,113,690 2.11% 2.11%

TOTAL FOR EDP GROUP 319,113,690 2.11% 2.11%

BlackRock, Inc.** 427,218,720 2.83% 2.83%

TOTAL FOR BLACKROCK GRoup 427,218,720 2.83% 2.83%

7,782,476,103 51.5% 51.5%

TOTAL OF QUALIFYING STAKES

* Allocation according to article 20 (1.f) of the Securities Code.

**According to the communication of 29 December 2017.

The voting rights referred to above are the result of the direct and indirect stakes of Shareholders in the share
capital of Banco Comercial Portugués. No other imputation of voting rights foreseen in article 20 of the Securities
Code was communicated or calculated.
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Regulatory, Economic and Financial System
Framework

REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

The regulatory agenda in 2017 was essentially marked, at the international level, by the finalization of Basel Ill and
by the discussion of the European Commission's proposal to revise the capital requirements and banking resolution
framework and, at a national level, by the adoption of regulation regarding conduct and macro prudential
supervision.

The Basel Committee finalized the Basel Ill proposed amendments with the purpose of enhancing the quality of
banks' capital and reducing the variability of risk-weighted assets. The main changes refer to internal models,
standardized credit risk method, revised market risk and operational risk framework. The agreement will be
implemented from 2022, with a transitional period of seven years.

On 23 November 2016, the European Commission presented a comprehensive package of risk reduction proposals
aimed at the banking sector, comprising measures relating to capital requirements and bank recovery and
resolution measures. The negotiations to agree on a final compromise text with the European Commission are
ongoing, nonetheless, given their urgency, amendments related to (i) the transition regime to reduce the impact
of the introduction of IFRS 9 on own funds; and, (ii) the position of the unsecured debt instruments in the insolvency
hierarchy (requiring transposition into national law) entered into force at the end of 2017.

Under the action plan and policies aimed at reducing the volume of non-performing loans (NPLs), the European
Commission submitted in early 2018 a proposal to amend the Capital Requirement Regulations (CRR), which
includes a minimum loss coverage for Non-performing assets (NPAs), as well as a proposal for a directive to
promote the recovery of collaterals through out-of-court procedures. The Capital Market Union continues to be a
strategic priority of the European Commission

At the national level, the transposition of the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID II/RMIF) is
undergoing. This regime extends the duties of trade transparency to a wider class of assets and derivative
contracts, together with the respective trading platforms, while establishing the requirements related with
automated and high frequency algorithmic trading. This Directive also defines the requirements for independent
investment advice, governance on the distribution and creation of new products and for information to be
provided to the Client.

The delegated regulation on the packaged retail investment and insurance products (PRIIP) entered into force at
the beginning of 2018 aimed at protecting consumers and establishing a common regulation for the key
information document to be provided to the Clients.

Other relevant issues in 2017 on the regulatory agenda relating to the Portuguese financial system include:

e Onloanconcession: The Decree-Lawno.74-A/2017, 0f 23 June, which entered into force on 1)anuary 2018, foreseeing,
within the regime for loans for the acquisition of real estate properties, the provision of pre-contractual information
and computation of the “APRC”, measures for the promotion of a responsible loan policy and the framework
encompassing the independent property appraiser, among others; and the Banco de Portugal’s Notice no. 4/2017, 22
September, that establishes the procedures and criteria to perform the customer creditworthiness assessment;

e  Onthedeposit and payment accounts: the Notice no. 3/2017 and Instruction no. 9/2017, from the Banco de Portugal,
that set the procedures for verification of the personal identity information and the determination of the requirements
applicable to the opening of bank deposits using remote channels; the Decree-Law no. 107/2017, 30 August,
regulating the change of payment accounts, the comparability of commissions, and the access to basic payment
accounts; and, the Payment Services Directive (PSD2) which is in the process of being transposed into national law;
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e On the financing of the economy: The Decree-Law no. 77/2017 of 30 June frames the measures to promote further
diversification of the funding sources of companies; and the Decree-Law n0.79/2017 of 30 June alters the Companies
Code and the Code for Insolvency and Recovery of Companies in order to simplify and speed up companies’
restructuring and capitalization procedures;

e  Atthe macroprudential level, the percentage of countercyclical reserve applicable to credit exposures to the domestic
non-financial private sector remained unchanged at 0% of the total amount of the positions at risk; and,

e Lastly, the General Data Protection Regulation (EU Regulation no. 679/2016) will apply from 25 May 2018 onwards.

These changes represent a demanding framework in terms of (i) binding requirements, (ii) implementing and
revising procedures, (iii) risk management (existing and emerging risks), (iv) reporting to supervisors and disclosure
to other stakeholders, (v) security of operations and data quality, and, (vi) the prospects for the business. Therefore,
the Bank has implemented or has in place several strategic projects aiming at the proper compliance with the
regulations and equipping the Bank with the necessary capacities and agility to face the challenges posed by the
constant evolution of the regulatory framework.
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

World’s economic environment

According to the International Monetary Fund  GLOBAL ECONOMIC GROWTH ACCELERATED IN 2017
(IMF), in 2017, the world economy is expected to  Annual growth rate of real GDP (in %)

have expanded by 3.7%, which if materialized would
correspond to the highest growth rate since 2011. 8 8

The acceleration of activity cut across most 6

economies. Among the developed economies it \__/

should be highlighted the better than expected Al TN~ — |

performance of the US and the Euro Area, which 2 |2

recorded growth rates of 23% and 2.5%,

respectively. In the case of the US, the expansion of 0 0
. 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018(p)

aggregate demand was supported mainly by the

recovery of non-residential investment, while in the

Euro Area the Ffavourable external -climate

benefitted exports, thereby offsetting the Source: IMF WEO (Jan 2018)

slowdown in consumption and fixed investment. Concerning the emerging economies, it is worth mentioning the

recovery of activity in Brazil, which grew 1.0% following two years of recession, and the absence of any signs of

deceleration in China, with GDP growth staying around 7% (6.9%).

o

World Economy —— Emerging economies
Developed economies

In 2018, the IMF foresees a firming of the current cycle of activity expansion, grounded on the rise of investment,
in particular in the developed countries. Thus, the growth rate of the world’s GDP is expected to rise from 3.7%, in
2017 to 3.9%, in 2018. The main uncertainty factors that could undermine this scenario hinge on the possibility of
a correction in the global financial markets, deepening protectionism and an intensification of geopolitical risks.

Global fFinancial markets

The year of 2017 was particularly favorable for financial markets, with expressive appreciations of the main asset
classes and surprisingly low volatility levels. This benign evolution resulted from the confluence of a set of positive
factors, including the acceleration of the world’s GDP, the continuation of extremely accommodative monetary
conditions at the global level and the dissipation of some of the most worrying geopolitical risks. In the US, positive
expectations relative to the effects of the economic policy of the new Administration propelled the equity indexes
to historic records, while in Europe, the euro stood out for the robustness and breadth of its appreciation, given
the more solid economic environment relative to the preceding years. The financial assets of the emerging markets
also evolved in a very satisfactory way, due to, on the one side, the generalized depreciation of the US dollar and,
on the other, the intensification of the recovery trajectory of the commodities’ sector, in particular of oil.

The unlikely combination of the acceleration of world economic growth with the absence of inflationary risks
allowed the main central banks to reduce very slightly the global degree of accommodation of monetary policy.
The US Federal Reserve continued to proceed
with the normalization of interest rates,
raising its key rate from 0.75% to 1.50% over
2017, and has also started the process of
reducing its balance sheet, through the 120 20
gradual sale of the debt securities ,M.,M

accumulated since 2009 under the strategy of 109

..;/Mww
|
quantitative easing. For its part, the ECB 15
announced the extension of its public and 80 b\wm//\l
private debt purchase program through A
September 2018, but reduced the monthly A;A‘N"l\, ) M/‘A n‘.j .

pace of securities purchases, having 60
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THE WORLD EQUITY INDEX VALUATED AND THE VOLATILITY
REMAINED AT LOW LEVELS

maintained all its key rates at the levels seen at
the end of 2016.

World equity index (Jan 2016=100)
Euro Stoxx banks equity index (Jan 2016=100)
Volatility Index (VIX)

Source: Datatsream
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Outlook for the Portuguese economy

In 2017 the Portuguese GDP grew 2.7%, which PORTUGUESE ECONOMY RECORDED STRONG GROWTH
corresponds to a strong acceleration relative to the

1.6% observed in 2016. The performance of the
Portuguese economy benefitted from the vigour of - B
external demand, both in terms of goods and of 0 I I | 0
tourism activity, as well as the rise in the
confidence of domestic economic agents, in a E %
context of lower interest rates, growing dynamism -4 -4
of the labor market and improvements in the 5 -
control of public finances. mar/12 mar/13 mar/14 mar/15 mar/16 mar/17

. . . M Annual GDP growth rate of real GDP
The improvement of the economic and financial Coincident Indicator (Millennium bep)

condition of Portugal made possible an upgrade of

the credit rating of the Portuguese Republic by  source:Datastream and Millennium beo

some of the main rating agencies to investment

grade, which, together with the ECB’s public debt purchase program, contributed to the expressive reduction of
the risk premia implicit in the Portuguese government bonds throughout 2017, with favourable repercussions on
the conditions with which domestic issuers access capital markets.

In 2018, the process of consolidation of the Portuguese economic recovery is expected to continue, supported by
the dynamism of exports and by the progressive strengthening of investment, while private consumption is
expected to evolve in a more moderate fashion, due to the low level of the savings rate.

International operations

In Poland, GDP expanded strongly in 2017 (4.6%) stemming from the rise in private consumption, stimulated by
wage acceleration and the improvement in employment, and also by the expansion of public investment. Although
this performance carries inflationary risks, the inflation rate stood at levels compatible with the central bank’s goal,
which made it possible to maintain the key interest rates unaltered. In terms of foreign exchange, the Zloty drew
an appreciation trajectory throughout the year, reflecting the good performance of the Polish economy along with
the positive sentiment in international financial markets. In 2018, the European Commission reckons that the
recovery of investment will not be enough to compensate the deceleration of private consumption, meaning that
the growth pace of GDP should slow down to levels closer to 4.0%.

Mozambique continues to face a challenging macroeconomic environment. The strong slowdown of activity
observed in 2016 in the wake of the fall in the prices of commodities, the deterioration of public finances and the
loss of confidence of foreign investors as a result of the release of information regarding the indebtedness of some
important state-owned companies, continued to penalize the economic performance in 2017. According to the
IMF the GDP growth rate in 2017 is likely to have stood at 3.0%. Nevertheless, for the whole year, the Metical has
appreciated, recovering partially from the strong depreciation in 2016, which together with a tighter monetary
policy contributed to the reduction of the inflation rate in the second half of the year. In this context, the
implementation of a program of robust economic policies aimed at correcting the structural imbalances and the
development of a climate favorable to productive activities is instrumental in enabling Mozambique to return to
higher GDP growth rates and to stimulate the benefits of the on-going megaprojects.

In Angola, there remain important challenges concerning the correction of the macroeconomic imbalances that
have surfaced in the wake of the fall of oil prices in international financial markets in 2015/2016. Still, the
government estimates GDP to have grown 0.9% in 2017, following the stagnation observed in the previous year,
and has strongly committed to implement important structural reforms with the goal of breaking the current cycle
of low growth and high inflation levels.

GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT

Annual growth rate (in %)

T es T 016 2017 2018 2019
European Union 23 2.0 25 2.1 1.8
Portugal 1.6 1.6 27 22 18
Poland 39 2.6 4.6 33 3.0
Sub-Saharan Africa 3.4 14 27 33 35
Angola 3.0 -0.7 1.0 23 14
Mozambique 6.6 38 30 3.0 25

Source: IMF and national statistics institutes

IMF estimate (M arch 2018)
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FINANCIAL SYSTEM FRAMEWORK

The early repayment of the remaining outstanding Core Tier 1 hybrid instruments (“CoCos”) by BCP to the
Portuguese State at the beginning of the year was one of the main events of the Portuguese banking system in
2017.The full reimbursement allowed, on the one hand, to successfully conclude the State support to BCP, and, on
the other hand, to mark the normalization of the Bank’s activity and the full recovery of its autonomy, both being
critical aspects to the recovery and stabilization process of the banking sector in Portugal, considering BCP’s size
and systemic importance.

The evolution and performance of the banking system in 2017 continued to be conditioned by the implementation
and revision of regulation and legislation, and by even more demanding and costlier supervision. In addition, it was
also marked by the strengthening of the capital levels (e.g. capital increase in Caixa Geral de Depésitos, BCP, Novo
Banco and Caixa Econdmica Montepio Geral), by the completion of the Public Offering for Acquisition of Banco
BPI’s common shares launched by its majority shareholder Caixabank, and on Caixa Econémica Montepio Geral's
participation units launched by its majority shareholder Montepio Geral Associacdo Mutualista, by the closing of
the sale process Novo Banco to Lone Star and by the integration of the former Banco Popular Portugal into Banco
Santander Totta.

During 2017, the clear signs of recovery of the core banking items (e.g. improvement in net interest income, despite
the maintenance of reference interest rates at minimum levels, and reduction of operating costs, with the
improvement of the efficiency levels reflecting the operational restructuring initiatives implemented by the banks)
and the significant reduction of non-performing loans (via sales and write-offs) combined with the reinforcement
of coverage by provisions and collateral, allowed the improvement of the profitability of the domestic activities of
the main banks, with the exception of Novo Banco, which presented significant losses. The current restructuring
plan of Novo Banco initiated by the new shareholder following the closing of sale process, associated with the
activation of the Contingent Capitalization Mechanism established in the sale agreements of the controlling
shareholder position, together with potential financial needs arising from both the resolution of Banco Espirito
Santo and BANIF, represent risks to the banking system.

In spite of the challenges associated with the need to adapt to both the new regulatory context and the new
competitive environment (namely in some business segments associated with the expansion of the offer boosted
by the technological innovation inherent to the entry into force of the new Payment Services Directive 2 “PSD2”),
2018 will be crucial to sustaining the improvement of profitability, asset quality and risk indicators of the
Portuguese banking system. The improvement of the domestic and international macroeconomic forecast will
contribute to that end, together with operational restructuring programs already undertaken or underway by the
main banks, the new strategic plans, the capital increases already carried out and the comfortable liquidity levels.

32



Business Model

NATURE OF THE OPERATIONS AND MAIN ACTIVITIES

The Group provides a wide variety of banking services and financial activities in Portugal and abroad, where it is
present in the following markets: Poland, Switzerland, Mozambique, Angola (through its associate BMA) and China.
Allits banking operations develop their activity under the Millennium brand. The Group also ensures its presence
in the five continents of the world through representation offices and/or commercial protocols.

The Bank offers a vast range of financial products and services: current accounts, payment systems, savings and
investment products, private banking, asset management and investment banking, including mortgage loans,
consumer credit, commercial banking, leasing, factoring and insurance, among others. The back-office operations
for the distribution network are integrated to benefit from economies of scale.

In Portugal, Millennium bcp is focused on the retail and companies markets, providing services to its Customers in
a segmented manner. The subsidiary companies generally provide their products through the Bank's distribution
networks, offering a wide range of products and services.

DISTINCTIVE FACTORS AND SUSTAINABILITY OF THE BUSINESS MODEL

Largest privately-owned banking institution

Millennium bcp is Portugal's largest privately-owned banking institution, with a position of leadership and
particular strength in various financial products, services and market segments based on a modern branch network
with good territorial cover at a national level.

The activity in the domestic market focuses on Retail Banking, which is segmented in order to best serve Customer
interests, both through a value proposition based on innovation and speed targeted at Mass-Market Customers,
and through the innovation and personalised management of service for Prestige, Business Customers,
Companies, Corporates and Large Corporates. Retail Banking also has a bank aimed specifically at Customers who
are young in spirit, intensive users of new communication technologies and prefer a banking relationship based on
simplicity and offering innovative products and services: ActivoBank.

The Bank also offers remote banking channels (banking service by telephone and online), which operate as
distribution points for its financial products and services.

At the end of December 2017, the Bank had 578 branches in Portugal (including 1 branch in Macau), serving over
2.4 million Customers, and held the position of second bank (first privately-owned bank) in terms of market share
for both loans to Customers (17.4%), and customer deposits (17.2%).

Resilience and sustainability of the business model

The resilience of the business model is primarily based on the Bank's concentration on retail banking, more stable
and less volatile by nature, in relation to the lower weight of financial operations. The Bank adopted a new business
model based on a new segmentation of its Customers, a review of the products and services that it offers and the
adjustment of its back-office and branch network, as well as on the desire of becoming closer to its Customers,
while at the same time reducing operating costs. The purpose of the Bank is to ensure sustainable profitability in
the medium and long term, seeking to become the best in class in terms of operational efficiency, improving
operating profit in a sustainable manner and maintaining a high level of control on credit risk, thus preserving its
strategic position in the Portuguese retail and SME banking services market.

In January 2017 the Bank announced a share capital increase of 1.3 billion Euros through the issue of subscription
rights, plus the private placement of 175 million Euros subscribed by Chiado (Luxembourg, a subsidiary company
of Fosun International Holdings Limited (“Fosun”), completed on 18 November 2016 with the objective of speeding
up the return of the Bank's activity to normalization, including the potential payment of dividends, instead of the
phased approach used until then. The issue of rights strengthened the goals of the strategic plan, consisting in the
improvement of the profit and loss account induced by the increase of the financial margin (supported by the
reduction in the cost of funding due to the repayment of the CoCos and re-pricing of deposits), by the control on
costs and the normalization of the cost of risk in Portugal; and improvement of the balance sheet, improving the
capital and risk positions, based on the ongoing reduction of non-performing exposures. Total demand recorded
in the share capital increase represented around 122.9% of the offer amount. In February 2017, Banco Comercial
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Portugués carried out the early repayment to the Portuguese State of the remaining Core Tier 1 capital hybrid
instruments (“CoCos”), amounting to 700 million Euros. Together with the early repayment of the CoCos, the share
capital increase intended to cancel the key restrictions related with the State aid, including the prohibition to
distribute dividends, the potential risk of having to sell core businesses and the risk of the conversion of the CoCo
bonds into a shareholding.

Innovation and capacity to deliver

Since its incorporation, the Bank has built a reputation associated with innovation. The Bank was the first Bank in
Portugal to introduce specific innovative concepts and products, including direct marketing methods, layouts
based on customer profiles, salary accounts, simpler branches ("NovaRede"), telephone banking services, through
Banco 7, which later became the first online banking services platform, health insurance (Médis) and direct
insurance, and a website dedicated to individual Customers and corporate banking. The Bank was also a pioneer in
the launching of a new Internet Banking concept, based on the ActivoBank platform, which provides a simplified
service to the customer, including the opening of a current account using a tablet.

Internet & Mobile

With the purpose of continuing to improve its information systems, the Bank developed a number of structuring
initiatives and projects in 2017, several of them part of Project Moving Forward of which we highlight:

e Within the scope of the internet channel, we must emphasize the new loan simulator for home loans available on the
website and the technological renewal of the companies website.

e Regarding Mobile Banking, highlights include the new version of the Millennium App with new tools and the possibility
of transferring or receiving funds to or from any part of the world through Western Union, and the Face ID tool for users
with iPhone X; the loan simulator for consumer loans accessible via App or Mobile Web; and the Corporate App that
enables the Customer to authorize and complete factoring and confirming operations.

e Regarding Branch modernization and customer service, highlights include: i) simplification of the SWOC factoring and
confirming proposals; i) the several upgrades made to Caixa Solution and the multiple upgrades implemented in the
business action platform; iii) the Go Paperless Project already available at all Retail Branches with the use of electronic
signature in tablets extended to new processes. lit is now possible to subscribe to, block and redefine the multichannel
code, and execute several cashier transactions with Customer’s intervention, the most representative in the entire retail
network in a fully digital, paperless manner; iv) the dematerialisation of the MiFID documents, subscription and
redemption of open unit linked, purchase and sale of certificates and of shares; v) the ability to sign digitally through
the digital certificate using the citizen’s card, being some of these options already available for ActivoBank; vi) the
installation of the Millennium transaction machines at Retail Branches; vii) the cross networking solution that
accelerates the detection of business opportunities resulting from the assessment made to the relations established
by Company Customers with the remaining entities within the scope of the ecosystem where they operate.

e Within the context of new products and services, we must point out, among other things, the new application for
capturing bank deposits; i) the new solution for the opening and maintenance of individual and company accounts, a
process which is transversal to the entire network, focused mainly on simplification and dematerialisation; iii) the
inclusion of preventive actions in the retail recovery management procedures; iv) online credit with immediate funding
and subscription of related insurance policies; v) the launching of the M Seguros App with access to the detail of
insurance policies and the download of the documents; vi) the Millennium Moove App which enables retailers to use a
smartphone or tablet with an integrated payment app, with a small card reader; vii) the creation of an integrated
solution for the segment Kids 0-13 and of the Non-Habitual Residents status viii) the possibility of receiving the card
PIN by SMS when the same is requested using the phone channel or online; the transversal implementation in the Retail
Loan App for the sending of a loan simulation, proposal or agreement by e-mail (individuals); and ix) the provision of an
innovative solution that humanizes the contact with customers, who are managed online, by providing them with their
Manager’s photo (MContacto).

Innovation and simplification marked the launching of new tools in the digital channels of Millennium bcp,
increasing the differentiation of the offer and enhancing the user’s experience. In 2017 the following new tools in
the several channels stood out:
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Mobile

Individuals

e  Widget for consultation of the balance of the securities account without having to log in;

e  Confirm PIN reception for debit, credit or prepaid cards;

e Twin Credit Cards Activation

e MContacto and Dossier Prestige (tools exclusive for Prestige Clients);

e  Changingthe App language regardless of the language settings on the device;

e  Personal loan simulator, online credit request and contract;

e  Simulator of home loans, with online loan request;

e Western Union transfers service;

e  Pending operations for savings and subscription of integrated solutions of products and services;

e MSeguros App enabling the Client to view all the information and documents regarding insurance policies.

Companies
e  Creation of an area exclusively for Aplauso 2017 Companies.
e  Simplified login registry;

e Authorization of pending Factoring and Confirming operations;

Individuals website

e The MCash Service, a tool that enables the Client to, by means of only one code generated on the website, withdraw
money at a Millennium bcp Branch;

e  RequestaPIN by SMSto activate the card;

e Anewmortgage loan simulator that allows the Client to save and send the simulations, as well as send the loan request
for analysis. New area to view the simulations saved and follow-up the current situation of the proposals.

Digital Sales

The Bank tried to improve sale processes so as to ensure a dynamic experience during all the moments of the digital
experience and, in this way, increase and enhance the consumption experiences.

In 2017 we can especially highlight:

e Improvement of the online consumer loans simulator and inclusion of the sale of the insurance policies associated with
the consumer loan in the digital channels. The sale of Personal Loans through the digital platforms increased from 4%
in 2016 to 9% of the Bank’s total sales. Introduction of a new mortgage loan simulator on the website and App.

e Millennium bepis leader in Portugal in online brokerage, with a 23% share, a position it had not achieved for more than
10 years. The MTrader solution significantly contributed to the achievement by the Bank of this leading position. This
stock exchange information and trading platform, innovative and distinctive in the Portuguese market, was
distinguished in 2017 with the award Best Capital Market Promotion Initiative, attributed by Euronext, and won the
category Agile of the Millennium Valores awards, receiving an honourable mention in the category Modern.

e Theterm deposit exclusive to the Millennium App significantly contributed to the capture of new Customer funds. The
weight of the digital channel in savings already represents 24% of total transactions, 32% in Investment Funds and
65% in certificates.

Communication with Customers

In 2017, the communication of Millennium consolidated the positioning and values launched in 2016 based on the
commitment — “Aqui Consigo” (Here with you/Here | can).

As the beginning of the year represented a turning point in the Bank’s history, due to the conclusion of the
restructuring plan, the communication developed during 2017 was driven by that renewal and new beginning. In
fact, all the communication actions made throughout the year were the unquestionable image of the intention to
provide an offer that will allow the Bank to become a true partner in the day-to-day’s activities of its Clients,
complemented with a service of excellence and an increasing commitment towards technological innovation.
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The commercial communication maintained its focus on innovation and in the capture of new clients, trying to
reach all business segments.

Together with the Institutional campaign - which enabled Millennium to strengthen its commitment to the market
and with its Clients, translated in the statement ““Um Banco que esteve, estd e sempre estara aqui consigo” (A
bank that was, is, and will always be with you) — we must underline the set of credit products campaigns for
individuals and also the communication developed for companies (especially focused on Portugal 2020 funding,
through events held throughout the country) and for Residents abroad, namely the usual summer festivities held
during August..

This Communication strategy continues to strongly rely on digital channels and on social networks, namely
YouTube, Instagram, LinkedIn and Facebook (enabling Millennium to become leader in the bank industry regarding
interactions with its users), together with a policy of sponsorship of events that guarantees a strong presence of
the Bank near Clients and Non-Clients.

In this particular, highlights include the sponsoring of the Millennium Estoril Open, the Festival ao Largo
Millennium, the RFM Somnii, as well as the Online Dance Company powered by Millennium, of which Millennium is
the exclusive sponsor and whose digital videos and live performances enabled the Bank to considerably increase
its relation with young people, reflected in the significant growth in the number of Clients in the Youth segment.
On the other hand, we must point out the events held for clients such as the Jornadas Millennium from the north
to the south of Portugal, as well as the launching of the Millennium Horizontes Awards, which aim at distinguishing
the companies with a greater success in innovation, exports, internationalisation and micro-enterprises.

The communication strategy developed by Millennium has been recognized, year after year, by different official
entities and in 2017, the Bank won a number of high prestige and recognition awards, including: the Gold Efficiency
Award in Financial Services and Insurances with the "Aqui Consigo” campaign; the Silver Award in the category
Banking, Finances and Insurances of the Meios & Publicidade Marketing Awards for the “Aqui Consigo” campaign;
Marketeer Award in Banking and, for the 13th consecutive time, Millennium bcp was considered a Superbrand.

MAIN AWARDS RECEIVED

In 2017, the Group's Banks received several awards, of which the following are noteworthy:

Best Consumer Digital Bank

Consumer Choice Award 2018 A
5D
Consumer Choice Award : > Global Finance.
G,_,_"E
Portugal Portugal and Poland
Best website A, Best Consumer Digital Bank
g 2
Award PC Guia > Global Finance.
Gty
Portugal Portugal and Poland
{é% Best Foreign Exchange Bank o Banking Category
Gtk Global Finance. M35 Marketeer
Portugal Portugal
Communication Efficiency Best Commercial Bank
'!\EF!CI'\CIA

Efficiency Awards
Portugal

World Finance

Activobank Portugal

Best Training and Development

#1 in traditional and mobile banking

o7
A

cacemy \/_O Newsweek Friendly Bank
HR Awards s b

Poland

Best financial services website/App
ACEPI Navegantes
Portugal

Best Bank in Social Responsibility
Euromoney
Poland
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The closest Bank, more innovative
and with more appropriate products
DataE

Best Bank in Mozambique

The Banker and Global Finance

Mozambique

Portugal
Consumer’s Choice Best Bank
Superbrands Euromoney
Portugal and Mozambique Mozambique
] Model for the transformation of a Best Bank in Trade Finance
§ Nobl Branch Clbakecr
T, AWARDS Global Finance.

Celent Model Bank Award

Mozambique

COMPETITIVE POSITIONING

At the end of December 2017, Millennium bcp was the largest Portuguese privately-owned bank with a relevant
position in the countries where it operates.

The Bank offers a wide range of banking products and financial services, directed at Individuals and Companies,
has a leading position in the Portuguese financial market and is positioned to benefit from the recovery of the
Portuguese economy, mainly through the support that the Bank provides to Companies.

Its mission of ensuring excellence, quality service and innovation are values which make the Bank distinctive and
differentiated versus the competition.

On 31 December 2017, operations in Portugal accounted for 72% of total assets, 75% of total loans to Customers
(gross) and 73% of total customer funds. In December 2017, the Bank had over 2.4 million Customers in Portugal
and market shares of 17.4% and 17.2% for loans to Customers and customer deposits, respectively.

Millennium bcp is also present in the five continents of the world through its banking operations, representation
offices and/or commercial protocols, serving over 5.4 million Customers, at the end of December 2017.

Concerning the operations in Africa, Millennium bcp operates through Millennium bim, a universal bank that has
been operating since 1995 in Mozambique, where it has over 1.3 million Customers and is the leading bank, with
27.3% of loans and advances to Customers and 26.9% of deposits. Millennium bim is a highly reputed brand in the
Mozambican market, associated with innovation, major penetration in terms of electronic banking and exceptional
capacity to attract new Customers, as well as being a reference in terms of profitability.

The deed of the merger of Banco Millennium Angola, S.A. with Banco Privado Atlantico, S.A. was signed on 22 April
2016. The bank resulting from the merger is an associate of Banco Comercial Portugués.

In Poland, Bank Millennium has a well distributed network of branches, supported on a modern multi-channel
infrastructure, a reference service quality, high recognition of the brand, a robust capital base, comfortable
liquidity and solid risk management and control. As at 31 December 2017, Bank Millennium had a market share of
4.4% in loans to Customers and of 5.0% in deposits.

The Group has an operation in Switzerland since 2003, through a private banking platform offering personalised
quality services to the Group's high net worth Customers, comprising asset management solutions based on
rigorous research and profound knowledge of financial markets, underpinned by a robust commitment to risk
management and an efficient IT platform.

The Group has also been present in Asia since 1993, but it was only in 2010 that the activity of the existing branch
in Macau was expanded, through the attribution of a full license (onshore) aimed at establishing an international
platform for business operations between Europe, China and Portuguese-speaking African countries.

The Bank also has 10 representation offices (1 in the United Kingdom, 2 in Germany, 3 in Switzerland, 2 in Brazil, 1
in Venezuela, 1 in China, in Guangzhou and 1 in South Africa) and 5 commercial protocols (Canada, USA, Spain,
France and Luxembourg).

37



N7/ 2 s
Ls ‘/,/:///'////:// ’/;/7/////
Yy Yy
A _//7 % /
7

578 Branches

/

“”
/

USA

Commercial protocols

2 Representative offices

BRANCHES
BRANCHES OPERATING ON SATURDAYS

BRANCHES WITH DIFFERENTIATED WORKING HOURS

ACCESSIBLE BRANCHES FOR PEOPLE
WITH PHYSICAL DISABILITIES

REPRESENTATION OFFICES

COMMERCIAL AGREEMENTS

ao[][IRZ

(%) Includes branches of different networks sharing the same premises.

38



Germany o A

1 Representative office 355 Branches

Spain United Kingdom
Commercial protocols 1 Representative office
France Switzerland
Commercial protocols @ 1 Branch
Luxembourg

O 3 Representative offices

China

1 Representative office

Macao
1 Branch

Mozambique /
186 Branches

/

South Africa

1 Representative office v

o © e e o o 7

Angola
Equity accounted (22.5%)

Customers Internet Call Centre Mobile ATM® POS"*
Banking
Portugal 2,441,831 655,578 211,416 310,217 1,963 53,178
Poland 1,642,604 1,154,535 138,011 807,957 483 -
Switzerland 1,890 526 - - - -
Mozambique 1,338,768 19,907 3,576 499,419 504 9,526
Macao 3,462 - - - - -

Note: in Portugal are considered Customers/active users those who used Internet, Call Centre or Mobile Banking at least once in the last 90 days.
(*) Automated Teller Machines.
(**) Point of Sales.
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Performance versus the Strategic Plan Objectives

On 12 January 2017, the Bank confirmed its financial and operational business goals for 2018 within the scope of
the share capital increase operation concluded in February 2017, as follows:

e  CET1 (phasedin)and CET1 (fully implemented) of around 11%;
e  Loanstodeposits ratio at less than 100%;

e  Cost-to-Income ratio under 43%;

e  Cost-to-Core Income ratio under 50%;

e  Costofriskunder75b.p.;

e  ROE3of approximately 10%;

e Accumulated NPE reduction (2016-2018) of 3 billion Euros.

On 31 December 2017, the regulatory capital ratio Common Equity Tier | (CET1), in accordance with the phased-
in and fully implemented criteria, stood at 13.2% and 11.9%, respectively, both above the target for 2018 of around
11%. The loan-to-deposits liquidity ratio stood at 93%, complying with the objective defined for 2018 (<100%).

The Cost to Income ratio stood at 43.4% in 2017, above the 43% defined as the maximum threshold for 2018 and
the Cost Core Income (46.4%) is aligned with the target for 2018 (<50%).

The cost of risk is still above the objective set forth for 2018 (122 b.p. vs target of <75 b.), although it showed a
rather positive performance versus 2016 (216 b.p.) due to the relevant decrease in impairment and provisions.

ROE3 stood at 4.4%, below the objective of approximately 10% defined for 2018, but also evidencing a positive
performance versus 2016 (0.5%).

The accumulated NPE reduction from 2016 to 2017 was 3 billion euros, with the target achieved one year ahead
of schedule.

2017

CET’ Phased-in: 13.2%
Fully implemented: 11.9%

Loans-to-Deposits 93%
Cost-to-Income 43.4%
Cost-Core Income? 46.4%
Risk Cost 122 bp
ROE? 4.4%
Accumulated reduction of NPE (2016-2017) 3 billion Euros

T Amounts estimated including the year’s earnings
“Core income = net interest income + fees.
*Based on a fully implemented CET1 ratio of 11%.
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Results and Balance Sheet

The consolidated Financial Statements were prepared under the terms of Regulation (EC) 1606/2002, of 19 July (in
the version in force), and in accordance with the reporting model determined by the Banco de Portugal (Banco de
Portugal Notice 5/2005, in the version in force), following the transposition into Portuguese law of Directive
2003/51/EC, of 18 June, of the European Parliament and Council in the versions currently in force.

The consolidated financial statements are not directly comparable between 2016 and 2015, as result of the sale
of the entire shareholding held in the share capital of Millennium bcp Gestédo de Activos in May 2015 and of the
merger by incorporation of Banco Millennium Angola S.A. with Banco Privado Atlantico, S.A..

In view of the commitment signed with the Directorate-General for Competition of the European Commission (DG
Comp) regarding the Bank's Restructuring Plan, namely the implementation of a new approach in the investment
fund management business, the company Millennium bcp Gestdo de Activos was sold in May 2015 and the
earnings were presented under "income arising from discontinued operations", as at 31 December 2015.

In 2016, Banco Comercial Portugués, S.A. agreed to a merger by incorporation of Banco Millennium Angola, S.A.
with Banco Privado Atlantico, S.A. pursuant to which that entity was considered to be discontinued as of 31 March
2016. As at 31 December 2015, this subsidiary company's total assets and liabilities were recorded on the
consolidated balance sheet under the respective items, while the costs and earnings on 31 December 2016 and
2015 were entered in a single line named “income arising from discontinued operations”. After the merger, which
occurred on 30 April 2016, the assets and liabilities of Banco Millennium Angola were removed from the
consolidated balance sheet, and the shareholding in Banco Millennium Atlantico was recorded as associate and
the respective earnings were accounted using the equity method.

Nevertheless, in order to offer a clearer understanding of the evolution of the Group's net worth and to guarantee
that the figures are comparable, only for the purposes of this analysis, some balance sheet indicators are also
presented excluding the discontinued operations.

The figures associated to discontinued operations are shown separately, for the relevant periods, according to the
information provided in the consolidated financial statements approved by the shareholders and published by the
Bank. Discontinued operations encompassed within the period of time under analysis in this document include
Millennium bcp Gestéo de Activos (sold in May 2015), which are reflected under discontinued operations in 2015,
and Banco Millennium Angola, which was considered a discontinued operation in the first quarter of 2016 in the
wake of the merger with Banco Privado Atlantico, recorded under the same item in 2016 and 2015, since the
information as at 31 December 2015 was re-expressed for the consolidated financial statements of Millennium
bcp. The impacts on the discontinued operations item are reflected, regarding Millennium bcp Gestédo de Activos
in the 2015 income statements and, regarding Banco Millennium in Angola in the 2015 balance sheet items and in
the 2015 and 2016 income statements. We must point out that, in 2017 and 2016, the gains related with
Millennium bcp Gestéo de Ativos pursuant to adjustments to the sale price agreed for the sale of that company
were included in earnings from discontinued operations.
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In 2017 no changes were made to the information regarding previous financial years. Therefore, the figures re-
expressed for the purpose of ensuring the comparability of the information result exclusively from the situations
mentioned previously and already reported in previous years.

The evolution recorded by the activity of Millennium bcp in 2017 featured a sustained improvement of profitability
and efficiency, based on a positive performance of its core income (corresponding to the addition of the net
interest income and of net fees, minus operating costs).

Consolidated net income in 2017 totalled 186 million Euros, a positive performance in comparison with the
amount reached in the previous year (24 million Euros). The improvement in the Group’s performance was mainly
caused by the positive results achieved in Portugal, with a positive contribution of 39 million Euros, versus the 157
million Euros in losses reported in 2016.

Total assets of the Group increased from 71,265 million Euros as at 31 December 2016 to 71,939 million Euros on
31 December 2017, driven by the increase in the financial assets portfolio and in loans and advances to credit
institutions and Central Banks and by the decrease in loans to customers.

Loans to customers (gross) stood at 50,955 million Euros on 31 December 2017 versus the 51,758 million Euros
recorded in the previous year, mainly evidencing the deleveraging in Portugal of Non-performing exposures (NPE),
which fell by 1.8 billion Eurosin 2017. Apart from this effect, we must point out the growth in the performing loans
portfolio in Portugal (0.4 billion Euros), for the first time after 8 years, reflecting the recovery of the Portuguese
economy and the effort made by the commercial areas in the pursuit of the strategy to support families and
companies. In the international activity, loans to customers also evidenced a growth trend, mainly supported by
the performance of the subsidiary in Poland and by the effect produced by the zloty’s appreciation.

The total customer funds of Millennium bcp were redefined, with reference to 31 December 2017, reflecting, since
then, a broader concept in order to include amounts held by customers as part of existing agreements regarding
their placement and management, being considered comparable amounts for 2016 and 2015 periods.

Total customer funds recorded a 6.6% growth, totalling 71,386 million Euros on 31 December 2017 (66,978 million
Euros on 31 December 2016), based on the performance from balance sheet customer funds and from off-balance
sheet customer funds. Balance sheet customer funds evidenced a positive performance mainly caused by the
performance shown by customer deposits (resources from customers). Off-balance sheet customer funds also
showed a positive performance translated in the evolution recorded by assets under management and investment
funds and capitalisation products.
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PROFITABILITY ANALYSIS

NET INCOME

Consolidated net income of Millennium bcp stood at 186
million Euros in 2017, an expressive increase versus the 24
million Euros recorded in 2016, induced by the positive
performance of the activity in Portugal. The contribution
provided by international activity was affected by the impact
from the application of IAS 29 to Banco Millennium Atlantico,
since the Angolan economy is considered as a high inflation
economy by the international audit companies. Excluding the
impact mentioned above, the contribution from the
international activity remained stable versus the one achieved
in 2016.

The smaller amount of loan impairment charges was
determinant for the performance of the consolidated net
income, and it is also worth mentioning the positive input from
the reduction in other impairment and provisions and the
increase in net interest income. This positive performance was

partially offset by the increase in staff costs, conditioned by the positive impact recognized in 2016 due to the
revision/negotiation of the Collective Labour Agreement (ACT) net of restructuring costs (186 million Euros), the
lower amount in net trading income, influenced by the recording, also in 2016, of a gain of 96 million Euros due to
the purchase by Visa Inc of the stakes held by the Bank in Portugal and by Bank Millennium in Poland in Visa Europe,
and by the reduction in deferred tax income. The core income of Millennium bcp reached 1,104 million Euros versus
the 1,094 million Euros in 2016, triggered by the 13.1% growth in net interest income and 3.6% in net commissions,
notwithstanding the lower operating costs, these conditioned by the impact of the negotiation/revision of the ACT
in 2016, as mentioned above. Excluding the impact mentioned above, core income increased 20.0% versus the
figures recorded in 2016, originating an improvement in operational efficiency evidenced by the decrease in the
cost to core income ratio (which corresponds to the ratio between operating costs and the sum of net interest

NET INCOME
Million euros
235
186
272
24
) |
(37
2015 2016 2017

Not including extraordinary gains on Portuguese sovereign debt
in 2015, net of taxes, individualized due to their relevance.

income with net commissions) of 51.5% in 2016 to 47.1% in 2017 (also excluding specific items).
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QUARTERLY INCOME ANALYSIS

Million euros
2017

quar::: quaf&e(:' qualireclj' qua::::r:' Total 2016 2015
NET INTEREST INCOME 332 346 345 368 1,391 1,230 1,191
OTHER NET INCOME
Dividends from equity instruments 0 2 0 0 2 8 10
Net commissions 161 170 164 172 667 644 660
Net trading income 36 54 25 33 148 240 539
Other net operating income (15) (71) (10) (5) (102) (106) (120)
Equity accounted earnings 20 15 22 35 92 81 24
TOTAL OTHER NET INCOME 202 169 201 235 806 867 1,113
NET OPERATING REVENUES 534 515 545 603 2,197 2,097 2,304
OPERATING COSTS
Staff costs 137 105 139 146 527 357 574
Other administrative costs 89 94 92 99 374 374 389
Depreciation 13 13 14 14 54 50 54
TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 238 212 244 260 954 780 1,017
OPERATING RESULTS 296 303 301 344 1,243 1,317 1,286
IMPAIRMENT
For loans (net of recoveries) 149 156 154 165 624 1,117 818
Other impairment and provisions 54 56 60 131 301 481 160
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 93 91 88 47 318 (281) 308
INCOME TAX
Current 28 27 28 19 102 113 91
Deferred 9) 2 9) (52)  (72) (495) (54)
NTLOM/NCONEATEIRCOME TR RO 3 om0 o1 o
Income from discontinued operations 0 1 0 0) 1 45 90
NET INCOME AFTER INCOME TAX 73 68 68 80 290 146 361
Non-controlling interests 23 28 25 27 103 122 126
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF - 10 “ = 186 o4 35

THE BANK
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Regarding the activity in Portugal, net income increased by
196 million Euros versus the amount obtained in 2016,
amounting to 39 million Euros in 2017, particularly influenced
by the sharp decrease in the need for provisions for credit and
other assets and liabilities.

Regarding international activity, net income totalled 146
million Euros in 2017, comparing to 173 million Euros reached
in previous year. Excluding the impact of the IAS 29
application to Banco Millennium Atlantico, which considers

NET INCOME
Activity in Portugal

Million euros

44

Angola as a high inflation economy, net income of the f—
International activity would have totalled 175 million Euros, I228) l“57)
taking into consideration that the larger contribution of the

2015 2016 2017

Mozambican operation was only partially mitigated by the
less favourable contribution from Cayman and Angola.

Not [nclu&rgjﬁ@amqma‘ry ga[ljs on Portugue§e sovereign debt
Bank Millennium in Poland reported a net profit of 160 million NEZoIH eo ndviduslized due to theirrelevance.
Euros in 2017, similar to 2016. Excluding the zloty
appreciation effect, net income would have decreased 2.9%
when compared to 2016, given the larger costs with the
Resolution Fund and the Polish banking tax, and the register,
in 2016, of a gain from the sale of Visa Europe shares. Banking
income presented a favourable performance, driven by core
income growth, partially mitigated by the increase in 177 173 146
operating costs and loan impairment.

International activity

Million euros

Millennium bim in Mozambique recorded a net income of 85
million Euros, showing an increase of 19% compared to the
71 million Euros recorded in 2016, associated with banking
income growth, supported by net interest income
performance, which benefitted from higher average
reference interest rates, regardless of the increase in
operating costs and impairment and provisions, and the
decrease in net trading income.

2015 2016 2017

Millennium Banque Privée in Switzerland registered a net income of 7 million Euros in 2017, higher than the 6
million Euros shown last year, due to banking income’s positive evolution (commissions and net interest income)
and to lower loan impairment, despite the unfavourable evolution of other administrative costs and staff costs.

Millennium bcp Bank & Trust in the Cayman Islands, excluding the foreign exchange effects not relevant for
consolidated purposes, presented a net income of 2 million Euros in 2017, lower than the 7 million Euros result
recorded last year, due to the unfavourable evolution of loan impairment and net trading income, which were
partially compensated by the favourable performance of net interest income and staff costs.

Regarding Angola, the contribution to international activity net income in 2017 totalled 0.1 million Euros, of which
positive 29 million Euros related to equity method application to Banco Millennium Atléntico net income before
IAS 29 impact, and negative 28 million Euros referred to IAS 29 impact. Last year, the contribution amounted to 32
million Euros, of which 18 million Euros corresponded to 50.1% of the former Banco Millennium Angola’s net
income in the first four months of the year (consolidated under the full method) and 13 million Euros concerned
Banco Millennium Atlantico results registered under the equity method in the remaining months of the year.
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NET INCOME OF FOREIGN ACTIVITY

Million euros

2017 2016 2015 C'}a;‘/';yg
Bank Millennium in Poland (1) 160 160 131 0.0%
Millennium bim in Mozambique (1) 85 71 84 19.5%
BANCO MILLENNIUM ATLANTICO (2)
Before the impact of IAS29 29 50 76 -43.1%
Impact of IAS29 (28)
BMA AFTER THE IMPACT OF 1AS29 (2) 0 50 76
Millennium Banque Privée in Switzerland 7 6 6 16.2%
Millennium bep Bank & Trust in the Cayman Islands (3) 2 7 5

Non-controlling interests

NET INCOME FROM THE INTERNATIONAL ACTIVITY

NET INCOME FROM THE INTERNATIONAL ACTIVITY EXCLUDING 1AS29 IMPACT 175 173 177 1.0%

(108) (122) (125) 11.3%

146 173 177 -15.4%

(1) The amounts showed are not deducted from non-controlling interests.

(2) Following the merger of BMA with BPA, BMA was considered as a discontinued operation in the first quarter of 2016. The amounts presented
correspond to the proportion of the results of Banco Millennium Angola appropriated by the Group up to the date of the merger, considering the
full consolidation method and the proportion of the results of Banco Millennium Atlantico appropriated by the Group after the date of the merger,

considering the equity method.

(3) Amounts adjusted from exchange effects that are not material on a consolidated basis.

Note: Net income of 2017 (after taxes and non-controlling interests) attributable to the international operations amounted to 146 million euros. For
the same period, net income from Poland amounted to 160 million Euros (of which 80 million Euros attributable to the Bank).The null result of the
activity in Angola, associated to the contribution of Banco Millennium Atlantico to the consolidated, calculated by the equity method, was
conditioned by the impact of IAS 29. Net income from Mozambique ascended to 85 million Euros (of which 57 million Euros attributable to the Bank).

Net income from the activities in Switzerland and in the Cayman Islands were fully attributable to the Bank.

NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income stood at 1,391 million Euros in
2017, a 13.1% growth versus the 1,230 million
Euros recorded in 2016 due to the positive
performance of the activity in Portugal and of all the
subsidiary companies abroad, notably of the
operations in Poland and Mozambique.

The performance of net interest income in 2017
mainly shows the decrease in funding costs due to
the repayment, in the first quarter of 2017, of the
remaining tranche of the issue of hybrid
instruments (700 million Euros) subscribed by the
Portuguese State (CoCo bonds), the ongoing
decrease in the cost of term deposits, the fall in
interest from issued debt securities and the income
associated with targeted longer-term refinancing
operations (“TLTRO”), which did not exist in 2016.
Regarding assets, the smaller yield of the loans
portfolio was offset by higher interest rates in the
Group’s financial assets portfolio.

NET INTEREST INCOME

Millicn euros

2.27%
1.89% 205% -
1,256 1,296 1,398
65 66 [
1,191 1,230 1391
2015 2016 2007

B Net interest income

m Net interest margin {excl cost of CoCos)

=sges Nef interest margin (excl cost of CoCos)
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Net interest income generated by the activity in

Portugal increased 9.7% versus the 736 million NET INTEREST INCOME
Euros in 2016, standing at 808 million Euros in Activity in Portugal
2017. This performance was induced by the fall in
the cost of funding. This positive impact was 1.84%
partially offset by the reduction in the interest from 1.74% )

loans and debt securities portfolios. 1‘632‘; * -

Million euros

The decrease in the cost of funding in Portugal

reflects the smaller costs for debt securities issued, 777 802 814
due to the repayment of the remaining tranche of 65 66 ]
CoCo bonds in the first quarter of 2017 and the 711 736 808
replacement, in the first six months of 2017, of an

issue of mortgage bonds by another, of an equal

amount, but with a substantially lower coupon.

Regarding resources from customers,
notwithstanding theincrease in volume in 2017, the
associated costs decreased due to the maintenance
of a trend for low interest rates. Moreover, in 2017, m Net interest margin (excl cost of CoCos)
income from interest associated with TLTRO, which
did not exist in 2016, contributed positively for the
increase of net interest income.

2015 2016 207
B Net interest income

—ar— Net interest margin (excl cost of CoCos)

The domestic loan portfolio originated, in 2017, a

yield lower than the one recorded in 2016, due to NET INTEREST INCOME
the lesser volume of credit and to the negative
impact of interest rates, which also penalized the
yield of the securities portfolio in 2017. Million euros

International activily

Net interest income of the international activity
stood at 583 million Euros, evidencing an 18.1% 254% 275% 301%
increase versus the 494 million Euros recorded in £

2016, due to the positive performance of all the

subsidiary companies, particularly the operations in

Poland and Mozambique.

The performance of net interest income in the 479 494 583
international activity reflects the increase in profits

generated by loan and securities portfolios that

largely exceeded the cost of customer deposits. In

Mozambique, the positive performance of net

interest income was essentially due to the

performance shown by interest rates and their 2015 2016 2017
positive impact on the income generated by assets,

which exceeded the increase in costs with customer —a— Net interest margin

deposits. In Poland, net interest income also showed
a positive performance, benefiting especially from credit expansion and from the improvement of intermediation
rates and, to a lesser extent, from the positive performance of the securities portfolio and of customer deposits.

In 2017, average net assets decreased from the 73,685 million Euros recorded in 2016 to stand at 72,669 million
Euros. This performance reflects the reduction of interest earning assets, namely the average balance of loans to
customers, which stood at 47,861 million Euros compared to the 49,428 million Euros recorded in 2016, partially
offset by the increase in the average balance of financial assets, which grew from 10,396 million Euros in 2016 to
11,163 million Euros in 2017.

Average interest bearing liabilities in total declined to 63,791 million Euros in 2017, compared to 65,279 million
Euros in 2016, reflecting the decrease in the average balance of deposits from credit institutions to 9,140 million
Euros in 2017 versus 10,497 million Euros in 2016, the reduction of the average balance of issued debt and
financial liabilities to 3,162 million Euros, versus 4,123 million Euros in 2016, combined with the performance of
subordinated debt’s average balance from 1,649 million Euros in 2016 to 929 million Euros in 2017, determined
by the repayment of the remaining CoCo bonds, which was carried out in the first three months of 2017. On the
other hand, average interest bearing liabilities plus customer deposits amounted to 50,560 million Euros on
average in 2017 versus 49,010 million Euros in 2016, benefiting from the increase in the balance of demand
deposits, notwithstanding the lower position reached by term deposits.
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In terms of the average balance sheet structure, the average balance of interest earning assets represented 85.4%
of the average net assets in 2017, as in the previous year. Loans to customers remained as the principal source of
interest bearing assets despite decreasing its relative weight in the balance sheet structure by representing 65.9%
of average net assets in 2017 (67.1% in 2016). The financial assets portfolio increased its relative weight in the
balance sheet structure from 14.1% in 2016 to 15.4% in 2017.

AVERAGE BALANCES

Million euros

2017 2016 2015
Average Average Average
Yield Yield Yield
Balance Balance Balance
INTEREST EARNING ASSETS
Deposits in credit institutions 3,070 0.93% 3,085 0.62% 3,015 0.87%
Financial assets 11,163 2.27% 10,396 2.08% 10,184 2.55%
Loans and advances to customers 47,861 3.29% 49,428 3.25% 52,318 3.45%
TOTAL INTEREST EARNING ASSETS 62,094 2.99% 62,909 2.92% 65,517 3.19%
Discontinued operations (1) - 731 2,000
Non-interest earning assets 10,575 10,045 9,611
TOTAL ASSETS 72,669 73,685 77,128
INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
Amounts owed to credit institutions 9,140 0.05% 10,497 0.28% 10,712 0.59%
Resources from customers 50,560 0.65% 49,010 0.70% 48,993 1.12%
Debt issued and financial liabilities 3,162 2.70% 4123 3.25% 5,318 3.47%
Subordinated debt 929 6.90% 1,649 7.33% 1,837 6.71%
TOTAL INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES 63,791 0.76% 65,279 0.96% 66,860 1.37%
Discontinued operations (1)
- 684 1,795
Non-interest bearing liabilities 2,116 2,414 2,919
Shareholders' equity and Non-controlling interests 6,762 5,308 5,554
TOTAL LIABILITIES, SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 72,669 73,685 77,128
NET INTEREST MARGIN (2) 2.21% 1.92% 1.79%
Excluding cost of hybrid financial instruments 2209 203% 189%

(CoCos)

(1) Includes the activity from Millennium bep Gestao de Activos (sold in May 2015) and respective consolidation adjustments. In the context of the
BMA merger with BPA, BMA was considered a discontinued operation in the first quarter of 2016 and, for comparative purposes, the information of
December 2015 was re-presented.

(2) Net interest income as a percentage of average interest earning assets.

Note: Average balance calculated based on monthly average of end of month balances, accumulated in the period. Interest related to hedge
derivatives were allocated, in 2017,2016 and 2015, to the respective balance item.
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In the structure of average interest bearing liabilities, customer deposits continued to be the main source of
funding and support of the intermediation activity, increasing its importance for the liabilities structure by
representing 79.3% of the average interest bearing liabilities balance in 2017 (75.1% in 2016). On the other hand,
the component of debt securities issued and financial liabilities showed a reduction of their weight in the average
balance of interest bearing liabilities from 6.3% in 2016 to 5.0% in 2017. The relative weight of subordinated
liabilities in interest bearing liabilities also decreased, standing at 1.5% in 2017 versus 2.5% in 2016, determined
by the repayment of the remaining CoCo bonds during the first three months of 2017.

The performance of the average equity balance reflects essentially the share capital increase carried out in the first
quarter of 2017, plus the increase of fair value reserves and of net earnings generated in the financial year.

Net interest margin stood at 2.21% in 2017, having increased when compared to 1.92% recorded in 2016,
benefiting from the increases observed in the activity in Portugal and in the international activity. Excluding the
impact of the CoCo bonds’ funding cost, net interest margin stood at 2.22% in 2017 (2.03% in 2016).

The average interest rates of the components directly associated with operations with Customers recorded a
positive performance in 2016 and 2017. There was a decrease in the average interest rate of customer deposits
and an increase in the average interest rate of loans to customers.

FACTORS INFLUENCING NET INTEREST INCOME

Million euros

2017 vs 2016
Rate /
Net change
Volume Rate  Volume mix
INTEREST EARNING ASSETS
Deposits in credit institutions - 10 (1) 9
Financial assets 16 20 1 37
Loans and advances to customers (52) 22 (4) (34)
TOTAL INTEREST EARNING ASSETS (24) 42 (6) 12
INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
Amounts owed to credit institutions (4) (25) 3 (26)
Resources from customers 11 (25) (2) (16)
Debt issued and financial liabilities (32) (23) 5 (50)
Subordinated debt (53) (7) 3 (57)
TOTAL INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES (14) (136) 1 (149)
NET INTEREST INCOME (10) 178 (7) 161

OTHER NET INCOME

Other net income, which includes income from equity instruments, net commissions, net trading income, other net
operating income and equity accounted earnings, decreased 60 million Euros, from 867 million Euros in 2016 to
806 million Euros in 2017, mostly showing the 92 million Euro decrease in net trading income, partially offset by
the 23 million Euro growth in net commissions and 11 million Euro growth in equity accounted earnings.

The fall in net trading income was largely driven by the 96 million Euros in gains accounted in the second quarter
of 2016 from the purchase by Visa Inc of the stakes held by the Bank in Portugal and by Bank Millennium in Poland
in Visa Europe.
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The positive performance evidenced by net commissions and by equity accounted earnings is explained by the
performance of the international activity since, in Portugal, net commissions remained aligned with the amounts
recorded in 2016 and equity accounted decreased versus 2016. This decrease can be explained by the positive
impact recorded in the first six months of 2016 due to the transaction involving the stakes held by Unicre and SIBS
in Visa Europe that, in the international activity, was more than offset by the greater appropriation, in 2017, of
income generated by the stake held in Banco Millennium Atlantico.

OTHER NET INCOME

Million euros

9
2017 2016 2015 Chf;h{;
Dividends from equity instruments 2 8 10 -77.3%
Net commissions 667 644 660 3.6%
Net trading income 148 240 539 -38.3%
Other net operating income (102) (106) (120) 3.4%
Equity accounted earnings 92 81 24 13.8%
TOTAL 806 867 1,113 -7.0%
of which:
Activity in Portugal 544 590 840 -7.8%
International activity 262 277 273 -5.1%

INCOME FROM EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Dividends from equity instruments comprise dividends and income from participation units received from
investments in financial assets available for sale or held for trading. In 2017, this income reached 2 million Euros,
compared to 8 million Euros recorded in 2016, essentially corresponding to the income associated with the Group's
investments that incorporate the shares portfolio (2 million Euros in 2017 versus 5 million Euros in 2016).

NET COMMISSIONS

Net comr.nissions,. which. include the comm'iss'ions NET COMMISSIONS
related with banking business and the commissions

more directly related with financial markets, stood at ~ Milion euros

667 million Euros in 2017 recording an increase of

3.6% from the amount of 644 million Euros recorded

in 2016. This performance was globally determined by 667

660 644
the performance of the international activity, namely
by Bank Millennium in Poland. Commissions 130 123 120
generated by insurance or investment products and
530 52

commissions related with transactions and lending 1 547
activity justify the earnings generated by Bank
Millennium in Poland.

In the activity in Portugal, commissions remained
aligned with the amounts earned in 2016 (-0.2%),
despite the one-off recording of higher amounts in 2015 2016 2017

other bank commissions in the first quarter of 2016. mBanking commissions
m Market related commissions

During 2017, some of the figures recorded in items

“Credit and  guarantees”,  “Bancassurance”

“Accounts”, “Securities operations” and “Other commissions”, which are included in net commissions, were
reclassified in order to improve the comparability of the information made available. The subsequent analysis
regarding the performance of net commissions was made taking into consideration the re-presentation of the
2016 data, by item. The total amount of net commissions remained unaltered.
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In consolidated terms, the performance of net
commissions in 2017 reflects the increase of
commissions related to the banking business (2.7%) Activity in Portugal
and of commissions related to financial markets
(7.6%) versus the figures accounted in 2016.

NET COMMISSIONS

Million euros

In 2017, commissions associated with the banking
business stood at 547 million Euros versus the 532
million Euros acco'unvted in 2016, tr{ggered by the 448 457 456
growth of commissions related with cards and

o . 58 60 63
transfers and bancassurance commissions, both in
Portugal and in the international activity which, as a 390 397 392
whole, grew 17 million Euros.

Commissions from cards and transfers stood at 156
million Euros in 2017, showing a 7.7% increase versus

the 144 million Euros earned in 2016, benefiting from 2015 2016 2017
the performance in the activity in Portugal (4.7%) and mBanking commissions
in the international activity (14.5%), in this case ® Market related commissions

triggered simultaneously by the contribution given by
the subsidiary companies in Poland and in Mozambique.

Commissions related to credit and guarantees reached

a total of 158 million Euros in 2017, in line with 2016, NET COMMISSIONS
since the increase in the international activity, namely  |nternational activity
the increase in commissions related to loan operations
in Poland, was mitigated by the smaller volume of
commissions from guarantees recorded in Portugal.

Million euros

Bancassurance ~ commissions,  which include
commissions obtained for the placement of insurance
products through the commercial distribution
networks of the Bank in Portugal and in Poland, stood
at 95 million Euros in 2017, showing an improvement
of 6.3%, compared to the 89 million Euros posted in

2016. This growth was essentially boosted by the 72 63 57
subsidiary company in Poland, which, as previously 140 124 154

212 187 211

mentioned, showed a positive performance in

. S 2015 2016 2017
commissions related with insurance products.

mBanking commissions

Commissions related with the opening and miMarket related commissions

maintenance of Customer accounts stood at 104

million Euros in 2017, indicating a 1.9% growth versus the amount recorded in 2016, supported by the activity in
Portugal since, in the international activity, commissions related with the opening and maintenance of Customer
accounts remained stable, if compared with the ones recorded in 2016.

Commissions related to financial markets amounted to 120 million Euros in 2017, compared with the 112 million
Euros recorded in 2016, benefiting from the growth in Portugal and in the international activity from commissions
associated with securities operations and from commissions related with asset management.

Commissions associated with securities operations grew 5.7% versus 2016, reaching 77 million Euros in 2017,
reflecting the positive performance of the activity in Portugal and in the international activity which recorded
increases of 6.0% and of 5.1%, respectively.

Commissions from asset management grew 11.3% versus 2016 reaching 43 million Euros in 2017, mainly
triggered by the performance of the international activity, notably the subsidiary company in Poland, but also by
the performance of the activity in Portugal.
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NET COMMISSIONS
Million euros
Chan. %
2017 2016 2015 17/16
BANKING COMMISSIONS
Cards and transfers 156 144 159 7.7%
Credit and guarantees 158 160 160 -1.5%
Bancassurance 95 77 75 23.5%
Current accounts related 104 91 84 14.7%
Other commissions 35 49 51 -29.5%
SUBTOTAL 547 521 530 4.9%
MARKET RELATED COMMISSIONS
Securities 77 85 91 -8.4%
Asset management 43 38 39 11.3%
SUBTOTAL 120 123 130 -2.3%
TOTAL NET COMMISSIONS 667 644 660 3.6%
of which:
Activity in Portugal 456 457 448 -0.2%
International activity 211 187 212 12.8%
NET TRADING INCOME
Net trading income, which includes net gains from tradingand ~ NET TRADING INCOME
hedging acthltle.s, net gains From.ﬁnanCIal assets avallable.For Million euros
sale and net gains from financial assets held to maturity,
totalled 148 million Euros in 2017, compared to 240 million
Euros recorded in 2016.
Net trading income recognised in 2017 reflects reductions in 539
the activity in Portugal and in the international activity of 15
million Euros and 77 million Euros, respectively, versus the 272
amounts obtained in 2016. 240
This performance is largely conditioned by the 96 million 67 148
Euros in gains from the purchase by Visa Inc of the stakes of I
Visa Europe held by the Bank in Portugal (26 million Euros) and
2015 2016 2017

by Bank Millennium in Poland (70 million Euros), in the second
quarter of 2016.

NET TRADING INCOME

Not including extraordinary gains on Portuguese sovereign debt
in 2015, net of taxes, individualized due to their relevance.

Million euros

Chan. %

2017 2016 2015 17/16

Results from trading and hedging activities 45 102 118 -55.5%

Results from available for sale financial assets 103 139 421 -25.6%

TOTAL 148 240 539 -38.3%
GEOGRAPHIC BREAKDOWN:

Activity in Portugal 85 100 443 -14.9%

63 140 96 -55.0%

International activity
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OTHER NET OPERATING INCOME

Other net operating income, including other operating income/(loss), gains from insurance activity and
gains/(losses) arising from sales of subsidiaries and other assets, recorded a loss of 102 million Euros in 2017, an
improvement on 2016's loss of 106 million Euros.

In 2017, in the activity in Portugal, other net operating income recorded losses amounting to 50 million Euros,
showing a negative performance if compared with the 42 million Euros of losses in 2016, induced by an increase in
costs with taxes and mandatory contributions, partially offset by the positive performance recorded by the sale of
investment properties, and non-current assets held for sale.

In 2017, the amount related to mandatory contributions in the activity in Portugal amounted to 59 million Euros
(53 million Euros in 2016) incorporating the contribution to the European Single Resolution Fund (SRF), amounting
to 18 million Euros (21 million Euros in 2016) the 8 million Euros contribution for the national resolution fund (6
million Euros in 2016), the contribution for the banking sector of 31 million Euros (25 million Euros in 2016), the
ECB supervision fee of 2 million Euros (1 million Euros in 2016) and the contribution to the deposit guarantee fund.

Other net operating income in the international activity totalled a negative 52 million Euros in 2017, improving
from negative 64 million Euros in 2016. This positive performance is almost exclusively due to the activity
developed by the Polish subsidiary whose other net operating income grew notwithstanding the increase in costs
incurred with the contribution for the Bank Guarantee Fund (BFG) of Poland and the special tax on the Polish
banking sector which entered into effect in February 2016.

EQUITY ACCOUNTED EARNINGS

Equity accounted earnings from associates, which include the results appropriated by the Group related to entities
where the Group has significant influence but does not exercise control over their financial and operating policies,
reached a total of 92 million Euros in 2017, compared to 81 million Euros recorded in 2016.

Equity accounted earnings increased 11 million Euros versus 2016, benefiting from the surplus of 27 million Euros
related with the appropriation of income associated with the 25% stake in Banco Millennium Atlantico, the new
entity resulting from the merger of Banco Millennium in Angola with Banco Privado Atlantico, which are now shown
in this item, from May 2016, inclusively. We must underline that the equity accounted earnings, amounting to 40
million Euros, recognised in 2017 with the appropriation of income of Banco Millennium Atlantico (13 million Euros
in 2016) incorporate the impact of the application of IAS 29 in the fourth quarter of the year.

Comparing with 2016, equity accounted earnings were also positively influenced by the 9 million Euros increase in
the income from the 49% stake held in Millenniumbcp Ageas.

On the other hand, the performance of equity accounted earnings in 2017 was negatively influenced by the
decrease of 20 million Euros and 8 million Euros in the contribution from the stakes held in Unicre and in SIBS,
respectively, since the income generated by these associates in 2016 incorporated the positive impact due to the
transaction involving the respective stakes in Visa Europe.

EQUITY ACCOUNTED EARNINGS AND INCOME

Million euros

2017 2016 2015 c"f‘;‘/‘:/;
Millenniumbcp Ageas Grupo Segurador, SGPS, S.A. 35 26 8 36.0%
UNICRE - Instituicao Financeira de Crédito, S.A. 7 27 5 -74.9%
Banco Millennium Atlantico, S.A. 40 13 - 199.4%
Banque BCP,S.AS. 4 3 3 17.9%
SIBS, SGPS, S.A. 3 12 2 -72.1%
Other 3 (1) 5 -421.2%
TOTAL 92 81 24 13.8%
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OPERATING COSTS

Operating costs include staff costs, other administrative
costs and depreciation. Excluding the effect of specific
items in the staff costs item*, operating costs in 2017
amounted to 968 million Euros and continued in line with
the costs recognised in the previous year (966 million
Eurosin 2016).

The stability of operating costs achieved by the Group in
2017 incorporate different performances, the one
obtained in Portugal and the one in the international
activity, to the extent that the savings from the activity
in Portugal enabled to offset significantly the increase in
costs recognised in the international activity.

The activity in Portugal, not considering the impact of
specific items, recorded a 3.6% decrease of operating
costs, from 624 million Euros in 2016 to 602 million
Euros in 2017. This performance was mainly supported
by fewer staff costs, which fell 4.2%, and other
administrative costs, 4.6% less than in 2016, the savings
of which were, however, mitigated by a larger volume of
depreciations, which grew 12.7% versus 2016.

In the international activity, operating costs stood at
367 million Euros, increasing 7.3% versus 2016 (342
million Euros). This 25 million Euro increase is mainly
justified by the performance of the items of staff costs
and other administrative costs since the depreciations
remained constant versus 2016, deriving mainly from
the activity developed by the subsidiary company in
Poland.

The cost to core income ratio of the Group, excluding
specific items, stood at 47.1% in 2017, and showed a
positive performance versus 2016, year when it reached
51.5%, mainly benefiting from the increase in net
interest income and commissions, since operating costs
remained globally stable.

The cost to core income ratio in Portugal stood at 47.6%
in 2017, versus 52.3% in the previous year. This positive
evolution was triggered, on one hand, by the 72 million
Euro increase in the domestic net interest income and,
on the other, by 22 million Euros in savings in operating
costs.

In the international activity, the cost to core income
ratio also showed a positive performance, falling from
50.2% in 2016 to 46.1% in 2017, mainly based on the
growth of net interest income and commissions that, as
a whole, increased by 113 million Euros versus 2016,
enabling to offset the 25 million Euros increase in
operating costs.

4 Due to the negotiation/revision of the Collective Labour Agreement (ACT), net of restructuring costs in 2017

(14 million Euros) and 2016 (186 million Euros).
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OPERATING COSTS

Million euros

Chan. %
2017 2016 2015 17/16
ACTIVITY IN PORTUGAL (1)
Staff costs 346 362 371 -4.2%
Other administrative costs 222 233 237 -4.6%
Depreciation 33 29 30 12.7%
602 624 638 -3.6%
INTERNATIONAL ACTIVITY
Staff costs 194 181 197 7.6%
Other administrative costs 152 141 153 7.9%
Depreciation 20 20 24 0.1%
367 342 373 7.3%
CONSOLIDATED (1)
Staff costs 541 542 568 -0.3%
Other administrative costs 374 374 389 0.1%
Depreciation 54 50 54 7.5%
968 966 1,011 0.3%
SPECIFIC ITEMS
Restructuring costs and Collect. Lab. Agreem. revision (14) (186) 6 92.4%
TOTAL 954 780 1,017 22.3%
(1) Excludes impacts of specific items presented in the table.
STAFF COSTS
Staff costs, excluding the impact of the above
mentioned specific items, totalled 541 million Euros EMPLOYEES
in 2017, 0.3% below the 542 million Euros of the
previous year.
The activity in Portugal, not considering the impact of 17183
the abovementioned specific items, totally i 15,807 15,727
recognized in the domestic activity, recorded a 4.2% 9,724
decrease of staff costs, from 362 million Eurosin 2016 8,538
to 346 million Euros on 2017. These cost savings were
essentially due to the impact of the decrease of the
number of employees (down by 144 employees versus 7459
31 December 2016). By the end of 2017, the total ' 7,189
number of employees was 7,189, compared to 7,333
employees at the end of 2016. In 2017, the bank
continued to feel ’th.e effect of the lmt'latlv'es Dec.15 Dec.16 Dec.17
undertaken to optimize resources and simplify
structures, notwithstanding the decision of the Board mPortugal  ®International

of Directors of the Bank to end, in advance and effective from 30 June 2017, the temporary salary adjustment that

had been in force since July 2014.

In the international activity staff costs amounted to 194 million Euros in 2017, a 7.6% rise versus the 181 million
Euros accounted in 2016. The total number of employees allocated to the international activity rose from 8,474
employees at the end of 2016 to 8,538 employees at the end of 2017. This addition is mainly due to the operation
in Mozambique, as all the remaining subsidiary companies reduced the number of employees in 2017.
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STAFF COSTS

Million euros

2017

Chan. %

2016 2015 17/16

Salaries and remunerations

Social security charges and other staff costs (1)

SPECIFIC ITEMS
Restructuring costs and Collect. Lab. Agreem. revision

TOTAL

433
108

416 435 4.1%
126 133 -14.8%

541

(14)

542 568 -0.3%

(186) 6

527

357 574 47.7%

(1) Excludes impacts of specific items presented in the table.

OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

After several years recording successive cuts in other
administrative costs, 2017 recorded 374 million
Euros, in line with the previous year (374 million Euros
in 2016). Yet, the stability of other administrative
costs, on a consolidated basis and similarly to staff
costs, incorporates opposite trends when one looks
closer and individually the activity in Portugal and in
the international activity.

The behaviour of other administrative costs in a
consolidated basis benefited from savings in the
activity in Portugal, where costs went down 4.6%,
from 233 million Euros in 2016 to 222 million Euros in
2017. This positive performance continued to benefit
from the rationalization efforts and from cost
restraints that have been in place in Portugal,
reflecting savings in rent, communications,
conservation and specialized services, among others,

BRANCHES

1,342
671

671

1,163 1,120

545 542

618 578

Dec.15

mPortugal

Dec.16 Dec.17

minternational

that enabled it more than offset the growth of costs with advertising and advisory services. The initiatives related
to the re-dimensioning of the branch network in Portugal continued leading to a decrease in the number of
branchesin 2017 (40 branches less than at the end of 2016), evolving to a total of 578 branches by the end 0f 2017

(618 branches in 2016).

In the international activity, other administrative costs rose to 152 million Euros in 2017, reflecting a 7.9% rise
versus the costs recorded the previous year (141 million Euros in 2016). This rise was mainly caused by the larger
investment of the operation in Poland and also by the Mozambique subsidiary, though to a lesser degree. The
branch network of the international activity decreased slightly, from 545 branches at the end of 2016 to 542 at
the end of 2017, as a result of a decrease of 13 branches in Poland and of an increase of 10 branches in

Mozambique.
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OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

Million euros

9

2017 2016 2015 Chf;h/;
Water, electricity and fuel 15 16 17 -1.7%
Consumables 4 4 5 2.0%
Rents 96 100 103 -3.3%
Communications 21 23 23 -6.1%
Travel, hotel and representation costs 8 8 8 6.2%
Advertising 27 24 27 12.5%
Maintenance and related services 17 19 23 -9.3%
Credit cards and mortgage 6 5 5 30.0%
Advisory services 18 13 12 34.8%
Information technology services 18 19 17 -0.6%
Outsourcing 77 76 76 0.8%
Other specialised services 19 22 24 -14.4%
Training costs 2 1 2 76.5%
Insurance 4 4 5 1.5%
Legal expenses 6 6 7 2.8%
Transportation 8 8 8 -1.9%
Other supplies and services 25 26 27 -3.2%
TOTAL 374 374 389 0.1%

AMORTISATION AND DEPRECIATION

Depreciation for the year amounted to 54 million Euros in 2017, a 7.5% rise from the 50 million Euros accounted
in 2016. This growth was mainly justified by the performance of the activity in Portugal, where depreciation was
up 12.7%.

In Portugal, depreciation for the year reached 33 million Euros in 2017, reflecting a 4 million Euro increase, mainly
related to IT equipment and software pursuant to the higher level of investment in the modernization and
reformulation of the branches towards technological and digital innovation.

In the international activity, depreciation costs for 2017 remained in line with the amount presented in the
previous year.

LOAN IMPAIRMENT

Impairment for loan losses (net of recoveries) posted in 2017 totalled 624 million Euros on a consolidated basis,
reflecting a 44.2% decrease from previous year, when the group recognized 1,117 million Euros in costs with loan
impairment (net of recoveries). This evolution was determined by the favourable performance of the activity in
Portugal where costs with loan impairment (net of recoveries) went down 49.0%, influenced by both the individuals
and companies segments, portraying the evolution of the Portuguese economy and the progressive trend for the
normalization of the cost of risk of the credit portfolio, despite the maintenance of a high level of NPEs reduction.
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The international activity recorded a 26.4% increase in
loan Impairment charges (net of recoveries) versus the
previous year, reflecting a 19 million Euro increase,
especially highlighting the higher level of charges
recognized by the operation in Poland (11 million Euros),
especially for the companies segment, whose impairment
in 2016 had attained abnormally low levels due to
extraordinary sales and recoveries.

The cost of risk (net of recoveries) of the Group stood at
122 basis points in 2017, improving from the 216 basis
points observed in the previous year. This evolution was
determined exclusively by the operation in Portugal, whose
cost of risk (net of recoveries) fell from 266 basis points in
2016, to 140 basis points in 2017. International activity
recorded the opposite trend, with cost of risk growing to
70 basis points by the end of 2017, versus 58 basis points
recorded in the previous year, due to the challenging
macroeconomic environment in Mozambique.

OTHER IMPAIRMENTS AND PROVISIONS

Other impairments and provisions include charges for
impairment of other financial assets, impairment of other
assets, in particular repossessed assets arising from the
termination of loan contracts with customers, for
impairment of goodwill, as well as charges for other
provisions.

Other impairment and provisions totalled 301 million
Euros in 2017, showing a 37.4% decrease from 481
million Euros recorded in 2016. This decrease was driven
by the evolution of the activity in Portugal, whose
impairment charges fell 217 million Euros, mainly due to
the smaller need for provisions regarding corporate
restructuring funds, debt instruments, goodwill and
guarantees and other risks, despite the reinforcement of
the impairment charges for non-current assets held for
sale.

In the international activity, the statements show a 37
million Euros increase in other impairments and
provisions, mainly translating the higher impairment of
the goodwill of Banco Millennium Atlantico recognized
pursuant to the application of IAS 29.
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LOAN IMPAIRMENT CHARGES (NET OF RECOVERIES)

Million euros

9

2017 2016 2015 Chf;/'(;

Loan impairment charges 641 1,151 847 -44.3%

Credit recoveries 17 34 29 -49.9%

TOTAL 624 1,117 818 -44.2%
COST OF RISK:

Impairment charges as a % of total loans 126 b.p. 222 b.p. 156 b.p. -96 b.p.

Impairment charges (net of recoveries) as a % of total loans 122 b.p. 216 b.p. 150 b.p. -94 b.p.

Note: cost of risk adjusted from discontinued operations.

INCOME TAX
Income tax (current and deferred) reached 30 million Euros in 2017, compared to 382 million Euros posted in 2016.

These taxes include current tax costs of 102 million Euros (cost of 113 million Euros in 2016), net of deferred tax
income of 72 million Euros (income of 495 million Euros in 2016).

Deferred tax income in 2017 includes profits from deferred taxes associated to impairment losses not deductible
for purposes of calculating taxable profit, amounting to 120 million Euros (445 million Euros in 2016), mitigated
by costs with deferred taxes associated to reportable taxable losses that attained 85 million Euros (133 million
Euros in profits in 2016).

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests incorporate the part attributable to third parties of the net income of the subsidiary
companies consolidated under the full method in which the Group Banco Comercial Portugués does not hold,
directly or indirectly, the entirety of their share capital.

Non-controlling interests record mainly the income for the year attributable to third parties related to the
shareholdings in Bank Millennium in Poland (49.9%), Millennium bim in Mozambique (33.3%) and, only in 2016,
the former Banco Millennium Angola (49.9%). Regarding the latter, this item only includes earnings of the first four
months of the year, namely until the merger with Banco Privado Atlantico that originated Banco Millennium
Atlantico, the new entity resulting from the merger, whose contribution started being accounted using the equity
method as of May 2016.

Non-controlling interests totalled 103 million Euros in 2017, which compare to 122 million Euros in 2016, and the
decrease is mainly justified by the fact that the previous year included the income of the former Banco Millennium
Angola (18 million Euros) generated only in the first four months of 2016.
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REVIEW OF THE BALANCE SHEET

The performance of Millennium bcp's consolidated
balance sheet in 2017 was mainly marked by the Bank’s
share capital increase and by the early reimbursement of
the CoCo bonds in the first quarter of the year, by the
decrease in the commercial gap (reflecting the downward
trend in loans and the increase in customer funds) and the
continuous reduction in net funding from the ECB.

Total assets stood at 71,939 million Euros as at 31
December 2017 vs. 71,265 million Euros on 31 December
2016, underlining the increase in the securities portfolio
and in loans and advances to credit institutions and
Central Banks and the decrease in loans to customers.

Consolidated loans to customers (gross) stood at 50,955
million Euros on 31 December 2017, which compares to
51,758 million Euros recorded on the same date of the
previous year, embodying the decrease in the activity in
Portugal (-3.5%), partly offset by the increase in
international activity (+4.5%).
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BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER

Million euros

9
2017 2016 2015 Chf;‘h/g
ASSETS
%;Sh and deposits at central banks and loans and advances to credit institutions 3.529 3079 3538 14.6%
Loans and advances to customers 47,633 48,018 51,970 -0.8%
Financial assets held for trading 898 1,049 1,189 -14.4%
Other financial assets held for trading at fair value through profit or loss 142 147 152 -3.0%
Financial assets available for sale 11,472 10,596 10,779 8.3%
Financial assets held to maturity 412 5711 495 -19.4%
Investments in associated companies 571 599 316 -4.6%
Non current assets held for sale 2,165 2,250 1,765 -3.8%
Other tangible assets, goodwill and intangible assets 655 636 882 3.0%
Current and deferred tax assets 3,164 3,202 2,605 -1.2%
Other (2) 1,299 1,178 1,194 10.2%
TOTAL ASSETS 71,939 71,265 74,885 0.9%
LIABILITIES
Resources from credit institutions 7,487 9,938 8,591 -24.7%
Resources from customers 51,188 48,798 51,539 4.9%
Debt securities issued 3,008 3,513 4,768 -14.4%
Financial liabilities held for trading 399 548 723 -27.1%
Subordinated debt 1,169 1,545 1,645 -243%
Other (3) 1,509 1,659 1,938 -9.0%
TOTAL LIABILITIES 64,760 66,000 69,204 -1.9%
EQUITY
Share capital 5,601 4,269 4,094 31.2%
Treasury stock 0 -3 -1 89.8%
Share premium 16 16 16
Preference shares 60 60 60
Other capital instruments 3 3 3
Fair value reserves 82 -131 23 162.8%
Reserves and retained earnings (4) 133 144 192 -7.6%
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders 186 24 235 678.6%
Total equity attributable to shareholders of the bank 6,081 4,382 4,623 38.8%
Non-controlling interests 1,099 883 1,057 24.4%
TOTAL EQUITY 7,180 5,265 5,681 36.4%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 71,939 71,265 74,885 0.9%

(1) Includes Cash and deposits at Central Banks and Loans and advances to credit institutions.

(2) Includes Assets with repurchase agreement, Hedging derivatives, Investment property and Other assets.

(3) Includes Hedging derivatives, Provisions for liabilities and charges, Current and deferred income tax liabilities and Other liabilities.

(4) Includes Legal and statutory reserves and Reserves and retained earnings.
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Total liabilities fell 1.9%, standing at 64,760 million Euros on 31 December 2017, in comparison with 66,000 million
Eurosregistered on 31 December 2016. This was determined by the reductions in resources from credit institutions
and Central Banks, debt securities issued, financial liabilities held for trading and subordinated debt, in this case
namely due to the reimbursement of the remaining tranche of CoCo bonds (700 million Euros), despite the increase
in customer funds, based on the strategy to keep the stable resources of the balance sheet.

Customer deposits (that correspond to resources from customers) attained 51,188 million Euros by the end of
2017, evidencing a 4.9% increase versus figures recorded on 31 December 2016 (48,798 million Euros), due to
both the activity in Portugal (3.7%) and the international activity (7.6%).

The increase in customer deposits, together with the decreasing loans, led to a reduction of the commercial gap
and, subsequently, of the loan-to-deposit ratio (net loans over customer deposits), which stood at 93.8% on 31
December 2017, versus 99.2% on the same date of the previous year.

Within the scope of the item other debt securities issued, one must underline the amortization in May 2017 of a
mortgage bond issue placed with the market, which was refinanced by a new 5-year maturity 1.0 billion Euro issue,
making it the Bank's return to medium-/long-term debt markets, 7 years after the last mortgage bonds were
issued.

In addition, the Bank went back to the debt markets in the 4th quarter of 2017, placing 300 million Euros of 10-
year subordinated debt in Portugal and 168 million Euros in Poland (corresponding to 700 million zloty, refinancing
a 150 million Euros issue that reached maturity in December 2017), both qualifying as Tier 2 capital.

Equity, including non-controlling interests, totalled 7,180 million Euros on 31 December 2017 comparing to 5,265
million Euros recorded at the end of 2016.

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

In the Portuguese banking system, assets have been in
a downward trend since 2010, mainly caused by the  Milion euros
decrease in loans to customers, despite the slowdown

of the decrease observed recently.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (*)

At Millennium bcp, the consolidated loans to 54,443 51758 <0055
customers portfolio (gross) amounted to 50,955 19 848 '

million Euros as at 31 December 2017, comparing to ’ 12,398 12,960
51,758 million Euros presented on the same date of the 41595 39361

previous year. This performance, versus the end of ’ ’ 37,996
2016, was influenced by the decrease of the activity in

Portugal (-3.5%), partially offset by the increase

showed by the international activity (+4.5%).

The performance of loans to customers throughout Dec.15 Dec.16 Dec.17
2017 was also influenced by the decrease in loans to mPortugal  MInternational

individuals (-3.1% versus 31 December 2016), mainly

due to the activity in Portugal, and by the increase in . o -

loans to companies (+0.3% versus 31 December 2016), fnlpiii‘ifr;”;f’j‘c'ﬂf,’;ﬁ,sgi ,;)e?aioc,?sr_nparable pasts: excludes the
the latter based on the international operations.

In the activity in Portugal, loans to customers stood at 37,996 million Euros as at 31 December 2017, decreasing
3.5% from the amount recorded as at 31 December 2016 (39,361 million Euros). This performance was marked by
the continued effort to reduce Non-Performing Exposures (NPEs), which fell by Euro 1.8 billion in 2017, while the
performing loan portfolio increased, for the first time in 8 years, essentially due to the growth in the production of
loans to individuals. Simultaneously, the performance of loans to companies has been showing a structural change,
translated into the reduction of the weight of construction and real estate activities and non-financial holding
companies.
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS GROSS

Million euros

2017 2016 comparabf: 25) Ch‘lé‘;)1°/;
INDIVIDUALS
Mortgage loans 23,408 24,018 25,040 -2.5%
Consumer credit 3,795 4,058 4,045 -6.5%
27,203 28,076 29,085 -3.1%
COMPANIES
Services 9,244 9,104 10,023 1.5%
Commerce 3,472 3,190 3,188 8.8%
Construction 2,405 2,859 3,353 -15.9%
Other 8,632 8,529 8,794 1.2%
23,753 23,682 25,358 0.3%
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
Individuals 27,203 28,076 29,085 -3.1%
Companies 23,753 23,682 25,358 0.3%
50,955 51,758 54,443 -1.6%
Discontinued operations (¥) - - 996
TOTAL 50,955 51,758 55,438 -1.6%

(*) In the context of the BMA merger with BPA, BMA was considered a discontinued operation in the first quarter of 2016 and, for comparative
purposes, the information of December 2015 was re-presented, through the inclusion of the BMA credit in a line of discontinued operations.

In the international activity, loans to customers increased 4.5% compared to the amount as at 31 December 2016,
induced by the performance of Poland (+6.8%). Excluding exchange rate effects, loans to customers decreased
0.8%, reflecting the performance of the operation in Mozambique (-19.5%).

Between 31 December 2016 and 2017, the structure of the loans to customers portfolio (gross), before impairment
for loans, maintained identical patterns of diversification, with loans to individuals representing 53.4% (2016:
54.2%) and loans to companies 46.6% (2016: 45.8%) of loans to customers.

Loans to individuals stood at 27,203 million Euros on 31
December 2017, a 3.1% decrease in comparison with
28,076 million Euros registered on 31 December 2016.
This performance was mainly explained by the 2.5%
reduction of mortgage loans, which represented 86.1%
of loans to individuals, totalling 23,408 million Euros on
31 December 2017 (24,018 million Euros at the end of
2016).

In 2017, the performance of mortgage loans reflected
simultaneously the 3.1% decrease in the activity in
Portugal (-553 million Euros), despite the historically
low levels of market interest rates, and the 0.9%
decrease recorded in the international activity (-57
million Euros), compared to 31 December 2016, mainly
driven by the performance of the mortgage loans
portfolio in the subsidiary in Poland.

Loans to companies stood at 23,753 million Euros on 31
December 2017, in comparison with 23,682 million
Euros registered on 31 December 2016 (+0.3%). In this
period of time, this loan portfolio strengthened its
weight in the consolidated loan portfolio by attaining
46.6% of the total (2016: 45.8%).
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS GROSS

Million euros

2015 Chan. %

2017 2016 comparable (*¥) 17/16
MORTGAGE LOANS
Activity in Portugal 17,145 17,698 18,465 -3.1%
International Activity 6,263 6,320 6,575 -0.9%
23,408 24,018 25,040 -2.5%
CONSUMER CREDIT
Activity in Portugal 1,988 2,435 2,423 -18.4%
International Activity 1,807 1,623 1,622 11.4%
3,795 4,058 4,045 -6.5%
COMPANIES
Activity in Portugal 18,863 19,227 20,708 -1.9%
International Activity 4,890 4,455 4,650 9.8%
23,753 23,682 25,358 0.3%
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
Activity in Portugal 37,996 39,361 41,595 -3.5%
International Activity 12,960 12,398 12,848 4.5%
50,955 51,758 54,443 -1.6%
Discontinued operations (¥) - - 996
TOTAL 50,955 51,758 55,438 -1.6%

(*) In the context of the BMA merger with BPA, BMA was considered a discontinued operation in the first quarter of 2016 and, for
comparative purposes, the information of December 2015 was re-presented, through the inclusion of the BMA credit in a line of
discontinued operations.

Loans to companies in Portugal, year-over-year, went down 1.9% (-364 million Euros). This evolution was due to
the continuous decrease in NPEs, together with the change in the portfolio profile. Throughout 2017, loans to
companies had a 19.2% (-491 million Euros) decrease shown in loans to construction companies, in spite of the
various relevant sales initiatives undertaken, namely
those related to projects worth more than 600 million
Euros funded under the “Portugal 2020” project, which ~ Milion euros

CREDIT QUALITY (*)

contributed to regain the growth of performing loans. The 86.2% 107.0% 113.2%
international activity rose 9.8% (+435 million Euros), 7_;; . -
mainly based on a 578 million Euros rise (+17.8%; +11.6% — i

in local currency) recorded by Bank Millennium in Poland, 3.967

despite the 120 million Euros (-13.2%; -18.8% in local 3,496 S oss
currency) reduction observed in the operation in i
Mozambique.

Credit quality, determined by loans overdue by more than

90 days as a percentage of total loans, showed a

favourable performance, decreasing from 6.8% as at 31 Dec.15 Dec.16 Dec.17
December 2016 to 5.8% as at 31 December 2017, s Overdue oans by more than 90 days
benefiting from the continuous focus on selection and —e— Overdue loans by more than 90 days / Total loans
monitoring of credit risk control procedures, as well as of —A— Coverageratio of overdueloans by more than 90

initiatives undertaken by commercial areas and by credit davs

recovery areas so as to decrease the amount of past due
loans.

(*) On a comparable basis: excludes the impact from descontinued
operations.
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CREDIT QUALITY

Million euros

2015 Chan. %

2017 2016

(comparable**) 17/16
ON A COMPARABLE BASIS: EXCLUDES THE IMPACT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Loans and advances to customers (*) 50,955 51,758 54,443 -1.6%
Overdue loans (>90 days) 2,933 3,496 3,967 -16.1%
Overdue loans 3,022 3,631 4,088 -16.8%
Impairments (balance sheet) 3,322 3,741 3,420 -11.2%
Restructured loans 4,184 5,046 5,393 -17.1%
Overdue loans (>90 days) / Loans and advances to customers (¥) 5.8% 6.8% 7.3%
Overdue loans / Loans and advances to customers (*) 5.9% 7.0% 7.5%
Non-performing exposures / Loans and advances to customers (¥) 15.0% 18.1% 20.1%
Restructured loans / Loans and advances to customers (¥) 8.2% 9.7% 9.9%
Coverage ratio (Overdue loans > 90 days) 113.2% 107.0% 86.2%
Coverage ratio (Overdue loans) 109.9% 103.0% 83.7%
Coverage of Non-performing exposures by impairments 43.4% 39.9% 31.3%

(*) Before credit impairments.
(**) In the context of the BMA merger with BPA, BMA was considered a discontinued operation in the first quarter of 2016 and, for comparative
purposes, the information of December 2015 was re-presented.

The coverage ratio for overdue loans for more than 90 days by impairment improved to 113.2% as at 31 December
2017, compared to 107.0% at the end of 2016, and the coverage ratio of the total overdue loans portfolio by
impairment also improved to stand at 109.9% as at 31 December 2017, compared to 103.0% as at 31 December
2016.

Overdue loans by more than 90 days stood at 2,933 million Euros on 31 December 2017, a 16.1% decrease in
comparison with 3,496 million Euros registered on 31 December 2016. Total overdue loans volume in 2016 also
fell 16.8%, amounting to 3,022 million Euros in 2017 (3,631 million Euros in 2016), benefiting from the
performance of overdue loans in the activity in Portugal which decreased 19.2%, (-639 million Euros) versus the
3,328 million Euros recorded in the previous year.

Overdue loans associated with loans to companies continue to represent the largest component of the total
overdue loans portfolio, representing 79.0% as at 31 December 2017, mainly concentrated in the service sector.
The ratio of overdue loans to companies, measured by the ratio between overdue loans and loans granted to
companies, increased to 10.1%, compared to 11.8% recorded at the end of 2016, reflecting the slight rise in loans
to companies held in the portfolio and the decrease in the overdue amounts. As at 31 December 2017, overdue
loans associated with loans to companies showed a coverage level of 113.4% (2016: 106.0%) by the respective
impairment in the balance sheet.

In what regards to loans to individuals, overdue consumer and mortgage loans represented 12.6% and 8.4% of the
total overdue loans portfolio respectively. The ratio of overdue consumer loans over loans granted improved to
10.1% (13.3% by the end 0f 2016), as did the ratio of overdue mortgage loans that stood at 1.1% as at 31 December
2017 (1.3% by the end of 2016).

Non-performing exposures amounted to 7,742 million Euros, of which 7,658 million Euros corresponded to
unsecuritized credit as of December 31,2017, showing a decrease of 1,716 million Euros compared to 9,374 million
Euros (corresponding to unsecuritized credit) in December 31, 2016. The NPE ratio stood at 15.0% (2016: 18.1%)
and at the same time NPE coverage by provisions was 43.4% (2016: 39.9%).
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OVERDUE LOANS AND IMPAIRMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Million euros

Overdue loans Impairment for loan losses Overdue loans/ Total loans Coverage ratio

INDIVIDUALS
Mortgage loans 253 241 1.1% 95.0%
Consumer credit 381 374 10.1% 97.9%
634 614 23% 96.8%

COMPANIES
Services 1,177 1,534 12.7% 130.4%
Commerce 214 190 6.2% 89.0%
Construction 617 548 25.6% 88.8%
Other 380 436 4.4% 114.6%
2,388 2,708 10.1% 113.4%

CONSOLIDATED

Individuals 635 614 2.3% 96.8%
Companies 2,387 2,708 10.1% 113.4%
TOTAL 3,022 3,322 5.9% 109.9%

CUSTOMER FUNDS

The evolution of the assets funding structure in the
Portuguese banking system has shown, in the last few
years, a stronger weight of customer deposits and a
decrease in the weight of debt represented by securities.

Total customer funds of Millennium bcp were redefined,
with reference to 31 December 2017, reflecting, since
then, a broader concept in order to include amounts held
by customers as part of existing agreements for their
placement and management, considering comparable
amounts for 2016 and 2015.

Total customer funds increased 6.6% as at 31 December
2017 from 66,978 million Euros registered as at 31
December 2016, amounting to 71,386 million Euros,
showing the positive performance of both Portugal and
the international activity, based on the growth of balance
sheet customer funds and on off-balance sheet customer
funds.

TOTAL CUSTOMER FUNDS (*)

Million euros

67,951 66,978 717386
18,000 17,704 19,437
49,951 49,274 51,949

Dec.15 Dec.16 Dec.17
W Portugal M |nternational

(*) On a comparable basis: excludes the impact from descontinued
operations.

In the activity in Portugal, total customer funds showed a 5.4% increase from 49,274 million Euros accounted at
the end of the previous year, reaching Euro 51,949 million as at 31 December 2017, boosted by both the growth in
off-balance sheet customer funds (+ 11.4%), and in balance sheet customer funds (+3.1%), highlighting the growth

of resources from customers.

Total customer funds in the international activity increased 9.8% compared to 17,704 million Euros registered as
at 31 December 2016, and stood at 19,437 million Euros as at 31 December 2017, mainly supported by the
performance of the subsidiary in Poland, namely in resources from customers.
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TOTAL CUSTOMER FUNDS
Million
euros
2017 2016 comparabﬁe0(145) C|113 ;/1?;
BALANCE SHEET CUSTOMER FUNDS
Resources from customers 51,188 48,798 49,847 4.9%
Debt securities (1) 1,501 1,636 2,311 -8.3%
52,688 50,434 52,158 4.5%
OFF BALANCE SHEET CUSTOMER FUNDS
Assets under management and investment funds (2) 8,792 7,657 7,242 14.8%
Capitalisation products (3) 9,906 8,888 8,552 11.5%
18,698 16,544 15,793 13.0%
TOTAL CUSTOMER FUNDS 71,386 66,978 67,951 6.6%
Discontinued operations (4) - - 1,692
TOTAL 71,386 66,978 69,643 6.6%

(1) Corresponds to the heading of debt securities issued.

(2) Total customer funds were redefined, with reference to 31 December 2017 and, consequently, on a comparable basis to the end of December 2015
and December 2016, reflecting a broader concept in order to include amounts held by customers as part of existing agreements for its placement and

management.
(3) Includes Unit linked and Retirement savings deposits.

(4) Adjusted from discontinued operations, namely Millennium bcp Gestéo de Activos (sold in May 2015). In the context of the BMA merger with BPA,
BMA was considered a discontinued operation in the first quarter of 2016 and, for comparative purposes, the information of 2015 was re-presented,
through the inclusion of the BMA customer funds in a line of discontinued operations.

Balance sheet customer funds, which comprise debt
securities and resources from customers, showed a 4.5%
increase, to reach 52,688 million Euros as at 31 December
2017 (50,434 million Euros at the end of 2016), reflecting
the 4.9% increase in resources from customers (+2,390
million Euros), despite the 8.3% decrease in debt
securities (-136 million Euros). The pursuit of the strategy
implemented by Millennium bcp for the addition of new
customers, associated with a strong commercial activity,
translated into a sharp rise in customer funds in Portugal
and abroad.

As at 31 December 2017, balance sheet total customer
funds represented 73.8% of total customer funds, with
resources from customers representing 71.7% of total
customer funds.

Customer deposits totalled 51,188 million Euros as at 31
December 2017 (48,798 million Euros at the end of 2016)
driven by both the activity in Portugal (+3.7%) and the

BALANCE SHEET CUSTOMER FUNDS (*)

Million euros

52,158 5 4 52,688
2311 1636 1,501
49,847 48,798 51,188
Dec.15 Dec.16 Dec.17

M Costumer deposits mDebt securities

(*) On a comparable basis: excludes the impact from descontinued
operations.

international activity (+7.6%). Comparing to 31 December 2016, the performance of resources from customers in
the international activity was supported fundamentally by the performance of the subsidiary in Poland, which grew

8.3% (+2.5% in local currency).

Debt securities, comprising the Group's debt securities subscribed by customers amounted to 1,501 million Euros
on 31 December 2017, comparing with 1,636 million Euros recorded at the end of the previous year.

68



Off-balance sheet customer funds, including assets under
management and investment funds and capitalization
products, increased by 13.0% between 31 December 2016
and 31 December 2017, reaching 18,698 million Euros as at
31 December 2017 (compared to 16,544 million Euros
recorded as at the same date of 2016). This evolution
benefited simultaneously from the positive performance in
assets under management and investment funds (+14.8%)
and capitalization products (+11.5%).

Assets under management and investment funds, resulting
from the provision of the individual and collective portfolio
asset management services within the scope of agreements
for their placement and management, increased to 8,792
million Euros at the end of 2017, compared to 7,657 million
Euros as at 31 December 2016, having benefited from the
11.3% growth in the activities in Portugal (+597 million
Euros), through the increased volume of the asset portfolios
mainly acquired by the Private Banking network, and from
the 22.8% rise recorded in the international operations
(+538 million Euros), especially Bank Millennium in Poland.

OFF BALANCE SHEET CUSTOMER FUNDS (*)

Million euros

18,698

15,793 16,544

9,906

8,552 8,888

7,242 7,657 8,792

Dec.15 Dec.16
mAssets under management

M Capitalisation products

Dec.17

(*) On a comparable basis: excludes the impact from descontinued
operations.

The resources allocated to capitalization products including capitalization operations contracts, insurances linked
to investment funds (unit-linked) and savings plans (PPR, PPE and PPR/E), stood at 9,906 million Euros on 31 de
December 2017 (8,888 million Euros by the end of 2016), influenced by the 11.5% increase (+964 million Euros) in
the activity in Portugal, with special relevance for insurance contracts linked to investment funds (unit-linked) and

to retirement saving plans (PPR) (+7.7%).

The performance showed by the capitalization products in international activity showed an 11.3% growth (+54
million Euros) on 31 December 2017, if compared with 31 December 2016, justified by Bank Millennium’s

performance in Poland.
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TOTAL CUSTOMER FUNDS

Million euros

2017 2016 2015 Chan. %

comparable (2) 17/16
BALANCE SHEET CUSTOMER FUNDS
Activity in Portugal 36,681 35,567 37,056 3.1%
International Activity 16,007 14,867 15,102 7.7%
52,688 50,434 52,158 4.5%
OFF BALANCE SHEET CUSTOMER FUNDS (1)
Activity in Portugal 15,268 13,707 12,895 11.4%
International Activity 3,430 2,837 2,898 20.9%
18,698 16,544 15,793 13.0%
TOTAL CUSTOMER FUNDS
Activity in Portugal 51,949 49,274 49,951 5.4%
International Activity 19,437 17,704 18,000 9.8%
71,386 66,978 67,951 6.6%
Discontinued operations (2) - - 1,692
TOTAL 71,386 66,978 69,643 6.6%

(1) Total customer funds were redefined, with reference to 31 December 2017 and, consequently, on a comparable basis to the end of December
2015 and December 2016, reflecting a broader concept in order to include amounts held by customers as part of existing agreements for its
placement and management.

Adjusted from discontinued operations, namely Millennium bcp Gestédo de Activos (sold in May 2015). In the context of the BMA merger with BPA,
BMA was considered a discontinued operation in the first quarter of 2016 and, for comparative purposes, the information of 2015 was re-presented,
through the inclusion of the BMA customer funds in a line of discontinued operations.

LOANS AND AMOUNTS OWED TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

The deposits owed to credit institutions and Central Banks, net of loans and advances to other credit institutions,
amounted to 6,126 million Euros as at 31 December 2017 (8,433 million Euros on the same date of 2016). This
performance reflects a decrease of wholesale funding needs, attributable mainly to the capital increase operation,
net of the amount of CoCo bonds reimbursed, to the decrease of the commercial gap in Portugal and to the funds
released by the commercial activity, whose overall effect was mitigated by the growth of the securities portfolio.

In net terms, the refinancing needs with the ECB showed in 2017 a continuous decrease of Euro 1.4 billion, to Euro
3.0 billion, being also followed by a significant decrease of Repo financing in Portugal (Euro 1.5 billion). Within this
context, one must highlight the fact that the reduction of collateralised funding from the ECB corresponded at the
end of 2017 to the balance of the targeted long term refinancing operations, TLTRO, (Euro 4.0 billion), below than
the Bank’s borrowing limit.

The "Funding and Liquidity" section presents an analysis of the main lines of action and objectives of Millennium
bcp regarding the liquidity management priorities defined in the Liquidity Plan for the year under analysis, namely
the management of the portfolio of assets eligible for possible refinancing operations, so as to guarantee the
appropriate funding of the activity in the short-term and in the medium- to long-term.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING, OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR
TRADING AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS AND FINANCIAL ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The portfolio of financial assets, with the exception of financial assets held to maturity, including (i) assets held for
trading, (iii) other financial assets held for trading at fair value through profit or loss and (iii) financial assets
available for sale, reached the total of 12,512 million Euros as at 31 December 2017, compared to 11,792 million
Euros at the same date of 2016, representing 17.4% of total assets on 31 December 2017 and 16.5% on 31
December 2016. This performance mainly shows the increase in fixed yield securities of 908 million Euros, versus
31 December 2016, due to Treasury Bills and bonds of other foreign issuers, despite the decrease in bonds from
domestic and foreign public issuers.

ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING, OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS AND FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE AS AT 31 DECEMBER

Million euros
2017 2016 2015 Chan.
%
% in % in % in
Amount total Amount total Amount total 17/16
FIXED INCOME SECURITIES

Treasury Bills and other Government bonds 1,369  10.9% 745 6.3% 1,215  10.0%  83.6%
?P%”rfjéf;;‘; by Government and public entities 3051  24.4% 3,469  29.4% 2984  246% -12.1%
ﬁg?g;:f;i‘ig Government and public entities 3301  264% 3398  28.8% 3003 248%  -2.9%
Bonds issued by other Portuguese entities 1,302 10.4% 1,306 11.1% 1,160 9.6% -03%
Bonds issued by other foreign entities 1,615  12.9% 811 6.9% 1,220 101%  99.1%
10,637  85.0% 9,730  82.5% 9,582  79.1% 9.3%

VARIABLE INCOME SECURITIES
Shares and other variable income securities 50 0.4% 56 0.5% 177 1.5% -11.2%
Investment fund units 1,087 8.7% 1,170 9.9% 1,440  11.9% -7.1%
1,137 9.1% 1,226 10.4% 1,617 133% -7.3%
IMPAIRMENT FOR OVERDUE SECURITIES (4) (13) (4) 71.5%
TRADING DERIVATIVES 741 5.9% 849 7.2% 925 7.6% -12.7%
TOTAL 12,512 100.0% 11,792 100.0% 12,120 100.0% 6.1%

The fixed yield securities portfolio reached the value of 10,637 million Euros as at 31 December 2017 (9,730 million
Euros at the end of 2016), representing 85.0% of the total securities portfolio (82.5% in 2016). This portfolio is
mainly composed of bonds of national and foreign public issuers which, as a whole, amounted to 6,351 million
Euros (6,867 million Euros at the end of 2016), representing 59.7% (2016: 70.6%) of the portfolio of fixed yield
securities and 50.8% (2016: 58.2%) of the total financial assets portfolios. In this portfolio structure, note should
also be made of the performance of treasury bills and other public debt securities which reached 1,369 million
Euros on 31 December 2017 (compared to 745 million Euros as at 31 December 2016), showing an 83.6% increase
versus the portfolio of the previous year, as well as of the bonds of other foreign issuers with a 99.1% rise, reaching
1,615 million Euros on 31 December 2017 (811 million Euros as at 31 December 2016).

The variable yield securities portfolio decreased by 7.3%, from 1,226 million Euros recorded at the end of 2016 to
1,137 million Euros as at 31 December 2017, showing the 7.1% reduction of the investment fund units’ portfolio,
from 1,170 million Euros to 1,087 million Euros in the same period.

Trading derivatives totalled 741 million Euros on 31 December 2017, a 12.7% decrease versus the 849 million
Euros recorded on 31 December 2016, particularly the reduction recorded in the swap contracts portfolio (-113
million Euros).
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OTHER ASSET ELEMENTS

Other asset elements, which include assets with repurchase agreement, hedging derivatives, investments in
associates, investment property, non-current assets held for sale, other tangible assets, goodwill and intangible
assets, current and deferred tax assets, and other assets, represented 10.9% of total consolidated assets (11.0%
at the end of 2016), standing at 7,853 million Euros as at 31 December 2017, compared to 7,865 million Euros
recorded as at 31 December 2016.

EQUITY

Equity, including non-controlling interests, totalled 7,180 million Euros on 31 December 2017, 1,915 million Euros
more than the 5,265 million Euros recorded at the end of 2016. This performance was mainly driven by the share
capital increase (+1,287 million Euros after expenses and taxes) resolved on 9 January 2017 and made through a
Rights Offering, by the variation in fair value reserves (+231 million Euros), mainly due to the recognition of
potential gains associated to financial assets available for sale, by the net income for the year attributable to
Shareholders (+186 million Euros), as well as by the foreign exchange differences resulting from the consolidation
of the Group's companies (+49 million Euros), mostly related to the operation in Mozambique.

Additional information and detail on the performance of equity is provided in the Consolidated Accounts of the
alterations in Equity for the period ended on 31 December 2017 and 2016 of the Accounts and Notes to the
Consolidated Accounts.
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Business Areas

ACTIVITY BY SEGMENT

Millennium bcp conducts a wide range of banking activities and financial services in Portugal and abroad, with
special focus on Retail Banking, Companies Banking and Private Banking business.

Following the commitment undertaken with the Directorate-General of the European Commission (DG Comp), an
additional segment has been considered, the Non-Core Business Portfolio, in accordance with the criteria agreed
therein.

BUSINESS SEGMENT PERIMETER
Retail Network of Millennium bep (Portugal)
Retail Banking Retail Recovery Division

Banco ActivoBank
Companies and Corporate Network of Millennium bcp (Portugal)
Specialised Recovery Division
Real Estate Business Division
Companies, Corporate & Investment Interfundos
Banking Large Corporate Network of Millennium bep (Portugal)
Specialised Monitoring Division
Investment Banking
Trade Finance Department (*)
Private Banking Network of Millennium bcp (Portugal)

Private Banking Millennium Banque Privée (Switzerland) (**)
Millennium bep Bank & Trust (Cayman Islands) (**)
Non Core Business Portfolio In accordance with the criteria agreed with DG Comp (***)

Bank Millennium (Poland)

BIM - Banco Internacional de Mocambique
Foreign Business Banco Millennium Atlantico (****)

Millennium Banque Privée (Switzerland) (**)

Millennium bep Bank & Trust (Cayman Islands) (**)

Includes all other business and unallocated values in particular centralized
Other management of financial investments, corporate activities and insurance

activity.

(*) From Treasury and Markets International Division.

(**) For the purposes of business segments, Millennium Banque Privée (Switzerland) and Millennium bcp Bank &
Trust (Cayman Islands) are included in the Private Banking segment. In terms of geographic segments, both
operations are considered Foreign Business.

(***) Loan Portfolios in Portugal to discontinue gradually under the commitments undertaken with the DG
Comp.

(****) In the context of the Banco Millennium in Angola merger process with Banco Privado Atlantico, Banco
Millennium in Angola was considered as a discontinued operation in March 2016. After the completion of the
merger, in May 2016, the new merged entity, Banco Millennium Atlantico, started being consolidated using the
equity method.

The figures reported for each business segment resulted from aggregating the subsidiaries and business units
integrated in each segment, also reflecting the impact from capital allocation and balancing process of each entity
in the balance sheet and income statement, based on average figures. The balance sheet headings for each
subsidiary and business unit were re-calculated, taking into account the replacement of the equity book values by
the amounts attributed through the allocation process, based on the regulatory solvency criteria.

Thus, as the process of capital allocation complies with the regulatory criteria of solvency in force, the risk
weighted assets, and consequently the capital allocated to the business segments, are determined in accordance
with the Basel lll framework, pursuant to the CRD IV/CRR. The capital allocated to each segment resulted from the
application of a capital ratio target to the risks managed by each segment, reflecting the application of the Basel
Il methodologies previously referred. Each operation is balanced through internal transfers of funds, hence with
no impact on consolidated accounts.

Each segment’s income includes the non-controlling interests, when applicable. Therefore, the values of net
income presented incorporate the individual net income of the business units, regardless of the percentage stake
held by the Group, and the impacts of the transfers of funds described above.

Operating costs related to the business segments do not include gains from the Collective Labour Agreement
negotiation and restructuring costs in 2017and 2016.
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Total customer funds were redefined, with reference to 31 December 2017 and, consequently, on a comparable
basis to the end of December 2016, reflecting a broader concept in order to include amounts held by customers as
part of existing agreements for its placement and management, but which were previously processed by the Bank's
commercial management information system that already integrated the resources of the business segments in
Portugal. However, in order to increase the comparability of information, the sources of information used were
standardized, so that, whenever applicable, the figures for the year 2016 were restated.

The information presented below was based on the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS and on

the organization of the Group's business areas as at 31 December 2017.

RETAIL

HIGHLIGHTS

e 130.000 new Mass Market Clients, 30% of which are Young Clients aged 18 to 30 years old.

e 2.5 million active digital clients, +16% versus 2016.

e Morethan one million Clients with an integrated solution.

e Customer addition abroad increased 41% in 2017.

e 61% ofthe active accounts use the E-Statement.

e Loanstoindividuals went up 35% versus the same period of 2016 with an increase in the market share.

e AB8.6% increase in the number of transactions with debit and pre-paid cards and of 8.3% in terms of volume invoiced
year-over-year.

e 85%risein the number of transactions with credit cards and 5.7% increase in the volume invoiced, year-over-year.

e Larger number of Millennium bcp POS machines available with 7,000 new POS contracts, representing a 14.9% growth
and a market share increase of 1.5 p.p..

e  Factoring and Confirming lines with a 37% growth in the portfolio and Trade Finance, with a 20% rise in the number of
transactions and of 37% in the amount.

e Millennium bcp financed 286 new microcredit operations, totalling 2.9 million Euros of credit granted and the creation
of 492 new jobs. The volume of active credit granted to the 982 operations in the portfolio, up to 31 December 2017,
totalled 6.5 million Euros.

e  The Bank also participated in the organization, set up and distribution of the 3 issues of Obrigacdes do Tesouro de
Rendimento Variavel (OTRV), which took place in 2017.
STRATEGY

e Increase of the Client base, binding the sub-segments with a higher value and increased customer service experience,
proximity and agility, focused on the digital component.

e Strong bet on innovation, particularly in digital.
e  Decreasein the cost of liability products, maintaining the focus on the retention of customer funds.

e Increase in credit operations origination with good risk customers to renew and improve the quality of the loan
portfolio.

e  Maintain and increase the use of debit and credit cards of Millennium bcp which, apart from the comfort they offer to
Clients for the comprehensive nature of the offer and reliable use, also enable to strengthen the Client's relation with
the Bank as well as the Client's loyalty and increment of the respective share of wallet.

e  Capture of new clients through POS supported by the Bank and strengthening the relations with current clients.

e Implementation of a business model promoting a more specialized customer service for Prestige clients, enabling
servicing clientsin their preferential channels, always with the follow-up of a Manager, in a Branch or through aRemote
Personalized Management service.

e  Establishment of more protocols with associations and partner banks and maintenance of a business model supported
by Representation Offices in countries such as Brazil, United Kingdom, South Africa, Germany, Switzerland, etc.
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Leading bank in innovation, being the 1st Bank to launch a digital POS with the Millennium Moove App, provision of
new tools on the website and on the M Empresas App, such as the new simplified registry and exclusive services in the
App for the best company clients (Clients Aplauso).

ACTIVITY

Mass Market

Concerning the capture of Mass Market Clients, it is worth mentioning the campaign “Conseguimos Mais” (We can
achieve more) more institutionally focused during the first stage and more focused on the product during the second
stage. Aimed at a stronger binding of new clients via the payment of their salary through Millennium bcp, the offer
consists in the attribution of 10% of the first salary deposited in a savings account as a way to increase the Customers’
appetite for savings from the moment one starts to work.

Moreover, the bank launched the campaign Queres irao SOMNII? Entdo GO!” (Do you want to go to SOMNII? Then GO!)
addressed to the youth segment and intended to increase the capture of new clients, offering a double ticket and also
the campaign GO/MEO SUDOESTE offering a ticket to the MEO SUDOESTE 2018 festival for new clients subscribing to
the integrated solution Millennium GO.

Creation of an integrated offer for new Clients with benefits in anchor products (insurance policies, integrated
solutions, wage advantage and term deposit “Aqui Consigo”).

Prestige

Maintenance of the Bank’s position as the main private Bank for upper and upper middle class clients (Basef/Marktest)
and a 33% increase in the capture of new Prestige Clients, versus the same period of 2016, via i) the improved
commercial system, i) the promotion of more cross networking and member get member actions and iii) campaigns
such as the institutional campaign “Conseguimos Mais 10% do seu ordenado”, which attributed to new Clients 10% of
the value of the 1st salary, placed in a Salary Savings Account or Salary PPR, up to 400 Euros.

Launching of a differentiated offer for remote personalized management and of innovative digital tools, such as
pending transactions on the website and App - distance sale of products without the need for the Client to go to a
Branch or sign documents - the co-browsing - assisted use of the website -, video calling and chat - new ways to
contact the Client Manager.

Enhancing the retirement solutions by association with the conference “Portugal em Exame - Tempo de investir,
poupar e crescer”,an annual initiative promoted by Exame magazine, from the Impresa group, to stress the importance
of saving and of medium-long term investment.

Launching of a campaign for the capture of securities accounts with the attribution of Stock Exchange transactions
price exemptions and discounts to increase the use of MTrader, a platform for trading and visualization of the different
securities traded on the major world stock exchanges and with real time research.

Gradualincrease of the loans granted to clients from the Prestige segment, with competitive spreads in mortgage loans
and in personal loans (online and pre-approved) and non-financial benefits, namely at the moment the real estate
property is acquired.

Relational Marketing actions with the Prestige Clients at events such as the Millennium Estoril Open, the Tennis Schools
with Jodo Sousa in Lisbon and in Porto or the test-drive in partnership with Tesla.

Clients Residing Abroad

A 41% growth in the number of new Clients residing abroad in 2017, supported by referral, communication and
strengthening of the relation with the Clients in countries with the largest communities of emigrants and via protocols
for the capture of Non-habitual Residents and individuals with Golden Residence Permits.

Increase in the number of monthly regular transfers applied in products more oriented towards the diversification of
investment and retirement and increase in the credit granting to residents abroad and foreign individuals, mainly for
the purchase of a residence in Portugal.

Increase of proximity through the reinforcement of the contact actions at Easter, Portugal’s National Holiday and
Christmas, by carrying out 4 Millennium summer festivals that welcomed more than 10,000 visitors, Resident Clients
and Employees.

75



Business

Consolidation of the businesses carried out by micro companies through the increase in the number of clients, the
volume of credit granted, influencing the capture of treasury and funds of corporate clients.

Promotion of the Credit Line Capitalizar and launching of the Crédito Avancar in an online version with preferential
conditions, which accelerated funding to small companies and self-employed individuals by means of increasingly
digital processes.

Support to companies within the scope of the Portugal 2020 Programme, during the application stage and in the
execution of the project and the promotion, in the entire country, of Portugal 2020 meetings with sessions oriented
towards the economic sectors of each region.

Increase of the share in 2017 Leader SME to 20%.

Consolidation of Millennium bcp’s presence with franchising business models (Master and Franchisee), through
meetings with Brands and by participating in the most significant events held by the sector.

Products and payment means

Strong bet in digital giving the Client the possibility of making the loan requests on the website, on the Millennium App
and on the Mobile website. Regarding personal loans, possibility of formalizing the loan online.

The Bank developed several actions in consumer loans, namely special price conditions and targeted sales, which
translated into an increase in the number of consumer loans granted.

Expansion of the real estate loans through the loan campaign offering 3 or 6 months free of interest, a unique offer in
the market; continuing to be strongly focused on fixed rate solutions, as well as on special conditions for loan transfers
and home moves.

Presentation of investment solutions to diversify the financial assets of Clients, with products such as Certificates,
Indexed Deposits, Investment Funds and Financial Insurance policies. Noteworthy is also the major focus on retirement
solutions with the objective of safeguarding the Client’s future.

The Bank developed a set of initiatives with the objective of implementing the regulatory requirements of Markets in
Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID Il) adapting the business model in order to provide an upgrade in the value
proposal for Clients. The Bank also trained Client managers certifying them for the provision of information.

Exclusive sponsorship of Restaurant Week, an event with significant media coverage at a national level and a strong
component of solidarity.

The exclusive partnership with NOS with the offer of a movie ticket against the purchase of one and provided that the
payment is made with a Millennium bcp credit card.

Launching of a new POS Avancar which gave a strong contribution for the growth recorded, with a more flexible pricing
structure, better adjusted to the businesses; the retailer only pays for what he/she invoices, having only to record over
500 Euros in sales every month.

Launching of a new totally digital payment solution, the Millennium Moove App launched in October, which enables
the acceptance of payments with cards and MB Way using a smartphone or tablet, with full user mobility.

Integration of the Western Union service in the Bank’s Mobile App to ensure a greater comfort and access to this service
that enables the swift transfer of money to any part of the world.

Launching of an exclusive and integrated solution for Prestige Direct Clients, with a self-directed profile, promoting the
capture of new Prestige clients and fostering their relation with the Bank and offering an integrated solution for
children, exclusive in Portugal.

Launching of a new account opening process for companies, enabling these Clients to experience a simpler and faster
process on their first contact with the Bank.

Launching of the 1st Life Insurance without a medical questionnaire in Portugal.

Campaign “Seguros é Aqui Comigo” with a prize drawing for 2 cars.
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e Launching of Mébis App and Millennium Seguros App, together with an increased digital promotion of insurance
policies with several advertising campaigns. The purchase of risk insurance policies through the website of Millennium
bep increased significantly.

e  Thedigital e-statement continued to play a significant role in sales, and new operational procedures were launched to
provide a more agile and simple access to digital documents.

e  The digital onboarding actions and the digital subscription campaigns were reinforced, namely through the draw of
electronic devices for the new subscribers, as part of the strong strategic bet in digital.
ActivoBank

In 2017, the Bank remained focused on the strategic objectives of expanding its customer base and increasing
customers' involvement with the Bank. Each one of these two strategic objectives was developed according to the
following vectors:

Attracting Customers
e  Launching and development of new services demonstrating the innovative skills of the Bank;

e Enhancement of the value proposal, together with the implementation of new differentiating products and services
and the launch of institutional communication campaigns.

Customer Loyalty

e  Fine-tuning ofamodel aimed at strengthening loyalty and segmentation, directed at the identification and satisfaction
of the Customers' financial needs;

e Launch of new products and services;
e Promotion of a new platform for trading on the stock exchange (ActivoTrader).

In order to reach the objective of adding new clients and increasing their involvement with the Bank, several
initiatives were developed, amongst which we underline the following:

e Improving the pre-opening of the online account procedure, through the Bank’s website.
e Development of new and more appealing tools to support customer relationship management processes.
e Development of account opening and special products campaigns landing pages;

e Carrying out of three institutional communication and product campaigns. The first campaign was especially targeted
at the capture of deposits and at the required filling-in of the Investment adequacy assessment questionnaire. The
second campaign, which began in July, promoted personal loans at a very competitive rate. The third campaign
consisted in a regular presence in social networks and in digital media (search engines).

e  Brand activation actions during the summer, based on sports and lifestyle, of which we highlight the sponsoring of the
Oeiras Triathlon and support for the beach handball championship;

e Introduction of anew home loan simulator and mortgage loan request on the website and App.

e  Implementation ofa process for the granting of personal loans which, in addition to the simulation, enables Clients who
meet all the necessary conditions to get immediate funding.

The set of actions undertaken, together with the focus on innovation, contributed to close the year with around
163,000 clients (+33%), over 140,000 followers on Facebook, and to surpass 1,300 million Euros in assets under
management.
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INCOME
Million euros
RETAIL BANKING Chg.
31 Dec. 17 31 Dec. 16 17/16
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Net interest income (*) 413 391 5.4%
Other net income (¥) 370 351 5.2%
782 743 53%
Operating costs (*) 472 489 -3.5%
Impairment (¥) 54 113 -52.4%
Income before tax 256 141 82.4%
Income taxes (¥) 75 40 86.9%
Income after tax 181 100 80.6%
SUMMARY OF INDICATORS
Allocated capital 556 518 7.3%
Return on allocated capital 32.6% 19.4%
Risk weighted assets 5,517 4,906 12.5%
Cost to income ratio 60.4% 65.9%
Loans to Customers (net of impairment charges) (*) 16,865 16,918 -0.3%
Total Customer funds 35,927 34,002 5.7%
Notes:

Allocated capital, loans to customers (net of recoveries) and total customer funds and figures based on average balance.
(*) Balances according to the Note 51 — Consolidate Balance Sheet and Income Statement by Segments, of the notes to the accounts.

Income after tax from the Retail Banking segment of Millennium bcp in Portugal totalled 181 million Euros in 2017
showing a significant growth compared with 100 million Euros in 2016. This favourable performance is mainly
explained by the increase in total operating income, by the reduction of operating costs and by lower impairment
charges. Regarding the evolution of the main Income Statement headings, the following aspects should be
highlighted:

Net interest income went up to 413 million Euros in 2017 and grew by 5.4% compared to 2016 (391 million Euros),
mainly due to the continued decrease in the rate of deposits, despite the decline in the yield of credit portfolios.

Other net profits rose up from 351 million Euros in 2016 to 370 million Euros in 2017, a5.2% increase.

Operating costs decreased 3.5% from 2016, reflecting the continuous implementation of the initiatives that were set
out in the Strategic Plan.

Impairment charges amounted to 54 million Euros in 2017, comparing favourably to 113 million Euros recorded in
2016, reflecting the recovery of the Portuguese economy and the progressive normalization of the cost of risk.

In December 2017, loans to customers (net) totalled 16,865 million Euros, maintaining a level similar to the position at
the end of 2016 (16,918 million Euros), while total customer funds increased by 5.7 % in the same period to 35,927
million Euros by the end of December 2017 (34,002 million Euros recorded in 2016), due to both the further increase in
customer deposits and increased diversification for off-balance sheet products.

COMPANIES, CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANKING

HIGHLIGHTS

Support for the new investment of companies, with emphasis on the "Millennium 2020 Solution" an integrated offer of
support for companies from application to execution;

Positive evolution in terms of volumes, with a 7% growth in customer funds;
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e  Factoring and confirming activity, in 2017, recorded increases of 22% and 15% respectively in terms of invoices for
collection and the factoring credit balance;

e Continuation of the strategic partnership established with the Portuguese State for the support to companies,
participating in several protocol credit lines;

e Within the scope of correspondent banking relations, the Bank pursued a proactive approach in the establishment of
partnerships, especially focused on the markets where the Portuguese companies mostly develop their international
activities or on those revealing greater growth potential;

e Intermsofinternational custody, the Bank remained a national reference player, recognized by its clients and peers, for
the quality and competitiveness of the services provided.

e  For trade finance, the year of 2017 represented the affirmationof this business segment, with the Bank reaching the
goals set forth (i) for the main business components (Clients, Margin, Visits to Clients) and (ii) for digital operations
(number of operations made in the companies website versus the ones made via the Branch).

e  Consolidation of the market share in international business at 20.6%, after a steady rise in the last 5 years.
STRATEGY

Companies and Corporate

e  Positioning of the Bank as a partner of the companies, pursuing the development of its strategy to support companies
in the SME, Corporate and arge Corporate segments, through the provision of funding solutions for investment and for
the operating cycle.

Investment Banking

e  Effortsto generate new deals carried out by the origination areas, focused on the BCP Group's core markets, mainly on
investment flows involving Portugal, Poland, Angola, Mozambique, Brazil and China, but also the Latin-American
market, namely Colombia, due to the relevance that this region has to the Millennium bcp customer base.

e  Strategic initiatives to increase the cooperation with other networks of the Bank, to enhance proximity with the
customer base of the BCP Group, developing the network through international institutional investors and strategic
partners in different markets.

Real estate business

e The Bank continues to make a close follow-up of Clients and projects, with the purpose of reducing the risk of the
financing associated with real estate and improve the contribution to the Bank's consolidated earnings.

e Regarding the sale of real estate assets, the strategic priorities during 2017 mainly consisted in selling as much as
possible, maximizing the market’s current potential.
Interfundos

e Reinforcement of the continuity and financial stability of the Organismos de Investimento Imobiliario (Oll) (Real Estate
Investment Entities) , undertakings for investment in real-estate, and the creation of liquidity conditions for the
participants, together with the consolidation of our market leadership position.

International

e  Positioning of the Bank in order to adapt itself to the structural changes introduced in the markets and businesses
where the intervention of the Financial Institutions Department is more relevant (trade finance, transactional banking
and international custody), due to regulatory and technological alterations.

e Promotion of cooperation approaches between the participants in the correspondent relations aiming to drastically
accelerate innovation in this area and finding new value creation dimensions for all Stakeholders.
Trade Finance

e Increase of the Customer base by the capture and reactivation of Clients in all the Bank’s commercial networks, by
organizing events with Clients, seizing opportunities in the main countries where the bank operates, scheduling
meetings with Clients and holding training sessions.
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Increase the supply of products and services, including promotion of increased use of the companies website for
making documentary operations and the implementation of new international factoring solutions.

ACTIVITY

Companies and Corporate

Launching of the new Millennium EIF Innovation Il credit line, up to 200 million Euros, benefiting from the guarantee
provided by the European Investment Fund (EIF). The purpose of this Line is to fund investment projects of innovative
companies aiming to modernize their production processes, launching new products and services or even the
strengthening the company’s means of operation. Since 2015, the Bank has financed more than 240 operations,
reaching a total amount of 200 Million Euros in new loans.

The Millennium EIB 2017 credit line with a 500 million Euro ceiling is addressed to SMEs (companies with fewer than
250 workers) and MidCaps (companies with 250 to 3,000 workers), with the possibility of granting funds up to 12.5
million Euros per project (in the case of SMEs) or up to 25 million de Euros (for MidCaps), with maximum terms of 8 years.

The 2017 Forest Fires EIB Millennium credit line with a global limit of 75 million Euros is meant to help companies
affected by the forest fires in Portugal in 2017 and its goal is to relaunch their activities in the near future through the
lending of funds under special conditions.

Since 2013, Millennium bep contracted EIB lines globally amounting to 1,580 million Euros, and these lines enabled the
Bank to finance more than 1,900 companies with a global funding exceeding 1,000 million Euros.

The Capitalizar Credit Line, a line with a global ceiling of 1,600 million Euros, is meant to be used as working capital and
to fund new investments (namely projects approved within the scope of the Portugal 2020 programme), preferably by
SME. During 2017, BCP financed around 1,900 companies under the PME Crescimento 2015 and Capitalizar credit lines
in an amount of approximately 200 million Euros, continuing to pursue the strategy adopted since the launching of the
first PME Investe line in 2008, which was able to grant financing amounting to approximately 1,000 million Euros.

Reinforcement of the Line to Support the Qualification of Offer with an additional 75 million Euros. The purpose of this
line is to finance projects for the re-qualification of existing tourism undertakings and the creation of tourism
undertakings able to provide an offer that differs from the existing one; this reinforcement was made due to the full
takeup of the initial protocol amount of 60 million Euros established in 2016.

Launching of the Agro Futuro Programme, as part of a global line of 250 million Euros to increase investment and
support treasury, involving solutions for the financing of projects part of PDR 2020, purchase of equipment, support for
innovation and anticipation of subsidies approved by the IFAP and factoring and confirming solutions.

Support for new investments made by companies, including the “Solution Millennium 2020,” an integrated offer that
provides support to companies from the application for the investment and up to its execution. Since the launching of
the tenders associated with Portugal 2020, BCP has financed around 650 projects involving an amount in excess of 550
million Euros.

Contracting of new leasing operations in an amount of approximately 450 million Euros, leveraging the increase of
corporate investment associated with the growth recorded by the tourism industry (namely in rent-a-car activities) and
of new industrial and commercial projects associated with the Incentives System of Portugal 2020.

Institutional campaign Cash on Time Plus, with preferential conditions in terms of fees, increasing the Bank’s visibility
in factoring and confirming solutions to support company treasury management.

Attribution of the Awards “Millennium Horizontes” (Millennium Horizons) with the objective of publicizing the
companies that cross borders thanks to their know-how and innovative and unique products, stressing the Bank’s
commitment to the growth strategy of the Portuguese companies that stand out in international business. The
“Millennium Horizontes” awards distinguish SMEs in three separate categories: “Exports”, “Internationalization” and
“Innovation”. They also distinguish micro companies that, for their strategy, vision and implementation are cases of

success and are recognized as such in Portugal.

The Bank carried out 4 more editions of the Roteiros Millennium Exports, dedicated to Colombia, Canada, Poland and
China, with the objective of supporting the Portuguese exporting companies by providing them with the opportunity
of getting a more detailed knowledge on markets with a high development potential, enabling them to diversify their
exports.
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Investment Banking

Advisor in several M&A transactions, particularly the advisory services provided to EDP in the sale of EDP Gés and of
49% of EDPR PT — PE (wind parks), the advisory services to Mota-Engil and ES Concessoes regarding the sale of assets
owned by Group Ascendi, advisory services to the Global Media Group regarding the entry of a new investor in its share
capital and advisory services to Mota Gestao e Participacdes in the sale of Sunviauto.

Effort to redirect the Project Finance activity, increasing its focus on international core markets and on structures that
favour disintermediation. In Portugal, highlights include the Trustwind, Tagusgés and CBF transactions and several
operations in the renewable energies segment. Also worth mentioning are the participation of Millennium bcp in the
project Oil&Gas of area 4 (“Floating LNG”) in Mozambique and the number of relevant projects currently under way in
coreregions.

The analysis, structuring, negotiating and setting up of new funding operations in Portugal (recreation, construction,
energy, industry, transportation, etc.), Angola (energy, engineering and health) and Mozambique (energy, food,
construction, engineering and public sector), as well as several restructuring operations for large companies and
economic groups in Portugal, particularly the successful closing of funding operations for investment projects
(Eurocast), acquisition finance (MD Group and Ardian/Ascendi PT Il), asset backed (Sodim) and corporate (EDP Finance)
finance.

Contribution given by Millennium Investment Banking in the issue of OTRVs and in the setting up of the issues of
Saudacor, of the Autonomous Region of Azores and Madeira and of Secil. At the same time, MIB continued to take part
in the issues made by recurrent market issuers, such as EDP and Brisa.

In the segment Equity Capital Markets, highlights include MIB's contribution to the share capital increase of Millennium

bcp and in the structuring of the takeover bid launched by EDP for EDP Renovaveis.

FINANCIAL ADVISORY

Financial advisory to
the EDP Group in the
sale of EDP Gas to REN

532.400.000 €

2017
Millennium

CORAL SOUTH
FLNG

MANDATED LEAD
ARRANGER

Financing of floating
LNG upstream in Area 4
of the Rovuma Basin

4.625.000.000 USD

2017
Millennium

Eurocast

MANDATED LEAD
ARRANGER

Financing the French
GMD group investment
in Portugal

30.000.000 €

2017
Millennium

MD@Moldes

MANDATED LEAD
ARRANGER

Acquisition Finance

Undisclosed

2017
Millennium

“

Glnhg’lrllrledia
FINANCIAL ADVISORY
Investment operation

carried out as a share
capital increase

15.000.000 €

2017
Millennium

illennium

RIGHTS OFFERING
COORDINATOR

Rights Issue

1.331.920.365 €
2017

Millennjum
Tnvestment banking

International Company
of the Energy sector
present in Portugal

MANDATED LEAD
ARRANGER

Refinancing of Wind
Farm Portfolio

283.200.000 €

ascendi ARDIAN

LENDER

Debt Push Down

295.000.000 €

2017
Millennium

FINANCIAL ADVISORY

Advisory to MGP in the
MBO of Sunviauto
backed by Oxy Capital

Undisclosed

2017
Millennium
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MANDATED LEAD
ARRANGER

Refinancing of Tagusgas

41.300.000 €

2017
Millennium

% renovdveis

FINANCIAL ADVISORY

Advisory to EDP in the
Public Tender Offer

over the equity of EDPR

1.323.164.066 €

2017
Millennium

MCBF

Central de Biomassa do Fundao, Lda

MANDATED LEAD
ARRANGER

Financing of Fundao
Forest Biomass Power
Plant

40.825.000 €

2017
Millennium

SAUDACOR
LEAD MANAGER

Bond Issues
Due 2019 and 2021

160.000.000 €

2017
Millenniury

@

Regiao Auténoma
da Madeira
Governa Reglonal

JOINT LEAD MANAGER

Bond Issue
Due 2022
220.000.000 €

2017
Millennium

2
Brisa

Concessao

JOINT LEAD MANAGER

2,375% Notes
Due 2027
300.000.000 €

2017
Millennium



Real estate business

Commercial follow up of the real estate promotion Customers involving all stages of their activity;

The incentive for M Imdveis, a commercial programme for Customers' undertakings, to create better conditions for the
sale of the financed projects, continues to leverage the commercial activity;

The diagnosis, restructuring and valuation models continue to be developed as well as new opportunities to place
credits (assets);

Development of partnerships for the sale of the real estate properties outside Portugal, by attending several real estate
events in France and welcoming several entities from different countries.

Consolidating the sales channels in Portugal by betting on partnerships established with real estate brokers specialized
in non-housing properties.

Campaigns, regional and nationwide, and promotions for each asset segment together with exclusive campaigns on
the M imdveis website, "Place your bid".

The Bank continued to uphold its policy to defend the value of its real estate properties and to assume this in the sales.

Development in segmentation and specialization in the distribution of real estate properties in the Portuguese market,
enhancing the presence of bank employees near mediators so as to privilege the information on the assets, recording
the best year ever in terms of sales of assets.

Regularisation, repositioning and conclusion of real estate properties, aiming to enable and speed up the sale process
and to decrease the time during which the assets are owned by the Bank;

The diagnosis, re-structuring and valuation models of real estate trade related assets continued to be developed, as
well as the ongoing operation and consolidation of new channels to place these assets.

Interfundos

Global sales reached 121 million Euros, corresponding to 307 real estate properties in total;

Extension of the term for the duration of six Oll (Real Estate Investment Organisms) (Intercapital, Oceanico lll, Sand
Capital, Stone Capital, Inogi Capital and Imovalue).

Interfundos carried out six capital increases (Oll Oceanico Il - two operations, Oll MR, Oll Sand Capital, Oll Stone Capital
and Oll Predicapital) and nine capital decreases (Oll Patriménio, Oll Sand capital, Oll Stone Capital — two operations, Ol
I Marope, Oll Imoport, Oll Imoal, Oll Funsita and Oll Imorenda);

Establishment of an Oll (Predicapital) and assumption of the management of one Oll (TDF).

Granting of the building permit for the construction of housing lots regarding the Urban Rehabilitation Contract of D.
Jodo | block — a real estate property owned by Oll AF Portfélio Imobilidrio and Imopromocéo — and beginning of the
excavation and peripheral containment works, inner structure and signing of the project’s purchase and sale
promissory agreement.

By the end of 2017, the volume of assets of the 37 Olls managed by Interfundos totalled 1,549 million Euros.

International

Provision of support to Portuguese companies operating in most countries through a global network of correspondent
banks and cross-border payment solutions, involving different currencies.

The Bank also reinforced the services provided as depositary bank for risk capital funds, and the number of funds
doubled (from 10 by the end 0of 2016 to 20 by the end of 2017). The capital generated by these funds more than doubled
in value, from 721 million to 1,490 million Euros. Regarding international custody, the bank recorded a 16% increase in
assets under custody.

Maintenance of the proximity and cooperation with the relevant multilateral and supra national entities within the
scope of the international activity, particularly with group EIB/EIF, entities with whom the bank developed an ongoing
work to support the Portuguese companies, particularly SMEs, notably: i) the agreement established regarding 2 credit
lines for SMEs & Midcapsamounting to 250 million Euros and 75 million Euros, being the lower amount aimed at aiding
the companies affected by the forest fires in June and October; ii) in the last quarter of 2017 the EIF guarantee for a
credit portfolio to SME, for innovation, was renewed by 100 million Euros (1st portion) and a 2nd portion was agreed on
for the beginning of 2018; and iii) extension of the support in trade operations with other countries, achieving a
commercial limit of 70 million USD from the sovereign Brazilian multilateral BNDES.

82



Trade Finance

e The trade finance activity recorded, by the end of 2017, a total amount of 65.5 billion Euros, showing a year-on-year
increase 0f 20.9%. The number of operations made in 2017 rose to around 2 million, a 10.4% increase versus 2016. The
number of Clients increased 9.2% when compared with 2016.

INCOME

Income after tax from the Companies, Corporate and Investment Banking segment in Portugal totalled 6.7 million
Euros in 2017, showing a significant improvement compared to the loss of 143 million Euros presented in 2016,
mainly caused by the decrease in impairment charges. The performance of this segment is globally explained by
the following variations:

e  Netinterest income stood at 256 million Euros in 2017, 7.4% less than the 277 million Euros recorded in 2016, driven
by the impact of the decrease in average interest rates for credit.

e Other net profits rose from 152 million Euros in 2017, compared to 154 million Euros in 2016.

e Operating costs totalled 93 million Euros in 2017, a 4.6% decline from 2016 (97 million Euros), as a result of the efforts
made to optimize resources and simplify structures.

e Impairment charges stood at 307 million Euros in 2017, down 42.9% from 538 million Euros recorded at the end of
December 2016, reflecting the trend towards a normal cost of risk in the activity in Portugal, after the recognition of
additional impairment in 2016, allowing the reinforcement of coverage levels.

e  AsatDecember 2017, loans to customers (net) totalled 10,783 million Euros (10,934 million Euros in 2016), while total
customer funds as at December 2017 reached 10,852 million Euros (10,137 million Euros recorded in the same period
of 2016) showing a rise in customers’ deposits and off-balance sheet customer funds.

Million euros

Chg.

COMPANIES, CORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANKING 31 Dec. 17 31 Dec. 16 17/16
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Net interest income (¥) 256 277 -7.4%
Other net income (¥) 152 154 -1.4%

408 431 -5.3%
Operating costs (*) 93 97 -4.6%
Impairment (*) 307 538 -42.9%
Income before tax 8 (205) -103.8%
Income taxes (*) 1 (62) -101.8%
Income after tax 7 (143) -104.7%
SUMMARY OF INDICATORS
Allocated capital 767 753 1.8%
Return on allocated capital 0.9% -19.0%
Risk weighted assets 7,649 7,441 2.8%
Cost to income ratio 22.8% 22.6%
Loans to Customers (net of impairment charges) (¥) 10,783 10,934 -1.4%
Total Customer funds 10,852 10,137 7.0%
Notes:

Allocated capital, loans to customers (net of recoveries) and total customer funds and figures based on average balance.
(*) Balances according to the Note 51 — Consolidate Balance Sheet and Income Statement by Segments, of the notes to the
accounts.
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PRIVATE BANKING

HIGHLIGHTS

The Private Banking Customer base increased 2%.
Private Banking recorded a 16% increase in fees, particularly in those regarding assets under management.

The results achieved by the Customer Satisfaction Survey consider Millennium bcp a bank close to its customers, a
position evidenced by the high levels of satisfaction with the private banker and with the core services provided by this
network, i.e. the advising provided by the investment expert and the portfolio management service.

Implementation of the compulsory IT alterations and developments in order to prepare the network for the challenges
presented by MiFID Il.

STRATEGY

Provide its contribution to the Bank’s sustained growth.

Privilege an increase in the assets deposited with the Bank via new clients and an increased involvement with the
current ones.

Continue to manage the Client’s assets with maximum rigour and professionalism, providing a service based on
diversification principles - classes of assets, geographical regions, and activity sectors —and on the degree of expertise
of the asset managers it recommends.

ACTIVITY

Within the scope of the training plan for the implementation of MiFID I, all the employees of the Private Banking
network were certified as advisers.

Development of relational marketing actions in sporting and cultural events and also in those handling economic
matters, notably the Millennium Estoril Open and the exclusive concerts for Private Banking Clients in Lisbon and
Oporto.

More insurance policies were sold by the Private Banking network due to the implementation of the action “Seguros de
Venda Ativa Risco” throughout 2017, increasing cross-selling and Customer loyalty.

84



INCOME
Million euros
PRIVATE BANKING Chg.
31 Dec. 17 31 Dec. 16 17/16
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Net interest income (*) 15 15 1.1%
Other net income (¥) 40 31 30.4%
55 46 21.0%
Operating costs (*) 16 15 6.5%
Impairment (¥) 4 0 >200%
Income before tax 35 30 16.6%
Income taxes (¥) 10 9 16.6%
Income after tax 25 21 16.6%
SUMMARY OF INDICATORS
Allocated capital 13 10 30.9%
Return on allocated capital 183.9% 206.5%
Risk weighted assets 156 102 53.8%
Cost to income ratio 29.6% 33.7%
Loans to Customers (net of impairment charges) (*) 221 172 28.6%
Total Customer funds 5214 4,571 14.1%
Notes:

Allocated capital, loans to customers (net of recoveries) and total customer funds and figures based on average balance.
(*) Balances according to the Note 51 — Consolidate Balance Sheet and Income Statement by Segments, of the notes to the
accounts.

From a geographic segmentation standpoint, income after tax from the Private Banking business in Portugal
totalled 25 million Euros in 2017 comparing favourably to 21 million Euros recorded in 2016, mainly due to the
increase of the other net profits, slightly mitigated by the increase in impairment charges. Considering the main
items of the income statement, the relevant situations are highlighted as follows:

Net interest income went up to 15 million Eurosin 2017, keeping in line with the figures accounted in the previous year.

Other net profits rose to 40 million Euros in 2017, a 30.4% increase over 2016 figures, mainly driven by the higher
volume of income recognized with commissions.

Operating costs amounted to 16 million Euros in 2017 versus 15 million Euros in 2016.

Loans to customers totalled 221 million Euros by the end of December 2017, an increase of 49 million Euros compared
to the figures accounted in the same period of 2016 (172 million Euros), while total customer funds climbed 14.1% in
the same period, from 4,571 million Euros in December 2016 to 5,214 million Euros in December 2017, due to the
performance of assets under management and investment funds.

FOREIGN BUSINESS

HIGHLIGHTS

Improvement in profitability and operating efficiency of Bank Millennium; net income reached 160 million Euros in
2017 and core income increased 12.3%. The Return on Equity ratio (ROE) reached 9.3%, and the Cost-to-Income ratio
stood at 45.8%. Comfortable liquidity and capital positions and a very good quality of assets with a loans/deposits ratio
of 82%, a consolidated total capital ratio of 22%, boosted by the Tier 2 issue of 700 million Zlotys and a stable credit
impairment ratio of 4.6%, covered by a provisioning of 67%.
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Improvement in profitability and in operating efficiency of Millennium bim; net income increased 23.2%, with ROE
standing at 24.2%. The Bank's customer base increased 11%, exceeding 1.8 million Clients. The bank had 445,000
active mobile Clients, +17% than at the end of 2016.

STRATEGY

The most important medium term goals of Bank Millennium are centred on the protection and recovery of profitability,
which suffered the negative impact of extraordinary legal, regulatory and tax events, focusing on the main business
segments: retail and companies. The main objectives to reach until 2020 are the following: double the number of new
active clients; achieve a core income growth of 30% versus 2017; two digit growth in selected core areas; continue to
be in the Polish banks top 3 in the Net Promoter Score; achieve a cost-to-income ratio of 40%; alignment of the cost
of risk with the historical trend; achieve a net income above one billion Zlotys and an ROE matching the one of the Top
3 of Polish banks, both excluding the impact of extraordinary regulatory or tax measures.

The 3 pillars of the strategic plan of Millennium bim for 2017 were: Human resources; Management of risk, ensuring i)
prudence in liquidity management, ii) reduction of the exposure to high risk clients, replacing it with new credit with a
better risk and iii) providing support to clients in a proactive manner to avoid default situations and, consequently,
recording impairments; and Earnings, maintaining i) focus on increasing the number of clients as a way to ensure a
sustained net income, ii) reduction of operating costs in spite of the inflationary context and currency depreciation, and
i) good solvency and efficiency ratios, ensuring the achievement of a solid and distinctive position in the market.

Millennium Banque Privée continued to provide discretionary management services to individual and institutional
customers of the Group with large assets, as well as financial advisory and orders execution services.

The Macau Branch of Millennium bcp continues to centralize its activity in the provision of services to the Bank's
networks by supporting individuals and company customers of the Bank, in broadening the base of local customers and
in expanding its activity around the platform China — Macau — Portuguese speaking countries- focusing on the offer of
investment banking services.

ACTIVITY

European Operations

Poland

The previous strategic plan (3 years) ended in 2017 and the following should be highlighted: i) the growth in active
clients that, at the end of those 3 years totalled 351,000, exceeding the 300,000 objective; ii) increase of the market
share in retail deposits (5.7%); iii) the good positioning in the Net Promoter Score; iv) the increasing use of digital
channels, recording 1.1 million active users, of which 700,000 are mobile clients, evidencing an annual growth of 39%.

Due to the development of external trade between Poland and China, the Bank offers a comprehensive package of
services in renminbi, comprising transfers, foreign exchange operations and trade finance solutions.

Customer funds increased 5.3% and the credit portfolio increased 1.1%, wherein loans to companies increased 12%.
Factoring and leasing also increased 15%. The significant growth in customer funds reflects mainly the performance
of investment products (+26%).

Net income of 160.2 million Euros, with a 9.3% ROE. The decrease versus 2016 reflects the impact of the Visa
transaction, which recorded a net gain of €58.2 million in 2016. The good performance is evidenced by the 11.6%
increase in net interest income (pro forma), of fees (14.2%) and of operating costs (3.9%).

1.6 million active clients, a 10% growth versus 31 December 2016, with 1.1 million active digital clients (+16%).
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BANK MILLENNIUM

Million euros
2017 2016 2015 /C'E?%Z 2016 Change % 17/16
excluding FX effect
Total assets 17,037 15,598 15,534 9.2% 16,475 3.4%
Loans to customers (gross) 11,713 10,971 11,218 6.8% 11,588 1.1%
Loans to customers (net) 11,354 10,661 10,875 6.5% 11,261 0.8%
Customer funds 15,948 14,343 14,084 11.2% 15,149 5.3%
Of which: on balance sheet 13,826 12,761 12,456 8.3% 13,478 2.6%
Off-balance sheet (*) 2,122 1,582 1,628 34.2% 1,671 27.0%
Shareholders' equity 1,861 1,574 1,511 18.3% 1,662 12.0%
Net interest income 399.0 344.1 326.5 16.0% 354.2 12.7%
Other net income 194.9 220.5 155.6 -11.6% 227.0 -14.1%
Operating costs 272.0 254.2 260.0 7.0% 261.6 3.9%
Impairment and provisions 60.1 52.8 57.7 13.7% 54.4 10.5%
Net income 160.2 160.3 130.7 0.0% 164.9 -2.9%
Number of customers (thousands) 1,643 1,499 1,376 9.6%
Employees (number) (**) 5,830 5,844 5,911 -0.2%
Branches (number) 355 368 411 -3.5%
Market capitalisation 2,597 1,428 1,582 81.9% 1,508 72.3%
% Of share capital held 50.1% 50.1% 50.1%

Note: the source of the information presented in this table was the statutory financial statements of the subsidiary converted at the
indicated exchange rate.

Source: Bank Millennium

FX rates:
Balance Sheet 1 euro = 4.1756 4.4103 4.2639 zloties
Profit and Loss Account 1 euro = 4.2514 4.3756 4.1817 zloties

(*) Customer funds registered off-balance sheet with change of criteria on capitalization products, from 2015 onwards.

(**) Number of employees according to Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) criteria.

Switzerland

By the end of December 2017, total customer funds totalled 2.800 million Euros, representing a 7% growth versus
December 2016 (excluding the effect of foreign exchange variations).

Despite the pressure on margins in the private banking industry, operating income reached 9.3 million Euros,
representing a 6.9% increase versus the same period in 2016 mainly due to the growth in Customers assets and the
improvement of the mix of services provided by the Bank by intensifying the discretionary management service.

In spite of the fall in the net interest income rate, net interest income grew 11% to 4.8 million Euros as a result of the
increase in loans to customers (+6.7%) and the appreciation of the USD interest rate during the second half of 2017.
Other Net Income increased 5.7%, to 26.2 million Euros. Operating costs increased 5.4% to stand at 21.7 million Euros,
mainly due to costs associated with the development of the Bank's technological platform.

In 2017, earnings before provisions increased by 1.3 million Euros, to reach 8.8 million Euros.

Net income stood at 6.7 million Euros, representing an 18.3% growth if compared with the previous year.
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MILLENNIUM BANQUE PRIVEE

Million euros
2017 2016 2015 Cha;‘?‘fﬁ; 2016 Change % 17/16
excluding FX effect
Total assets 496 536 525 -7.5% 492 0.8%
Loans to customers (gross) 259 265 207 -2.1% 243 6.7%
Loans to customers (net) 257 263 206 -2.2% 241 6.5%
Customer funds 2,800 2,852 2,639 -1.8% 2,617 7.0%
Of which: on balance sheet 408 437 425 -6.7% 401 1.7%
Off-balance sheet 2,392 2,415 2,214 -0.9% 2,216 8.0%
Shareholders' equity 76 84 90 -8.8% 77 -0.6%
Net interest income 4.8 4.4 4.3 9.4% 4.3 11.3%
Other net income 26.2 25.2 25.7 3.9% 24.8 5.7%
Operating costs 21.7 20.9 21.9 3.6% 20.6 5.4%
Impairment and provisions 0.5 1.1 0.1 -56.3% 1.0 -55.5%
Net income 6.7 5.8 6.0 16.2% 5.7 18.3%
Number of customers (thousands) 1.9 1.6 1.6 20.7%
Employees (number) 71 72 71 -1.4%
Branches (number) 1 1 1 0.0%
% Of share capital held 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Note: the source of the information presented in this table was the financial statements reported by the subsidiary for the purpose
of consolidated financial statements, whenever available.

FX rates:
Balance Sheet 1 euro = 1.1704 1.0739 1.0835 swiss francs
Profit and Loss Account 1 euro = 1.1117 1.0925 1.0631 swiss francs

Other international businesses

Mozambique

Inauguration of 10 new branches, three of which in rural areas and part of an innovative partnership, unique in
Mozambique, established between Millennium bim and Correios de Mocambique (post offices).

Focus on remote channels. The bank increased the number of ATMs to 505, and exceeded 9,500 POS, an increase of
6% and 18%, respectively.

Expansion of the Agents J&J&, enabling the bank to offer financial services in remote regions. Millennium bim is the only
bank with branches in all districts of Mozambique.

Launching of Platinum debit and credit cards, exclusive for the Private segment, and of the cards Corporate and
Business for the companies segment.

Introduction of new tools in the Mobile channel, such as the subscription of travel insurance and the 1Z| withdrawal, a
tool for cash withdrawals in ATM or POS without the need of using a debit or credit card.

The website was improved in terms of IT safety and the Prestige website was launched. Millennium bim is the only
financial institution in Mozambique certified by PCI-SSC (Payment Card Industry — Security Standards Council).

Development of the Facebook page that already has more than 270,000 followers;

Inauguration of the first “Innovation” Branch, a space equipped with the latest technology where the Clients may
benefit from a true digital experience;

Launching of the Millennium bim Academy (MBA), with the purpose of reinforcing the professional competences and
qualifications of the staff of BIM within an environment of continuous learning and sharing of knowledge. The training
programme comprised 130 branches, around 75% of the network.

Launching of a programme for the attribution of scholarships for masters and licentiate degrees for the employees
wishing to pursue their studies.
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Several initiatives were carried out by Millennium bim for the promotion of health and well-being of its Employees,
namely lectures together with counselling sessions and health tests; Engagement of pharmaceutical services for the
supply of anti-retroviral drugs; making health tests in the building of the head office on the World Aids Day; the Bank
was appointed for the Presidency of EcoSIDA - Associacdo dos Empresarios para Satide e Bem-Estar do Trabalhador.

Net income increased 23.2%, with a ROE of 24.2%, based on the 13.2% increase of the banking product, triggered by
the increase in the net interest income (+27.9%) and of fees (+2,4%), despite the 9.2% increase in operating costs.
Customer funds increased 1.8% and the credit portfolio decreased 19.5%.

MILLENNIUM BIM

Million euros
2017 2016 2015 Shange  jg16 Change
excluding FX effect
Total assets 1,950 1,838 2,355 6.1% 1,965 -0.7%
Loans to customers (gross) 965 1,121 1,378 -13.9% 1,199 -19.5%
Loans to customers (net) 872 1,039 1,297 -16.1% 1,111 -21.6%
Customer funds 1,414 1,299 1,744 8.9% 1,389 1.8%
Of which: on balance sheet 1,414 1,299 1,744 8.9% 1,389 1.8%
Shareholders' equity 404 309 396 30.7% 330 22.2%
Net interest income 173.2 139.7 140.8 24.0% 135.5 27.9%
Other net income 50.9 64.5 100.6 -21.1% 62.5 -18.6%
Operating costs 84.9 80.2 106.1 5.9% 77.8 9.2%
Impairment and provisions 26.7 23.6 29.4 13.1% 22.9 16.7%
Net income 85.1 71.2 84.2 19.5% 69.1 23.2%
Number of customers (thousands) (*) 1,339 1,272 1,200 5.2%
Employees (number) 2,631 2,551 2,505 3.1%
Branches (number) 186 176 169 5.7%
% Of share capital held 66.7% 66.7% 66.7%

Note: the source of the information presented in this table was the financial statements reported by the subsidiary
for the purpose of consolidated financial statements, whenever available.

FX rates:
Balance Sheet 1 euro = 70.4400 75.3100 51.1600 meticais
Profit and Loss Account 1 euro = 71.6902 69.4927 43.7413 meticais
(*) Number of customers with change of criteria to active customers, from 2015
onwards.
Macau

The Macau branch acts as a support base for the Portuguese companies with business in Macau;

Expansion of trade finance operations to support Portuguese enterprises in exports to China and/or imports from
Ching;

Attracting companies trading in the Angolan capital market that have international trade operations with China.
Support for Chinese Clients who apply for the golden visa.

Increase the contacts established between the Investment Banking area of Millennium bcp with Chinese companies
seeking investment solutions in Portuguese-speaking countries.

It is also worth mentioning the continuing development/modernization of the technological platform of the Branch,
namely the solution for trade finance operations.

In December 2017, customer funds stood at 643 million Euros (-40.4%) and gross loans reached 324 million Euros (-
24.5%).

Net earnings amounted to 11.2 million Euros (-34.6% in MOP and -43.1% in Euros), negatively influenced by the
reduction in credit granted versus 2016.
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Cayman Islands

In 2017, customer funds of Bank & Trust stood at 369 million Euros (-3.7%) and gross loans reached 22 million Euros (-
46.3%).

Net earnings amounted to 2.3 million Euros and have been adjusted by non-relevant foreign exchange impacts on a
consolidated basis.

MILLENNIUM BCP BANK & TRUST

Million euros
2017 2016 2015 Change % 17/16
Total assets 678 710 802 -4.6%
Loans to customers (gross) 22 41 45 -45.3%
Loans to customers (net) 19 39 41 -50.6%
Customer funds 369 383 491 -3.8%
Of which: on balance sheet 359 371 478 -3.2%
Off-balance sheet 10 13 12 -19.8%
Shareholders' equity 318 335 317 -5.2%
Net interest income 6.4 5.7 7.8 11.5%
Other net income (*) (0.9) 1.2 2.5 -171.8%
Operating costs 1.7 2.1 2.9 -17.4%
Impairment and provisions 1.5 (2.7) 2.4 156.7%
Net income (*) 2.3 7.5 4.9 -69.2%
Number of customers (thousands) 0.2 0.2 0.3 -14.6%
Employees (number) 6 7 12 -14.3%
Branches (number) 0 0 0
% Of share capital held 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Note: the source of the information presented in this table was the financial statements reported by the subsidiary for the purpose
of consolidated financial statements, whenever available.

(*) Other net income and Net income have been adjusted by 19.7 million euro in 2017 and -10.3 million euros in 2016, concerning
non relevant foreign exchange impacts on consolidated basis.
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INCOME OF FOREIGN BUSINESS AREA

Million euros

FOREIGN BUSINESS 31Dec.17  31Dec.16 Chg.17/16
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Net interest income (*) 574 477 20.1%
Other net income (*) (**) 262 277 -5.1%
836 754 10.9%
Operating costs (*) 367 342 7.3%
Impairment (¥) 138 82 67.9%
Income before tax 332 330 0.4%
Income taxes (*) 84 85 -1.3%
Income after tax from continuing operations 248 245 1.0%
Income from discontinued operations (***) - 37 -100.0%
Income after tax 248 282 -12.2%

SUMMARY OF INDICATORS

Allocated capital 1,390 1,233 12.7%
Return on allocated capital 17.8% 22.8%
Risk weighted assets 11,293 10,634 6.2%
Cost to income ratio 43.9% 453%
Loans to Customers (net of impairment charges) (*) 12,502 12,003 42%
Total Customer funds 19,437 17,704 9.8%

(*) Balances according to the Note 51 — Consolidate Balance Sheet and Income Statement by Segments, of the notes to the accounts.

(**) Includes accounted earnings related to the investment in Banco Millennium Atlantico, the new merged entity resulted from the merger
process of Banco Millennium Angola with Banco Privado Atlantico in May 2016.

(***) Corresponds to total net income from Banco Millennium Angola (from the first four years of 2016).

Income after tax from Foreign Business, according to the geographic segments, stood at 248 million Euros in 2017
versus 282 million Euros achieved in the same period of 2016, being affected by specific impacts resulting mainly
from the application of IAS 29 on Banco Millennium Atlantico in 2017 due to the classification of Angola as an
economy with high inflation by the international audit firms and by gains in 2016 with the sale of the stake held by
Bank Millennium Poland in Visa Europe.

The application of IAS 29 to Banco Millennium Atlantico caused a negative impact of 28 million Euros in the income
after tax from the Foreign Business segment in 2017, reflected in other net income (equity accounted earnings)
and impairment (goodwill), while gains obtained last year by Bank Millennium in Poland with the sale of the stake
held in Visa Europe had a positive impact of 57 million Euros on income after tax of this segment in 2016, resulting
all these effects on a lower amount of 85 million Euros in income after tax in 2017, compared to 2016.

Taking into account the different items in the income statement, the performance of Foreign Business can be
analyzed as follows:

e Netinterest margin rose to 574 million Euros in 2017 (477 million Euros in 2016). Excluding foreign exchange effects,
the increase would have been 16.8%, reflecting the positive contribution of all subsidiaries and mainly by Millennium
bim.

e  Othernetincome excluding the equity accounted earnings related to the stake held in Banco Millennium Atlantico and
the impact of the sale of Visa Europe, by Bank Millennium in Poland, shows a 15.1% increase (14.8% excluding foreign
exchange effects) despite the higher level of mandatory contributions in Poland.

e  Operating costs amounted to 367 million Euros in 2017, 7.3% up from the same period of 2016. This evolution was
mainly due to the contribution of Bank Millennium in Poland. Excluding foreign exchange effects, operating costs would
have risen 6.0%, mainly influenced by the operations in Mozambique and Poland.

e Impairment charges, excluding foreign exchange effects and the impact from the application of 1AS 29 on Banco
Millennium Atlantico in 2017, would have risen 18.1%, mainly caused by the performance of Mozambique and Poland.

e  Loansto customers (net) stood at 12,502 million Euros, a 4.2% increase from the 12,003 million Euros of 31 December
2016. Excluding foreign exchange effects, loans decreased 1.2%, influenced by the performance of Mozambique
despite the inverse performance in Poland.
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e  Total customer funds from business abroad increased by 9.8% from the 17,704 million Euros reported on 31 December
2016, standing at 19,437 million Euros on 31 December 2017, mainly due to the performance of Poland and mostly to
the customers' deposits and other loans. Excluding the foreign exchange effects, total customer funds increased 5.3%.

OTHER

Millennium bcp Ageas

Within a context of recovery of the Portuguese economy and a challenging competitive market, 2017 was marked
by the continuation of the implementation of the defined strategic agenda.

Several projects were carried out and, combining the excellence in the experience provided to the customer with
the creation of value proposals, contributed to strengthening the Bank’s position as an international reference in
the distribution of insurance policies through banking channels.

The Life insurance business, with a production of 1,400 million Euros, recorded a 1.8% increase versus the same
period of 2016, especially driven by the performance recorded by the closed unit linked and PPR products,
increasing 24.2% and 70.9%, respectively, versus 2016.

The good operating performance and technical solidity of the life operation enabled the generation of a significant
contribution of 35.5 million Euros of net income for Millennium bcp, 36.5% more than in 2016.

In the Non-Life business, the strong focus of the commercial networks of Millennium bcp permitted a 7% increase
in production compared with the same period in 2016, strengthening its leading position in non-life insurance in
the bancassurance channel with a market share of 35.8%.

This performance was triggered by some commercial initiatives such as the strong multimedia campaign of Médis,
and other campaigns launched throughout the four business cycles, which contributed positively in both the Retail
and Companies network, which grew 6.2% e 11.2% vs. 2016, respectively.

Main indicators Dec-2017 Dec-2016 Variation

Market Share - Premiums

Life Insurance 20.2% 21.0% -0.8 p.p.
Non-Life Insurance 7.4% 7.4% 0 p.p.
Market Share— Premiums in Bancassurance
Life Insurance 24.4% 27.2% -2.8 p.p.
0 p
p
Non-Life Insurance 35.8% 35.8%
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STRATEGY




Vision, Mission and Value Creation

BCP intends to be a benchmark Bank in customer service ...

BCP's vision is to become the benchmark Bank in Customer service, based on innovative distribution platforms,
where a relevant part of the resources will be allocated to Retail and Companies, in markets of high potential with
excellent efficiency levels, translated into a commitment to an efficiency ratio placed at reference levels for the
banking industry and with tight discipline in capital, liquidity and cost management.

... whose mission is to create value for the Stakeholders ...

The Bank's mission is to create value for the stakeholders through high quality banking and financial products and
services, complying with rigorous and high standards of conduct and corporate responsibility, growing profitably
and sustainably, so as to provide an attractive return for Shareholders, in a manner that supports and strengthens
the bank’s strategic autonomy and corporate identity.

... defining ambitious goals ...

On 12 January 2017, the Bank confirmed its financial and operational business goals for 2018 pursuant to the share
capital increase:

e  CET1 (phasedin) and CET1 (fully implemented) of around 11%;
e  Loansto deposits ratio at less than 100%;

e  Cost-to-Core Income ratio under 50%;

e Cost-to-Income ratio under 43%;

e  Costofriskunder75b.p.;

e ROE of approximately 10%.

...and knowing how to attain them.

In the recent past, BCP overcame challenging and demanding times. Its Employees worked hard to turn BCP into a
benchmark for commercial banking in Portugal.

The country went through a Financial Aid Programme, showing a weakened economy and a financial system with
its credibility damaged. Clients became more demanding and changed the way they relate with the Bank, showing
their increasing preference for alternative digital channels, rather than going to a branch.

The contraction showed by banking activity was enormous, interest rates stood at historically low levels, banking
supervision was transferred to the European Central Bank and the Supervisor became more demanding and
distant. The competitors are currently adjusting to this environment and the Employees of BCP worked daily on
the transformation of BCP in order to ensure its sustainability.

The Bank adapted to the changes around it and responded with innovation and ability to adapt to a new reality,
bearing in mind at all times the way it wishes to do banking.

Banking with values in the daily relations with Clients, Shareholders, Employees and other Stakeholders.

5 Based on a fully implemented CET1 ratio of 11%.
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Millennium bcp is and will increasingly be a bank that is:

© 06 9 0

AGIL MODERNO PROXIMO SIMPLES SUSTENTAVEL

Agile, Modern, Personal, Simple and Sustainable

These are the principles defining how each Employee of BCP must act in his/her relations with other Employees,
Customers, Shareholders, other Stakeholders and with the Community and the Surrounding Environment.
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Strategy

In September 2012, BCP presented a Strategic Plan with three stages (definition of the basis for a future
sustainable development, creation of conditions for growth and profitability and, lastly, achieving a sustained
growth) to be implemented until 2017. The Strategic Plan was updated in September 2013, following the approval
of BCP's Restructuring Plan by the European Commission and in June 2013, after a share capital increase operation,
its targets were also updated. This strategic plan was completed with success.

In 2017, the Bank sped up the implementation of strategic initiatives, betting on innovation and customer
experience.

In relation to BCP's business model, 6 work fronts were adopted:

e Redefining the Retail distribution network, exploiting the potential of new technologies, namely in the digital area
(Internet Banking and Mobile Banking, among others).

e Relaunching the affluent individuals segment, by adjusting the service model and taking up a position of leadership.
e  Consolidating the position of leadership in providing support to micro and small enterprises.

e Adjust the business model of the growth-oriented corporate segment, in order to be the reference Bank in providing
support to the Portuguese economy.

e Transform the credit recovery business through an integrated strategy of reduction of the non-core business portfolio,
which may include the sale of assets and the optimisation of the recovery operating model.

e Build onthe operating model of the Bank, by simplifying and automating processes, with a view to optimising the levels
of service provided to the Customer.

In order to transform the Bank into a stronger organisation and with greater involvement with the shareholders,
there are 3 organisation-wide work fronts under way:

e  Definition of the level of risk to be adopted in each business area with the implementation of the “Risk Appetite” rules.
e Promotion of a business sharing culture between business areas and geographies.

e Launch of a cultural transformation programme of the organisation with a focus on the development of human
resources, the improvement of its satisfaction and the consolidation of a set of values that guide the action of the Bank.

The implementation of this Agenda showed visible results at a business level, there was a significant growth in the
number of new clients and in the number of digital clients, an increase of digital sales, improvement of the
efficiency of the analytics and CRM model. The Bank also launched new products developed by multi-disciplinary
teams, like the online credit and the M2020 App.

In Poland, the bank disclosed its "Strategy 2020", announcing a net income target of 1000 million Zlotys, a core
income 30% higher than in 2017 and a cost-to-income of 40%, maintaining the cost of risk in line with the
historical average. The Bank s evolving, becoming more digital in both the affluent and the mass market segments.

In Mozambique, the bank is focused on the management of the major risk sources, improving namely the control
of operating risk, and on its modernization, namely through Mobile (IZi and Smart Izi) and the development of
payment solutions. In terms of business segments, one must underline the development shown by the Prestige
segment.

The General Meeting of Shareholders will elect the Bank’s corporate bodies for the next three-year period, namely
a new Executive Committee. Afterwards, the Bank will present to the market a new Strategic Plan to continue to
enhance the Bank’s position as a modern bank, close to its stakeholders and increasingly sustainable.
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Internal Control System

The internal control system is defined as the set of principles, strategies, policies, systems, processes, rules and
procedures established in the Group aimed at ensuring:

e Efficient and profitable performance of the activity, in the medium and long-term, ensuring the effective use of
the assets and resources, the continuity of the business and survival of the Group, namely through an adequate
management and control of the risks of the activity, through a prudent and correct assessment of the assets and
liabilities, as well as through the implementation of mechanisms for prevention and protection against errors and
fraud;

e  Theexistence of financialand managerial information which is complete, pertinent, reliable and timely, to support
decision-making and control processes, both at an internal and external level;

e Observance oftheapplicable legal and regulatory provisionsissued by the supervision authorities, including those
relative to the prevention of money laundering and financing of terrorism, as well as professional and ethical
standards and practices, internal and statutory rules, codes of conduct and customer relations, guidelines of the
governing bodies and recommendations of the Basel Banking Supervisory Committee and European Banking
Authority (EBA), so as to preserve the image and reputation of the institution before its Customers, shareholders,
employees and supervisors.

In order to achieve these objectives, the internal control system is based on the Compliance function, the risk
management function and internal audit function, which are exercised by centralised divisions and operate
transversally across the Group. The Heads of these three divisions are appointed by the Bank's Board of Directors,
with the favourable opinion of the Committee for Nominations and Remunerations, which approves their technical
and professional profiles as appropriate for the function at stake.

The internal control system is based on:
e Anadequate internal control environment;

e Asolid risk management system, aimed at the identification, evaluation, follow-up and control of all risks which
might influence the Group's activities;

e  An efficient information and communication system, designed to guarantee the collection, processing and
transmission of relevant, encompassing and consistent data, within a timeframe and manner that allows for an
effective and timely management and control of the institution's activity and risks;

e An effective monitoring process, implemented with a view to ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
actual internal control system over time, to immediately identify any flaws (defined as the group of existing,
potential or real defects, or opportunities for the introduction of improvements that will strengthen the internal
control system), and ensuring the triggering of corrective action; and

e Strict compliance with all the legal and regulatory provisions in force by the Group's employees in general, and by
the people who hold senior or managerial positions, including members of the management bodies, to ensure
compliance with the Group's Code of Conduct and other codes of conduct applicable to the banking, financial,
insurance and brokerage (of securities or derivatives) activities.

THE RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM, THE INFORMATION AND REPORTING SYSTEM AND THE
INTERNAL CONTROL MONITORING SYSTEM

The internal control system includes the following subsystems: the risk management system, the information and
reporting system and the internal control monitoring system.

The risk management system corresponds to the series of integrated and permanent processes which enable the
identification, assessment, monitoring and control of all material risks, derived internally or externally, to which
the Group's institutions are exposed, in order to keep them at levels that are predefined by the management and
supervisory bodies, and take into consideration risks related to credit, markets, interest rates, exchange rates,
liquidity, compliance, operating, information systems, strategy and reputation, as well as all other risks which, in
view of the specific situation of the Group's institutions, could become materially relevant.

This system is suitably planned, reviewed and documented and is supported by risk identification, assessment,
monitoring and control processes, which include appropriate and clearly defined policies and procedures, aimed
at ensuring that the objectives of the institution are achieved and that the necessary measures are taken to
respond adequately to previously identified risks.

The information and reporting system ensures the existence of information which is substantive, up-to-date,
understandable, consistent, timely and reliable, so as to enable an overall and encompassing view of the financial
situation, the development of the business, the achievement of the defined strategy and objectives, the risk profile
of the institution and the behaviour and prospective evolution of relevant markets.
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The financial information process is supported by the accounting and management support systems which record,
classify, associate and archive, in a timely, systematic, reliable, complete and consistent manner, all the operations
carried out by the institutions and its subsidiaries, in accordance with the rulings and policies issued by the
Executive Board of Directors.

The monitoring process includes all the control and assessment actions developed with a view to ensure the
effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control system, namely through the identification of deficiencies in the
system, either in terms of its design, implementation and/or use. The control and monitoring actions are
implemented on a continuous basis and as an integral part of the Group's routines, being complemented with
regular or exceptional autonomous assessments. Any deficiencies of material impact which might be detected
through the control procedures are duly registered, documented and reported to the appropriate management
and supervisory bodies.

Within this context, the internal audit function is performed by the Audit Division on a permanent and independent
basis, assessing, at all times and pursuant to the established plan, the adequacy and effectiveness of the different
components of the internal control system, as a whole, issuing recommendations based on the outcome of those
assessments.

These subsystems of the internal control system are managed by the Risk Office and Compliance Office in terms
of risk management and by the Planning and Control Department of the Planning, Research and ALM Division, the
Accounts and Consolidation Division and the areas responsible for accounting in the different subsidiaries, for
information and reporting.

The activity of the Risk Office is transversal across the Group and includes the coordination of the local risk
management structures. The activity of the Compliance Office is also transversal to all Institutions of the Group,
in terms of applicable compliance policies, with observance of the legal specificities of each jurisdiction. The
Accounting and Consolidation Division and the Planning and Control Department of the Planning, Research and
ALM Division receive and centralise the financial information of all the subsidiaries. The Audit Division is
responsible for the on-site monitoring of the internal control system, performing this duty transversally.

The Risk Office, the Compliance Office, the Accounting and Consolidation Division, the Planning and Control
Department of the Planning, Research and ALM Division and Audit Division ensure the implementation of the
procedures and means required to obtain all the relevant information for the information consolidation process at
Group level - both of an accounting nature and relative to management support and risk monitoring and control -
which should include:

e The definition of the contents and format of the information to be reported by the entities included in the
consolidation perimeter, in accordance with the accounting policies and guidelines defined by the management
body, as well as the dates when the reporting is required;

e  Theidentification and control of the intra-Group operations;

e Assurance that the managerial information is consistent between the different entities, so that it is possible to
measure and monitor the evolution and profitability of each business, verify compliance with the objectives that
have been established, as well as evaluate and control the risks incurred by each entity, both in absolute and
relative terms.
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Main Risks and Uncertainties

Risk Sources of risk Risk level Trend Interactions
ENVIRONMENT
Regulatory = More deme.md_in_g Capi_tal Requirements " Total CET1 requirements in 2018:

(SREP) and liquidity and implementation of 8.8125%
MREL = Disclosure of LCR, NFSR and Leverage

® Regular practice of conducting Stress Tests ratio
by the ECB " |FRS9 could result in a greater Income

® Changes to accounting standards, namely Statement volatility and in a greater loan
IFRS 9, as of January 2018, which includes granting procyclicality
into a transition from an incurred loss " Most guidelines have already been
model to an expected loss model High ” translated into our risk models, which,

" Absence of fiscal framework for the IFRS 9 pursuant to continuous dialogue with
transition the ECB, have become very conservative

® Legal void for the tax treatment of credit when compared with most banks in
impairments Europe

®= European Commission and ECB guidelines * 56% RWA density
on NPL provisioning

" EBA's guidelines on IRB models

Sovereign " Low potential growth - Recovery oF.proﬁtability limited by the

® Low interest rates and compression of the low nominalinterest rates and by the low
spread for active interest rates potential growth

® High indebtedness of the public sector and ® Still high level of NPE
of the private sector ® Lower funding costs

" Deceleration of the fall of public debt as a " Profitability of the pension fund
percentage of GDP " Increase in risk premiums may worsen

® Deceleration of the correction of the future regulatory requirements, namely
unbalances of the country's current Medium ” those related to the MREL

account and capital account

Exposure to Portuguese and Mozambican
sovereign debt

Exposure to emerging countries strongly
dependent on commodities

Exposure to credits held by Mozambican
entities

Angola was considered an economy
undergoing hyperinflation

Future regularization of the ECB's
monetary policy leads to pressure on
public debt yields but the increasing
steepness of the interest rates curve
favours the banks' profitability

FUNDING AND LIQUIDITY

Access to WSF

markets
funding
structure

and

® |rregular functioning of WSF/MMI markets

® Progressive replacement of the funding

obtained from the ECB by funding obtained

in the IMM/WSF

Incentive to the placement of financial

instruments with Retail investors

Need to fulfil eventual gaps versus MREL

requirements Low

® Continuation of the deleveraging process
by the internal economic agents versus
growth of active loans

Balance sheet customer deposits and
funds paramount in the Ffunding
structure

Limited scope for decreasing cost of
funding

Credit portfolio may continue to
contract

Maintenance of the NPE decrease
rhythm

Return to profitability in Portugal
independent from volume growth

Need for access to the financial markets
to meet MREL requirements, which may
impact the banks' funding structure
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Risk Sources of risk Risk level Trend Interactions
CAPITAL
Credit risk = Still high NPA stock ® Impact on SREP from high level of NPE
® Execution of NPE and CRF Reduction Plans " Need to decrease the time recovery
may not meet market expectations processes take, for both loans and/or
® Exposure to real estate assets, directly or by companies
participating in real estate investment or " Evolution of available income / evolution
restructuring funds of unemployment rate / level of
® Exposure to emerging countries strongly companies' default
dependent on commodities ® Need to decrease exposure to real estate
High ” risk, despite the positive trend in real
estate prices generating a positive
context for the resolution of the NPE and
CRF stock in the bank's balance sheet
" Deterioration of the quality of loans
granted directly to emerging countries
or to companies in those countries or to
Portuguese companies with business
relationships with those countries
Market risk = Volatility in capital markets = Market uncertainty
® Adverse behaviour of the real estate ® Monetary policies of the various Central
market ” Banks
Low ® Profitability of the pension fund
® Smaller profits from trading
Operational ® Inherent to the Group’s business ® Streamlining processes
risk Low h ® Degrading controls
® Increased risk of fraud
® Business Continuity
Concentration ® Concentration of assets of some size ® Need to reduce the weight of the main
risk Customers in the total credit portfolio
Medium h
Reputational ® Inherent to the Group’s business ® Negative public opinion may hinder the
legal and " Incentives to place financial products that ability to attract Clients (particularly
compliance risk enable recovery of profitability, not depositors)
matching the clients’ risk profile or needs ® Eventual complaints from Clients
" Reputational risk worsened by the recent " Eventual sanctions or other
resolutions of BES and Banif, after the Medium h unfavourable procedures resulting from
problems with BPN and BPP inspections
" Unstable regulatory framework
applicable to financial activities
®" AML and counter terrorism financing
rules
Profitability " Low nominal interest rates " Negative impact on the financial margin:
= Discussions on the banks' obligation to fully price effect, volume effect and past due
reflect the negative value of the Euribor in credit effect
mortgage loans rate " Need to continue to control operating
® More limited space to reduce rates on term costs
deposits in new production . " Keeping  adequate  hedging  of
Medium

Regulatory pressures on fees

Increase of the coverage of problematic
assets by impairment

Exposure to emerging markets, including
countries specifically affected by the fallin
the commodities price

" Fintech competition

problematic assets by provisions

Reformulation of the business model
and digital transformation
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Risk Management

The Group's Risk Management System (SGR) is one of the elements of the Internal Control System (SCI) - together
with the Internal Audit and Compliance functions - and decisively contributes to a solid control and risk limitation
environment in which the Group carries out its business activities, sustainably and in accordance with its Risk
Appetite Statement (RAS).

In 2017, the main activities related to developments, responses and achievements within the scope of the control
and monitoring of the various risks that the Group faces were, in summary, the following:

Updating of the Non-performing Assets (NPA) Reduction Plan, concerning the Non-performing Exposures (NPE) and
the foreclosed assets (or received in lieu of payment), the performance of which has registered very positive results,
above the forecasts;

Participation in the European Banking Authority (EBA) benchmarking exercise related to the approved internal models
for capital requirements calculation of high default portfolios - Retail and SME Corporate - and for market risks;

Undertaking of the internal developments necessary for the implementation of IFRS9, together with the participation
in the impact studies regarding this new framework, with report to EBA;

Execution of the stress testing exercise of 2017, specifically regarding the interest rate risk of the banking book;

Drawing up of a Plan for the follow-up and (and projection) of the disinvestments in Corporate restructuring funds
(FRE), that went on at a steady rhythm and with positive results in 2017;

Approval of the new risk taxonomy for ICAAP(*) purposes, with the identification and quantification of risks within the
scope of this process and execution of Pillar 2 report;

Review and update of the RAS metrics, incorporating new variables to monitor credit concentration risk, reputational
risk and cyber-risk;

Supervisory approval of the new Retail LGD/ELBE models of Bank Millennium (Poland);

Supervisory approval of the IRB approach for financial assets stemming from the Group's participation (in Portugal) in
Collective Investment Undertakings;

Response to various SSM inspections of the Group's activity in Portugal - namely, concerning the estimation model for
CCF, the ILAAP(*), IT risks, the internal models for the Retail portfolio (TRIMIX), Defaults’ tagging and the process of
liquidity control - as well as a supervisory ‘deep dive’ on the ICAAP;

Submission of authorization request for the PPU (Permanent Partial Use) of the standard approach for exposures
related to tariffs’ credits over the national electricity system and for intra-group credit exposures;

Submission of authorization requests for material changes to LGD/ELBE Retail and Corporate models for Portugal, with
new estimates and segmentations for these parameters. The authorizations for the LGD/ELBE models were granted at
the beginning of 2018;

Participation in the Bank's new products’ approval policy, through the risk analysis of 145 new products and services;
Implementation of updates to the internal market risk model (VaR);

Implementation of a software solution to support the management and registration of internal models (MRM), aiming
at the reinforcement of model risk governance practices;

Launching of the BCBS 239 (Principles for effective risk data aggregation and risk reporting) Project and nomination of
the Chief Data Officer (CDO), in view of the Bank's compliance with the principles of the Basel Committee on data
governance and data quality;

Participation in the update of the Group’s Recovery Plan.

It is also important to remember that the commitments established with DG COMP (from the European
Commission) that resulted from the Bank's recapitalization plan, ended on 31/12/2017. This formally marked the
end of a period of around four years during which the Group faced and surmounted crucial challenges, in which
risk management - among other control functions - has played a very relevant role and contributed unequivocally
to the evidenced business resilience.

) Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process.
) Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process.
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RISK MANAGEMENT GOVERNANCE

The following figure illustrates the risk management governance, referred to on 12/31/2017, exerted through
various bodies:

RISK MANAGEMENT AND RISKS MEASURING, MONITORING
CONTROL POLICY AND CONTROL

DAY TO DAY MANAGEMENT

Board of Directors ~ fmmmmmmmmm e

SUPERVSORY
RESPONSIBILITIESAT
GROUP LEVEL

Risk Assessment 1
Committee

— Audit Committee

Credit Commission

| Executive Committee — Risk Commission

— Credit atRisk Commission

Group CALCO

RESPONSIBILITIESAT

EXECUTIVE |

Pension Funds Risk Monitoring
Commission

S

GROUP LEVEL
| Group Treasurer

Internal Controland Operational Risk
Monitoring Commission

Risk Office :

Executive Commission

EXECUTIVE
RESPONSIBILITIESAT
ENTITY LEVEL

| Credit Commission

Risk Control Commission

| CALCO

Risk Office r

The compositions, competences and responsibilities of the bodies intervening in the risk management governance
—besides the Board of Directors (BoD) and the Executive Committee (EC) - are the following:

RISK ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Assessment Committee is composed of three non-executive members of the BoD and has the following
responsibilities:

e Monitoring of the overall levels of credit, market, liquidity and operational risk, ensuring that these are compatible with
the objectives, available financial resources and strategies approved for the development of the Group's activity;

e Supervision of the Group's ‘Risk Appetite’ definition and implementation, proposing the respective Risk Appetite
Statement (RAS) to the BoD;

e Supervision of the ICAAP and monitoring of the RAS indicators, verifying their alignment with the defined thresholds
and levels, as well as monitoring the action plans designed to ensure compliance with the established risk limits;

e Approval of the Group's Capital and Liquidity Contingency Plan and of the business continuity management plans
(Disaster Recovery Plan and Business Recovery Plan);

e Advising the BoD on matters related to the definition of risk strategy, capital and liquidity management and market
risks management.
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The Risk Officer has functional reporting duties to this Committee and participates in its meetings, presenting the
evolution of the key risk metrics and indicators and of the credit impairment, as well as all incidents, changes and
evolutions relative to the Risk Management System.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is composed of three non-executive members of the BoD. Within the risk management
governance, this body stands out for its corporate global monitoring and supervising capacities (e.g. in what
concerns the follow-up of the Group risk levels), as well as for its competences related to the Internal Control
System, namely:

e Control of the Risk Management and the Internal Control Systems’ effectiveness (and, also, of the Internal Audit
System);

e Issuing of a prior opinion concerning the entity defined by the Bank to assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Internal Control System.

The Risk Officer participates in this committee’s regular meetings, reporting on the evolution of the main
indicators and metrics concerning risks and credit impairment, as well as on the implementation status of the
recommendations that concern the Risk Management System (within the scope of internal control or issued by the
supervisory/regulatory authorities).

RISK COMMISSION

This commission is responsible, at an executive level, for the Group’s risk management and control framework,
establishing its respective principles, rules, limits and procedures for the Group’s entities, in accordance with the
defined risk limits.

The Risk Commission monitors the overall levels of credit, market, liquidity and operational risk, as well as all other
risks considered materially relevant for the institution, ensuring that the risk levels are compatible with the
objectives, available financial resources and strategies that have been approved for the development of the
Group's activity. The Commission also validates risk management’s compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations.

This commission is composed of all the members of the EC(*), the Risk Officer, the Compliance Officer and the
Heads of the following Divisions: Internal Audit; International, Treasury and Markets; Research, Planning and ALM;
Credit; Rating; Models Monitoring and Validation Office.

CREDIT AT RISK COMMISSION

This commission has the responsibility of monitoring the evolution of credit risk, under various aspects:

e Monitoring the NPA Reduction Plan, including its operational scope and the fulfilment of the quantitative goals
assumed; besides the NPE reduction, the Commission also monitors the disinvestment process of the real estate
portfolio and other assets received in lieu of payment as the result of credit recovery processes;

e Analysis of the credit recovery processes performance;

e  Portfolio quality and main performance and risk indicators;

e  Impairment, including the main cases of individual impairment analysis;
e Counterparty and concentration risk in the largest exposures;

This commission is composed of three EC members (responsible for the credit, financial and risk areas) and the
Heads of the following Divisions: Credit; Risk Office; Rating; Specialised Recovery; Specialised Monitoring; Retail
Recovery; Real Estate Business; Legal Advisory and Litigation; and Management Information.

) with a minimum of three Executive Directors.
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PENSION FUNDS RISK MONITORING COMMISSION

The mission of this specialised commission is the monitoring of the performance and risk of the Group’s Pension
Funds in Portugal.

The Commission has the following competences:
e Assessthe performance and risk of the Pension Funds;

e  Establish appropriate investment policies.
This commission is composed of three members of the EC (one of these being the responsible for the insurance

area), the Risk Officer, the head of Human Resources and of the Research, Planning and AML Divisions and, by
invitation, representatives of the Fund’s management entities.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND OPERATIONAL RISK MONITORING COMMISSION

This commission is responsible for defining the operational risk management framework and its implementation
in the Group’s operations.

The Commission monitors all matters related with internal control and operational risk.

It is composed of three EC members, the Risk Officer, the Compliance Officer and the Heads of the Internal Audit,
IT and Operations Divisions. Depending on the specific subjects concerning processes to be addressed by this
commission, macro-process owners will participate in the meetings.

CREDIT COMMISSION

This commission’s functions are to assess and decide on loan granting to Customers of Banco Comercial
Portugués, in accordance with the competences established by an internal regulation (‘Credit Granting, Monitoring
and Recovery’). This commission may also issue, when justifiable, advisory opinions on credit proposals from Group
subsidiaries.

The Commission sub-divides into different commissions: one for decisions on core business credit applications,
the other for decisions upon NPE clients’ operations.

The Credit Commission is composed of all of the EC members®, the Risk Officer, the Compliance Officer, the
Company Secretary, the Heads of the proponent areas, the ‘Level 3’ managers, the subsidiary entities’ Credit
Commission members (whenever there are proposals originated in those entities) and the Heads of commercial
areas. The Heads of the following Divisions are also members of this commission: Credit; Specialised Monitoring;
Legal Advisory and Litigation; Investment Banking; Real Estate Business; Rating; Specialised Recovery; Retail
Recovery.

GROUP CALCO

The Group CALCO is responsible for the management of the Group's overall capital, for assets and liabilities
management and for the definition of liquidity management strategies at a consolidated level. Specifically, the
Group CALCO (also referred to as the Capital, Assets and Liabilities Management Commission) is responsible for
the structural management of interest rate and liquidity risks, including, among others, the following aspects:

e Monitoring and management of the interest rate risk associated with the assets and liabilities structure;
e  Planning and proposals for capital allocation;

e Preparation of proposals for an appropriate definition of liquidity and interest rate risk management policies, at the
level of the Group's consolidated balance sheet.

The Group CALCO is composed of all the members of the EC) and the heads of the following Divisions: Research,
Planning and ALM; Risk Office; Large Corporate; Companies and Corporate; Management Information; Companies
Marketing; Retail Marketing; International, Treasury and Markets; Investment Banking; Business Development
(upon invitation). Other people, according to the matters addressed, may be requested to participate in the Group
CALCO.

(*) With a minimum of three Executive Directors and mandatory participation of the responsible for credit and the Directors from proponent areas
(or the alternate Directors of Credit and the proponent areas).

(**) With a minimum of three Executive Directors.

105



RISK OFFICE

The Risk Office (OFF) is responsible for the risk control function at Group level, promoting the overall alignment of
concepts and procedures concerning risk monitoring and assessment. The ROFF is responsible for informing the
Risk Commission on the general risk level, for proposing measures to improve the control environment and to
implement controls which assure compliance with the approved limits. The ROFF ensures the following functions:

e Supporting the establishment of risk management policies and methodologies for the identification, measurement,
limitation, monitoring, mitigation and reporting of the different types of risk;

e  Proposing and implementing a set of metrics for the different types of risk;
e  Coordinating the NPA Reduction Plan;

e  Ensuring the existence of a body of rules and procedures to support risk management, as well as the existence of an
effective IT platform and a database for the robust and comprehensive management of risk;

e Controlling, on an ongoing basis, the evolution of the different risks and compliance with the applicable policies,
regulations and limits;

e  Participating in the internal control system;
e  Preparing information relative to risk management for internal and market disclosure;

e  Supporting the works of the Risk Commission, the Credit at Risk Commission, the Pension Funds Risk Monitoring
Commission and the Internal Control and Operational Risk Monitoring Commission.

The Head of Risk Office is appointed by the BoD and reports to the Board of Directors and its Executive Committee,
as well as, on a functional or close relationship basis, to the Risk Assessment Committee and the Audit Committee.

CREDIT RISK

The materialisation of this risk arises from the losses occurred in the loan portfolio, due to the incapacity of
borrowers (or their guarantors, when applicable), issuers of securities or contractual counterparts to comply with
their credit obligations. This type of risk is very relevant, representing the largest part of the Group's overall
exposure to risk.

Control and mitigation of this risk are carried out through a solid and reliable structure of risk analysis and
assessment, based on internal rating systems suited to the different business segments and a model for the early
detection of potential default of the portfolio and through structural units that are exclusively dedicated to credits
recovery, for non-performing situations.

EVOLUTION AND BREAKDOWN OF THE LOAN PORTFOLIO

The credit portfolio volume’s evolution between 31/12/2016 and 31/12/2017, is presented in the next table, in
terms of EAD (Exposure at Default)) considering the three main Group geographies - Portugal, Poland and
Mozambique - which represented around 99.6% of the Group’s EAD by 31/12/2017.

(Million euros)

Change
Geography Dec 17 Dec 16
Amount %
Portugal 47,405 47,856 (451) -0.9%
Poland 17,488 16,015 1,473 9.2%
Mozambique 1,879 1,997 (118) -5.9%
PT +PL + MZ 66,772 65,867 905 1.4%

In 2017, the Group’s portfolio growth was 1.4%, in euros (EUR), to which the increase of 1.473 million euros
registered in Poland has decisively contributed. In Portugal, the credit portfolio decreased slightly (- 451 million
euros, representing a contraction of 0.9%), mainly due to the effect of the NPE Reduction Plan (reduction of 1.784
million in 2017).

) Without impairment deduction to the exposures treated prudentially under the Standardised Approach (STD).
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The evolution of the portfolio volumes in the most representative original currencies in the two main foreign
geographies (respectively PLZ and CHF in Poland; meticais (MZN) and US dollars in Mozambique) was influenced
by the FX variation of these currencies against the euro in 2017: +5.6% for PLN, -8.2% for CHF, +6.9% for MZN and
-12.2% for USD.

In Poland, for the two most representative currencies of the local portfolio, there was an annual growth of 14.7%
of the portfolio denominated in PLN and a decrease of 7.2% of the portfolio expressed in CHF (in the original
currencies). The contraction of the portfolio in CHF corresponded to the continuation of the progressive reduction
of the mortgage loans portfolio denominated in CHF. At the end of 2017, the weights of the portfolios
denominated in PLN and CHF were of, respectively, 76% and 20% of the total portfolio (measured in EUR), against
68% and 26% at the end of 2016.

Thus, in spite of the relevant appreciation of the PLN against the EUR, the change in the volume of the credit
portfolio in Poland when measured in the Group's reference currency, was offset by the strong depreciation of the
CHF recorded and the effective contraction of the portfolio denominated in that currency, globally growing only
about 9% in EUR.

In Mozambique, there was an overall annual decrease in the portfolio (measured in EUR) of around 6%. This
reduction was mainly due to the reduction of the local portfolio denominated in USD as well as to the strong
depreciation of this currency against the EUR. In fact, MZN's portfolio (representing around 77% of the total
portfolio in EUR at the end of 2017) recorded a strong annual growth: 7.8% in original currency and 15.3% in EUR
(due to the strong appreciation of the MZN against the EUR). Thus, the effective and FX-driven contraction of the
portfolio denominated in USD prevailed over the growth of the portfolio denominated in local currency.

The breakdown of the portfolio by risk class is illustrated by the following graphs, representative of the portfolio
composition on 31/12/2017, which show a strong diversification:

PORTUGAL POLAND
. . Corporate
Retail - other ~ Corporate Retail - other (including SME)
exposures (including SME) exposures 18.2%
(including SME 38,3% (including SME :
Retail) Retail)
8,5% 17.9%
Banksand
Retail - . Sovereigns
secured by real Banksand Retail - 30.7%
estate Sovereigns secured by real
0

36.8% 16,3% estate

’ 33.2%

MOZAMBIQUE
Banksand
Sovereigns
C 59.8%
orporate
28.6%
Retail

11.6%

This portfolio breakdown for Portugal and Poland at 31/12/2017 does not present relevant changes in relation to
the end of 2016.

In what concerns Mozambique, there was an increase in the weight of the “Banks and Sovereigns” risk class,
together with a noticeably equivalent decrease in the weight of the “Corporate” risk class, while the weight of the
“Retail” risk class remained practically unchanged. These risk classes represented, on 31/12/2016 respectively,
weights of 50.9%, 36.2% and 12.9% of the portfolio (EAD). This evolution is mainly due to the conversion of
financing to Mozambican state-owned enterprises (or owned by the Mozambican State) into sovereign Debt of
that country.
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The following chart presents the portfolio breakdown (EAD) in terms of the internal risk grades of the debtors, in
Portugal and Poland, as at 31/12/2017:

Portugal

49.1% 18.7% 13.7% 17.1% 1.4%

Poland

54.15% 21.99% 8.53% 7.27% 8.06%

PT+PL

50.3% 19.5% 12.5% 14.8% 3.0%

Notincluded: exposures to Banks and Sovereigns and Specialised Lending
mHigh quality (RG 2 to 6) mMedium quality (RG 7 to 9) mLowerquality (RG 10to 12)
m Procedural RG (RG 13/14/15) Not classified (without RG)

This distribution of EAD by risk grades (RG) represents an improvement in creditworthiness quality compared to
the end of 2016: the weight of EAD corresponding to medium and higher quality risk grades increased in the two
geographies as a whole, reaching 69.8% in 31/12/2017 which compares with 64.2% as at 31/12/2016. This
positive evolution was based on the largest part of EAD associated with clients with higher and medium quality risk
grades in Portugal, whose weights were of, respectively, 43.1% and 17.4% (total of 60.5%) at 31/12/2016.

The exposure associated with clients with procedural RG - clients with financial difficulties, including debtors of
NPE (in which customers in Default are included) - also showed a favourable evolution, since it had a weight of
18.5% as at 31/12/2016 (21.8% in Portugal).

The following graph shows the annual evolution (31/12/2014-2017) of the EAD volume corresponding to
customers with higher and medium quality RG.

0,
75.9% 76.1% 79.2% 76.1%

67.9% 69.8%

0,
58.5% 60-6% s9.5% 616% °-2%

55.0%

PT PL PT+PL
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In what concerns the LGD (Loss given default) parameters, the average effective values used in the RWA (Risk
Weighted Assets) calculation, as at 31/12/2017, were the following:

48.04%
9
42.95% 44.61%
Global average: 35.76% 35.78%
30,68%
18.52%
Mortgages SME Retail Retail (other) SME Corporate Real Estate Promotion Corporate

MAIN CREDIT RISK INDICATORS

The quarterly evolution of the main credit risk indicators, between 31/12/2016 and 31/12/2017, for the Group
and the portfolios of Portugal, Poland and Mozambique:

Dec 17 Sep 17 Jun 17 Mar17 Dec 16
CONSOLIDATED
NPE/Total credit 15.0% 15.9% 17.0% 175% 18.1%
NPE/Total credit (*) 11.1% 11.6% 13.0% 13.9% 14.5%
Non-performing credit/Total credit (**) 5.3% 5.6% 5.9% 5.9% 6.2%
Past due credit (> 90 d)/Total credit (**) 8.2% 8.6% 9.0% 9:2% 9.5%
Impairment/Total credit (%) 6.2% 6.4% 6.7% 6.8% 6.8%
PORTUGAL
NPE/Total credit 17.8% 18.9% 20.2% 211%  21.7%
Non-performing credit/Total credit (**) 6.3% 6.7% 7.0% 7.1% 7.4%
Past due credit (> 90 d)/Total credit (**) 9.7% 10.1% 10.7% 11.1%  11.5%
Impairment/Total credit (**) 7.1% 7.3% 7.7% 7.8% 7.9%
POLAND
Past due credit (> 90 d)/Total credit (**) 2.8% 2.7% 2.7% 2.6% 2.6%
Impairment/Total credit (**) 3.1% 3.1% 3.0% 2.9% 2.8%
MOZAMBIQUE
Past due credit (> 90 d)/Total credit (*¥) 11.8% 11.9% 11.8% 6.5% 4.6%
8.3% 8.1% 7.9% 7.2% 6.1%

Impairment/Total credit (**)

NPE = Non-performing Exposures; NPL = Non-performing Loans

(*) NPE including debt securities and Off-Balance Sheet (**) Total credit = Direct credit to clients, excluding Bonds

The evolution of these indicators was globally positive in 2017, both for Portugal and in consolidated terms. The
Group level indicators were mainly influenced by the improvement in Portugal's indicators, given the weight of the
domestic portfolio in the Group's total.

The NPE reduction in Portugal - referred to ahead, within the scope of the NPA Reduction Plan - was very strong in
2017 and resulted in an improvement in the NPE ratio from around 23% at the end of 2016 to less than 19% at the
end of 2017.

In Poland, credit risk indicators remained relatively stable throughout 2017, with non-significant aggravations
between the end 0f 2017 and the end of 2016.
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In Mozambique, the deterioration in the past-due loans ratio stems, mainly, from the unfavourable economic
climate of this country and, in particular, from the defaulting of some large loans, some of which State-guaranteed.
It should also be noted, for this geography, the consequent increase in the level of provisioning of the portfolio by
impairment.

NPA/NPE REDUCTION PLAN

The Group continued the implementation of its NPA (Non-performing assets) Reduction Plan, in what concerns
both the loans (NPE - Non-performing exposures) and the foreclosed assets, based on an integrated strategy of
NPE reduction drawn up in 2016. This plan mainly focuses on the portfolios of non-performing loans and of real
estate properties held for sale in Portugal.

The NPA Reduction Plan is framed by clear definitions of specific Governance and by a robust management
framework, organized by specialised areas of credit recovery (by business/clients segments and for real estate
properties received in lieu of payment). Recovery strategies are systematically defined, stemming from automated
analysis and decision models (for Retail) or based in the relationship of recovery managers with their Corporate
clients, allowing for tailor-made solutions. Also, in what concerns the foreclosed assets (FA), circuits and
procedures established privilege the speed of the reception-preparation-sale cycle and the enhancement of the
properties’ values, in order to facilitate the sale of these assets.

The NPA Reduction Plan also benefits from:

e The monitoring that is provided by the Operational Plan for NPA Reduction, which defines initiatives aiming at
accelerating and conferring effectiveness to the recovery or sales processes (both of loans and real estate
properties), distributed throughout the several phases of the recovery and NPA reduction processes: prevention;
collection; executions; FA reception and treatment; sales;

e Theregular and specific measurement concerning the fulfilment of the reduction goals for each unit involved in
the NPA Reduction Plan, both in what regards Management Information or focused areas (specific
measurements) defined under the Operational Plan for NPA Reduction referred above — with report to top
management, in any of the cases;

e A technological environment that provides specific IT infrastructures for the activities connected with credit
recovery and NPE reduction.

The Bank’s implementation of this Plan, under both its scopes, registered unequivocal success and results above
projections. For example, at the end of 2017, the portfolio of NPE in Portugal amounted to 6,754 million euros,
which clearly exceeded the objective assumed and disclosed for that date: "NPE portfolio in Portugal of less than
7,500 million euros". The following table presents the evolution of NPE volumes between 31/12/2014 and
31/12/2017, for the Group and for Portugal:

(Million euros)

Dec 17 Sep 17 Jun 17 Mar 17 Dec 16 Dec 15 Dec 14

CONSOLIDATED 7,658 8,080 8,761 9,159 9,374 10,933 11,906

PORTUGAL 6,754 7,168 7,816 8,320 8,538 9,777 10,921

From 2014 to 2017, the NPE reduction reached 4,167 million euros in Portugal, with the pace of reduction of the
NPE accelerating progressively - about 10% in 2015, 13% in 2016 and 21% in 2017 - which evidences the
effectiveness of the measures taken by the Bank under the NPA Reduction Plan.
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The breakdown of the NPE reduction in 2017, by the different reduction sources at stake, is shown in the next chart
(the Plan considered a stock of 8,533 million euros for the NPE portfolio).

(Million euros)

8,533
6,754
276 492
711
Dec 16 Sales Write-offs Othersources, Dec17
netof new
entries

It should also be noted that the NPE portfolio coverage by impairment, collateral and ‘Expected Loss Gap’ reached
106% by 31/12/2017. The increase in NPE coverage was mainly supported by the growing coverage by
impairment, which almost doubled in the last 4 years, as illustrated by the following graph:
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In what concerns foreclosed assets, the next chart shows the evolution of its breakdown in the several asset types,
between December 2014 and December 2017, without impairment:

(million euros)

Dec 17 Dec 16 Dec 15 Dec 14
Real estate properties 1,778 1,782 1,448 1,263
Real estate Funds and companies 466 538 460 450
Other assets (non-Real estate) 95 75 55 55
SUB-TOTAL - Portugal 2,339 2,395 1,963 1,769
Other geographies Foreclosed Assets 37 18 37 33
GROUP TOTAL 2,376 2,413 2,000 1,802

It is also worth mentioning that the impairment coverage of the foreclosed assets rose from 12.2% to 15.5%
between 31/12/2016 and 31/12/2017.
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Also, the real estate market risk that impends over these assets held for sale is mitigated by the current valuation
expectation for this market: for the EBA stress testing purposes and as defined by this Regulator, the projected real
estate price evolution in Portugal (baseline scenario) is of +4.4% for 2018 and of +3.8% for 2019 and 2020.

Finally, a highlight is made upon two other aspects concerning the real estate assets’ portfolio that is held for sale:

e  The sales have been proceeding at an appropriate and increasing rate: in 2017, 3,852 properties were sold,
compared with 2,566 properties sold in 2016, with an increase in sales value (428 M €in 2017, compared with 272
M€in2016) ¥,

e Theselling prices of real estate properties have been above their accounting value.

CREDIT CONCENTRATION RISK

The figures concerning credit concentration, as at 31/12/2017, measured by the weight of the 20 largest Group
(non-NPE) exposures, in terms of EAD and excluding Banks and Sovereigns, in the total exposure, are presented in
the following chart:

Customer Groups Exposure weight in total (EAD)

Group 1 1.5%
Group 2 0.7%
Group 3 0.7%
Group 4 0.6%
Group 5 0.6%
Group 6 0.6%
Group 7 0.5%
Group 8 0.5%
Group 9 0.4%
Group 10 0.4%
Group 11 0.4%
Group 12 0.4%
Group 13 0.3%
Group 14 0.3%
Group 15 0.3%
Group 16 0.3%
Group 17 0.3%
Group 18 0.2%
Group 19 0.2%
Group 20 0.2%
Total 9.5%

The weight of 9.5% for these 20 largest 'non-NPE' exposures is in line with the weight of the equivalent 20 largest
Group exposures as at 31/12/2016; so, by this measure, there was a maintenance of the concentration level of
credit risk in 2017.

It should be noted that the Group has specific goals defined for the control of credit concentration, materialised
into RAS metrics. Besides, metrics for specific concentration types are followed-up regularly: single-name, by
sectors of activity, by country, for Institutions and for Sovereign risks.

(*) The properties sold by the Real estate Funds are not included in these figures.
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For all cases, the concentration limits definition depends on the internal/external risk grade attributed to the
clients at stake and considers their respective Net Exposure (= LGD x EAD, with LGD =45% whenever an own
estimate does not exist or is not applicable).

In the case of the single-name concentration, the limits are only defined for performing clients, since the non-
performing ones are covered by the NPE reduction Plan. For clients with exposure above the established limit
excess, specific reduction plans are drawn-up.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk consists of the occurrence of losses as a result of failures or inadequacies of internal processes,
systems or people, or as a result of external events.

In the management of this type of risk, the Group adopts duly documented principles and practices, which are
expressed in control mechanisms subject to continuous improvement. This framework has a variety of features,
such as: function segregation; lines of responsibility and respective authorisations; exposure definition and
tolerance limits; ethical codes and codes of conduct; risks self-assessment (RSA) exercises; key risk indicators (KRI);
access controls (physical and logical); reconciliation activities; exception reports; contingency plans; contracting
of insurance; internal training on processes, products and systems.

The operational risk management system is based on a structure of end-to-end processes, considering that a
vision which is transversal to the functional units of the organisational structure is the most suitable approach for
the perception of risks and to estimate the effects of the corrective measures introduced for their mitigation.
Furthermore, this processes model also underlies other strategic initiatives related to the management of this risk,
such as the actions to improve operating efficiency and the management of business continuity.

Hence, all the Group's subsidiaries have their own processes structure, which is periodically adjusted according to
business evolution, in order to ensure suitable coverage of the business activities (or business support activities)
developed.

The responsibility for the processes management is entrusted to process owners (seconded by process managers),
whose mission is to characterise the operational losses captured under their processes, to monitor the respective
KRI, to perform the RSA exercises, as well as to identify and implement suitable actions to mitigate operational risk
exposures, thus contributing to the strengthening of control mechanisms and the improvement of the internal
control environment. The periodic revision of the main processes in each geography is ensured by local structure
units.

During 2017, the various participants in the management of this risk carried out the usual tasks of operational risk
management - aiming at an effective and systematic identification, assessment, mitigation and control of
exposures - as well as the corresponding reporting duties, either to the Group’s management bodies or within the
regulatory sphere. Due to its relevance, a highlight should be made on the launching of initiatives aiming at the
reinforcement and improvement of the effectiveness of the risk of outsourcing control mechanisms, namely, the
issuance of an internal regulation and the definition of risk and performance indicators to monitor the outsourcers’
services.

RISKS SELF ASSESSMENT (RSA)

The objective of the RSA exercises is to promote the identification and mitigation (or elimination) of risks, either
actual or potential, in each process, through the assessment of each of the 20 subtypes of operational risk
considered. These assessments are positioned in a risk tolerance matrix, considering the worst case event that
might occur in each process, for three different scenarios. This allows for:

e  Theassessment of the risks exposure of the different processes, not considering the influence of existing controls
(Inherent Risk);

e Thedetermination of the influence of the existing control environment in reducing the level of exposure (Residual
Risk);

e The identification of the impact of the improvement opportunities in the risk reduction of the most significant
exposures (Target Risk).

The RSA exercises are based on workshops, attended by the Risk Office and with the participation of the process
owners (and process managers), or performed through answers to questionnaires sent to the process owners, for
areview of previous RSA results, according to predefined updating criteria.
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In 2017, RSA exercises were conducted in the main Group geographies, the results of which are presented in the
next graphs. These show the average score for each of the 20 subtypes of operational risk considered, for the set
of processes of each geography. The outer line represents a score of 2.5 on a scale of 1 (lowest exposure) to 5
(highest exposure).

PORTUGAL POLAND MOZAMBIQUE

R1 Internal fraud and theft R7 Hardware and Software R14External fraud and theft
R2 Execution of unauthorised transactions R8 Communications infrastructure R15 Property and disasters risks
R3 Employee relations R9 Systems security R16 Regulatory and tax risks
R4Breach of work health &safety regulations  R10 Transaction, capture, execution & maintenance R17 Inappropriate market and business practices
R5 Discrimination over employees R11 Monitoringandreporting errors R18 Project risks
R6 Loss of key staff R12 Customer related errors R19 Outsourcingrelated problems
R13Products or services flaws/errors R20 Otherthird parties’ related problems

The results of the RSA exercises evidence a robust control environment, demonstrating the Group’s commitment
regarding the operational risk management, through the continuous development of improvement actions that
contribute to mitigate the exposures to this risk.

OPERATIONAL LOSSES CAPTURE

The operational losses data capture (i.e. the identification, registration and characterisation) of operational losses
and of the originating events aims at the strengthening of the awareness of this risk and to provide relevant
information to process owners, for incorporation within their process management. As such, it is an important
instrument to quantify risk exposures and also for the back-testing of the RSA results, enabling the assessment of
the evaluation/classification attributed to each risk subtype.

The detection and reporting of operational losses is a responsibility of all employees of the Group, the process
owners playing a crucial role in the promotion of these procedures within the context of the processes for which
they are responsible.

The identified events in which the losses, effective or potential, exceed the defined materiality limits (Ffor each
geographical area) are characterised by the process owners and process managers of processes to which the losses
are related, including the description of the respective cause-effect and, when applicable, the valuation of the loss
and the description of the improvement action identified to mitigate the risk (based on the analysis of the loss
cause).
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The following graphs present the profile of the losses captured in the respective database in 2017:
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For many of the criteria represented, there were no significant differences with respect to previous years. It should
be pointed out that the majority of the losses was originated by procedural risks, related to failures in the
formalization of a discontinued product (in Poland), as well as internal and external frauds. It should be highlighted
that the ratio between gross losses and the relevant indicator calculated within the Standard Approach (gross
income) has consistently been of less than 1%, which compares very favourably with international benchmarks
and is testament to the robustness of the Group's operational control environment.

KEY RISK INDICATORS (KRI)

KRIs draw attention to changes in the profile of the operational risks or in the effectiveness of control, enabling the
identification of the need to introduce corrective actions within the processes, so as to prevent potential risks from
materialising into losses. These indicators currently encompass all of the processes in the main Group operations
(Portugal, Poland and Mozambique).

Processes management also uses Key Performance Indicators and Key Control Indicators, the monitoring of which,
even if oriented towards the assessment of operative efficiency, also allows for the detection of risks.

SCENARIO ANALYSIS

Scenario Analysis is an exercise for the assessment of potential risks of high severity, aimed at quantifying the
impact of extreme events (low frequency/high severity) which would be relevant for the Bank, even if never
registered in the past.

All Macro-Process Owners and other top managers from selected Divisions participate in this exercise, due to their
knowledge and experience concerning the activities, which are essential for the description of this type of events’
impacts and for the quantification of potential losses that could result from those events.

The results from the scenarios assessment are incorporated into the model developed to determine the capital
adequacy (ICAAP) and the information gathered also used for risk management and mitigation, thus contributing
to the reinforcement of the internal control environment.
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BUSINESS CONTINUITY MANAGEMENT

The management of business continuity covers two complementary components: the Business Continuity Plan
relative to people, facilities and equipment, and the Technological Recovery Plan relative to information systems,
applications and communications infrastructure.

Both of these plans are defined and implemented for a series of critical business processes, and are promoted and
coordinated by a dedicated structural unit, whose methodology is based on a principle of continuous improvement,
guided by international good practices and the recommendations of the supervisory entities.

These continuity plans are regularly tested and updated, through exercises aimed at improving and deepening the
coordination between emergency response, technological recovery, crisis management and business recovery. 14
exercises of business recovery and 2 exercises of technological recovery (DRP) were carried out in 2017.

INSURANCE CONTRACTING

The contracting of insurance for risks related to assets, persons or third party liability is another important
instrument in the management of operational risk, where the objective is the transfer - total or partial - of risks.

The proposals for the contracting of new insurance are submitted by the process owners under their respective
duties for the management of the operational risk inherent to their processes, or are presented by the head of area
or organic unit, and then analysed by the Operational Risk and Internal Control Monitoring Commission and
authorised by the EC.

MARKET RISKS

Market risks consist of the potential losses that might occur in a given portfolio as a result of changes in interest
or exchange rates and/or in the prices of the different financial instruments of the portfolio, considering not only
the correlations that exist between those instruments but also their volatility.

For purposes of profitability analysis and market risks quantification and control, the following management areas
are defined for each entity of the Group:

e  Trading - Management of positions whose objective is the achievement of short term gains, through sale or
revaluation. These positions are actively managed, tradable without restriction and may be valued frequently and
accurately. The positions in question include securities and derivatives of sales activities;

e  Funding - Management of institutional funding (wholesale funding) and money market positions;

e Investment - Management of all the positions in securities to be held to maturity (or for a longer period of time) or
positions which are not tradable on liquid markets;

e  Commercial - Management of positions arising from commercial activity with Customers;

e  Structural - Management of balance sheet items or operations which, due to their nature, are not directly related
to any of the management areas referred to above; and

e ALM - Assets and Liabilities Management.

The definition of these areas allows for an effective management separation of the trading and banking books, as
well as for the correct allocation of each operation to the most suitable management area, according to its
respective context and strategy.

In order to ensure that the risk levels incurred in the different portfolios of the Group comply with the predefined
levels of tolerance to risk, various market risks limits are established, at least yearly, being applicable to all
portfolios of the risk management areas over which the risks are incident. These limits are monitored on a daily
basis (or intra-daily, in the case of financial markets) by the Risk Office.

Stop Loss limits are also defined for the financial markets areas, based on multiples of the risk limits defined for
those areas, aimed at limiting the maximum losses that might occur. When these limits are reached, a review of
the strategy and of the assumptions relative to the management of the positions in question is mandatory.
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TRADING BOOK MARKET RISKS®

The Group uses an integrated market risk measurement that allows for the monitoring all of the risk subtypes that
are considered relevant. This measurement includes the assessment of the following types of risk: general risk,
specific risk, non-linear risk and commodity risk. Each risk subtype is measured individually using an appropriate
risk model and the integrated measurement is built from the measurements of each subtype without considering
any kind of diversification between the four subtypes (worst-case scenario approach).

For the daily measurement of general market risk (relative to interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, equity risk and
price risk of credit default swaps) a VaR (value-at-risk) model is used, considering a time horizon of 10 business
days and a significance level of 99%.

Fornon-linearrisk, an internally-developed methodology is applied, replicating the effect that the main non-linear
elements of options might have in P&L results of the different portfolios in which these are included, similarly to
what is considered by the VaR methodology, using the same time horizon and significance level.

Specific and commodity risks are measured through standard methodologies defined in the applicable regulations,
with an appropriate change of the time horizon considered.

The table below presents the amounts at risk for the Trading Book, between 31/12/2016 and 31/12/2017 and
measured by the methodologies referred to above, that registered moderate levels along the period under analysis:

(thousand euros)

Dec 17 Max Avg Min Dec 16

GENERIC RISK (VAR) 2,546 5,808 3,099 993 3,921
Interest rate risk 2,450 5,790 2,946 834 3,855
FX risk 790 497 835 443 354
Equity risk 36 I 145 24 37
Diversification effects 730 490 827 308 325
SPECIFIC RISK 100 1,026 386 81 440
NON-LINEAR RISK 7 67 7 1 8
COMMODITIES RISK 6 24 18 3 16
GLOBAL RISK 2,660 6,058 3,510 1,537 4,385

VAR MODEL MONITORING AND VALIDATION

In order to check the appropriateness of the internal VaR model to the assessment of the risks involved in the
positions held, several validations are conducted over time, of different scopes and frequency, which include back
testing, the estimation of the effects of diversification and the analysis of the comprehensiveness of the risk
factors.

The VaR model’s hypothetical back-testing exercise for the trading book of Portugal, between 31/12/2016 and
31/12/2017, resulted in 5 excesses over the model’s predictive results (4 positive and 1 negative), representing a
frequency of 1.9% in 257 days of observation. Hence, this backtesting result allows the validation of the model, as
appropriate for measuring the risk at stake.

STRESS TESTS ON THE TRADING BOOK

As a complement to the VaR assessment, the Group continuously tests a broad range of stress scenarios analysing
the respective results with a view to identifying risk concentrations that have not been captured by the VaR model
and, also, to test for other possible dimensions of loss.

) Positions registered at the Trading Management Area (not specifically included in the accounting Trading Book).
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The results of these tests on the Group's trading book, as at 31/12/2017, in terms of impacts over this portfolio’s
results, were the following:

(thousand euros)

Negative result

. Result
scenario

STANDARD SCENARIOS +100 b.p. -10,518
Parallel shift of the yield curve by +/- 100 bps +25b.p. -2,141
Change in the slope of the yield curve +100 bps and + 25 -12.431
(For maturities from 2 to 10 years) by +/- 25 bps bps ’
Combinations of the previous 2 scenarios +100 bpt))'s)sand =25 -8,553
Variation in the main stock market indices by +/- 30% +30% -241

Variation in foreign exchange rates (against the euro) by +/- 10% for the main
currencies and -10%,-25% -4,837
by +/- 25% for other currencies

Variation in swap spreads by +/- 20 bps -20bps -747
NON-STANDARD SCENARIOS

Widening/narrowing of the bid-ask spread Widening -5,606
Customized scenario (1) -179
07/Apr/2011 -1,882

Historical scenarios (2)
22/Sep/2011 128

(1) The main historical risk factors (within a 3 year horizon) are applied as a simulation over the current portfolio, sothat the potential
impacts of those factors are measured.

(2) In these scenarios, past crisis market changes are applied over the current portfolio; in the cases at stake, there was great volatility of
the portuguese public debt yields.

These results show that the exposure of the Group’s trading book to the different risk factors considered remains
relatively limited and that the main adverse scenario at stake refers to a general increase in interest rates,
especially when the slope of the yield curve also increases for terms between 2 and 10 years (higher increase in
longer terms than ins shorter terms).

INTEREST RATE RISK OF THE BANKING BOOK

The interest rate risk arising from Banking Book operations is evaluated by the Bank in two complementary ways:
the portfolio’s economic value method (EVE) and the financial margin sensitivity method (NIl), through a risk
sensitivity analysis carried out every month, for the universe of operations included in the consolidated balance
sheet of the Group, broken down by currency of exposure.

Variations of market interest rates influence the Group's net interest income, both in the short term and
medium/long term, affecting its economic value in a long term perspective (EVE method). The main risk factors
arise from the repricing mismatch of the portfolio positions (repricing risk) and from the risk of variation in market
interest rates (yield curve risk). Besides this, but with less impact, there is the risk of unequal variations in different
reference rates with the same repricing period (basis risk).

In order to identify the exposure of the Group's banking book to these risks, the monitoring of the interest rate risk
takes into consideration the financial characteristics of each of the relevant contracts, with the respective
expected cash-flows (principal and interest, without the spread component but including costs for liquidity,
capital, operational and other) being projected according to the repricing dates, thus calculating the impact on
economic value resulting from alternative scenarios of change of market interest rate curves.

The measurement of this risk, referred to 31/12/2017 and based on the calculation of the difference between the
present value of the interest rate mismatch (discounted at market interest rates) and the value of this mismatch
discounted at a level of rates with +100 basis points (for all terms) results in a positive impact of approximately 211
million euros (for the EUR-denominated positions), as presented in the following table that shows the breakdown
of this impact by each of the banking book’s management areas and for the different residual terms of the
positions in question.
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(thousand euros)

Repricing terms-to-maturity

<1Y 1-3Y 3-5Y 5-7Y >7Y Total
Commercial area activity 10,120 74,687 478,079 -16,216 -35,547 511,122
Structural area activity 1,661 6,342 4,137 636 25,613 38,389
SUBTOTAL 11,781 81,028 482,216 -15580  -9,934 549,511
Hedging -15,106 164’67; 394’925 11,901 39,312 -523,495
COMMERCIAL AND STRUCTURAL TOTAL -3.325 -83646 87288  -3679 29379 26,017
Funding and hedging 6,721 2,309 -3,709 -102 -21 5,197
Investment portfolio -12,516  -12,303  -2,786  -1,292  -7,508 -36,405
ALM 28,651 162,855 77,572 -19,421 -33,755 215,903
BANKING BOOK TOTAL (31/12/2017) 19,530 69,215 158,365 -24,494 -11,905 210,712
BANKING BOOK TOTAL (31/12/2016) 27,783 16,989 80,759 -15955 -30,196 79,381
Impact of a -100 bps parallel shift of the yield curve (*)

4,064 3,140 -93,693 9,632 11,477 -65,380

BANKING BOOK TOTAL (31/12/2017)

(*) Scenario is limited to non-negative interest rates (implying effective chages smaller than 100 bps, particularly in the shorter terms).

Complementing the previous approach, the Bank monthly calculates monthly the impact on net interest margin
projected for the following 12 months, due to changes in market interest rates (NIl method). For this purpose, all
assets, liabilities and off-balance products that generate interest are considered and the calculation of interest
cash flows is performed based on the repricing and amortization characteristics of the products and on yield curves
for 12 months projected in accordance with the "cash and carry trade" and "non-arbitrage principle" methods. This
exercise assumes a static balance for 12 months in which, for each amortization, an exposure with the same
maturity and price features is generated.

So as to capture the net interest margin sensitivity, several simulations are processed corresponding to 10 different
scenarios of the market’s interest rates evolution. Considering the scenario in which interest rates globally increase
+100 bps combined with the most agressive betas scenario for deposits and other interest-generating liabilities,
the estimated impact over the 12 months’ Nll, as at December 2017, June 2017 and December 2017 is represented
in the following graph:

(million euros)

137.4

116,2

Dec 16 Jun 17 Dec 17

The positions at risk which are not subject to specific market hedging operations are transferred internally to two
market areas (Funding and ALM), thus becoming an integral part of the respective portfolios. As such, they are
assessed daily based on the market risk control model for the trading book already identified (VaR).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND EQUITY RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK

The exchange rate risk of the banking book is transferred internally to the Trading area (Treasury), in accordance
with the risk specialisation model followed by the Group for the management of the exchange rate risk of the
Balance Sheet. The exposures to exchange rate risk that are not included in this transfer — the financial holdings in
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subsidiaries, in foreign currency - are hedged on a case-by-case basis through market operations, taking into
consideration the defined policy and the conditions and availability of instruments.

Asat31/12/2017,the Group’s holdings in USD, CHF e PLN were fully hedged. On a consolidated basis, these hedges
are identified, in accounting terms, as ‘Net investment hedges’, in accordance with the IFRS nomenclature. On an
individual basis, hedge accounting is also carried out, in this case through a ‘Fair Value Hedge’ methodology.

Regarding equity risk, the Group maintains a series of small size and low risk equity positions, essentially in the
investment portfolio, which are not held for trading purposes. The management of these positions is carried out
by a specific area of the Group, with the respective risk being controlled on a daily basis, through the indicators
and limits defined for market risks’ control.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the potential inability of the Group to meet its liabilities concerning funding repayment without
incurring in significant losses, whether due to the deterioration of funding conditions (funding risk) or due to the
sale of assets for amounts below market value (market liquidity risk).

The Group's Wholesale Funding (WSF) structure is defined for each annual period by the Liquidity Plan (which is an
integral part of the budgeting process), formulated at consolidated level and for the main subsidiaries of the Group.
The preparation of this plan is coordinated by the Group Treasurer and its implementation is monitored
continuously throughout the year, being reviewed whenever necessary.

In 2017 there was a reduction of 3,264 million euros in WSF needs in consolidated terms, to which concirred the
capital increase in February 2017 (of 1,332 million euros) and the reduction of the commercial gap in Portugal, the
effect of which was mitigated by the liquidity utilization resulting from the growth of the Group's securities
portfolio in this period.

On the other hand, along with the reduction of liquidity needs, there were movements in 2017 that changed the
financing structure with some relevance:

e Reimbursement of the remaining portion of contingent capital ("CoCo's"), of 700 million euros;
e  Amortization of MTN placed at Institutions, by 328 million euros;

e Reduction of 870 million euros, to 4000 million euros, of the collateralised borrowing from the ECB, which
corresponds to the balance of TLTRO (Targeted longer-term refinancing operations);

e Launching of 1,000 million euros of a covered bonds issue (to refinance another bond issue that matured), of two
subordinated debt issues in Portugal and Poland and new loans taken at the European Investment Bank (EIB).

The table below illustrates the WSF structure as at 31/12/2016 and 2017, in terms of the relative weight of each
of the instruments used:

Dec 17 Dec 16 Change in weight
MM -0.2% 41% -4.3%
BCE 48.9% 42.6% 6.4%
CoCo's 0.0% 6.1% -6.1%
Private placements 1.8% 1.6% 0.2%
Repos 10.1% 203% -10.1%
Loan agreements 20.9% 12.7% 8.3%
Schuldschein 0.0% 0.2% -0.2%
EMTN 0.0% 2.9% -2.9%
Covered Bonds 12.2% 8.0% 4.2%
Subordinated Debt 6.1% 1.6% 4.5%

100% 100%

Total
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Although the weight, in this structure, of the ECB financing is considerable and has increased, it should be referred
that the Bank’s net borrowing from the ECB has reduced significantly, attaining 3,049 million euros by 31/12/2017
(around less 1,388 million euros than at 31/12/2016).

The other highlights regarding the evolution of this financing structure are:
e  Theexit of the contingent capital (CoCo’s), since it was reimbursed by February 2017;

e  The money markets’ instruments weight reduction (Repos and interbank market), corresponding to an increase
in the use of medium/long term instruments (loan agreements, covered bonds and subordinated debt).

The further decrease in the net funding at the Eurosystem has allowed for a reinforcement of the liquidity buffer
at the ECB, which totalled 9,278 million euros by the end of December 2017, against 7,614 million euros in
December 2016. The recent evolution of the ECB-discountable collateral is illustrated by the next graph.

(million euros)

13,776
13,550 13,125 12,993 13,511
Dec 16 Mar 17 Jun 17 Sep 17 Dec 17

Globa portfolio, induding eligible assets mobilized and not mobilized for the ECB's monetary policy pool. The values in December 2016 and 2017 include,
on a pro-forma basis, the collateral in excess of the covered bonds program which, under the form of own issuesto reinforce the ECBeligible collateral
portfolio, would represent an amount never lower than € 1,500 M and € 1,000 M respedtively (after haircuts and assuming ECB assessmentsin line with
those for the remaining retained emissions).

It should also be highlighted that, in addition to the eligible collateral graphically represented above (effective +
pro-forma), the Group also had in its portfolio, as at 31/12/2017, Treasury Bills (USA) in the amount (not used as
collateral) of 324 million euros. Even if this asset is not eligible to collateralize funding at the ECB, it is highly liquid
and should be considered, in a broad sense, as part of the liquidity buffer. Hence, the safety margin provided by the
liquidity buffer so considered attained 11,052 million euros (1,398 million euros above the corresponding amount
in December 2016).

LIQUIDITY RISK CONTROL

For short term time horizons (up to 3 months), the control of the Group’s liquidity risk is carried out daily based on
two internally defined indicators: the immediate liquidity indicator and the quarterly liquidity indicator, which
measure the maximum fund-taking requirements that could arise cumulatively over the respective time horizons,
considering cash flow projections for periods of 3 days and of 3 months, respectively.

These indicators, as at 31/12/2017, showed a zero value in the Treasuries of Portugal and Poland, signifying
surplus liquidity in these geographic regions, both in immediate terms and at 3 months, reflecting the prudent
management of the different Treasuries of the Group towards this risk.

Simultaneously, the Group’s liquidity position is calculated on a regular basis, with the identification of all factors
underlying the variations that have occurred.

The Group controls the structural liquidity profile through the regular monitoring of a set of indicators defined
both internally and by the regulations, aimed at characterising liquidity risk, such as the loans-to-deposits ratio
(93% as at 31/12/2017), the regulatory ratios LCR (Liquidity coverage ratio) and NSFR (Net stable funding ratio) -
respectively, 158% and 124% as at 31/12/2017 - and also the relative dimension of the excess of available
collateral for discounting at UE central banks, vis-a-vistotal clients’ deposits.
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PENSION FUND RISK

This risk arises from the potential devaluation of the assets of the Defined Benefit Fund or from the reduction of
their expected returns as well as from actuarial differences that may occur from the evolution of demographical
factors, in relation to the actuarial assumptions considered. Confronted by such scenarios, the Group would have
to make unplanned contributions in order to maintain the benefits defined by the Fund.

The regular monitoring of this risk and the follow-up of its management is a responsibility of the Pension Funds
Risk Monitoring Commission.

In 2017, the Pension Fund registered a time-weighted rate of return (TWR), net of management and deposit fees,
of 4.15%. Besides the valuation of more than 11% of the higher risk assets — namely, equities - the Debt classes
also registered a significant valuation, especially in the fixed rate component, through the Portuguese sovereign
debt assets. The Fund only registered a negative performance in the direct real estate holdings, due to the
reappraisal of specific properties.

It should be noted that it is expected that the defined Benefit Fund’s responsibilities will be decreasing over time,
since the pensions for new employees will be assured by the Social Welfare. On the other hand, the Fund’s assets
exceed the responsibilities at stake by around 117 million euros.

INTERNAL CAPITAL ADEQUACY ASSESSMENT PROCESS (ICAAP)

The Bank continuously monitors the adequacy of capital to cover the risks level to which the Group’s activity is
subject in the development of its business strategy, current and projected for the medium-term. This continuous
process, designated by ICAAP (Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process), is a key process within the risk
management function’s scope at Group BCP. The chart below summarizes the process at stake:

Risk Appetite
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Capital adequacy assessment

Permanent monitoring

The ICAAP develops under an internal governance model that ensures the involvement of the BoD (the body
responsble for approving the results) and its Risk Assessment Committee, of the EC, of the Risk Commission and
of the top management, along the various stages of the process.

The results of the ICAAP allow the Bank’s management bodies — namely, the Board of Directors and the Executive
Committee - to test if the Group’s capitalization is appropriate for the risks stemming from its activities and if the
strategic plan and budget are sustainable in the medium term and comply with the risk limits defined in the Risk
Appetite Statement (RAS) approved for the Group.

For this purpose, the ICAAP is rolled-out from a prospective vision of the impact estimates concerning the
occurrence of risks over the Bank’s capital (capital requirements), considering their scale or dimension, complexity,
frequency, probability and materiality, against a background consisting of the medium term (3 years) projection
for the developments of the Group’s activities. In this process, impacts are estimated for a base scenario and a
stress scenario; the latter, with a severely negative evolution of macro-economic indicators in order to test the
Group’sresilience and the adequacy of the capital levels to cover the risks to which its activity may become subject.

The ICAAP’s first stage is the identification of the material risks to which the Group’s activity is subject, which
involves the Bank’s management and the management from the main subsidiaries abroad. For this purpose, the
Group uses a methodological approach based on an internal list of risks, covering more than 60 different risks,
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considering the relevancy of each one by taking into consideration its probability of occurrence and the magnitude
of the impacts of its occurrence — either before or after the implementation of risk mitigation measures.

Beyond all risks considered to be material, the Group integrates in the ICAAP all of Basel’s Pillar | risks, even if these
do not attain levels that are considered to be material, at Group level.

The result of this stage is the list of risks to be incorporated in the ICAAP, which will also be helpful in defining the
variables to be considered for the establishment of the base and the stressed scenarios, mentioned below. The
approval of the results of the risks identification process is a capacity attributed to the Risks Assessment
Committee.

In a second stage, the base and stressed scenarios that make the ICAAP’s framework were defined. While the base
scenario represents the Group’s vision of the most probable evolution of the business constraints in the medium
term (baseline scenario), the stressed scenario incorporates extreme conditions, with low probability of occurrence
but with severe impact over the Group’s activity (adverse scenario). The approval of the scenarios to be considered
in the ICAAP is also a responsibility of the Risks Assessment Committee.

In the third stage of the ICAAP, the impact of the risks identified is modelled for the reference date and the capital
requirements are calculated for that date. All risks identified by the Bank are considered in the ICAAP. The material
risks are quantified in term of their impact over the Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) level or over the P&L , in
accordance with a set of methodologies and internal models, formally approved and audited, considering a
significance level in line with the regulatory requirements (CRR or Solvency 2) and a time horizon of 1 year (which
is lower for the trading portfolio, due to its business nature). The non-material risks are considered through an
aditional buffer to the capital calculated by the Bak through the ICAAP.

The approval of the estimation methodologies for the risks impacts in the Group’s activity is a competence of the
Risk Commission.

In the prospective component, the baseline and adverse scenarios referred to above are considered for amedium-
term (3 years) projection, either in the current vision of the Group’s management (baseline scenario) or within a
macroeconomic context that is severely penalizing, in order to test the Group’s resilience under extreme scenarios,
i.e., if the Group has adequate capital levels to cover the risks to which its activity may be subject to. For this, the
different risks are modelled or incorporated within the Group’s stress testing methodology.

After the estimation of impacts of the risks over P&L and the Group’s balance-sheet — especially, in what concerns
the Own Funds — the adequacy of the Group’s Risk Taking Capacity (RTC) can be assessed, vis-a-visthe expected
profile of its activity.

The Group adopts a RTC that is aligned with the definitions of the regulatory capital ratios, pursuant to Directive
2013/36/EU and Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 (the CRR — Capital Requirements Regulation), including some
adjustments in order to encompass other elements or capital instruments that the Group considers appropriate to
cover the existing risks, prudently projected along the timeframe under analysis.

The ICAAP results show that the current capitalisation levels are appropriate for a 3-year horizon, either under the
base scenario or the stressed/adverse scenario.

Quarterly, the Bank reviews the ICAAP’s assumptions, namely, in what concerns the assessment of the materiality
of the risks that are considered as “non-material”, the up-to-dating of the projections considered under the
macroeconomic scenarios, the analysis of gaps in the business plans, the update of the assessment on the main
ICAAP’s material risks and the RTC calculation. The results are reported to the Bank’s management bodies and are
one of the major sources for the revision of the Group RAS. Whenever there are significant changes in the Group’s
risk profile, the capital adequacy model is recalculated.

MODELS VALIDATION AND MONITORING

This function is assured by the Models Monitoring and Validation Office (GAVM), reporting to the Executive
Committee member that is responsible for Risk Management.

GAVM'’s scope of action encompasses the credit risk systems and models (rating systems) and the market risks
models, as well as the ICAAP’s validation, Hence, the GAVM interacts with the owners of risk models and systems,
with the Validation Committees and with the Risk Commission.

In 2017, several validation and monitoring works were carried out, either in relation to systems and models already
in use or concerning the extensions and changes within the framework of the roll-out plan established for the
Group for advanced models. These tasks aim at ensuring confidence regarding the models performance and their
compliance with the regulatory provisionsin force, as well as to reinforce the identification and reaction of changes
to their predictive powers (and the reaction capabilities to those changes).

Within the scope of the annual validation processes, the most significant advanced models for credit risk are the
probability of default (PD) models for the Small, Mid and Large Corporate segments (Corporate risk class), for the
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Real Estate promotion segment and for the Small Business and Mortgage Loan segments in (Retail risk class), as
well as the loss given default (LGD) models and credit conversion factors (CCF) models in the Retail and Corporate
risk classes.

Within the scope of models’ monitoring, the Group regularly participates in the regulatory Benchmarking and the
TRIM (Targeted Review of Internal Models) exercises.

The 2017 TRIM over credit risk models for Retail (Portugal), executed between September and December involving
an on-site inspection team, should be highlighted, due its importance and allocated resources.

In 2017, a Model Risk Management project was launched, aiming at providing the Bank with a management and
assessment tool for models risk, based on a functional and approval workflow frameworked by a set of internal
documentation requirements fully aligned with applicable regulations and supervisory expectations. This
application became available to be used in the beginning of 2018.

RECOVERY PLAN

Complying with the applicable law - Directive 2014/59/EU and its transposition to the Regime Geral das
InstituicGes de Crédito e Sociedades Financeiras (RGICSF) through Decree-Law 23-A/2015, from the 26th of March
— the Group has drawn and annually revises a Recovery Plan for its business and activities, in which a large set of
key indicators are defined; these are permanently monitored, allowing for immediate management action
whenever there are deviations that exceed pre-defined thresholds (also defined in the Plan), which are mandatorily
reported to the Group’s management and supervision bodies.

In effect, from the strategic analysis and the establishment of possible scenarios for the business evolution and the
external environment and from the modelling of all variables, metrics and scenarios considered, the business
evolution is permanently monitored within the scope of the Recovery Plan and its respective indicators.

The priorities, responsibilities and specific measures to be taken in a liquidity contingency situation are defined by
the Recovery Plan, which is supported by an Early Warning Signals (EWS) system, for the anticipation of the
occurrence of possible capital and liquidity crisises.

The Recovery Plan is aligned with the definition of the business continuity framework and its respective plans (see
the Operation Risk section), the Communication Plan — towards the market and stakeholders (in contingency
situations), Bank Millennium’s Recovery Plan (Poland) and the results from the capital and liquidity adequacy
assessment processes already mentioned (ICAAP e ILAAP).
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BCP ratings

In 2017, there was significant improvement in the macroeconomic indicators for Portugal, with the public deficit
at 1.2% of the GDP 2017, a historically low figure, and with Banco de Portugal and the IMF revising their economic
growth forecasts upwards for 2017-20. Rating agencies recognised the progress achieved, and three upgraded
the Portuguese Republic to investment grade.

The Portuguese banks continued to pursue their activities within a challenging context in 2017, with interest rates
at rather low levels, which restricts the financial margin and in turn the profitability of the financial system. Yet,
the conditions for the Portuguese financial system to become more stable are improving.

The rating agencies main concerns are still the high amount of non-performing assets and the ability of Portuguese
banks returning to profitability in a sustainable manner.

In 2017, Moody’s upgraded BCP’s intrinsic rating by 1 notch and S&P revised upwards the intrinsic rating, the
counterparty rating and the senior debt rating, also by 1 notch. S&P and Fitch give positive outlook to BCP’s rating.

Moody's Standard & Poor's

Baseline Credit Assessment b2 Stand-alone credit profile (SACP) bb-
Adjusted Baseline Credit Assessment b2

Counterparty Credit Rating LT / ST Ba2/NP Counterparty Credit Rating LT / ST BB-/B
Deposits LT / ST B1/NP Senior Secured LT / Unsecured LT / ST BB-/B
Senior Unsecured LT / ST B1/NP Outlook Positive
Outlook Stable/ Negative

Subordinated Debt - MTN (P) B3

Preference Shares Caa2 (hyb) Subordinated Debt B-
Other short term debt P (NP) Preference Shares D

Covered Bonds A3
Rating Actions

Rating Actions

24 November 2017 - Confirmed BCP long-term deposit and senior debt ratings at 'B1',as
well as its long-term Counterparty Risk Assessment at 'Ba2' and upgraded the following
ratings: (1) the Bank's Baseline Credit assessment (BCA) and adjusted BCA to 'b2' from 'b3';
(2) the bank's subordinated programme ratings to '(P) B3' from '(P) Caa1’; and (3) the
bank's preference shares to 'Caa2 (hyb)' from 'Caa3 (hyb)'. The outlook on the long-term
deposit ratings is stableand on the senior unsecured debt is negative.

23 February 2017 - Upgraded to 'BB-' from 'B+'the long-term counterparty credit rating
on BCP and affirmed 'B' short-term rating. S&P also raised issue ratings on BCP's senior
unsecured debt by one notch to 'BB-' from 'B+',and its subordinated debt by two notches to
'B-'from 'CCC'. The issueratings of the preference shares remain at 'D'as BCP has not yet
resumed the coupon payments on the preference shares. The outlookiis stable.

5 December 2017 - Confirmed the long-term Counterparty and Senior ratings at '‘BB-'
and theshort-term 'B' rating. The outlook was upgraded to Positive.

Fitch Ratings DBRS

Viability Rating bb- Intrinsic Assessment (IA) BB (high)
Support 5 Critical obligations BBB/R-2(high)
Support Floor No Floor

Deposits LT / ST BB-/B Short-Term Debt LT / ST BB (high) / R-3
Senior unsecured debt issues LT / ST BB-/B Deposit LT / ST BB (high) / R-3
Outlook Positive Trend Stable
Subordinated Debt Lower Tier 2 B+ Dated Subordinated Notes BB (low)
Preference Shares B- Covered Bonds A
Covered Bonds BBB+

Rating Actions

Rating Actions

21 December 2017 - Reaffirmed the LT rating of Banco Comercial Portugués at 'BB-',as
well as the other BCP ratings. The Outlook was upgraded to Positive.

15 June 2017 - Confirmed BCP ratings, including thelssuer Rating and Senior Long-Term
Debt & Deposit Rating at 'BB (high)'and the Short Term Debt & Deposit rating at 'R-3', the
subordinated debt rating of 'BB (low)' and the 'BBB/R-2 (high)' and assigned the Critical
Obligations Ratings (COR). All ratings havea Stable Trend.
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Capital

According to our interpretation of CRD IV/CRR to date, the CET1 estimated ratio as at 31 December 2017 stood at
13.2% and at 11.9% phased-in and fully implemented, respectively, favourably evolving from 12.4% and 9.7%
presented as at 31 December 2016, and above the minimum required ratios under the 2017 SREP (CET1 8.15%, T1
9.65% and Total 11.65%).

This CET1 favourable performance mainly reflects:

e thecapital increase operation performed in February 2017 and the full reimbursement of the remaining CoCo’s, which
determined a CET1 increase of 677 million Euros and a 228 million Euros increase of RWA (+166 basis points in CET1
phased-in ratio);

e the phase-in progression, which determined reductions of CET1 by 512 million Euros and RWA by 147 million Euros as
at 1January 2017 (-127 basis points in CET1 phased-in ratio);

e thechangesperformedin the Retail LGD/ELBE models, decreased the CET1in 239 million Euros, due to expected losses,
despite the 409 million Euros risk weighted assets’ increase (-72 basis points in CET1 phase-in ratio).

The organic generation of capital, based on the positive netincome, as well as on the fair value reserves’ favourable
evolution, also contributed to the positive performance of capital ratios on this period.

SO B Ty R0 o eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeomemmmesesesesee e e e eeeeeeeeeeeerererermmmesesrerere (Euro milior),
31 Dec. 17 31 Dec. 16 31 Dec. 17 31 Dec. 16
PHASED-IN FULLY IMPLEMENTED
OWN FUNDS

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) 5319 4874 4738 3730
Tier 1 5319 4874 4809 3744
TOTAL CAPITAL 5932 5257 5457 4060
RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS 40171 39160 39799 38597

CAPITAL RATIOS (¥)
CET1 13.2% 12,4% 11,9% 9,7%
Tier 1 132% 12,4% 12,1% 9,7%
Total 14,8% 13,4% 13,7% 10,5%

9 ncludes the cumulative net income recorded in each period.

In the beginning of 2018 came into force the IFRS 9, which establishes new requirements regarding the
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities, the impairment calculation methodology and for
the application of hedge accounting rules. The Group’s regulator issued a transitional guidance within the scope
of the IFRS 9 implementation, which allows choosing between two approaches for the recognition of the impacts
on regulatory capital. The Group chose to defer the impact, as defined in Article 473a of the CRR. The estimated
impact, of the IFRS 9 application, on the CET1 pro-forma ratio as at 31 December 2017 is -36 basis points fully
implemented and -25 basis points considering the deferement above mentioned.
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The Bank informed the market of the European Central Bank’s (ECB) decision regarding the minimum prudential
requirements to be fulfilled from January 1st, 2018, based on the results of the Supervisory Review and Evaluation
Process (SREP). In addition, BCP was informed by the Bank of Portugal on its capital buffer requirement as “other
systemically important institution” (O-Sll). These decisions define, concerning minimum own funds requirements,
as from January 1st, 2018, the following ratios, determined as a percentage of total risk weighted assets (RWA):
8.8125% CET1,10.3125% T1 and 12.3125% Total. In addition to the minimum requirements set by CRR article 92
these minimum own funds requirements include 2.25% of Pillar 2, 1.875% of additional conservation buffer and
0.1875% of other systemically important institutions (O-Sll) buffer.

Also on the scope of SREP, the CET1 deduction of irrevocable payment commitments for the Resolution Fund and
the Deposits Guarantee Fund is required from January 1st, 2018.

Itis also worth noting that the year 2018 will have the last phased-in progression with substantial impact on capital
ratios.

The estimated impact on CET1 pro-forma ratio, considering the application of the SREP result and the phase-in
progression as for January 1st, 2018, stood at -31 basis points in fully implemented ratio and -157 basis points in
phased-in ratio.
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Pension Fund

The Group’s responsibilities with pensions on retirement and other benefits stood at 3,050 million Euros as at 31
December 2017, comparing with 3,093 million Euros as at 31 December 2016. These responsibilities are related

with the payment to Employees of pensions on retirement or disability.

As of 31 December 2017 the Pension Fund’s assets reached 3,166 million Euros (3,124 million Euros as of 31
December 2016) and a positive rate of return of 4.2%, which favourably compares to the assumed actuarial rate of

2.1%.

The main asset categories in the Pension Fund’s portfolio, as of 31 December 2017 and at the end of 2016, were

as follows:

STRUCTURE OF THE PENSION FUND’S ASSETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Bonds and other
fixedincome
securities; 34%

(43%)

Shares; 12%
(17%)

(xx%) Proportion asat 31 de December 2016

Properties; 8%

s (9%)

Loansand

advances to credit
institutions and
others; 46%

(31%)

The main actuarial assumptions used to determine the Pension Fund’s liabilities in 2015,2016 and 2017 are shown

below:
ASSUMPTIONS 2015 2016 2017
Discount rate 2.50% 2.10% 2.10%

Increase in future compensation levels

Rate of pensions increase

Projected rate of return on fund's assets
Mortality tables

Men
Women
Disability rate

Turnover rate

0.75% until 2017
1% after 2017

0% until 2017
0.5% after 2017

2.50%

TV 73/77 - 2 years
TV 88/90 - 3 years
Not applicable
Not applicable

0.25% until 2019
0.75% after 2019

0% until 2019
0.5% after 2019

2.10%

TV 88/90

TV 88/90 - 3 years
Not applicable
Not applicable

0,25% until 2019
0,75% after 2019

0% until 2019
0.5% after 2019

2.10%

TV 88/90

TV 88/90 - 3 years
Not applicable
Not applicable

Atthe 2016 year end the Collective Labour Agreement was revised and the respective impacts were recognized on
the consolidated profit and loss account. The changes introduced in the Collective Labour Agreement were only
formally accepted by the “Northern Trade Union” in April 2017 and therefore the respective impact was recognized

in first half of 2017.
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At the 2017 year end, the agreement of the Group's Pension Fund was amended in order to incorporate the
responsibilities that have been directly supported by each Group entity (extra-fund liabilities), as well as the
changes introduced in the Group's Collective Labour Agreements, in terms of retirements benefits.

The Group’s responsibilities were fully funded and kept at a higher level than the minimum set by Banco de
Portugal, presenting a coverage rate of 104% as of 31 December 2017, higher than the coverage rate of 101%
reached at the 2016 year end (pro-forma coverage ratio, presented on a comparable basis, assuming that the
extra-fund liabilities would have been formally incorporated into the Group’s Pension Fund as of 31 December
2016).

In 2017 an amount of 29 million Euros of positive actuarial deviations, before taxes, was recognized (303 million
Euros of negative actuarial deviations), of which 53 million Euros referring to positive differences arising from the
return on Pension Fund’s assets (170 million Euros of negative differences in 2016).

The main indicators of the Pension Fund as at the end 0of 2015, 2016 and 2017 are as follows:

MAIN INDICATORS 2015 2016 2017
Liabilities with pensions 3,136 3,093 3,050
Value of the Pension Fund 3,158 3,124 3,166
Coverage rate (¥) 101% 101% 104%
Return on Pension Fund -0.8% -2.6% 42%
Actuarial (gains) and losses 111 303 -29

In2015 and 2016, the coverage rate corresponds to a pro-forma ratio, presented on a comparable basis, assuming that the
extra-fund liabilities would have been formally incorporated into the Group's Pension Fund in those years.
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Information on trends

Despite the acceleration of the economic recovery in Portugal, the stabilisation of the banking industry and the
decrease in public and private indebtedness, Portuguese banks continued to operate in a challenging environment
in 2017. Banks are operating within a context of very low interest rates, thus exercising pressure on the financial
margin. Moreover, the Portuguese Banks still have a significant number of non-interest bearing assets in their
balance sheets. Besides, the context is marked by fast technological evolution and, pursuant to the Payment
Services Directive 2 (PSD2), by the competition from new players in the market (Fintech). There are also new
regulatory requirements, namely the adoption of IFRS9 as of January 2018.

Banco de Portugal's forecasts for the Portuguese economy in the 2017-20 time frame point towards the recovery
of economic activity at a quicker pace than in the last few years and close to expected GDP growth for the Euro
Area. GDP is expected to grow on average 2.6% in 2017, 2.3% in 2018, 1.9% in 2019 and 1.7% in 2020. It is
expected that, between 2017-20, the contribution provided by investment and net exports will increase its
importance in GDP's growth. According the data disclosed by INE (Portuguese Statistics Institute), the public deficit
stood at 1.4% of the GDP in 2017, the lowest ever since Portugal joined the Euro Area.

Two of the four rating agencies that rate the Portuguese Republic upgraded their ratings at the end of 2017. By
the end of 2017, three rating agencies give an investment grade rating to the Portuguese Republic, which
translated, together with the improvement of the market’s perception of the Portuguese Republic, into the sharp
decrease in sovereign risk premiums and bank premiums.

In accordance with Banco de Portugal, the funding operations made by the Portuguese banks with the ECB fell to
22.1 billion Euros in December 2017, figures which are consistent with the general trend existing since the second
half of 2013. These figures show an improvement in the liquidity position of the domestic banks which has
benefited from a resilient performance from deposits, namely from individuals (null variation year-on-year by the
end of 2017, with demand deposits up 10.8% and term deposits down 4.7%, also year on year).

Moreover, the deleveraging of the Portuguese financial sector continues and the total credit to individuals and to
companies decreased 2.8%, respectively, in December 2017, if compared with the same period in the previous year.
One must be aware that the loan to deposit ratio of the banking sector in Portugal stood under 100% by the end
of December 2017 versus 128% by the end of 2012 and 158% by the end of 2010.

The credit granted by BCP continues to decrease within a context of deleveraging of the non-financial economic
sectors resulting in a lower search for credit. Yet active loans rose for the first time in 8 years, in December 2017.
At the same time, deposits also continued to grow despite the fact that the Bank let go of some institutional
deposits, requiring a larger remuneration, complying with a policy for the preservation of the financial margin. As
the commercial gap closes, BCP has also been reducing its use of funding from the ECB to 3,000 million Euros in
December 2017. In the next few months, one expects that the trends mentioned above will continue be visible,
being highly likely that the credit/deposit ratio will continue to fall, together with the maintenance of funding from
the ECB under 4,000 million Euros.

At the end of December 2017, Millennium bcp was the largest Portuguese privately-owned bank, with a robust
asset structure, a phased-in CET1 ratio of 13.2%, above regulatory requirements (SREP) and a credit/deposits ratio
of 93%.

The maintenance of very low money market interest rates is contributing to decrease the spread on term deposits
of the Portuguese banks, a trend that persisted in 2017, more than offsetting the lower spreads in credit.

The rates of the new term deposits reached, by December 2017, values under 20 basis points, and the portfolio's
average rate should converge to these levels over the course of next year.

The price effect on the financial margin should continue to be globally positive, translating the improvement of
the interest margin on operations with Customers (differential between the credit global rate and the global rate
at which the banks remunerate the deposits). Notwithstanding, the continued reduction in the credit granted
(volume effect) will probably continue to condition the financial margin.

The profitability of the Portuguese banks is expected to continue to be conditioned by the prospects of low short
term interest rates continuing to apply. Various institutions should continue to apply restructuring plans, to
increase operating efficiency and the adjustment of business models, which translates into the decrease in the
number of branches and employees and in the release of capital allocated to non-core activities. Profitability in
the banking industry is still affected by a high NPE stock. The profitability levels recorded by the banking system
as of the beginning of the financial crisis continue to limit the capacity to generate capital internally.

The BCP Group has a relevant exposure to Poland where there are risks due to legislative amendments with impact
on the Polish financial system. A proposal has been recently presented to solve the issue of the conversion of the
credits into Swiss francs in Poland, and it received the support from the central bank and the supervisor. This plan
implies a quarterly contribution of up 0.5% (2% annually) on the mortgage loans in a foreign currency into a new
restructuring fund for a long period of time. The objective is to promote the conversion of the loans into zloty.
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At the end of 2017, the Polish supervisor defined additional requirements for banks with mortgage loans portfolio
in foreign currencies (based on the weight of the total foreign currency mortgage loans portfolio and based on the
weight of 2007-2008 vintages in the total foreign currency mortgage loans portfolio).

There are still some risks connected with the economic context experienced by some African countries, with
potential impact on the Group namely Angola and Mozambique, whose economic activity is decelerating, with high
inflation and faced a significant depreciation of their currency in 2017.

Angola's contribution to earnings was null and resulted from the difference between:
e Angola’s equity accounted earnings, before application of 1AS 29, of 28.5 million Euros; and

e Neteffectresulting from the increase in equity accounted earnings after application of IAS 29 of 11.3 million Euros
and goodwill impairment of 39.7 million Euros, i.e. -28.4 million Euros.

e  While Angola is classified as an economy experiencing hyperinflation, this type of adjustments will continue to
occur.

The continuous improvement in core income as well as the continuation of the restructuring and reduction of costs
should play a positive role and contribute to the improvement of the 2017 results although conditioned by the
economic conjuncture.

There is great focus on the management of the stock of problematic assets and respective hedging levels and
measures should be adopted to reduce these assets, together with other preventive measures, to be applied within
the scope of prudential supervision and targeted at new Non-Performing Exposures (NPEs) so as to foster a more
pro-active management of NPEs, including measures to remove the blocking factors in legal, judicial and tax
systems. The NPLs issue is particularly important within a European context, conditioning the profitability of
European banks, namely Portuguese. The Bank has an on-going plan to reduce NPEs having recorded an accrued
reduction of 3,000 million Euros in the 2016-2017 periods and of 6,800 million Euros since 2013.

It is not yet possible to determine what will be the final impact of the resolution of BES on BCP as an institution
participating in the resolution fund created by Decree Law nr.31-A/2012, of 10 February (the “Resolution Fund”).

In March 2017, the conditions for loans granted by the State to the Resolution Fund were altered. The maturity of
the loans was revised to December 2046, so that the annual payment owed by the Banks is met by the income from
the regular contribution charged to the banking sector, keeping the banks' contributions unaltered at the current
level.

The revision of the loans enables the full payment of the liabilities of the Resolution Fund, as well as the respective
remuneration, without the need to ask the banking sector for special contributions or any other type of
extraordinary contributions.

The revision of the conditions of the State loan to the Resolution Fund, though it does not alter the banking sector's
liabilities towards the Resolution Fund, represents yet another measure to ensure financial stability, after a deep
recession, and to favour the reinforcement of the capitalisation of Portuguese banks, as well as the
competitiveness of the Portuguese economy.

The European Commission agreed with the revision of the terms and conditions of the agreements and removes
the uncertainty surrounding the future annual liabilities of banks, regardless of the contingencies that come to fall
on the Resolution Fund.

Banco de Portugal and the Resolution Fund completed in October 2017 the sale of Novo Banco to Lone Star against
the payment of 750 million Euros by the new shareholder, which was followed by a new capital payment of 250
million Euros. Novo Banco is now held by Lone Star and by the Resolution Fund with shareholdings of 75% and
25%, respectively. This operation also included the obligation for the Resolution Fund to undertake a capitalisation
operation.

After informing about its reservations regarding the contingent capitalization obligation of the Resolution Fund in
Novo Banco’s sale agreement, Banco Comercial Portugués decided, when faced with the legal term and for
caution’s sake, to request a legal appraisal of such obligation in administrative proceedings, which are exclusively
focused on the contingent capitalization obligation.

On March 28, 2018, Novo Banco announced the results for the year 2017, which resulted in the activation of the
contingent capitalization mechanism established in the agreements entered into in connection with the sale of the
Novo Banco. According to the calculation made on the referred date, the amount to be paid to the Novo Banco in
2018 by the Resolution Fund, compared to the accounts for 2017, amounts to 792 million Euros. This payment
results from the agreements concluded in March 2017. The payments to be made by the Resolution Fund, if the
conditions set out in the contingent capitalization mechanism provided for in the Novo Banco’s sale agreement
are met, are subject to a maximum limit of 3,890 million Euros.
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Directive nr.2014/59/EU - the Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive (BRRD) - foresees a joint resolution regime
in the European Union enabling the authorities to cope with the insolvency of bank institutions. The shareholders
and creditors will have to internalize an important part of the costs associated with the insolvency of a bank,
minimizing taxpayers' costs.

To prevent bank institutions from structuring their liabilities in a way which may compromise the efficiency of the
bail-in or of other resolution tools and to avoid the contagion risk or a bank run, the Directive establishes that the
institutions must comply with a minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL). BCP estimates
that there may be a manageable gap, to be accomplished mainly by issuing non-preferential senior debt.

IFRS 9’s final impacts on BCP are still being assessed. Estimates point towards an impact on the fully loaded CET1
ratio of 34 bp and on the phased-in ratio of 36 bp (25 bp if considered the transitory period) and a 3 pp rise in NPE
impairment coverage from IFRS 9 on a fully implemented base.

This assessment, although preliminary since the transition process to IFRS 9 is not yet finalized, is the best
expectation of the impact of adopting the standard on this date. The current impact of the adoption of IFRS 9
through 1 January 2018 may change as:

e IFRS 9 requires the Group to review its accounting procedures and internal control mechanisms and the validation of
the new processes is not yet complete;

e although the Bank has made a parallel in the second half of 2017, changes in IT systems and associated controls have
not yet reached an advanced stage of maturity;

e the Group did not finalise the validation of existing controls in its IT system or complete the changes in its governance
structure;

e the Groupis refining and finalising the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculation models;

e policies, assumptions, decisions and calculation methods are subject to change until the publication of their audited
financial statements for the year 2018; and

e thereiscurrently a legal vacuum regarding the tax treatment of the transition adjustment to IFRS9.
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Involvement of Stakeholders

Group BCP pursues dynamic strategies, adjusted to the new challenges imposed by the interested parties with
which it relates, materializing a business model based on an ongoing and transparent dialogue enabling to
understand and comply with the expectations of its Stakeholders.

MATERIALITY MATRIX

The identification and the ongoing follow-up of the themes considered material by the Stakeholders of Millennium
bcp enabled the Bank to know the areas that show better performances within the scope of Sustainability, but also
enabled it to rapidly detect improvement opportunities representing a strong contribution for the adoption of an
appropriate sustainability strategy adapted to new realities, challenges and requirements.

*REPORTING AND COMMUNICATION
*REPUTATION

HIGH

*MANAGEMENT MODEL

*RISKMANAGEMENT

*LABOUR CONDITIONS AND HUMAN RIGHTS SERVILEQUALITY

*ECO-EFICCIENC *MOTIVATION MANAGEMENT
*PHYSICALAND ELECTRONICSECURITY
*PROXIMITY AND TRUST *STRATEGY AND RESULTS

*STAKEHOLDERSMANAGEMENT ~ * VALUES,ETHICSAND CONDUCT
“SHAREHOLDINGSTRUCTURE

*CLIMATE CHANGE *SUSTAINABLESERVICESAND.PRODUTCT INNOVATION

*ACESSIBILITIES

PARTNERSHIPSWITHNGO AND VOLUNTEERING

IMPORTANCE LEVEL TO STAKEHOLDERS
MEDIUM

LOW

*ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL AWARENESS

LOW MEDIUM HIGH

IMPACT LEVEL TO MILLENNIUM BCP

SUSTAINABILITY PoLIcy

The adopted sustainability policy, which fosters a culture of Social Responsibility, aims to positively influence the
organisation's value proposition in the long term, balanced with the well-being of the people, the company and
communities in which it operates, while preserving natural resources, climate and the environment.

Within this framework, it is possible to divide the Bank's intervention into three major areas of intervention:
e Involvement with the external community and with the internal community;

e Offer of products and services incorporating social and environmental principles;

e Sharingsustainability principles.

Thus, Millennium bcp assumes, as an integral part of its business model, the commitment to create social value,
developing actions for and with several groups of Stakeholders aiming to, directly and indirectly, contribute to the
social development of the countries where it operates.

In the wake of the subscription in 2005 to the United Nations Global Compact Principles, Group BCP also commits
to support these 10 Principles establishing a set of values in what concerns human rights, labour conditions, the
environment and anti-corruption and already published in 2017 the Communication on Progress (COP) in the level
GC Advanced.

The strategy of Millennium bcp in terms of Sustainability is translated in the Sustainability Plan (SP), a plan of
commitments that aggregates a number of actions to be carried out by the Bank. The definition of the actions part
of the SP is based on a balanced relation between the identified relevant material issues, the Bank's available
resources and the economic and market framework existing at the time.

134



SUSTAINABILITY PLAN

The Sustainability Plan 2014/17 which, through a close, transparent and consequent relation, intends to face the
main expectations identified during the regular surveys made to the Bank's main Stakeholders foresees, in its

different aspects, the following initiatives and actions:

SUSTAINABILITY MASTER PLAN 2014 (SMP) - 2014/2017

Size Action Line
Enhance the ties established between the Employees and the Bank's Values

ETHICS AND | F i dof . Frisl

PROFESSIONAL Foster a culture of compliance and of a strict management of risk

CONDUCT Publish clear policies in the wake of the prevention of corruption, of health and safety issues, human
rights and the protection of maternity
Implement and improve the satisfaction evaluation processes;

SERVICE QUALITY Create mechanisms for the immediate detection and management of improvement opportunities in

the services provided to Customers.

ACCESSIBILITIES

Improve the implementation of differentiated working hours;

Enhance and promote the accessibilities made available to individuals with special needs.

Enhance the proximity and involvement with the Bank's Shareholders;

PROXIMITY AND the institutional report in the wake of Sustainability;
REPORTING mprove the institutional report in the wake of Sustainability;
Make a survey to identify the Stakeholders' expectations.
MANAGEMENT OF : Consult the Bank's Stakeholders to know and meet their expectations
EXPECTATIONS Collect and implement ideas suggested by the Employees on Sustainability issues.
Identify best performances at Client Service level;
MOTIVATION Support the adoption of healthy lifestyles;
Improve the mechanisms ensuring a greater proximity between the Employees and top managers.
Consolidate the Bank's position in the micro credit market;
PRODUCTS AND Itr:prcovet the ne‘gotiation and search for solutions able to meet the increasing financial difficulties of
SERVICES e Customers;
Promote and launch products that observe social responsibility principles and cope with the new
environmental challenges.
SHARE AND Institutionalize the donation of the Bank's furniture and IT equipment to institutions in need;
PROMOTE Implement social and/or environmental awareness actions common to the entire Group;
AWARENESS Launch a financial literacy programme transversal to the Bank.
VOLUNTEER
ACTIONS Structure a volunteering programme for and with the participation of the Employees.

PARTNERSHIPS

Develop campaigns together with non-governmental organizations and charitable institutions to
foster a sustainable development.

INCORPORATION
MILLENNIUM BCP

Strengthen the identity of Fundac&o Millennium bcp

Promote climate changes awareness with corporate clients developing their activities in sectors

SOCIAL AND more exposed to risks and environmental regulations
ENVIRONMENTAL Identify and classify Corporate Clients with greater environmental and social risks
RISK Formalize compliance with social and environmental requisites in the relation established with
Suppliers
Enhance the measures for the reduction of consumption
ENVIRONMENTAL Impl t imed at the reducti fwaste and th ti fa f l li
PERFORMANCE mplement measures aimed at the reduction of waste and the creation of a formal recycling process

Formalize and communicate Environmental Performance quantitative objectives
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Table of Correspondence between the

Management Report and the Decree-Law 89/2017

Decree Law 89/2017, of 28 July

Chapter/section

Page/s

Art. 3 (cfr. Art. 66-B and 508-G of the CC):

The non-financial statement must contain information to the extent necessary for an understanding of the undertaking's
development, performance, position and impact of its activity, relating to, as a minimum, environmental, social and employee
matters, gender equality, non-discrimination, respect for human rights, anti-corruption and bribery matters, including:

a) A brief description of the undertaking's business
model

b) A description of the policies pursued by the
undertaking in relation to those matters, including
due diligence processes implemented

c) The outcome of those policies

d) The principal risks related to those matters
linked to the undertaking's operations including,
where relevant and proportionate, its business
relationships, products or services which are likely
to cause adverse impacts in those areas, and how
the undertaking manages those risks

e) Non-financial key performance indicators
relevant to the particular business

Art. 4 (cfr. Art. 245 1.r and 2 of the CC):

Description of the diversity policy applied in
relation to the undertaking's management and
supervisory bodies with regard to aspects such as
age, gender, or educational and professional
backgrounds, the objectives of that diversity policy,
how it has been implemented and the results in the
reporting period.
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2017 Annual Report

Main Risks and Uncertainties
Risk Management

Value added to each Stakeholder
Group

2017 Annual Report

Summary of Indicators

Main Highlights

Value added to each Stakeholder
Group

2017 Annual Report
Non-financial statement

2017 Corporate Governance Report

Page 9-26
Page 33-39

Page 134-135

Page 137-149
Page 150-153

Page 100-101
Page 102-124
Page 137-149

Page 12-13
Page 10-11
Page 137-149

Page 133-153

Sections on the diversity
policy of the corporate bodies
and on the competences of
the Committee for
Nominations and
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Value added to each Stakeholder Group

A SOLID BANK, (MORE) PREPARED FOR THE FUTURE

In 2017, the Bank recorded earnings of 186.4 million Euros, benefiting
from the continuous expansion of the core income, which amounted to
1,103.8 million Euros, comparing to 1,094.0 million Euros in 2016. ESTAMOS A

Millennium bcp is one of the most efficient banks in the euro area, with CONSTRUIR O FUTURO
cost-to-core income and cost-to-income ratios of 46% and 43%,

respectively, in 2017. In this period of time, there was an improvement SUSTENTABILIDADE

in profitability, with ROE at 3.3%.

The improvement in asset quality, reflected in the decrease in Non-
Performing Exposures (NPE) in Portugal to 6.8 billion Euros, as at 31
December 2017 must be emphasized, which shows a fast descent since
2013 (1,500 million Euros a year on average), and the maintenance of
a comfortable level of liquidity, seen in the loan-to-deposit ratio (95%)
and in the balance sheet loans to funds ratio (93%). Common Equity
Tier 1 ratios, according to the fully implemented and phased-in criteria,
stood at 11.9% and 13.2%.

During 2017, the BCP share was up 47%, exceeding the performance of the domestic reference index PSI 20 (+15%)
and the European banks index Eurostoxx 600 Banks (+8%).

EMPLOYEES

BCP Group ensures, in its different operations, a fair treatment ~ BREAKDOWN BY GENDER

and equal opportunities to all its Employees, promoting Percentage

meritocracy at all stages of their career and defining their

remuneration in accordance with category, professional path 539
and level of achievement of the established objectives.

The general principles that rule the BCP Group established a

series of values and benchmarks, universally applicable to all

Employees, resulting in a clear and unequivocal guidance, so

that, regardless of the respective hierarchical or responsibility

level, all Employees always act in a fair manner, with no 47%
discrimination, and also reaffirming the commitment to the ten

Global Compact Principles, under which the Group recognises

and supports the freedom of association and the right to

collective work agreement negotiation and rejects the #Men ®Women
existence of any form of forced and compulsory labour,

including child labour.

The commitments undertaken by Group BCP within the scope of human rights, labour conditions and equal
opportunities are also enshrined in the corporate policies, of which the policies on Human Rights, Equality and
Non-Discrimination and Occupational Health and Safety are an example. These policies are available for
consultation on the Bank’s website, in the Sustainability area:

https://ind.millenniumbcp.pt/en/Institucional/sustentabilidade/Pages/cod_internos.aspx).

BCP assumed a commitment for the achievement of a higher gender balance in the composition of its Board
of Directors and 30% of this management body is to be composed of women until the end of 2018.

Within the scope of gender diversity in the Board of Directors, in 2017, globally, in the Group 16% of these
functions are performed by women — 16% in Portugal, 17% in Poland, 15% in Mozambique and 14% in Switzerland.

Within the scope of gender diversity in management functions (Senior Management and Management) in 2017,
globally, 40% of these functions are performed by women — 20% in Portugal, 59% in Poland, 30% in Mozambique
and 18% in Switzerland. In commercial functions, this figure increases to 58% in the Group, i.e. 45% in Portugal,
75% in Poland and 59% in Mozambique.
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AGE BREAKDOWN BY GENDER PROFESSIONAL CATEGORY BY GENDER
Percentage Percentage
>=50 51% 49%
66% 34%
] Technicians |
52% 48%

40% 60% 42% 58%
57% 43%
<30
reenen: I
39% 61% Management
80% 20%
= Man m\Women = Man m\Women
Information about the number of employees (not FTE's - Full Time Equivalent) for: Portugal, Mozambique, Switzerland and Poland.
TRAINING

The Employees are one of the strategic pillars of Group BCP, which is the reason why training continues to be seen
as a priority for the development of their professional and personal skills. The search for excellence in the quality
of the service provided to Customers involves identifying the training which is most suited to the specific needs of
each Employee, taking into account the Bank's strategic objectives.

TRAINING

2017 2016 2015  Change % 17/16
NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS
Classroom 47,731 39,350 23,881 21.3%
E-learning 270,833 194,499 185,474 39.2%
Distance Learning 62,143 68,914 45,975 -9.8%
NUMBER OF HOURS
Classroom 326,841 241,384 284,650 35.4%
E-learning 469,357 94,199 109,515 3983%
Distance Learning 143,575 171,046 76,590 -16.1%
BY EMPLOYEE 59 32 29 86.5%

Note: Data for 2016 and 2017 do not include Angola, whose operation was discontinued in 2016.
(1) The same Employee could have attended several training courses.

In overall terms, 5,839 training actions were ministered, corresponding to over 939,000 hours of training, with an
average of 59 training hours per Employee. During 2017, the training effort kept its focus not only on the
commercial areas, but also on technical, operational and compliance areas and on team management.

TALENT MANAGEMENT

At Group BCP, people management is one of the most important pillars of the Bank's competitiveness and
sustainability. Simultaneously with the valorisation of general and specific skills, it is crucial, from an organisational
enhancement perspective, to identify Employees with potential and talent, so that in future they can perform
duties of higher complexity and responsibility.

The development programmes implemented in the different geographic areas of Group BCP are thus a specific
response to Employees with high performance and potential, enabling: i) recently recruited Employees to acquire
a transversal overview of the business and best practices of the organisation; and ii) experienced Employees the
opportunity to acquire the necessary skills so that in future they can perform more complex roles with higher
responsibility.
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EVALUATION AND RECOGNITION

At the BCP Group, the individual performance assessment
models, based on a process of counselling and guidance
towards the development of skills, gives rise to opportunities of
dialogue between the senior staff and their Employees,
enabling the further deepening of a culture of personal
accountability for the development of their careers.

Together with an attitude of encouragement of Employee
valorisation and adoption of best practices, the BCP Group
upholds a policy of recognition of the merit and dedication
shown by each Employee, through a system of incentives, a
professional valorisation plan based on merit and specific
distinctions, attributed to Employees with excellent
performance.

EVALUATION AND RECOGNITION

Since the employees are one of the strategic pillars of Group
BCP, their level of satisfaction with the services provided by the
different internal areas — with a direct influence in the quality
of the service provided to Clients —is an important endogenous
indicator for the assessment of the efficiency perceived by the
Bank.

The opinion surveys were maintained regarding the
satisfaction with the internal service among Employees who
interact with other areas to perform their duties, in order to, as
part of a continuous improvement policy, identify
opportunities for improvement and optimisation of the
processes, technological solutions and procedures in force.

In Portugal, the total value of 80.2 i.p. reflected a significant

PROMOTIONS
Number of Employees

Mozambique
76

Portugal
1.538
Switzerland
Poland
1.020
SATISFACTION WITH INTERAL SERVICE
Index points
78.7 80.2
79.0
2015 2016 2017
—eo— Satisfaction

increase compared to the previous year confirming the improvement trend recorded in the last three years.

BENEFITS

The BCP Group offers its Employees a series of corporate benefits, apart from those established in the applicable
legislation. Concerning health and safety, in Portugal and Poland, Millennium Employees benefit from a dedicated
medical staff and medical units, which, in Portugal, now include Nutrition and Clinical Psychology. They also benefit
from regular medical check-ups. In Mozambique, Millennium bim has: i) a medical office, which, in addition to
medical appointments, also offers various specialities and basic health care; ii) an HIV office, ensuring prevention
and follow-up of this disease; and iii) social support office, offering counselling to Employees.

HEALTH SERVICES (
2017 2016 2015  Change % 17/16
MEDICAL SERVICES
Appointments held 21,409 25,171 26,426 -14.9%
Check-ups made 8,831 8318 8,413 6.2%
HEALTH INSURANCE
40,392 47,286 50,277 -14.6%

People covered

Note: Data for 2016 and 2017 do not include Angola, whose operation was discontinued in 2016.

(1) Includes active and retired Employees.
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Employees of the BCP Group benefit from mortgage loans, with special conditions. The credit is granted abiding
by the credit risk assessment principles set by the Bank's regulations. The Employees may also benefit from loans
for social purposes that, among other, serve to meet credit needs in order to face education or health expenses,
repairs made in their own domicile or in a rented one and the acquisition of other goods and services with an
exceptional nature.

)
CREDIT TO EMPLOYEES Million euros

2017 2016 2015

AMOUNT EMPLOYEES AMOUNT EMPLOYEES AMOUNT EMPLOYEES

MORTGAGE

In portfolio 661.2 9,405 719.6 9,973 790.1 10,558
Granted in the reporting year 247 328 22.6 323 23.9 338
SOCIAL PURPOSES

In portfolio 12.3 2,800 10.3 2,910 20.5 3,683
Granted in the reporting year 3.2 885 3.4 907 75 1,288

Note: Data for 2016 and 2017 do not include Angola, whose operation was discontinued in 2016.
(1) Includes active and retired Employees.

STAFF - EVOLUTION

In 2017, the number of employees of Group BCP decreased 0.5% (-84 Employees) versus 2016. Of the 15,836
Employees of the Group, 55% performed functions in the international operations and 45% in Portugal.

EMPLOYEES
2017 2016 2015 Change % 17/16

TOTAL IN PORTUGAL 7,189 7,333 7,459 -2.0%
Poland 5,945 5,964 5,992 -0.3%
Switzerland 71 72 71 -1.4%
Mozambique 2,631 2,551 2,505 3.1%
TOTAL INTERNATIONAL 8,647 8,587 8,568 0.7%
TOTAL 15,836 15,920 16,027 -0.5%

(1) Information about the number of Employees (not FTE's - Full Time Equivalent) for: Portugal, Mozambique, Switzerland and Poland.

Note: Does not include Millennium bcp Bank & Trust employees.

In Portugal, the downward trend in the number of Employees continued, with 211 having left, 84% of whom
through mutual agreement and/or retirement plans, while 48 new Employees were admitted. Among the
Employees who left, 54% worked in the commercial areas and 17% in management functions.

In Poland, the total staff number also declined (-0.3% relative to 2016), with 1,254 having left, 71% of whom of
their own initiative, and 76% allocated to commercial areas, which was partially offset by the recruitment process,
with the integration of 1,244 Employees.

However, in Mozambique, the bank maintained its trend of growth in Employees (3.1%) with the recruitment of
239 Employees, while 159 Employees left the Bank, 38% of the latter of their own initiative and 56% allocated to
commercial areas.
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CUSTOMERS
SATISFACTION SURVEYS

In Portugal, Millennium bcp continues to focus on the model of assessment of Customer experiences. 24 hours
after interaction with the Bank, the Customer is invited to answer a brief questionnaire to assess satisfaction with
this experience with the Bank and the corresponding level of recommendation.

In 2017, the Net Promoter Score indicator (NPS) of Prestige Customers, which reflects the Bank recommendation
level, increased to 57.5 points, corresponding to +2.2 points more than in 2016, following the increased percentage
of Promoter Customers from 64.3% to 66.6% and the stabilisation of the percentage of Detractor Customers. For
Mass Market Customers, the percentage of Promoter Customers increased from 72.1% to 74.5%, and the
percentage of Detractor Customers fell by 0.8%, reflected in an increase of the Millennium bcp NPS from 62.7 to
65.9 (+3.2 points). The NPS of Business Customers also improved, having increased to 56.9 (54.6 in 2016), with
8.7% of Detractor Customers and 65.6% of Promoter Customers. Based on these results per segment, the global
NPS of Millennium bcp is 64.4%, favourably comparing with 61.1% in 2016. Over 118,000 Customers were
surveyed.

The programme “#1 in Customer Experience” is a transformational project to provide
clients with distinctive and memorable experiences through the ongoing improvement of
the product and service range, the adaptation of the Bank's channels to today's trends, the
simplification of processes and, naturally, the development of the Employees' skills.

#1

EXPERIENCIA CLIENTE

After the behaviour and commercial techniques training carried out in 2016, for all i

Employees servicing Mass Market customers, in 2017 the Bank continued the training
program —“Training #1” -, monthly training moments that take place at the Branches with
the objective of consolidating the acquired knowledge and enhancing the practices and behaviours able to provide
excellent experiences to our Customers.

Taking into consideration the success achieved with Mass Market Clients and Employees in 2018 the programme
will also be implemented in the Prestige segment.

The Bank also undertook another “Mystery Client” action which, with 4 phases, totalled more than 2,400 visits to
Mass Market Branches. In 2017, the results achieved are in line with the figures recorded in 2016 and reached, by
the end of the year, the target of 85% of completion of the customer service choreography defined by the Bank.

In order to strengthen the measurement of satisfaction and loyalty in the various Customer segments, Millennium
bcp continued to monitor various market studies carried out by specialised companies, so as to obtain indicators
to position the Bank in the sector and assess, in an evolutionary way, market perception with regard to quality of
the service provided, the Bank's image and the products and services it sells. Examples of these studies are the
Consumer Choice, the BASEF Banca (Marktest), the BFin (DataE) and the BrandScore.

Within this coqtext, .th.e ﬁrs} place in the ranking of CSI COSTUMERS SATISFACTION
Banca and being distinguished with the Consumers Index points

Choice Award, the latter in 2018, are bioth recognition

of the effort that Millennium bcp has been making to

modernize and simplify bank products and services, 82.0 80.0 82.5
but also of the significant bet on the proximity with the ° —0- e
Clients and on faster servicing.
In the international activity, Customer overall
satisfaction levels with the Bank recorded a value of
82.5 index points (i.p.), influenced by the upturn
!'ecorded in Mozambique, which shifted from 75 to 79 2015 2016 2017
ip.
P —e— |nternationalactivity
In Poland, with 86 i.p. of global satisfaction, the
internet banking and mobile banking channels reached Information notavailable for Switzerland.
96% of positive reviews in 2016.
COMPLAINTS

In Portugal, complaints are managed by the Customer Care Centre (CAC). The total number of claims in this
operation showed an increase if compared with the previous year for a total of 22,104. The majority, 75.5%, are
claims related to current account debit/credit entries, card transactions. The effort made aiming at a rapid
resolution of the claims has been a constant concern of the Bank which has been able to guarantee an average
response deadline of 5 business days, with 64% of the complaints being solved in up to 3 days.
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Regarding international activity: i) Poland recorded 0.9% fewer complaints than in the previous year, with 71%
regarding current accounts, mortgage loans, card transactions and automatic services; ii) in Mozambique, the
number of complaints remained stable, with cards and current accounts being the most frequently mentioned
issues.

COMPLAINTS

2017 2016 2015 Change % 17/16
CLAIMS REGISTERED
Activity Portugal 22,104 20,423 27,529 8.2%
International Activity 54,814 53,940 50,907 1.6%
CLAIMS RESOLVED
Activity Portugal 20,649 18,454 26,739 11.9%
International Activity " 54,535 51,894 50,141 5.1%

Note: Data for 2016 and 2017 include Angola, whose operation was discontinued in 2016.
(1) Includes valid claims related with the disregard of the privacy of Customers in Poland (65) and in Mozambique (7) based on the wrong
processing of personal data and operational errors.

The average response time recorded was 16 consecutive days in Poland, and 7 business days in Mozambique.

CULTURE AND RIGOUR

The BCP Group considers that respect for the defined mission and values of the organisation, combined with
compliance with its approved strategy, depends, first of all, on each Employee. Hence, the Group encourages the
pursuit of a culture of rigour and responsibility, supported by mechanisms for the dissemination of information,
training and monitoring, so as to permanently ensure strict compliance with the instituted rules of conduct.

Against this background, the implementation of specific p—
training activities and the monitoring of the Compl.lar)ce ggz‘:%’;%ﬁmmﬁmﬁﬁo
Office teams have been a constant feature and a priority. DO TERRORISMO

Thus, joint action with the different business areas

enabled the training, in Portugal, of 28,097 employees in
various topics related to the activity of the Compliance
Office, always focused on the Employees' awareness of the need to adopt a professional conduct and behaviour in
accordance with a culture of ethics and rigour when performing daily duties. These figures, which represent a very
significant increase if compared to 2016, result from the reinforcement of training actions on Internal Control,
which included an universal training on the new Code of Conduct (13,422 trainees), but also on the prevention of
money laundering and terrorism financing. To provide Employees with the necessary competences to deal with
complex diligence processes, namely those presenting non-negligible risks, in order to decrease operational and
fraud risks continues to be part of the Group's activities plan.

MILLENNIUM. AQUI CONSIGO.

TRAINED EMPLOYEES

AML/CTF, Market Abuse, Internal Control, Monitoring of Transactions and Legal Subjects

2017 2016 2015 Change % 17/16
Activity in Portugal 28,123 747 262 3664.8%
International Activity 9,093 5,725 6,857 58.8%
TOTAL 37,216 6,472 7,119 475.0%

(1) The same Employee could have attended several training courses.

The adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control system as a whole and the effectiveness of the risk
identification and management processes and governance of the Bank and Group continued to be ensured
through audit programmes which include the analysis of behavioural matters, compliance with legislation, other
regulations and codes of conduct, correct use of delegated competence and respect for all other principles of
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action in force, in relations with external and internal Customers. The Code of Conduct and a set of compliance
rulings and policies that rule the bank’s activity are available for consultation on the website, governance area.

(https://ind.millenniumbcp.pt/en/Institucional/governacao/Pages/normas_regulamentos.aspx).

Relations of cooperation and loyalty have also been maintained with the judicial authorities and with national and
international conduct supervision authorities. Within this scope and by its own initiative, the bank made a total of
528 communications to local Judicial Entities and replied to 1,185 requests.

SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The BCP Group offers a complete and broad range of financial products and services, and continues, under the
development of its business lines, responsible for offering products and services which incorporate social
principles and respect for the environment and nature.

The BCP Group is also aware that the implementation of social and environmental criteria and standards in the
commercial offer is reflected in more efficient risk management, reputation value and higher quality of the
products and services offered to customers.

In Portugal, Millennium bcp Microcredit continues to be recognised as an alternative for the funding and feasibility
of entrepreneurial action and own-job creation, having approved 286 new operations, which corresponds to total
credit granted of 2,953 thousand Euros, and helped to create 483 jobs. The volume of loans granted to the 982
operations in the portfolio stood at 12,385 thousands Euros, corresponding to principal of 6,520 thousands Euros.

With the objective of continuing to support Clients in financial difficulties and prevent default, Millennium bcp also
maintained its focus on the stimulation and applicability of SAF packages (Financial Follow-up Service). In this
context, 22,345 contractual amendments were made during 2017 (8,275 mortgage loans and 14,070 consumer
credit), with arestructuring value of 603 million Euros (529 mortgage loans and 74 consumer credit) and comprised
21,188 Clients (7,361 mortgage loans and 13,827 consumer loans).

For Entities of the social sector, Millennium bcp has kept the Non-Profit Associations Account available, a current
account with special conditions, which does not require a minimum opening amount and is exempt from
maintenance and overdraft fees. 461 accounts with these features were opened, corresponding to a total of 3,848
accounts in the Bank's portfolio.

As for students who have decided to continue their academic path, the Bank granted 136 new loans in 2017,
amounting to 1,636 million Euros, under the University Credit Line. The volume of credit granted to the 348
operations in the portfolio amounted to 4.2 million Euros.

Also in Portugal, the Bank has continued to reinforce its support to companies through agreed credit facilities,
adjusted to the particularities of the sector and economy, in particular:

e Support to enterprise creation investment projects by unemployed persons, through the following credit lines: i)
Microinvest Line - which financed 67 entrepreneurs to a total of 688,000 Euros; and ii) Invest+ Line which supported 41
entrepreneurs, to a total value of 1,490 thousand Euros.

e Support for companies which need to meet treasury needs and seek to implement investment projects; 24 operations
were financed to a total of 2,015 thousand Euros through the '

INVESTE QREN Line. O BANCO

. . . QUEFINANCIA
e Funding lines (SME Growth and SME Invest) aimed at SMEs intending O FUTURO

to carry out investment projects or increase their working capital.  uecomosco
[ FACA CRESCER O SEU NEGOCIO

Completion of 1,867 operations, with total funding of 186,073  soucossoemucanemomesssss
thousand Euros. < p

e  Regarding support to companies in the agricultural and/or fisheries
sector, 128 operations were conducted involving a total financing of
8,534 thousand Euros through the PRODER/PROMAR and IFAP Short
Term credit lines.

-Millenniym.

e Acreditline - Social Invest - was launched in 2013 to facilitate the inclusion of Third Sector institutions in the financial
system. In 2017, the Bank kept a portfolio of 9 operations, totalling 320,000 Euros.

e  Credit Lines to Support Tourism, aimed at supporting, with favourable conditions, companies that develop activities
related to tourism. 10 operations were financed, totalling 3,463 thousand Euros.

e  The Bank also made available the Linha Capitalizar Mais, a protocol established between Millennium bcp, the
Instituicao Financeira de Desenvolvimento (IFD) and the Mutual Guarantee Societies that created a Credit Line with
mutual guarantee to finance projects to be implemented in mainland Portugal to help reinforce the entrepreneurial
capacity of the SME for the development of goods and services that are innovative in terms of processes, products,
organization or marketing. Millennium bep financed 31 operations totalling 12.797 million Euros in credit.
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In Poland, the WWF Millennium MasterCard credit card, offered since 2008, takes up an environmental
commitment. For each card subscribed, the Bank transfers to WWF Poland (World Wide Fund For Nature) half of
the first annuity and a percentage of each transaction made.

The BCP Group meets the needs of Investors that consider it relevant to cover, in their investments, social and
environmental risk factors, placing Responsible Investment Funds at their disposal for subscription:

e  InPortugal, the funds are available through: The online platform of Millennium bep — which marketed 4 environmental
funds in the area of energy, amounting to a portfolio value above 22,332 thousand Euros on 31 December; and ii)
ActivoBank — offering 16 investment funds, of which 8 are ethical funds and 8 are environmental funds, with a total
portfolio value above 797,000 Euros. On 31 December, 10 of these funds had participation units subscribed during the
year, with a global subscribed value amounting to 220,000 Euros, an increase versus the 65 subscribed in 2016.

e InPoland, Bank Millennium also has a solid offer of SRI funds, fundamentally aimed at Customers of the Prestige and
Private segment, reflecting the investment in businesses whose principles incorporate environmental concerns,
namely regarding climate change. The 4 available funds were subscribed by 1.242 Clients, assuring a subscribed value
of 17.1 million Euros.

SUPPORT TO THE COMMUNITY

The BCP Group's strategy is the promotion of a culture of social responsibility, developing actions for and with
several groups of Stakeholders aiming at, directly and indirectly, contributing to the social development of the
countries where it operates. It is in this context of proximity to the community that its policy of social responsibility
has developed, giving priority to its intervention on cultural, educational and social initiatives.

In Portugal, Millennium bcp continues to promote and create
opportunities for the participation of its Employees as volunteers in
actions to support the external community:

e In the context of the Food Bank's food collection campaigns,
Millennium bcp once again was present at the warehouses, helping
to separate and store the food. In 2017, in the two campaigns made
regularly, the Bank helped at a national level and ensured a
participation of more than 190 volunteers, Employees and their
relatives.

e  TheBanksupportsJunior Achievement Portugal (JAP) in its entrepreneurial, creativity and innovation projects, through
the Bank Employees’ participation as volunteers. During the school year 2016/2017, 46 volunteers of Millennium bcp
monitored more than 839 students of 38 schools in the various programmes of Junior Achievement Portugal, in a total
of 533 hours of corporate volunteer work.

The Bank has also been organizing, supporting and following up internal solidarity actions that promote a culture
of proximity and add social value and are also a significant contribution for the materialization of its Social
Responsibility Policy in Portugal. Among these initiatives, which received a special boost from the Direct Banking,
Retail Marketing, Operations, Quality and Network Support, we highlight:

e Campanha "Papel por Alimentos 2017”, developed by DB, aimed at the collection of  papEL
used paper in favour of the Food Bank and enable the collection of 2.8 tons of paper;  POR ALIMENTOS 2017

AQUI CONSIGO, FAZER A DIFERENCA

e “Millennium Solidrio”, campaign addressed to families and persons affected by the = -ﬂ
2017 forest fires. The objective of this campaign was to collect food, hygiene
products, clothes and household articles. It was possible to collect 70 boxes with
donated goods, which were delivered to the Food Bank and to Entreajuda, the Bank’s

partners in this initiative; &=y
. . N . SRR &
e Internal action for the collection of plastic recipients in favour of Refood, with the il II“
objective of distributing meals to the local communities. R
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Millennium bep also carried out a number of supporting actions to institutions and initiatives capable of generating
social value, of which we highlight:

Participation in the 4th edition of Marketplace Lisboa, a social market drawing together companies, local authorities
and non-profit institutions, where the participants display their offers and needs, promoting a sharing of knowledge
and experiences which give rise to the exchange of goods and services. Millennium bep, which was present for the third
time at this event, established 6 agreements for donation of material with different social solidarity institutions and
already provided support, during these three editions, to a total of 25 institutions;

Regular support to institutions through the donation of IT equipment and office furniture that is no longer used, but is
in condition to be reused. Currently, the Bank has a protocol signed with Entreajuda, the main beneficiary Entity. In
2017, the Bank donated over 3,020 items of IT equipment and furniture to 92 institutions, 226 of which to Entreajuda.

Culturally speaking, we must point out the Festival ao Largo, which every year presents on stage at Largo de Sao Carlos
a series of shows with the best of opera, ballet and symphonic music. This action intends to take art to a wider public,
thus contributing to the cultural enrichment of the country.

The event “Portugal Restaurant Week”, enabled the attribution of a financial support to the :\AAI&;.IE‘NCP)‘JIUM BCP
solidarity institutions Acreditar and Casa Mimar. With a donation of one Euro for each ¥ le (X IaYx(s)
“Restaurant Week” menu, the total amount donated exceeded 20,000 euros; ECO 2017

Millennium bcp participated for the 4th time in the annual edition of the ECO Movement -
Companies against Wild Fires, a civil society project that aims to contribute to the
prevention of forest fires and raise public awareness on risky behaviour.

Provision by Millennium bcp of a location in Tagus Park for charitable organisations to
collect funds and disclose the work carried out. In the first six months of 2017, an example
of this practice is the CERCI Oeiras Pirilampo Magico 2017;

Due to the numerous wild fires that affected the country, causing considerable human and material damages,
Millennium bep placed at the disposal of the Clients who had their homes damaged by the wild fires,a number of special
conditions, namely within the scope of mortgage loans. The bank also created the “Solidarity Account for the Fire of
Pedrogao Grande” with the purpose of getting funds to help the victims of the wild fires.

In terms of financial management and financial literacy, Millennium bcp contributed to increase the level of
financial literacy and the adoption of adequate financial behaviours:

The promotion, in its institutional website, of the following instruments —Savings Centre, Finance Managers and the Kit
for unexpected expenses which, despite being independent tools, have the same purpose: supporting the client to
balance his/her personal budget. In the M Videos area of the website it is also possible to find tutorials and savings
suggestions;

The Bank continued to regularly share contents related with financial planning at the “Mais Millennium” Facebook
page.

TheBankalso participated in the Work Group of the Associacédo Portuguesa de Bancos (Portuguese Banks Association),
together with several financial institutions and the Instituto de Formacéao Bancéria, whose mission was to develop and
support initiatives for the promotion of the financial education of all citizens. An example of the activity developed
already in 2017 is the promotion of the “European Money Week” (EMW) -, launched by the European Banking
Federation (EBF), which counted with the participation of more than 30 countries, which was promoted in Portugal by
APB, during the month of March, together with Instituto de Formacdo Bancaria and in partnership with Junior
Achievement. During this week, Millennium bcp received a group of students who had the possibility of knowing the
"backstage" of the institution and talking with the Bank's CEO.
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In Poland, Bank Millennium continues to carry out a significant number of actions, notably:

Corporate volunteering program “Milantrop” addressed to all Bank Employees and aimed at supporting local
communities. The programme enables two types of volunteer service - the organization of personal initiatives or the
participation in projects envisaged by the Foundation. 11 projects were developed with the involvement of 312
volunteers;

“Financial ABCs”, a financial literacy programme of Foundation Bank Millennium,
whose object is to give basic financial concepts to pre-school children. In 2017, the

Foundation carried out 600 workshops in 200 kindergartens involving more than FN R
15,000 children throughout the country. This program also had the support of the o lllll‘
Ministry of Education and of the Children’s Ombudsman, support that reaffirms its .

educational value;

Concerning education, we must highlight the following: i) the programme Millennium
Bankers, aiming to help university students in their first contacts with the labour
market; i) “Expert Start-up”, a program which provides free of charge workshops for
students.

In Mozambique, the Bank's social commitment is embodied in the "More Mozambique for Me" programme, one of
the references of the BCP Group under Corporate Social Responsibility aimed at tightening relations with local
communities, which continues to focus on projects in the area of health, education, culture, children and youth
sports, and community development:

Millennium bim Mini Basketball Tournament - in its 12th edition, involved 1,400 M A { S-

athletes, aged between 6 and 11 years old, from 11 Mozambican cities;
MBIQUE

Millennium bim Race - 12th Edition of an event that intends to foster the development P Y g A M | M

of this sporting activity, finding new talents and adopting healthy habits. More than

1,000 athletes participated; i I I enn i um

72 Edition of the Helpo Solidarity Race — Millennium bim supported this event once bim
again which was held in four Mozambican cities and also in Vila Real, in Portugal, and

Sao Tomé, in Sdo Tomé and Principe. 600 children participated in an initiative for the eradication of poverty and the
promotion of a healthy life and sports. In Maputo, the race Helpo counted with the presence of the Portuguese triathlon
athlete, Vanessa Fernandes;

“Uma Cidade Limpa pra Mim” (A Clean City for Me)-i) An environmental education project the purpose of which is to
create new waste treatment habits in students, betting on recycling and its importance for the city cleaning; ii)
Ecological Christmas Tree of Millennium bim, resulting from the collection and recycling of 7,000 plastic bottles by
students and teachers, with the participation of 10 schools;

Millennium bim Responsible — internal campaign “Ajude-nos a Ajudar” (Help us to help), wherein the employees
donated essential relief items which were later distributed by two child care institutions;

“Millennium bim - Banking Olympics", a project on financial literacy whose objective is to introduce basic financial
concepts, providing students and teachers with knowledge that will enable them to make balanced decisions in the
management of their savings and pursue entrepreneurial projects. In its 8th edition, this initiative counted with the
participation of 400 students, representing 10 schools. After trials, 40 finalists were selected.

Partnership with the Girl Move Foundation, whose objective is to support the Leadership and Entrepreneurial Skills
Advanced Program for young women with a licentiate degree;

Project supporting the construction of school rooms in the Napacala School, together with Helpo. Within the scope of
corporate volunteer actions, the bank undertook an action where 35 employees cleaned, painted and organized the
school rooms;

Action for the renovation of the Nursery of the Neonatology Unit of Hospital Central de Maputo, wherein 35 employees
painted, assembled and installed new furniture.
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FUNDACAO MILLENNIUM BCP

The Millennium bcp Foundation, under the institutional social
responsibility and cultural patronage policies, represents an
agent of creation of value in society, in the different areas of its
intervention, namely Culture, Education/Research and Social
Solidarity.

During 2017, the Foundation provided support to 127 projects in
the three areas mentioned above and carried out 6 exhibits.

During 2017, the Foundation assumed a new graphic identity,
more dynamic and better adjusted to the several activities it
pursues. This new graphic identity was launched in September
2017.

The purpose of this new identity is to
position the Foundation and an

DONATIONS ALLOCATED BY INTERVENTION
AREA

Percentage

Other

12% Culture
50%

Social
18%

Education
20%

institution that promotes contemporary art. This way, one is able to have a more modern
perception of Fundacao Millennium bcp, in line with the Bank’s communication strategy.

The cultural icon with several components reflects the versatility of Fundacao Millennium
regarding the several types of art it supports and the exhibits it carries out.

In Culture, the area where the Foundation promotes more initiatives and apart from the
projects to disclose the works of art owned by Millennium bcp, it promoted 65 initiatives
on several aspects of the cultural production, of which 22 within the scope of museums

and arts, 8 concerning recovery of cultural heritage, 3 in the area of music, 7 in Portuguese literature, 2 in
architecture and 23 in other areas. From those initiatives, we may highlight:

Maintenance of the Archaeological Center of the Rua dos Correeiros (ANRC) and management of the guided tours. It
received 11,911 visitors;

Millennium Gallery, an exhibition space which received 9,629 visitors in 2017
distributed over the following temporary exhibitions: i) “Unspoken
Dialogues”, with 1,369 visitors; ii) “A Pressao da Luz — Alvaro Siza por Nuno
Cera”, with 1,388 visitors; iii) Within the scope of “Lisboa 2017 — Capital
Ibero-Americana para a Cultura”, three exhibitions were carried out:
"ltacoaria — Cicatriz de Tordesilhas”, by Rigo (Portugal); “O Tempo
Desenhado: Iconographies of an Amerindian People in the Amazon”, and
“Archivo Alexander Von Humboldt, receiving a total of 1,984 visitors; iv.
Within the project “Shared Art”, the exhibition “A Partir do Surrealismo”, with
4,889 visitors until 31 de December 2017.

Both spaces participated in the International Day of Monuments and Sites, Museums Night with the opening of the
ANRC and Millennium Gallery with extended visiting hours.

Supporting projects to modernise important Portuguese museums and to promote museum activities and other
cultural activities, of which we highlight:

Museu Nacional de Arte Antiga ((National Museum of Ancient Art) (MNAC)- support to the modernization of the
museum, the Library, the Capela das Albertas and to events carried out by the Museum;

National Coach Museum —support to the Exhibit "300 anos Embaixada D.Jodo V";

Portuguese Museum of Contemporary Art— Museu do Chiado (MNAC): support to the exhibition "Seducdo
Modernidade" and to the activities carried out by the Museum.

Museu Nacional do Azulejo (Portuguese Tile Museum) - Translation from Portuguese into English for the exhibition “O
encanto na hora da descoberta”;

Museu Nacional de Soares dos Reis - Exhibit “A Cidade Global - Lisboa no Renascimento”.

Within the scope of cultural heritage recovery, architecture and other cultural areas, we may highlight the
following:

Regional Department for Northern Culture - support to the recovery of churches in the historical centre of Oporto and
support to the conservation of Santa Clara Church, in Oporto;

Regional Directorate of Algarve - recovery of Castelo de Paderne;

World Monuments Fund Portugal (Association) - Conservation of the arches of the church of the Monastery of Jerénimos;
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Palécio Nacional de Mafra — construction of a scale model of the Real Edificio de Mafra and project for the lighting of
the Throne Room;

Association of Portuguese Archaeologists - restoration of the Axial Door of the Carmo Convent;

Sao Pedro de Faro Church — Conservation and restoration of the painting of the altar of Nossa Senhora da Victéria.

Science and education are paramount for the construction of a developed society and for the exercise of a
responsible and informed citizenship. Therefore, the Foundation increased its participation in several projects for
education, scientific investigation and disclosure of knowledge. It provided financial aid to 33 educational projects,
28 in Universities and 5 in basic Education.

A scholarship programme of Fundacdo Millennium bcp, aimed at students from Portuguese-speaking African
countries and from Timor (PALOP)

Partnership with Millennium bim for the attribution of scholarships (several areas) in Universities of Mozambique to
young people evidencing academic merit and who lack economic means;

Universidade Catdlica Portuguesa: i) School of Economics and Management — Lisbon MBA scholarships; ii) Political
Studies Institute — sponsoring the chair of European Legal Studies; iii) Health Sciences Institute: Pedipedia project,
development of an online encyclopaedia; iv) School of the Arts — Masters in Conservation and Restoration of Cultural
Heritage;

Universidade Nova de Lisboa — Lisbon MBA scholarships;

MAAT - Museum of Art, Architecture and Technology partnering with the Institute for History of Art of Universidade
Nova and with Instituto Superior Técnico of the Universidade de Lisboa — Support to the Conference “Post Internet
Cities”

Instituto Superior Técnico da Universidade de Lisboa — Exhibition of the final works in the masters of Architecture and
support to the General Meeting of the network TIME — Top Industrial Managers Europe;

Fundacéo Rui Osdrio de Castro: attribution of an award to scientific investigation in the area of paediatric oncology;

Start Up Programme (10th edition) of Junior Achievement Portugal — development of entrepreneurship programmes
among university students;

Instituto Camdes — Award for the best student of Portuguese language 2017, in the United Kingdom.

ACEGE (Christian Association of Entrepreneurs and Businesspeople) — support to the program the objective of which is
promoting a responsible management of the Portuguese companies. The entity held 97 events, with the participation
of around 3,000 leaders.

Lastly, in the Social Solidarity area, the Foundation supported different actions promoted by several entities. These
actions comprised severalintervention sub areas, such as childhood/adolescence, poverty, disability,among other.
The Foundation supported 21 projects, 6 of which targeted early childhood, 6 for situations of poverty, 5 dealt in
health and disability and 4 of several other areas, of which we point out:

Associacdo Portuguesa de Familias Numerosas (APFN) (Portuguese Association of Large Families):- i) Observatory of
the Family Responsible Municipalities to distinguish the municipalities following best practices in this area; i) “Estudo
Comparativo dos Tarifarios de Abastecimento de Agua em Portugal”, presented at the Millennium bcp Auditorium, in
Lisbon;

AESE Business School — Programme GOS (Management of Social Organizations) — programme developed in a
partnership established between the AESE - Escola de Direcdo de Negdcios and ENTRAJUDA. The programme intends
to improve the practice of management by heads of non-governmental charitable organizations through training
actions addressed to their managing bodies;

Portuguese Food Bank—in terms of food collection campaigns: i) support to the production of bags; and i) donation for
the purchase of tuna;

BUS Association - Social Utility Assets - the institution collects, free of charge, useful goods for different purposes given
away by people wishing to get rid of them and forwards them to institutions and families in need;

Fundacéo Portuguesa de Cardiologia - Support to the Month of the Heart which took place in May, this year under the
theme "The heart in sports";

Associacdo Terra dos Sonhos — Attribution of a Scholarship — “Unidade Felicidade” — contributing for the carrying out
of a Musical celebrating the 10th anniversary of the Association, made in several stages at Teatro Tivoli BBVA, receiving
atotal of 4,484 spectators.
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SUPPLIERS

At the BCP Group, the process for selecting suppliers mainly obeys criteria of global competence of the company,
functionality, quality and flexibility of the specific solutions to acquire and continuous capacity of providing the
service. In all the Group's operations, it is given preference to purchasing from Suppliers of the respective country,
with 86.5% in payments to local suppliers.

The Bank’s main suppliers are companies which publish their economic, environmental and social performance,
ensuring the responsible contracting of products and services.

Since 2007, Group BCP, namely in Poland and Portugal, includes, as an attachment to the agreements it establishes
with suppliers, the Principles for Suppliers which include several aspects, such as compliance with the law, good
environmental and labour practices, including human rights and the application of those principles in the
engagement of third parties.

Millennium bcp assesses its suppliers through the application of a performance questionnaire including
parameters related with the level of observance with the Principles for Suppliers. In 2017, suppliers were subject
to continuous monitoring.

Within the scope of the monitoring, Millennium bcp's suppliers are subject to a permanent evaluation process,
based on: i) the relationship they maintain with Technical Competence Centres; ii) performance assessment
actions and the identification of areas for improvement; and iii) on existing decision-making processes to execute
investments and renew contracts.

In 2017, Millennium bcp subscribed the Principles Letter from BCSD Portugal -
Conselho Empresarial para o Desenvolvimento Sustentdvel. This document
establishes the principles that are the guidelines for good corporate
management, enabling the subscribing companies to be recognized by their
clients, suppliers and by the society in general for the adoption of solid
sustainability commitments. The Letter, which the Bank will now promote near
its suppliers, encourages the subscribers to go beyond legal compliance,
adopting rulings and practices recognized and in line with management, ethical,
social, environmental and quality standards in any context of global economy.

& PARA UMA ~
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Environmental Impact

ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSABILITY

Group BCP, in compliance with its digital and technological strategic goals, develops a sustainability strategy that
incorporates and promotes a culture of environmental responsibility and fight against climate changes. It is within
this context that the protection of the environment, the preservation of natural resources and the rationalization
of consumptions (mainly energy, water and paper, based on the dematerialization of processes) are objectives that
are part of the core of the environmental policy implemented in all its operations (available for consultation at the
sustainability area of the Bank’s website at

https://ind.millenniumbcp.pt/en/Institucional/sustentabilidade/Documents/Internal_Codes_2.pdf).

The Bank regularly monitors a series of environmental performance indicators which measure the Bank's eco-
efficiency with regard to its main consumption of resources. Globally, in 2017, the Bank's level of eco-efficiency
continued to improve as a result of the continuous investment in new equipment - as the new PV central for self-
consumption of Tagus Park - better procedures and in the changes introduced in the Employees' behaviour,
positively influenced by the internal awareness campaigns. Apart from the less environmental impact associated
with the Bank’s activity, these eco-efficiency measures are reducing the operating costs.

Apart from the monitoring of the environmental indicators, BCP has an area in charge of the business continuity
management that identifies the risks related with climate change and the incorporation of standard policies and
of defined procedures in order to ensure the Bank’s ongoing activity in case of natural disasters able of
discontinuing it. The Bank also manages indirect environmental risks, during the credit and project finance
evaluation and granting process and is able to carry out environmental impact studies, in accordance with the
applicable legislation in effect.

BCP ensures, on a regular basis, the follow-up of initiatives carried out in all countries where it operates, in view of
its local circumstances, and monitors a number of indicators which enable it to measure its environmental
efficiency and impact concerning its main resources consumption.

MAIN MEASURES TO REDUCE THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Operational Efficiency Environmental Awareness
Installation of LED lighting in Taguspark Environmental Signs Campaign
Reduction in the consumption of energy by 40%, able of reducing In Portugal, the Bank continued its internal
211,850 kWh, corresponding to a reduction of around 99.6 tons of environmental communication campaign, an
co2. information and communication action that

intends to contribute to the adoption of
increasingly responsible environmental practices
by the Employees.

Automation of the thermal power stations at TagusPark Informing the heads of the organizational
Operating in view of the needs, representing an annual savings of areas of the respective consumption of paper
around 10,800 kWh, also avoiding 5.1 tons of C02. (prints) and of ink and toner cartridges.

Internal campaign for the collection of paper
to exchange for food in favour of the Food Bank,
which enabled the collection of around 3 tons of
used paper.

The thermal power in Building 7 does not work during the night
Incorporation of a direct expansion cooling system for the Dealing
Room that functions 24/7, with an energy saving potential of 196,000
kWh, equivalent to avoiding 92.2 tons of CO,.

Installation of a Photovoltaic Solar Energy Plant with around 1 MW
capacity

Installation of 3,703 photovoltaic panels on three buildings of
Millennium bcp in Tagus Park, Oeiras. This plant is able to produce
around 1.3 GW/year, preventing the emission of 570 tons of CO, similar
to the energy required to supply 490 residences. The Bank estimates
having a 16% saving in annual energy costs.

The plant was inaugurated in November 2017 and in two months it
generated 145.7 MWh of energy for self-consumption, cutting CO2
emissions by 68.5 tons.
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Green IT Programme
Reduction in local printing, giving preference to digital archive tools in
the purchase of software development services

Cut back of 11.3 million prints due to the Paperless programme, an 11%
reduction in prints made in Branches if compared with the same period
of 2016.

Using digital documents such as, for example, the bank statement in
digital format

Definition of a business strategic goal to increase the number of clients
with digital access: > 35% of clients until 2018; and of digital
transactions: > 50% until 2018;

Clients with e-statement: more than 1,400,000 accounts in clients in
Portugal; 1,685,746 clients in Poland (82%); 20,744 clients in
Mozambique; and 75% of clients in Switzerland

Digital sale of financial products: In 2017 there were exponential
growths in the sale of risk insurances via millenniumbcp.pt, and another
digital sale product was launched - the life risk insurance associated
with personal loan transactions. Apart from that, Millennium bcp and
ActivoBank implemented the 100% digital account opening process.

Project Go Paperless from the client's standpoint: implementation of
the electronic signature of the client and of the Digital Price List; and
from an internal procedures standpoint: digital daily maps of account
opening and closing processes

100% of the retail branches and internal operations have the application
PAB Paperless, which enabled the branches to stop printing 98% of the
documents, thus substantially decreasing the ecological footprint

Program Kaizen that raises daily the Employees awareness so that they
make their activities more simple, more agile and more modern, with
less paper, less costs and higher quality.

The teams involved created during 2017 around 90 new initiatives, of
which 6% are related to the elimination of paper and represent 1,100
less prints per month.

Sustainable mobility measures

Promote the use of videoconference and e-
learning instead of travels

In Poland, the replacement of almost all
company cars for hybrid cars. This will prevent
500 tons of CO, emissions, a 20.6% reduction if
compared with the period prior to the
replacement.

Environmental Guide for Customers and
Employees in Poland

Planting 200 trees, involving 40 volunteer
employees and their families under the corporate
volunteer actions of Fundac&o Bank Millennium.

Project “Uma Cidade Limpa Para Mim - Recicla
e Ganha” (A Clean City For Me), a partnership
with AMOR - Associacdo Mocambicana de
Reciclagem: support to the construction of an
ecological Christmas Tree with 7,000 plastic
bottles in Mozambique

Project for the decoration and painting of
garbage cans in a partnership with ISARC -
Instituto Superior de Artes e Cultura, in
Mozambique, continuing its commitment of
fostering a responsible environmental attitude in
the community.

MUDA - Movimento pela Utilizacao Digital
Ativa, Millennium bcp is part of this project with
the objective of contributing to increase the use
of digital technology by the Portuguese people
within a joint effort that, besides the Portuguese
State also involves companies, associations and
universities.

ECOLOGICAL FOOTPRINT

As noted above, the BCP Group regularly monitors a series of environmental performance indicators which
measure the Bank's eco-efficiency with regard to its main consumption of resources®.

Globally, the Bank recorded again a year of improvement of the eco-efficiency levels due to the optimization of
the thermal power stations, installation of the photovoltaic central, the ongoing investment in the optimization of
procedures, focusing on dematerialization and on the alteration of the daily behaviour of the Employees regarding

the rational use of resources.

¢ The environmental performance of all the Bank's operations was monitored in 2017, namely in Portugal, Mozambique,
Switzerland and Poland, and the consumptions of previous years were presented within the same geographical scope
in order to ensure an effective comparability of the results, with the exception of Mozambique whose energy (direct
and indirect) and water consumption figures regarding 2016 are not available.
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The Bank's consumption of energy is mostly of indirect origin, which corresponds to electricity and thermal energy
and meets 60% of the Bank's energy needs. In 2017, the Bank continued to reduce its consumption of indirect
energy, which fellaround 7% versus 2016, due to reductions in the several countries where the bank operates. The
direct energy use recorded a decrease of approximately 5%.

Concerning the domestic activity, BCP in Portugal reduced all types of energy consumption by 4% in total, and
succeeded in attaining its annual target (-3%). Electricity from the utilities grid fell 5% vs. 2016, as mentioned
above, a reduction which enabled to avoid the emission of around 658 tons of CO2 and to save more than 300
thousand euros.

ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION TOTAL ENERGY CONSUMPTION
MWh

49 59 56

68,204 68,055 « —— ¢ =

63,131
565 575 545
200 223 )11
364 353 334
2015 2016 2017

2015 2016 2017 . Direct Energy
R Indirect Energy
—e— Electricity ption (MWh) by employee (2)
(" Does not include the cogeneration plantand data centerin Portugal, neither @ncludesthe cogeneration plant inPortugal, excludes the data centerin Portugal

energy consumption in Mozambique. and data from Mozambique.

BCP assumes the commitment to adjust itself to climate change, providing its contribution for the reduction of the
greenhouse gas emissions. The Group's carbon footprint is assessed every year. The Bank also took part in the CDP
(Carbon Disclosure Project), and kept its Leadership A- classification in 2017.

In 2017, in overall terms, there was a decrease of approximately 5% in GEE (Greenhouse gas emissions) associated
with the banking activity of the Group, caused by the ongoing implementation of a set of energy efficiency
measures, which are identified and detailed in the 2017 Sustainability Report.

In overall terms, the emissions associated with Ffuel chéizEMlSSIONS“
e

consumption (scope 1) recorded a slight decrease of 5.8% 45 2
compared to the previous year, mainly caused by a

reduction in emissions associated with the car fleet. ./.\‘
Emissions associated to electricity/heat consumption 3.4

(scope 2) reduced by 7%. Yet, emissions associated to

mobility (scope 3) decreased by around 20.6%, imputable s8.430 50,864

. S 55,683
mainly to the 27.9% reduction in air travel.
.12,516 .13,723

.12,921

44,903 45,161 41,985

Regarding the activity in Portugal, Millennium bcp
presented a 7% reduction in its GEE versus 2016, although
it did not reach the defined goal (-4% CO2 emissions).

__ 1020 979 777

Direct emissions fell 4.5% year-on-year, mainly due to the
decrease in the consumption of fuel, namely diesel. Indirect
emissions associated with the consumption of electricity
presented a Sllght reduction versus the previous year. W Indirect Emissions (Scope3) ~ —@— Total emissions by employee
Regarding the emissions associated with service travels ) Does not include Mozambique.

(scope 3) showed a very significant decrease of 28.4%, due to less plane travel and the replacement of travel by
plane by webcasting tools (video conferences).

2015 2016 2017

. Direct Emissons (Scope 1) Indirect Emissions (Scope 2)

In overall terms in 2017, the total consumption of water in Group BCP rose approximately 6%, partly due to the
consumption of water for irrigation.
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In Portugal, total water consumption was 161,779 m3, up 3%, which did not enable the Bank to surpass the annual
goal (-4% of water consumption). Of total water consumption, 89% corresponds to water from the public network
and 11% to rainwater reuse.

WATER CONSUMTION* MATERIALS CONSUMPTION*
m3 t

2,503

246,948 2 339
2 106
13.0 239,279 233,857
2,447 2,274 2,050
12.0
11.4
53 3 62 2 55 2
. . . . 2015 2016 2017
2015 2016 2017 W Paper and cardboard

mm Plastic

] i
Total water consumption B Link cartridges and toners (1)

—~— Total water consumption by employee

In overall terms, BCP continued to progressively reduce the consumption of its main materials (paper and
cardboard, plastic, ink cartridges and toners), due to the optimisation measures.

The most consumed materials in terms of weight and quantity continue to be paper and cardboard, which, in
overall terms, fell by 10% in relation to 2016, as a result of the dematerialisation initiatives implemented in all the
geographic areas. Ink and toner cartridges also showed a 27% reduction due to measures adopted to decrease
printed documents and promote scanning.

In Portugal, paper and cardboard consumption decreased 24%, once again exceeding the established annual goal
(-7%). We must point out that the A4 and A3 paper brand used by the Bank has an Eco-label certificate of the
European Union which certifies that the paper manufacturing process is environmentally sound.

Further details on the information reported in this chapter - Environmental Responsibility - in particular estimation
criteria, the table of Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) indicators and correspondence with the Global Compact
Principles, are available for viewing on the Bank's Institutional website, at www.millenniumbcp.pt, Sustainability
area.
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2017 Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated income statement for the financial years ended at 31 December 2017 and 2016

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Interest and similar income 1,914,210 1,909,997
Interest expense and similar charges (522,935) (679,871)
NET INTEREST INCOME 1,391,275 1,230,126
Dividends from equity instruments 1,754 7.714
Net fees and commissions income 666,697 643,834
Net gains / (losses) arising from trading and hedging activities 45,346 101,827
Net gains / (losses) arising from financial assets available for sale 103,030 138,540
Net gains from insurance activity 4,212 4,966
Other operating income / (loss) (110,606) (104,547)
Total operating income 2,101,708 2,022,460
Staff costs 526,577 356,602
Other administrative costs 374,022 373,570
Amortizations and depreciations 53,582 49,824
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 954,181 779,996
OPERATING NET INCOME BEFORE PROVISIONS AND IMPAIRMENTS 1,147,527 1,242,464
Loans impairment (623,708) (1,116,916)
Other financial assets impairment (63,421) (274,741)
Other assets impairment (163,205) (66,926)
Goodwill impairment of subsidiaries (4) (51,022)
Impairment for investments in associated companies (57,764) -
Other provisions (16,710) (88,387)
NET OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) 222,715 (355,528)
Share of profit of associates under the equity method 91,637 80,525
Gains / (losses) arising from sales of subsidiaries and other assets 4,139 (6,277)
Net income / (loss) before income taxes 318,491 (281,280)
Income taxes
Current (102,113) (113,425)
Deferred 71,954 495,292
INCOME AFTER INCOME TAXES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 288,332 100,587
Income arising from discontinued or discontinuing operations 1,225 45,228
NET INCOME AFTER INCOME TAXES 289,557 145,815
Net income for the year attributable to:
Bank's Shareholders 186,391 23,938
Non-controlling interests 103,166 121,877
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR 289,557 145,815
Earnings per share (in Euros)
Basic 0.014 0.019
Diluted 0.014 0.019

155



Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017 and 2016

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
ASSETS
Cash and deposits at Central Banks 2,167,934 1,573,912
Loans and advances to credit institutions
Repayable on demand 295,532 448,225
Other loans and advances 1,065,568 1,056,701
Loans and advances to customers 47,633,492 48,017,602
Financial assets held for trading 897,734 1,048,797
Other financial assets held for trading
at fair value through profit or loss 142,336 146,664
Financial assets available for sale 11,471,847 10,596,273
Assets with repurchase agreement - 20,525
Hedging derivatives 234,345 57,038
Financial assets held to maturity 411,799 511,181
Investments in associated companies 571,362 598,866
Non-current assets held for sale 2,164,567 2,250,159
Investment property 12,400 12,692
Other tangible assets 490,423 473,866
Goodwill and intangible assets 164,406 162,106
Current tax assets 25,914 17,465
Deferred tax assets 3,137,767 3,184,925
Other assets 1,052,024 1,087,814
TOTAL ASSETS 71,939,450 71,264,811
LIABILITIES
Resources from credit institutions 7,487,357 9,938,395
Resources from customers 51,187,817 48,797,647
Debt securities issued 3,007,791 3,512,820
Financial liabilities held for trading 399,101 547,587
Hedging derivatives 177,337 383,992
Provisions 324,158 321,050
Subordinated debt 1,169,062 1,544,555
Current tax liabilities 12,568 35,367
Deferred tax liabilities 6,030 2,689
Other liabilities 988,493 915,528
TOTAL LIABILITIES 64,759,714 65,999,630
EQUITY
Share capital 5,600,738 4,268,818
Share premium 16,471 16,471
Preference shares 59,910 59,910
Other equity instruments 2,922 2,922
Legal and statutory reserves 252,806 245,875
Treasury shares (293) (2,880)
Fair value reserves 82,090 (130,632)
Reserves and retained earnings (120,220) (102,306)
Net income for the year attributable to Shareholders 186,391 23,938
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO BANK'S SHAREHOLDERS 6,080,815 4,382,116
Non-controlling interests 1,098,921 883,065
TOTAL EQUITY 7,179,736 5,265,181
71,939,450 71,264,811
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Application of Results

Considering:

A. The provisos of the law and of the by-laws concerning the legal reserve;

B. That in the financial year of 2017, Banco Comercial Portugués, S.A registered consolidated net earnings
amounting to 186,390,783.40 Euros and individual net earnings amounting to 118,021,411.94 Euros,

It is proposed

In accordance with article 66 (5) (f) and for purposes of article 376 (1) (b), both of the Companies Code, the
appropriation of the individual net earnings on the individual balance sheet, amounting to 118,021,411.94 Euros,
as follows:

e 11,802,141.20 Euros for reinforcement of the Legal Reserve;

e 106,219,270.74 Euros for Retained Earnings.
Lisbon, April 2342018

The Board of Directors

Anténio Vitor Martins Monteiro

(Chairman)
Carlos José da Silva Nuno Manuel da Silva Amado
(Vice-Chairman) (Vice-Chairman)
Alvaro Roque de Pinho Bissaia Barreto André Magalhées Luiz Gomes
(Member) (Member)

Anténio Henriques de Pinho Cardéo

(Member)

Cidalia Maria Mota Lopes
(Member)

Jodo Manuel de Matos Loureiro
(Member)
José Jacinto Iglésias Soares

(Member)

Lingjiang Xu
(Member)
Miguel de Campos Pereira de Braganca

(Member)

Raquel Rute da Costa David Vunge
(Member)

Antodnio Luis Guerra Nunes Mexia

(Member)

Jaime de Macedo Santos Bastos

(Member)

Jodo Nuno de Oliveira Jorge Palma
(Member)
José Miguel Bensliman Schorcht da Silva Pessanha

(Member)

Maria da Conceicdo Mota Soares de Oliveira Callé Lucas
(Member)
Miguel Maya Dias Pinheiro
(Member)

Rui Manuel da Silva Teixeira

(Member)
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Glossary of the Performance Alternative Measures

Balance sheet total customer funds - debt securities and customer deposits.

Capitalisation products — includes unit linked saving products and retirement saving plans (“PPR”, “PPE” and
“PPR/E”).

Commercial gap —total loans to customers net of BS impairments accumulated for risk of credit minus on-balance
sheet total customer funds.

Core income - net interest income plus net fees and commission income.

Core net income - corresponding to net interest income plus net fees and commission income deducted from
operating costs.

Cost of risk, gross (expressed in bp) - ratio of impairment charges accounted in the period to loans to customers
(gross).

Cost of risk, net (expressed in bp) - ratio of impairment charges (net of recoveries) accounted in the period to loans
to customers (gross).

Cost to core income - operating costs divided by core income (net interest income and net fees and commission
income).

Cost to income — operating costs divided by net operating revenues.

Coverage of non-performing loans by balance sheet impairments — total BS impairments accumulated for risks of
credit divided by NPL.

Debt securities - debt securities issued by the Bank and placed with customers.

Dividends from equity instruments - dividends received from investments in financial assets held for trading and
available for sale.

Equity accounted earnings - results appropriated by the Group related to the consolidation of entities where,
despite having a significant influence, the Group does not control the financial and operational policies.

Loan to Deposits ratio (LTD) — Total loans to customers net of accumulated BS impairments for risks of credit
divided by total customer deposits.

Loan to value ratio (LTV) — Mortgage amount divided by the appraised value of property.
Net commissions - net fees and commission income.
Net interest margin (NIM) - net interest income for the period as a percentage of average interest earning assets.

Net operating revenues - net interest income, dividends from equity instruments, net commissions, net trading
income, equity accounted earnings and other net operating income.

Net trading income - net gains/losses arising from trading and hedging activities, net gains/losses arising from
available for sale financial assets, net gains/losses arising from financial assets held to maturity.

Non-performing exposures (NPE, according to EBA definition) — Non-performing loans and advances to customers
more than 90 days past-due or unlikely to be paid without collateral realisation, even if they recognised as
defaulted or impaired.

Non-performing loans (NPL) — Overdue loans more than 90 days including the non-overdue remaining principal of
loans, i.e. portion in arrears, plus non-overdue remaining principal.
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Non-performing loans ratio — Loans more than 90 days overdue and doubtful loans reclassified as overdue for
provisioning purposes divided by total loans (gross).

Operating costs - staff costs, other administrative costs and depreciation.

Other impairment and provisions - other financial assets impairment, other assets impairment, in particular
provision charges related to assets received as payment in kind not fully covered by collateral, goodwill impairment
and other provisions.

Other net income — net commissions, net trading income, other net operating income, dividends from equity
instruments and equity accounted earnings.

Other net operating income — net gains from insurance activity, other operating income/(loss) and gains/(losses)
arising from sales of subsidiaries and other assets.

Overdue loans - loans in arrears, not including the non-overdue remaining principal.

Overdue loans by more than 90 days coverage ratio - total BS impairments accumulated for risk of credit divided
by total amount of loans overdue with installments of capital and interest overdue more than 90 days.

Overdue loans coverage ratio — total BS impairments accumulated for risks of credit divided by total amount of
overdue loans.

Return on average assets (Instruction from the Bank of Portugal no. 16/2004) — Net income (before tax) divided by
the average total assets.

Return on average assets (ROA) — Net income (before minority interests) divided by the average total assets.

Return on equity (Instruction from the Bank of Portugal no. 16/2004) — Net income (before tax) divided by the
average attributable equity + non-controlling interests.

Return on equity (ROE) — Net income (after minority interests) divided by the average attributable equity, deducted
from preference shares and other capital instruments.

Securities portfolio - financial assets held for trading, financial assets available for sale, assets with repurchase
agreement, financial assets held to maturity and other financial assets held for trading at fair value through net
income.

Spread - increase (in percentage points) to the index used by the Bank in loans granting or fund raising.

Total customer funds - balance sheet customer funds, capitalisation products, assets under management and
investment funds.

Porto Salvo, 23 April 2018

The Board of Directors
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016

(Thousands of euros)

Notes 2017 2016
Interest and similar income 3 1,914,210 1,909,997
Interest expense and similar charges 3 (522,935) (679,871)
NET INTEREST INCOME 1,391,275 1,230,126
Dividends from equity instruments 4 1,754 7,714
Net fees and commissions income 5 666,697 643,834
Net gains / (losses) arising from trading and hedging activities 6 45,346 101,827
Net gains / (losses) arising from financial assets available for sale 7 103,030 138,540
Net gains from insurance activity 4,212 4,966
Other operating income / (loss) 8 (110,606) (104,547)
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 2,101,708 2,022,460
Staff costs 9 526,577 356,602
Other administrative costs 10 374,022 373,570
Amortizations and depreciations 11 53,582 49,824
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 954,181 779,996
OPERATING NET INCOME BEFORE PROVISIONS AND IMPAIRMENTS 1,147,527 1,242,464
Loans impairment 12 (623,708) (1,116,916)
Other financial assets impairment 13 (63,421) (274,741)
Other assets impairment 27 and 32 (163,205) (66,926)
Goodwill impairment of subsidiaries 30 (4) (51,022)
Impairment for investments in associated companies 26 (57,764) -
Other provisions 14 (16,710) (88,387)
NET OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) 222,715 (355,528)
Share of profit of associates under the equity method 15 91,637 80,525
Gains / (losses) arising from sales of subsidiaries and other assets 16 4,139 (6,277)
NET INCOME / (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES 318,491 (281,280)
Income taxes
Current 31 (102,113) (113,425)
Deferred 31 71,954 495,292
INCOME AFTER INCOME TAXES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 288,332 100,587
Income arising from discontinued or discontinuing operations 17 1,225 45,228
NET INCOME AFTER INCOME TAXES 289,557 145,815
Net income for the year attributable to:
Bank's Shareholders 186,391 23,938
Non-controlling interests 44 103,166 121,877
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR 289,557 145,815
Earnings per share (in Euros)
Basic 18 0.014 0.019
Diluted 18 0.014 0.019
CHIEF ACCOUNTANT THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016

(Thousands of euros)

2017
Discontinued or discontinuing
Continuing operations operations Attributable to
Non-
Gross Net Gross Net Bank's controlling
value Taxes value value Taxes value Total  Shareholders interests
NET INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 318,491 (30,159) 288,332 1,225 - 1,225 289,557 186,391 103,166
ITEMS THAT MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO THE
INCOME STATEMENT
Fair value reserves 298,533 (67,182) 231,351 - - - 231,351 212,722 18,629
Exchange differences arising on consolidation 54,808 N 54,808 N N N 54,808 200 54,608
IAS 29 application
Effect on equity of Banco Millemmiun Atlantico, S.A (note 43) 28.428 _ 28.428 _ _ B 28.428 28.428 _
Others (3,965) - (3,965) - - - (3,965) (3,965) -
377,804 (67,182) 310,622 - - - 310,622 237,385 73,237
ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO
THE INCOME STATEMENT
Actuarial losses for the year
BCP Group Pensions Fund 28,994 (44,726) (15,732) - - - (15,732) (15,732) -
Pension Fund - other associated companies 4135 (2,239) 1.896 N N B 1.896 571 1325
33,129 (46,965) (13,836) - - - (13,836) (15,161) 1,325
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 410,933 (114,147) 296,786 - - - 296,786 222,224 74,562
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 729,424 (144,306) 585,118 1,225 - 1,225 586,343 408,615 177,728
(Thousands of euros)
2016
Discontinued or discontinuing
Continuing operations operations Attributable to
Non-
Gross Net Gross Net Bank's controlling
value Taxes value value Taxes value Total  Shareholders interests
NET INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (281,280) 381,867 100,587 50356 (5128) 45228 145815 23,938 121,877
ITEMS THAT MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO THE
INCOME STATEMENT
Fair value reserves (238,137) 59,653 (178,484) 586 (176) 410 (178,074) (152,163) (25,911)
Effect in fair value reserves
of Banco Millennium Angola, S.A. (*) N N B (4,902) 1,471 (3,431) (3,431) (1,719) (1,712)
Exchange differences arising on consolidation (152,683) - (152,683)  (76219) - (76219)  (228,902)  (120816) (108,086)
Effect in reserves of the exchange differences
arising on consolidation of
Banco Millennium Angola, S.A. () - - - 156,794 - 156794 156,794 78,554 78,240
(390,820) 59,653 (331,167) 76,259 1,295 77,554 (253,613) (196,144) (57,469)
ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO
THE INCOME STATEMENT
Actuarial losses for the year
BCP Group Pensions Fund (302,644) 69,290  (233,354) - - - (233,354) (233,354) -
Pension Fund - other associated companies (1,061) (61) (1,122) N N N (1,122) (781) (341)
(303,705) 69,229 (234,476) - - - (234,476) (234,135) (341)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (694,525) 128882 (565,643) 76,259 1,295 77,554 (488,089) (430,279) (57,810)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (975,805) 510,749 (465,056) 126,615 (3,833) 122,782 (342,274) (406,341) 64,067
(*) Under the scope of the merger of Banco Millennium Angola, S.A. with Banco Privado Atlantico, S.A.
CHIEF ACCOUNTANT THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016

(Thousands of euros)

Notes 2017 2016
ASSETS
Cash and deposits at Central Banks 19 2,167,934 1,573,912
Loans and advances to credit institutions
Repayable on demand 20 295,532 448,225
Other loans and advances 21 1,065,568 1,056,701
Loans and advances to customers 22 47,633,492 48,017,602
Financial assets held for trading 23 897,734 1,048,797
Other financial assets held for trading
at fair value through profit or loss 23 142,336 146,664
Financial assets available for sale 23 11,471,847 10,596,273
Assets with repurchase agreement - 20,525
Hedging derivatives 24 234,345 57,038
Financial assets held to maturity 25 411,799 511,181
Investments in associated companies 26 571,362 598,866
Non-current assets held for sale 27 2,164,567 2,250,159
Investment property 28 12,400 12,692
Other tangible assets 29 490,423 473,866
Goodwill and intangible assets 30 164,406 162,106
Current tax assets 25,914 17,465
Deferred tax assets 31 3,137,767 3,184,925
Other assets 32 1,052,024 1,087,814
TOTAL ASSETS 71,939,450 71,264,811
LIABILITIES
Resources from credit institutions 33 7,487,357 9,938,395
Resources from customers 34 51,187,817 48,797,647
Debt securities issued 35 3,007,791 3,512,820
Financial liabilities held for trading 36 399,101 547,587
Hedging derivatives 24 177,337 383,992
Provisions 37 324,158 321,050
Subordinated debt 38 1,169,062 1,544,555
Current tax liabilities 12,568 35,367
Deferred tax liabilities 31 6,030 2,689
Other liabilities 39 988,493 915,528
TOTAL LIABILITIES 64,759,714 65,999,630
EQUITY
Share capital 40 5,600,738 4,268,818
Share premium 40 16,471 16,471
Preference shares 40 59,910 59,910
Other equity instruments 40 2,922 2,922
Legal and statutory reserves 41 252,806 245,875
Treasury shares 42 (293) (2,880)
Fair value reserves 43 82,090 (130,632)
Reserves and retained earnings 43 (120,220) (102,306)
Net income for the year attributable to Bank's Shareholders 186,391 23,938
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO BANK'S SHAREHOLDERS 6,080,815 4,382,116
Non-controlling interests 44 1,098,921 883,065
TOTAL EQUITY 7,179,736 5,265,181
71,939,450 71,264,811
CHIEF ACCOUNTANT THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interests received 1,699,189 1,770,704
Commissions received 836,581 787,068
Fees received from services rendered 60,514 63,003
Interests paid (522,214) (667,682)
Commissions paid (128,186) (89,798)
Recoveries on loans previously written off 16,966 33,867
Net earned insurance premiums 19,847 13,744
Claims incurred of insurance activity (10,891) (9,214)
Payments to suppliers and employees (1,086,602) (929,400)
Income taxes (paid) / received (118,676) (57,941)
766,528 914,351
Decrease / (increase) in operating assets:
Receivables from / (Loans and advances to) credit institutions 28,747 (106,683)
Deposits held with purpose of monetary control (37,653) 59,473
Loans and advances to customers receivable (244,376) 1,788,925
Short term trading account securities 36,195 52,033
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Deposits from credit institutions repayable on demand (51,702) (28,040)
Deposits from credit institutions with agreed maturity date (2,380,305) 1,423,509
Deposits from clients repayable on demand 3,430,158 2,357,657
Deposits from clients with agreed maturity date (970,378) (3,369,608)
577,214 3,091,617
CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of shares in subsidiaries and associated companies which results loss control (*) - (496,194)
Acquisition of shares in subsidiaries and associated companies (787) -
Dividends received 102,759 47,085
Interest income from available for sale financial assets and held to maturity financial assets 253,783 212,042
Sale of available for sale financial assets and held to maturity financial assets 8,046,852 5,617,817
Acquisition of available for sale financial assets and held to maturity financial assets (42,160,122) (29,050,145)
Maturity of available for sale financial assets and held to maturity financial assets 33,937,652 22,239,293
Acquisition of tangible and intangible assets (88,393) (69,281)
Sale of tangible and intangible assets 8,014 15,581
Decrease / (increase) in other sundry assets (304,789) (518,526)
(205,031) (2,002,328)
CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of subordinated debt 472,742 6,705
Reimbursement of subordinated debt (852,386) (121,210)
Issuance of debt securities 1,312,759 188,936
Reimbursement of debt securities (1,994,444) (1,513,220)
Issuance of commercial paper and other securities 188,076 57,588
Reimbursement of commercial paper and other securities (9,674) (19,202)
Share capital increase 1,295,148 174,582
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (7,787) (20,907)
Increase / (decrease) in other sundry liabilities and non-controlling interests (384,203) (365,046)
20,231 (1,611,774)
Exchange differences effect on cash and equivalents 48,915 (72,108)
Net changes in cash and equivalents 441,329 (594,593)
Cash (note 19) 540,290 625,311
Deposits at Central Banks (note 19) 1,033,622 1,215,006
Loans and advances to credit institutions repayable on demand (note 20) 448,225 776,413
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,022,137 2,616,730
Cash (note 19) 540,608 540,290
Deposits at Central Banks (note 19) 1,627,326 1,033,622
Loans and advances to credit institutions repayable on demand (note 20) 295,532 448,225
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 2,463,466 2,022,137

(*) As in 2016 the Banco Millennium Angola, S.A. started to be considered as discontinuing operation, the related values net of intercompany operations, were
incorporated in cash flows arising from investing activities.

CHIEF ACCOUNTANT THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016

(Thousands of euros)

Net income
Reserves  for the year Equity Non-
Other Legal and and attributable  attributable -controlling
Share Share Preference  equity statutory  Treasury Fairvalue retained to Bank's to Bank's interests Total
capital premium shares  instruments reserves shares reserves  earnings Shareholders Shareholders  (note 44) equity
BALANCE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 4,094,235 16,471 59,910 2,922 223,270 (1,187) 23,250 (31,046) 235,344 4,623,169 1,057,402 5,680,571
Net income for the year - - - - - - - - 23,938 23,938 121,877 145,815
Fair value reserves (note 43) - - - - - - (152,163) - - (152,163) (25,911)  (178,074)
Actuarial losses - - - - - - - (234,135) - (234,135) (341) (234,476)
Effect in fair value reserves
related to the merger (a) - - - - - - (1,719) - - (1,719) (1,712) (3,431)
Effect in reserves of the exchange
differences arising on consolidation
related to the merger (a) - - - - - - - 78,554 - 78,554 78,240 156,794
Exchange differences
arising on consolidation - - - - - - - (120,816) - (120,816) (108,086) (228,902)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - - - - - (153,882)  (276,397) 23,938 (406,341) 64,067 (342,274)
Results apllications:

Legal reserve - - - - 22,605 - - - (22,605) - - -
Transfers for Reserves and retained earnings - - - - - - - 212,739 (212,739) - - -
Share capital increase (note 40) 174,583 - - - - - - - - 174,583 - 174,583
Regrouping of shares - - - - - - - (1,047) - (1,047) - (1,047)
Costs related to the share capital increase - - - - - - - (6,437) - (6,437) - (6,437)

Tax related to costs arising from the

share capital increase - - - - - - - 1,352 - 1,352 - 1,352
Merger of Banco Millennium Angola, S.A.
with Banco Privado Atlantico, S.A. - - - - - - - - - - (210,395) (210,395)
Dividends (b) - - - - - - - - - - (20,907) (20,907)
Treasury shares (note 42) - - - - - (1,693) - 1 - (1,692) - (1,692)
Other reserves (note 43) - - - - - - - (1,471) - (1,471) (7,102) (8,573)
BALANCE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 4,268,818 16,471 59,910 2,922 245,875 (2,880) (130,632) (102,306) 23,938 4,382,116 883,065 5,265,181
Net income for the year - - - - - - - - 186,391 186,391 103,166 289,557
Fair value reserves (note 43) - - - - - - 212,722 - - 212,722 18,629 231,351
Actuarial losses - - - - - - - (15,161) - (15,161) 1,325 (13,836)
Exchange differences

arising on consolidation - - - - - - - 200 - 200 54,608 54,808
Application of IAS 29 - effect as at

1 january 2017 (notes 26 and 59):

Effect on equity of Banco Millenniun Atlantico, S.A (c) - - - - - - - 44,248 - 44,248 - 44,248

Impairment for investments in associated - - - - - - - (44,248) - (44,248) - (44,248)
Application of IAS 29 excluding the effect on
net income for the year (notes 26 and 59):

Effect on equity of Banco Millenniun Atlantico, S.A (c) - - - - - - - 28,428 - 28,428 - 28,428

Others - - - - - - - (3,965) - (3,965) - (3,965)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - - - - - 212,722 9,502 186,391 408,615 177,728 586,343
Results apllications:

Legal reserve (note 41) - - - - 6,931 - - - (6,931) - - -
Transfers for Reserves and retained earnings - - - - - - - 17,007 (17,007) - - -
Share capital increase (note 40) 1,331,920 - - - - - - - - 1,331,920 - 1,331,920
Costs related to the share capital increase - - - - - - - (36,772) - (36,772) - (36,772)

Tax related to costs arising from the

share capital increase (d) - - - - - - - (8,264) - (8,264) - (8,264)
Dividends (a) - - - - - - - - - - (7,787) (7,787)
Treasury shares (note 42) - - - - - 2,587 - 1,083 - 3,670 - 3,670
Other reserves (note 43) - - - - - - - (470) - (470) 45,915 45,445
BALANCE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 5,600,738 16,471 59,910 2,922 252,806 (293) 82,090 (120,220) 186,391 6,080,815 1,098,921 7,179,736
(a) Under the scope of the merger of Banco Millennium Angola, S.A. with Banco Privado Atlantico, S.A.

(b) Dividends of Banco Millennium Angola S.A., BIM - Banco Internacional de Mocambique, S.A. and SIM - Seguradora Internacional de Mocambique, S.AR.L.

(c) Bank Millennium Atlantico, S.A.

(d) Includes the derecognition of deferred taxes related to tax losses from previous years associated to costs arising from the share capital increase

CHIEF ACCOUNTANT THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Banco Comercial Portugués, S.A. Sociedade Aberta (the ‘Bank’) is a private capital bank, established in Portugal in 1985. It started
operating on 5 May 1986, and these consolidated financial statements reflect the results of the operations of the Bank and all its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the ‘Group’) and the Group’s interest in associates, for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

In accordance with Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 from the European Parliament and the Council, of 19 July 2002 and Bank of Portugal
Notice no. 1/2005 (revoked by Bank of Portugal Notice no. 5/2015), the Group’s consolidated financial statements are required to be
prepared, since 2005, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) as endorsed by the European Union ('EU').
IFRS comprise accounting standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’) as well as interpretations issued
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’) and their predecessor bodies. The consolidated financial
statements presented were approved on 23 April 2018 by the Bank's Board of Directors. The financial statements are presented in
thousands of euros, rounded to the nearest thousand.

All the references in this document related to any normative always report to current version.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 were prepared in terms of recognition and measurement
in accordance with the IFRS adopted by the EU and effective on that date.

The Group has adopted IFRS and interpretations mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, as referred in
note 54. The accounting policies in this note were applied consistently to all entities of the Group and are consistent with those used in
the preparation of the financial statements of the previous period.

The Group's financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the application of fair value for
derivative financial instruments, financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets available for sale,
except those for which a reliable measure of fair value is not available. Financial assets and liabilities that are covered under hedge
accounting are stated at fair value in respect of the risk that is being hedged, if applicable. Other financial assets and liabilities and
non-financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortised cost or historical cost. Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. The liability for defined benefit obligations is recognised as the
present value of the past liabilities with pensions net of the value of the fund's assets.

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Board of Directors, on the advice of the Executive
Committee to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances and form the basis for making the judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The issues involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity or for which assumptions and estimates are considered to be
significant are presented in note 1 ad).

B. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

As from 1 January 2010, the Group applied IFRS 3 (revised) for the accounting of business combinations. The changes in the accounting
policies resulting from the application of IFRS 3 (revised) are applied prospectively.

The consolidated financial statements now presented reflect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Bank and its
subsidiaries (the Group), and the results attributable to the Group financial investments in associates.

i) Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group (including structure entities and investment funds). The Group controls an entity when
it holds the power to direct the relevant activities of the entity, and when it is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and is able to take possession of those results through the power it holds over the relevant activities of
that entity (de facto control). The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Accumulated losses are attributed to non-controlling interests in the respective proportion, implying that the Group can recognise
negative non-controlling interests.
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On a step acquisition process resulting in the acquisition of control, the revaluation of any participation previously acquired, is booked
against the profit and loss account when goodwill is calculated. On a partial disposal resulting in loss of control over a subsidiary, any
participation retained is revaluated at market value on the sale date and the gain or loss resulting from this revaluation is booked
against the income statement.

ii) Investments in associates

Investments in associated companies are consolidated by the equity method from the date that the Group acquires significant
influence until the date it ceases to exist. Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence but not control over
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee. It is assumed that the Group has significant influence when it holds, directly
or indirectly, more than 20% or of the voting rights of the investee. If the Group holds, directly or indirectly less than 20% of the voting
rights of the investee, it is presumed that the Group does not have significant influence, unless such influence can be clearly
demonstrated.

The existence of significant influence by the Group is usually evidenced in one or more of the following ways:

- representation on the Board of Directors or equivalent governing body of the investee;

- participation in policy-making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends or other distributions;
- material transactions between the Group and the investee;

- interchange of the management team;

- provision of essential technical information.

The consolidated financial statements include the part that is attributable to the Group of the total reserves and results of associated
companies accounted on an equity basis. When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate, the carrying amount is
reduced to zero and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred in a legal obligation
to assume those losses on behalf of an associate.

iii) Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted under the purchase method. The acquisition cost corresponds to the fair value, determined at
the acquisition date, of the assets given and liabilities incurred or assumed. Costs directly attributable to the acquisition of a subsidiary
are booked directly in the income statement.

Positive goodwill arising from acquisitions is recognised as an asset carried at acquisition cost and is not subject to amortisation.
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates is defined as the difference between the cost of acquisition and the
total or corresponding share of the fair value of the net assets and contingent liabilities acquired, depending on the option taken.

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised directly in the income statement in the year the business combination occurs.

Goodwill is not adjusted due to changes in the initial estimate of the contingent purchase price and the difference is booked in the
income statement, or in equity, when applicable.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill registered in the Group's asset is assessed annually in the preparation of the accounts with
reference at the end of the year or whenever there are indications of eventual loss of value. Impairment losses are recognised in the
income statement. The recoverable amount is determined based on the higher between the assets value in use and the market value
deducted of selling costs, calculated using valuation methodologies supported by discounted cash flow techniques, considering market
conditions, the time value of money and the business risks.

iv) Purchases and dilution of non-controlling interests

The acquisition of the non-controlling interests that does not impact the control position of a subsidiary is accounted as a transaction
with shareholders and, therefore, is not recognised additional goodwill resulting from this transaction. The difference between the
acquisition cost and the fair value of non-controlling interests acquired is recognised directly in reserves. On this basis, the gains and
losses resulting from the sale of controlling interests, that does not impact the control position of a subsidiary, are always recognised
against reserves.

v) Loss of control

The gains and losses resulting from the dilution or sale of a financial position in a subsidiary, with loss of control, are recognised by the
Group in the income statement.

168



vi) Investments in foreign subsidiaries and associates

The financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries and associates of the Group are prepared in their functional currency, defined as
the currency of the primary economic environment in which they operate or the currency in which the subsidiaries obtain their income
or finance their activity. In the consolidation process, assets and liabilities, including goodwill, of foreign subsidiaries are converted into
euros at the official exchange rate at the balance sheet date. The exchange rates used by the Group are presented in note 52.

Regarding the investments in foreign operations that are consolidated under the full consolidation or equity methods, for exchange
differences between the conversion to Euros of the opening equity at the beginning of the year and their value in Euros at the
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date for consolidated accounts are charged against consolidated reserves - exchange
differences. The changes in fair value resulting from instruments that are designated and qualified as hedging instruments related to
foreign operations are registered in equity in "Reserves and retained earnings". Whenever the hedge is not fully effective, the
ineffective portion is accounted against profit and loss of the year.

The income and expenses of these subsidiaries are converted to Euros at an approximate rate of the rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions, and it is used a monthly average taking into account the initial and final exchange rate of each month. Exchange
differences from the conversion to Euros of the profits and losses for the reporting period, arising from the difference between the
exchange rate used in the income statement and the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date, are recognised in "Reserves
and retained earnings - exchange differences resulting from the consolidation of Group's companies".

On disposal of investments in foreign subsidiaries for which there is loss of control, exchange differences related to the investment in
the foreign operation and to the associated hedge transaction previously recognised in reserves, are transferred to profit and loss as
part of the gains or loss arising from the disposal.

The Group applies IAS 29 - Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies in financial statements of entities that present accounts
in functional currency of an economy that has hyperinflation.

In applying this policy, non-monetary assets and liabilities are adjusted based on the price index from the date of acquisition or the
date of the last revaluation to the balance sheet date. The restated values of assets are reduced by the amount that exceeds their
recoverable amount, in accordance with the applicable IFRS.

Equity components are also updated taking into account the price index from the beginning of the period or date of the contribution, if
it is earlier.

When the classification as a hyperinflationary economy is applied to associated companies, its effects are included in the Group's
financial statements by applying the equity method of accounting on the financial statements restated in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 29. The effects of the application of IAS 29 with impact on capital items are recorded against the item "Reserves
and retained earnings".

vii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

The balances and transactions between Group's companies, or any unrealised gains and losses arising from these transactions, are
eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains and losses arising from transactions with
associates and jointly controlled entities are eliminated in the proportion of the Group's investment in those entities.

C.LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Loans and advances to customers includes loans and advances originated by the Group which are not intended to be sold in the short
term and are recognised when cash is advanced to customers.

The derecognition of these assets occurs in the following situations: (i) the contractual rights of the Group have expired; or (ii) the
Group transferred substantially all the associated risks and rewards.

Loans and advances to customers are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and fees and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, being presented in the balance sheet net of impairment
losses.

i) Impairment

The Group’s policy consists in a regular assessment of the existence of objective evidence of impairment in the loan portfolios.
Impairment losses identified are charged against results and subsequently, if there is a reduction of the estimated impairment loss, the
charge is reversed against results, in a subsequent period.

After the initial recognition, a loan or a loan portfolio, defined as a group of loans with similar credit risk characteristics, can be

classified as impaired when there is an objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events and when these have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the loan or of the loan portfolio that can be reliably estimated.
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According to IAS 39, there are two methods of calculating impairment losses: (i) individually assessed loans; and (ii) collective
assessment.

1) Individually assessed loans

Impairment losses on individually assessed loans are determined by an evaluation of the exposures on a case-by-case basis. For each
loan considered individually significant, the Group assesses, at each balance sheet date, the existence of any objective evidence of
impairment. In determining such impairment losses on individually assessed loans, the following factors are considered:

- group’s aggregate exposure to the customer and the existence of overdue loans;

- the viability of the customer’s business and capability to generate sufficient cash flow to service their debt obligations in the future;

- the existence, nature and estimated value of the collaterals associated to which loan;

- a significant downgrading in the customer's rating;

- the assets available on liquidation or insolvency situations;

- the ranking of all creditors claims;

- the amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries.

Impairment losses are calculated by comparing the present value of the expected future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the loan, with its current carrying value, being the amount of any loss charged in the income statement. The carrying
amount of impaired loans is presented in the balance sheet net of impairment loss. For loans with a variable interest rate, the discount
rate used corresponds to the effective annual interest rate, which was applicable in the period that the impairment was determined.

Loans that are not identified as having an objective evidence of impairment are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics, and assessed collectively.

2) Collective assessment

Impairment losses are calculated on a collective basis under two different scenarios:

- for homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered individually significant; or

- losses which have been incurred but have not yet been reported (IBNR) on loans for which no objective evidence of impairment is
identified (see last paragraph (i)).

The collective impairment loss is determined considering the following factors:

- historical loss experience in portfolios with similar risk characteristics;

- knowledge of the current economic and credit conditions and its impact on the historical losses level;

- the estimated period between a loss occurring and its identification.

The methodology and assumptions used to estimate the future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group.

Loans, for which no evidence of impairment has been identified, are grouped together based on similar credit risk characteristics for
calculating a collective impairment loss. This analysis allows the Group's recognition of losses whose identification in individual terms
only occurs in future periods.

Loans and advances to customers are written-off when there is no realistic expectation, from an economic perspective, and for

collateralised loans when the funds from the realization of the collateral have already been received, by the use of impairment losses
when they correspond to 100% of the credits value considered as non-recoverable.

D. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i) Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial assets are recognized on the trade date, thus, in the date that the Group commits to purchase the asset and are classified
considering the intent behind them, according to the categories described below:

1) Financial assets and liabilities at Fair value through profit and loss

a) Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

The financial assets and liabilities acquired or issued with the purpose of sale or re-acquisition on the short term, namely bonds,
treasury bills or shares, those which are part of a financial instruments portfolio and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of
short-term profit taking or that can be included in the definition of derivative (except in the case of a derivative classified as hedging)
are classified as trading. The dividends associated to these portfolios are accounted in "Net gains / (losses) arising on trading and
hedging activities".

The interest from debt instruments is recognised as net interest income.
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Trading derivatives with a positive fair value are included in Financial assets held for trading and the trading derivatives with negative
fair value are included in "Financial liabilities held for trading".

b) Other financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (“Fair Value Option”)

The Group has adopted the Fair Value Option for certain own bond issues, loans and time deposits that contain embedded derivatives
or with related hedging derivatives. The variations of the Group's credit risk related to financial liabilities accounted under the Fair
Value Option are disclosed in the note Net gains / (losses) arising from trading and hedging activities (note 6).

The designation of other financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and losses (Fair Value Option) may be performed
whenever at least one of the following requirements is fulfilled:

- the financial assets and liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally at its fair value;

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the accounting mismatch of the transactions;

- the financial assets and liabilities include derivatives that significantly change the cash-flows of the original contracts (host
contracts).

Considering that the transactions carried out by the Group in the normal course of its business are in market conditions, the assets and
liabilities financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised initially at their fair value, with the costs or income
associated with the transactions recognised in results at the initial moment, with subsequent changes in fair value recognized in profit
or loss. Patrimonial variations in the fair value are recorded in "Net gains / (losses) arising from trading and hedging activities" (note 6).
The accrual of interest and the premium / discount (when applicable) is recognised in "Net interest income" based on the effective
interest rate of each transaction, as well as the accrual of interest from derivatives associated with financial instruments classified in
this category.

2) Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets available for sale held with the purpose of being maintained by the Group, namely bonds, treasury bills or shares, are
classified as available for sale, except if they are classified in another category of financial assets. The financial assets available for sale
are initially accounted at fair value, including all expenses or income associated with the transactions. The financial assets available for
sale are subsequently measured at fair value. The changes in fair value are accounted for against "Fair value reserves". On disposal of
the financial assets available for sale or if impairment loss exists, the accumulated gains or losses recognised as fair value reserves are
recognised under "Net gains / (losses) arising from available for sale financial assets" or "Impairment for other financial assets", in the
income statement, respectively. Interest income from debt instruments is recognised in Net interest income based on the effective
interest rate, including a premium or discount when applicable. Dividends are recognised in profit and losses when the right to receive
the dividends is attributed.

3) Financial assets held-to-maturity

The financial assets held-to-maturity include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity,
for which the Group has the intention and ability to maintain until the maturity of the assets and that were not included in other
categories of financial assets. These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
The interest is calculated using the effective interest rate method and recognised in Net interest income. The impairment losses are
recognised in profit and loss when identified.

Any reclassification or disposal of financial assets included in this category that does not occur close to the maturity of the assets, or if
it is not framed in the exceptions stated by the rules, will require the Group to reclassify the entire portfolio as Financial assets available
for sale and the Group will not be allowed to classify any assets under this category for the following two years.

4) Loans and receivables - Loans represented by securities

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determined payments, that are not quoted in a market and which the Group does not
intend to sell immediately or in a near future, may be classified in this category.

In addition to loans granted, the Group recognises in this category unquoted bonds and commercial paper. The financial assets
recognised in this category are initially accounted at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost net of impairment. The transaction
costs are included in the effective interest rate for these financial instruments. The interest accounted based on the effective interest
rate method are recognised in Net interest income.

The impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss when identified.

5) Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are all financial liabilities that are not recognised as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss.

This category includes money market transactions, deposits from customers and from other financial institutions, issued debt, and
other transactions.
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These financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost. The related transaction costs are
included in the effective interest rate. The interest calculated at the effective interest rate is recognised in "Net interest income".

The financial gains or losses calculated at the time of repurchase of other financial liabilities are recognised as "Net gains / (losses)
from trading and hedging activities", when occurred.

6) Securitizations operations
a) Traditional securitizations

As referred in note 22, the Bank has four residential mortgage credit securitizations operations (Magellan Mortgages No.1, No.2,No.3 e
No.4) which portfolios were accounted derecognized of the individual balance of the Bank, as the residual notes of the referred
operations were sold to institutional investors and consequently, the risks and the benefits were substantially transferred.

With the purchase of a part of the residual note, the Group maintained the control of the assets and the liabilities of Magellan
Mortgages No.2 e No.3, these Special Purpose Entities (SPE or SPV) are consolidated in the Group Financial Statements, in accordance
with accounting policy referred in note 1 b).

The four operations are traditional securitizations, where each mortgage loan portfolio was sold to a Portuguese Loan Titularization
Fund, which has financed this purchase through the sale of titularization units to an SPE with office in Ireland. At the same time this
SPE issued and sold in the capital markets a group of different classes of bonds.

b) Synthetic securitizations

The Group has two synthetic operations. Caravela SME No.3, which operation started on 28 June 2013, based on a medium and long
term loans portfolio of current accounts and authorized overdrafts granted by BCP, mainly to small and medium companies.

Caravela SME No.4 is a similar operation, initiated on 5 June 2014, which portfolio contains car, real estate and equipment leasing
granted between the Bank and a group of clients that belong to the same segment (small and medium companies).

In both operations, the Bank hired a Credit Default Swap (CDS) with a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), buying by this way the protection
for the total portfolio referred. Both cases, the synthetic securitizations, the same CDS, the risk of the respective portfolios were
divided in 3 classes: senior, mezzanine and equity. The mezzanine and part of the equity (20%) were placed in the market through an
SPV, and the subscription by investors, the Credit Linked Notes (CLNs). The Bank retained the senior risk and part of the equity
remaining (80%). The product of the CLNs issue was invested by the SPV in a deposit which total collateral the responsibilities in the
presence of the Bank, in accordance of the CDS.

(ii) Impairment

At each balance sheet date, an assessment is made of the existence of objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset or group of
financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence of impairment resulting from one or more events that occurred after its
initial recognition, such as: (i) for listed securities, a prolonged devaluation or a significant decrease in its quoted price, and (i) for
unlisted securities, when that event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be estimated reasonably. According to the Group's policies, 30% depreciation in the fair value of an equity
instrument is considered a significant devaluation and the 1 year period is assumed to be a prolonged decrease in the fair value below
the acquisition cost.

If an available for sale asset is determined to be impaired, the cumulative loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the profit or loss) is removed from
fair value reserves and recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available
for sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurred after the impairment loss was recognised in the
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement. Reversal of impairment losses on equity instruments,
classified as financial assets available for sale, is recognised as a gain in fair value reserves when it occurs (there is no reversal in profit
and losses).

(iii) Embedded derivatives
Embedded derivatives should be accounted for separately as derivatives, if the economic risks and benefits of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to the host contract, as long as the hybrid (combined) instrument is not initially measured at fair value with

changes through profit and loss. Embedded derivatives are classified as trading and recognised at fair value with changes through
profit and loss.
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E. DERIVATIVES HEDGE ACCOUNTING

(i) Hedge accounting

The Group designates derivatives and other financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange risk,
resulting from financing and investment activities. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading
instruments.

Derivative hedging instruments are stated at fair value and gains and losses on revaluation are recognised in accordance with the
hedge accounting model adopted by the Group. A hedge relationship exists when:

- at the inception of the hedge there is formal documentation of the hedge;

- the hedge is expected to be highly effective;

- the effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured;

- the hedge is valuable in a continuous basis and highly effective throughout the reporting period; and

- for hedges of a forecasted transaction, the transaction is highly probable and presents an exposure to variations in cash flows that
could ultimately affect profit or loss.

When a derivative financial instrument is used to hedge foreign exchange variations arising from monetary assets or liabilities, no
hedge accounting model is applied. Any gain or loss associated to the derivative is recognised through profit and loss, as well as
changes in currency risk of the monetary items.

(ii) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedge instruments are recognised in profit and
loss, together with changes in the fair value attributable to the hedged risk of the asset or liability or group of assets and liabilities. If
the hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the cumulative gains and losses due to variations of hedged
risk linked to the hedge item recognised until the discontinuance of the hedge accounting are amortised through profit and loss over
the residual period of the hedged item.

(iii) Cash flow hedge

In a hedge relationship, the effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges
are recognised in equity - cash flow hedge reserves in the effective part of the hedge relations. Any gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion of the hedge is immediately recognised in profit and loss when occurred.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit and loss in the periods in which the hedged item will affect profit or loss.

In case of hedging variability of cash-flows, when the hedge instrument expires or is disposed or when the hedging relationship no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, or when the hedge relation is revoked, the hedge relationship is discontinued on a
prospective basis. Therefore, the fair value changes of the derivative accumulated in equity until the date of the discontinued hedge
accounting can be:

- Deferred over the residual period of the hedged instrument; or
- Recognised immediately in results, if the hedged instrument is extinguished.

In the case of a discontinued hedge of a forecast transaction, the change in fair value of the derivative recognised in equity at that time
remains in equity until the forecasted transaction is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecasted transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to profit and loss.

(iv) Hedge effectiveness

For a hedge relationship to be classified as such according to IAS 39, effectiveness has to be demonstrated. As such, the Group
performs prospective tests at the beginning date of the initial hedge, if applicable and retrospective tests in order to demonstrate at
each reporting period the effectiveness of the hedging relationships, demonstrating that the variations in fair value of the hedging
instrument are hedged by the fair value variations of the hedged item in the portion assigned to the risk covered. Any ineffectiveness is
recognised immediately in profit and loss when incurred.

(v) Hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any exchange gain or loss on the
hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is immediately recognised in profit and loss. Gains and losses accumulated in equity related to the investment in a foreign
operation and to the associated hedge operation are recognised in equity are transferred to profit and loss, on the disposal of the
foreign operation as part of the gain or loss from the disposal.
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F. RECLASSIFICATIONS BETWEEN FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CATEGORIES

In October 2008, the IASB issued a change to IAS 39 — Reclassification of Financial Assets (Amendments to IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and IFRS 7: Financial Instruments Disclosures). This change allowed an entity to transfer
financial assets from Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss — trading to Financial assets available for sale, to Loans and
Receivables - Loans represented by securities or to Financial assets held-to-maturity, as long as the requirement referred in the
standard namely when there is some event that is uncommon and highly improbable that will occur again in the short term, that is, the
event can be classified as a rare circumstance. The Group adopted this possibility for a group of financial assets.

The analysis of the reclassifications is detailed in note 23 - Financial assets held for trading, Other financial assets held for trading at
fair value through profit or loss and Financial assets available for sale. Transfers of financial assets recognised in the category of
Financial assets available-for-sale to Loans and receivables - Loans represented by securities and to Financial assets held-to-maturity
are allowed, in determined and specific circumstances.

Transfers from and to Other financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (Fair value option) are
prohibited.

G. DERECOGNITION

The Group derecognises financial assets when all rights to future cash flows have expired. In a transfer of assets, derecognition can
only occur either when risks and rewards have been substantially transferred or the Group does not maintain control over the assets.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when these are cancelled or extinguished.

H. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is an equity instrument only if (a) the instrument includes no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset to another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the entity and (b) if the instrument will or may be settled in the issuer's own equity instruments, it is either a
non-derivative that includes no contractual obligation for the issuer to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments or a
derivative that will be settled only by the issuer exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of its
own equity instruments.

An equity instrument, independently from its legal form, evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Transaction costs directly attributable to an equity instruments’ issuance are recognised in equity as a deduction to the amount issued.
Amounts paid or received related to sales or acquisitions of equity instruments are recognised in equity, net of transaction costs.

Preference shares issued by the Group are considered as an equity instrument when redemption of the shares is solely at the discretion
of the Group and dividends are paid at the discretion of the Group.

Income from equity instruments (dividends) are recognised when the obligation to pay is established and are deducted to equity.

. COMPOUND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments that contain both a liability and an equity component (example: convertible bonds) are classified as compound
financial instruments. For those instruments classified as compound financial instruments, the terms of its conversion to ordinary
shares (number of shares) cannot change with changes in its fair value. The financial liability component corresponds to the present
value of the future interest and principal payments, discounted at the market interest rate applicable to similar financial liabilities that
do not have a conversion option. The equity component corresponds to the difference between the proceeds of the issue and the
amount attributed to the financial liability. Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost through the effective interest rate
method. The interests are recognised in Net interest income.
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J. SECURITIES BORROWING AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENT TRANSACTIONS

(i) Securities borrowing

Securities lent under securities lending arrangements continue to be recognised in the balance sheet and are measured in accordance
with the applicable accounting policy. Cash collateral received in respect of securities lent is recognised as a financial liability.
Securities borrowed under securities borrowing agreements are not recognised. Cash collateral placements in respect of securities
borrowed are recognised under loans and advances to either banks or customers. Income and expenses arising from the securities
borrowing and lending business are recognised on an accrual basis over the period of the transactions and are included in interest
income or expense (net interest income).

(ii) Repurchase agreements

The Group performs acquisition/sale of securities under reselling/repurchase agreements of securities substantially equivalent in a
future date at a predetermined price ('repos'/'reverse repos'). The securities related to reselling agreements in a future date are not
recognised on the balance sheet. The amounts paid are recognised in loans and advances to customers or loans and advances to credit
institutions. The receivables are collateralised by the related securities. Securities sold through repurchase agreements continue to be
recognised in the balance sheet and are revaluated in accordance with the applicable accounting policy. The amounts received from
the proceeds of these securities are considered as deposits from customers and deposits from credit institutions. The difference
between the acquisition/sale and reselling/repurchase conditions is recognised on an accrual basis over the period of the transaction
and is included in interest income or expenses.

K. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OR DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

Non-current assets, groups of non-current assets held for sale (groups of assets together with related liabilities that include at least a
non current asset) and discontinued operations are classified as held for sale when it is intention to sell the referred assets and
liabilities and when the referred assets or group of assets are available for immediate sale, subject to the terms of sale usually
applicable to these types of assets, and its sale is highly probable. In order for the sale to be considered highly probable, the Group must
be committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group), and must have been initiated an active program to locate a buyer and
complete the plan. In addition, the asset (or disposal group) must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation
to its current fair value. Furthermore, it should be expected the sale to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification, except as permitted by paragraph 9 of IFRS 5 and that the Group remains committed to the asset sales plan
and the delay is caused by events or circumstances beyond its control.

The Group also classifies as non-current assets held for sale those non-current assets or groups of assets acquired exclusively with a
view to its subsequent disposal, which are available for immediate sale and its sale is highly probable. Immediately before classification
as held for sale, the measurement of the non-current assets or all assets and liabilities in a disposal group, is performed in accordance
with the applicable IFRS. After their reclassification, these assets or disposal groups are measured at the lower of their cost and fair
value less costs to sell.

Discontinued operations and the subsidiaries acquired exclusively with the purpose to sell in the short term are consolidated until the
moment of its sale.

Non-operating real estate (INAE)
The Group also classifies non-current assets held for sale the non-operating real estate (INAE), which include properties acquired by
the Group as a result of the resolution of customer credit processes, as well as own properties that are no longer used by the Group's

services.

Properties held by real estate companies and real estate investment funds, which are part of the Group's consolidation perimeter,
whose capital or units acquired by the Group as a result of the recovery loans are treated as INAE.

At the time of acquisition, real estate classified as INAE is recognised at the lower of the value of the loans existing on the date on
which the recovery occurs or the judicial decision is formalised, and the fair value of the property, net of estimated costs for sale.
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Subsequent measurement of INAE is made at the lower of their book value and the corresponding fair value, net of the estimated costs
for their sale and are not subject to amortization. Impairment losses are recorded in the results of the period in which they arise.

The fair value is determined based on the market value, which is determined based on the expected sales price obtained through
periodic evaluations made by expert external evaluators accredited to the CMVM.

The principles used to determine the net fair value of selling costs of a property apply, whenever possible, apply, whenever possible, to
real estate similar to INAE held by Real Estate Companies and Real Estate Investment Funds for the purpose of consolidating Group
accounts.

Whenever the net fair value of the selling costs calculated for an INAE is less than the amount by which the same is recognized in the
Group's balance sheet, an impairment loss is recorded in the amount of the decrease in value ascertained. Impairment losses are
recorded against income for the year.

IFthe net fair value of the selling costs of an INAE, after recognition of impairment, indicates a gain, the Bank may reflect that gain up to
the maximum of the impairment that has been recorded on that property.

L. LEASE TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with IAS 17, the lease transactions are classified as financial whenever their terms transfer substantially all the risks an
rewards associated with the ownership of the property to the lessee. The remaining leases are classified as operational. The
classification of the leases is done according to the substance and not the form of the contract.

i) Finance lease transactions

At the lessee's perspective, finance lease transactions are recorded at the beginning as an asset and liability at fair value of the leased
asset, which is equivalent to the present value of the future lease payments. Lease rentals are a combination of the financial charge and
the amortisation of the capital outstanding. The financial charge is allocated to the periods during the lease term to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining liability balance for each period.

At the lessor's perspective, assets held under finance leases are recorded in the balance sheet as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease. Lease rentals are a combination of the financial income and amortization of the capital outstanding.
Recognition of the financial result reflects a constant periodical return rate over the remaining net investment of the lessor.

Assets received arising from the resolution of leasing contracts and complying with the definition of assets held for sale
classified in this category, are measured in accordance with the accounting policy defined in note 1k).

ii) Operational leases

At the lessee's perspective, the Group has various operating leases for properties and vehicles. The payments under these leases are
recognised in Other administrative costs during the life of the contract, and neither the asset nor the liability associated with the
contract is evidenced in its balance sheet.

M. INTEREST RECOGNITION

Interest income and expense for financial instruments measured at amortised cost are recognised in the interest income or expenses
(net interest income) through the effective interest rate method. The interest related to financial assets available for sale calculated at
the effective interest rate method are also recognised in net interest income as well as those from assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss.

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument (or, when appropriate, for a shorter period), to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

For calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (For example: early payment options) but without considering future impairment losses. The calculation includes all fees
paid or received considered as included in the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts directly
related to the transaction, except for assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss.

For financial asset or a group of similar financial assets for which impairment losses were recognised, interest income is recognised
based on the interest rate used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Specifically regarding the accounting policy for interest on overdue loans’ portfolio, the following aspects are considered:

- interest income for overdue loans with collaterals are accounted for as income, up to the limit of the valuation of the collateral on a
prudent basis, in accordance with IAS 18, assuming that there is a reasonable probability of recoverability; and

- the interests accrued and not paid for overdue loans for more than 90 days that are not covered by collaterals are written-off from
the Bank's financial statements and are recognised only when received, in accordance with IAS 18, on the basis that its recoverability is
considered to be remote.

For derivative financial instruments, except those classified as hedging instruments of interest rate risk, the interest component is not
separated from the changes in the fair value and is classified under Net gains / (losses) from trading and hedging activities. For hedging
derivatives of interest rate risk and those related to financial assets or financial liabilities recognised in the Fair Value Option category,
the interest component is recognised under interest income or expense (Net interest income).

N. RECOGNITION OF INCOME FROM SERVICES AND COMMISSIONS

Income from services and commissions are recognised according to the following criteria:

- when are earned as services are provided, are recognised in income over the period in which the service is being provided;
- when are earned on the execution of a significant act, are recognised as income when the service is completed.

Income from services and commissions, that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of a financial instrument, are recognised
in net interest income.

O. FINANCIAL NET GAINS / LOSSES (NET GAINS / LOSSES ARISING FROM TRADING AND HEDGING
ACTIVITIES, FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE AND FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD TO
MATURITY)

Financial net gains / losses includes gains and losses arising from financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss, that is, fair value changes and interest on trading derivatives and embedded derivatives, as well as the corresponding dividends
received. This balance also includes the gains and losses arising from the sale of available for sale financial assets and financial assets
held to maturity. The changes in fair value of hedging derivatives and hedged items, when Ffair value hedge is applicable, are also
recognised in this balance.

P. FIDUCIARY ACTIVITIES

Assets held in the scope of fiduciary activities are not recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Fees and
commissions arising from this activity are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they occur.

0. OTHER TANGIBLE ASSETS

Other tangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Subsequent costs are
recognised as a separate asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits will result for the Group. All other repairs and
maintenance expenses are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis, over the following periods which correspond to their estimated useful life:

Number of years

Buildings 50
Expenditure on freehold and leasehold buildings 10
Equipment 4t012
Other tangible assets 3

Whenever there is an indication that a fixed tangible asset might be impaired, its recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment
loss shall be recognised if the net value of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined as the
highest between the fair value less costs to sell and its value in use calculated based on the present value of future cash-flows
estimated to be obtained from the continued use of the asset and its sale at the end of the useful life.

The impairment losses of the fixed tangible assets are recognised in profit and loss for the year.
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R. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Real estate properties owned by the investment funds consolidated in the Group, are recognised as Investment properties considering,
that the main objective of these buildings is the capital appreciation on a long term basis and not its sale in a short term period, or its
maintenance for own use.

These investments are initially recognised at its acquisition cost, including the transaction costs and subsequently revaluated at its fair
value. The fair value of the investment property should reflect the market conditions at the balance sheet date. Changes in fair value
are recognised in results as "Other operating income / (costs)" (note 8).

The experts responsible for the valuation of the assets are properly certified for that purpose, being registered in CMVM.
S. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

i) Research and development expenditure

The Group does not capitalise any research and development costs. All expenses are recognised as costs in the period in which they
occur.

ii) Software

The Group accounts, as intangible assets, the costs associated to software acquired from external entities and depreciates them on a
straight line basis by an estimated lifetime of three years. The Group does not capitalise internal costs arising from software
development.

T. CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from
the balance sheet date, including cash and deposits with Central Banks and loans and advances to credit institutions.

U. OFFSETTING

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and recognised at their net book value when: i) the Group has a legal right to offset the
amounts recognised and transactions can be settled at their net value; and ii) the Group intends to settle on a net basis or perform the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Considering the current operations of the Group, no compensation of material amount is
made. In case of reclassifications of comparative amounts, the provisions of IAS 1.41 are disclosed: i) the nature of the reclassification;
ii) the amount of each item (or class of items) reclassified and iii) the reason for the reclassification.

V. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency of the operation at the foreign exchange rate
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the respective
functional currency of the operation at the foreign exchange rate at the reporting date. Foreign exchange differences arising on
translation are recognised in the profit and loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are
stated at historical cost, are translated into the respective functional currency of the operation at the foreign exchange rate at the date
of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
into the respective functional currency of the operation at the foreign exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined
against profit and loss, except for financial assets available-for-sale, for which the difference is recognised against equity.

W. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

i) Defined benefit plans

The Group has the responsibility to pay to their employees' retirement pensions and widow and orphan benefits and permanent
disability pensions, in accordance with the agreement entered with the two collective labour arrangements. These benefits are
estimated in the pension's plans ‘Plano ACT’ and ‘Plano ACTQ’ of the Pension Plan of BCP Group.

Until 2011, along with the benefits provided in two planes above, the Group had assumed the responsibility, under certain conditions in
each year, of assigning a complementary plan to the Group's employees hired before 21 September, 2006 (Complementary Plan). The
Group at the end of 2012 decided to extinguish ("cut") the benefit of old age Complementary Plan. As at 14 December 2012, the ISP
("Instituto de Seguros de Portugal” - Portuguese Insurance Institute) formally approved this change to the benefit plan of the Group
with effect from 1 January 2012. The cut of the plan was made, having been assigned to the employees, individual rights acquired. On
that date, the Group also proceeded to the settlement of the related liability.
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From 1 January 2011, banks' employees were integrated in the General Social Security Scheme which now covers their maternity,
paternity, adoption and pension benefits. However, the Banks remain liable for those benefits as concern illness, disability and life
insurance (Decree-Law no. 1-A/2011, of 3 January).

The contributory rate is 26.6% divided between 23.6% supported by the employer and 3% supported by the employees, replacing the
Banking Social Healthcare System which was extinguished by the decree law referred above. As a consequence of this amendment the
capability to receive pensions by the actual employees are covered by the General Social Security Scheme regime, considering the
service period between 1 January 2011 and the retirement age. The Bank supports the remaining difference for the total pension
assured in Collective Labour Agreement.

This integration has led to a decrease in the present value of the total benefits reported to the retirement age to be borne by the
Pension Fund, and this effect is to be recorded in accordance with the "Unit Credit Projected" during the average lifetime of the pension
until the normal retirement age is reached. The calculation of the liability for pensions carried out periodically by the actuary considers
this effect and is calculated taking into account the actuarial assumptions in force, ensuring that the liabilities calculated with
reference to 31 December 2010, not considering the effect of the integration of bank employees into the General Social Security
Scheme are fully covered and deducted from the amount of the effect recognised until the date. The component of this effect for the
year is recognized under the heading "Current service costs".

Following the approval by the Government of the Decree-Law no. 127/2011, which was published on 31 December, was established an
agreement between the Government, the Portuguese Banking Association and the Banking Labour Unions in order to transfer, to the
Social Security, the liabilities related to pensions currently being paid to pensioners and retirees, as at 31 December 2011.

This agreement established that the responsibilities to be transferred related to the pensions in payment as at 31 December 2011 at
fixed amounts (discount rate 0%) in the component established in the IRCT - Instrument of Collective Regulation of Work of the
retirees and pensioners. The responsibilities related to the increase in pensions as well as any other complements namely,
contributions to the Health System (SAMS), death benefit and death before retirement benefit continued to be under the responsibility
of the Financial Institutions.

At the end of December 2016, a revision of the Collective Labour Agreement (ACT) was reached between the BCP Group and the two
unions representive of the Group's employees, which introduced changes in the Social Security chapter and consequently in the
pension plan financed by the BCP Group Pension Fund. The new ACT has already been published by the Ministry of Labour in Bulletin of
Labour and Employment on 15 February 2017 and their effects were recorded in the financial statements of 31 December 2016, for
employees associated with these two unions.

The negotiation with the " Sindicato dos Bancarios do Norte™" ("SBN"), which was also involved in the negotiations of the new ACT, was
concluded in April 2017 with the publication of the Bulletin of Labour and Employment, with the effects of this new ACT recorded in the
financial statements as at 31December 2017, for employees associates of SBN.

The most relevant changes occurred in the ACT were the change in the retirement age (presumed disability) that changed from 65
years to 66 years and two months in 2016, and the subsequent update of a further month for each year, at the beginning of each
calendar year, and can not, in any case, be higher than which it is in force at any moment in the General Regime of Social Security, the
change in the formula for determining the employer's contribution to the SAMS and a new benefit called the End of career premium
that replaces the Seniority premium.

These changes described above were framed by the Group as a change to the pension plan under the terms of IAS 19, as such had an
impact on the present value of the liabilities with services rendered and were recognised in the income statement for the year under
"Staff costs ".

In 2017, after the authorization of the Insurance and Pension Funds Supervision Authority (ASF), the BCP group's pension fund
agreement was amended. The main purpose of the process was to incorporate into the pension fund the changes introduced in the
Group's ACT in terms of retirement benefits and also to pass to the pension fund, the responsibilities that were directly chargeable to
the company's (extra-fund liabilities). The pension fund has a part exclusively affected to the financing of these liabilities, which in the
scope of the fund are called Additional Complement. The End of career premium also became the responsibility of the pension fund
under the basic pension plan.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of pension plans (defined benefit pensions plan) is calculated on a half year basis at 31 December
and 30 June of each year, and whenever there are significant market fluctuations or significant specific events, such as changes in the
plan, curtailments or settlements since the last estimate. The responsibilities with past service are calculated using the Unit Credit
Projected method and actuarial assumptions considered adequate.

Pension liabilities are calculated by the responsible actuary, who is certified by the Insurance Supervision Authority and Pension Fund
(ASF).
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The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans and other benefits is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The
benefit is discounted in order to determine its present value, using a discount rate determined by reference to interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations. The net obligations are
determined after the deduction of the fair value of the Pension Plan's assets.

Extra-fund liability refers to pension supplements allocated to various employees under the retirement's negotiation processes with
the aim of encouraging them to join staff reduction programs.

The income / cost of interests with the pension plan is calculated, by the Group, multiplying the net asset / liability with retirement
pension (liabilities less the fair value of the plan's assets) by the discount rate used in the determination of the retirement pension
liabilities, mentioned before. On this basis, the income / cost net of interests includes the interest costs associated with retirement
pension liabilities and the expected return of the plan's assets, both measured based on the discount rate used to calculate the
liabilities.

Gains and losses from the re-measurement, namely (i) actuarial gains and losses resulting from differences between actuarial
assumptions used and the amounts actually observed (experience gains and losses) and changes in actuarial assumptions and (ii) gains
and losses arising from the difference between the expected return of the plan's assets and the amounts obtained, are recognised
against equity under "Other comprehensive income".

The Group recognises in its income statement a net total amount that comprises (i) the current service cost, (ii) the income / cost net of
interest with the pension plan, (iii) the effect of early retirement, (iv) past service costs and (v) the effects of any settlement or
curtailment occurred during the period. The net income / cost with the pension plan is recognised as interest and similar income or
interest expense and similar costs depending on their nature. The costs of early retirements correspond to the increase in liabilities due
to the employee's retirement before reaching the age of retirement.

Employee benefits, other than pension plans, namely post retirement health care benefits and benefits for the spouse and sons for
death before retirement are also included in the benefit plan calculation.

The contributions to the funds are made annually by each Group company according to a certain plan contributions to ensure the
solvency of the fund. The minimum level required for the funding is 100% regarding the pension payments and 95% regarding the past
services of active employees.

ii) Defined contribution plan

For Defined Contribution Plan, the responsibilities related to the benefits attributed to the Group's employees are recognised as
expenses when incurred.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has two defined contribution plans. One plan covers employees who were hired before 1 July 2009.
For this plan, called non-contributory, Group's contributions will be made annually and equal to 1% of the annual remuneration paid to
employees in the previous year. Contributions shall only be made if the following requirements are met: (i) the Bank's ROE equals or
exceeds the rate of government bonds of 10 years plus 5 percentage points, and (ii) distributable profits or reserves exist in the
accounts of Banco Comercial Portugués.

The other plan covers employees who have been hired after 1 July 2009. For this plan, designated contributory, monthly contributions
will be made equal to 1.5% of the monthly remuneration received by employees in the current month, either by themselves or by the
Group and employees. This contribution has a mandatory character and is defined in the Collective Labour Agreement of the BCP
Group, and does not have a performance criterion.

iii) Share based compensation plan

As at 31 December 2017 there are no share based compensation plans in force.

iv) Variable remuneration paid to employees

The Executive Committee decides on the most appropriate criteria of allocation among employees, whenever it is attributed. This
variable remuneration is charged to income statement in the period to which it relates.

X. INCOME TAXES

The Group is subject to the regime established by the Income Tax Code ("CIRC"). Additionally, deferred taxes resulting from the
temporary differences between the accounting net income and the net income accepted by the Tax Authorities for Income Taxes
calculation are accounted for, whenever there is a reasonable probability that those taxes will be paid or recovered in the future.

Income tax registered in net income for the year comprises current and deferred tax effects. Income tax is recognised in the income
statement, except when related to items recognised directly in equity, which implies its recognition in equity. Deferred taxes arising
from the revaluation of financial assets available for sale and cash flow hedging derivatives are recognised in shareholders’ equity and
are recognised after in the income statement at the moment the profit and loss that originated the deferred taxes are recognised.
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Current tax is the value that determines the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred taxes are calculated in accordance with the liability method based on the balance sheet, considering temporary differences,
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the amounts used for taxation purposes using the tax rates approved or
substantially approved at balance sheet date and that is expected to be applied when the temporary difference is reversed.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
differences arising on initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit and differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that probably they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred taxes assets are recognised to the extent when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available to absorb deductible
temporary differences for taxation purposes (including reportable taxable losses).

The Group, as established in IAS 12, paragraph 74, compensates the deferred tax assets and liabilities if, and only if: (i) has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and (ii) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

In 2016, a group of entities of the BCP Group adhered to the Special Regime for the Taxation of Groups of Companies ("RETGS") for the
purposes of taxation of income tax, with BCP being the dominant entity.

Under the scope of taxation under this regime, the Group chose to consider that the effects of the determination of the taxable income
according to RETGS are reflected in the tax calculation of each entity's fiscal year, which includes the effect on the current tax due to
the use of tax loss carry forwards generated by another entity of the Group.

Y. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Group adopted the IFRS 8 - Operating Segments for the purpose of disclosure financial information by operating and geographic
segments. A business segment is a Group's component: (i) which develops business activities that can obtain revenues or expenses; (ii)
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the management with the aim of taking decisions about allocating resources to the
segment and assess its performance, and (iii) for which separate financial information is available.

The Group controls its activity through the following major operating segments:

Portugal activity:

- Retail Banking, also including ActivoBank;

- Companies, Corporate and Investment Banking;
- Private Banking;

- Non-core business portfolio;

- Other.

"Other" (Portugal activity) includes the activities that are not allocated to remaining segments namely centralized management of
financial investments, corporate activities and insurance activity.

Foreign activity:
- Poland;

- Mozambique;
- Other.

"Other" (Foreign activity) includes the activity developed by subsidiaries in Switzerland and Cayman Islands and also the contribution of
- the participation in an associate in Angola.

In the context of the Banco Millennium in Angola merger process with Banco Privado Atlantico, which agreement occurred in 22 April
2016 and the conclusion of the process of the necessary authorizations in 3 May 2016, Banco Millennium Angola was considered as a
discontinued operation in March 2016, with the impact of its results presented in the balance Income / (loss) arising from discontinued
or discontinuing operations and restated for the previous periods. At the consolidated balance, the assets and liabilities of Banco
Millennium Angola, S.A. continued to be consolidated by the purchase method till April 2016.

After the completion of the merger, in May 2016, the assets and liabilities of Banco Millennium in Angola stopped being considered in
the consolidated balance sheet and the investment of 22.5 % in Banco Millennium Atlantico, the new merged entity, started being
consolidated using the equity method and its contribution to the Group's results have been recognised in the consolidated accounts
from May 2016 onwards, in the balance "Share of profit of associates under the equity method".
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Z. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when (i) the Group has a present obligation (legal or resulting from past practices or published policies that
imply the recognition of certain responsibilities); (ii) it is probable that a payment will be required to settle (iii) a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The measurement of provisions takes into account the principles set in IAS 37 regarding the best estimate of the expected cost, the
most likely result of current actions and considering the risks and uncertainties inherent in the process result. On the cases that the
discount effect is material, provision corresponds to the actual value of the expected future payments, discounted by a rate that
considers the associated risk of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the best estimate, being reverted through profit and loss in
the proportion of the payments that are probable.

The provisions are derecognised through their use for the obligations for which they were initially accounted or for the cases that the
situations were not already observed.

ii) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements, being framed under IAS 37 whenever the possibility of an outflow
of resources regarding economic benefits is not remote.

The group registers a contingent liability when:

(@) it is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group; or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or
ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The contingent liabilities identified are subject to disclosure, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources incorporating economic
benefits is remote.

iii) Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements and are disclosed when a future economic inflow of resources is
probable.

AA. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income attributable to shareholders of the Group by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding, excluding the average number of ordinary shares purchased by the Group and held as treasury
shares.

For the diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding is adjusted to consider conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Potential or contingent share issues are treated as dilutive when their conversion to shares would
decrease net earnings per share. If the earnings per share are changed as a result of an issue with premium or discount or other event
that changed the potential number of ordinary shares or as a result of changes in the accounting policies, the earnings per share for all
presented periods should be adjusted retrospectively.

AB. INSURANCE CONTRACTS

i) Classification

The Group issues contracts that contain insurance risk, financial risk or a combination of both insurance and financial risk. A contract,
under which the Group accepts significant insurance risk from another party, by agreeing to compensate that party on the occurrence
of a specified uncertain future event, is classified as an insurance contract.

A contract issued by the Group without significant insurance risk, but on which financial risk is transferred with discretionary
participating features is classified as an investment contract recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policies
applicable to insurance contracts. A contract issued by the Group that transfers only financial risk, without discretionary participating
features, is accounted for as a financial instrument.
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ii) Recognition and measurement

Premiums of life insurance and investment contracts with discretionary participating features, which are considered as long-term
contracts are recognised as income when due from the policyholders. The benefits and other costs are recognised concurrently with
the recognition of income over the life of the contracts. This specialization is achieved through the establishment of provisions /
liabilities of insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participating features.

The responsibilities correspond to the present value of future benefits payable, net of administrative expenses directly associated with
the contracts, less the theoretical premiums that would be required to comply with the established benefits and related expenses. The
liabilities are determined based on assumptions of mortality, costs of management or investment at the valuation date.

For contracts where the payment period is significantly shorter than the period of benefit, premiums are deferred and recognised as
income in proportion to the duration period of risk coverage. Regarding short-term contracts, including contracts of non-life
insurance, premiums are recorded at the time of issue. The award is recognised as income acquired in a pro-rata basis during the term
of the contract. The provision for unearned premiums represents the amount of issued premiums on risks not occurred.

iii) Premiums

Gross premiums written are recognised for as income in the period to which they respect independently from the moment of payment
or receivable, in accordance with the accrual accounting principle. Reinsurance premiums ceded are accounted for as expense in the
period to which they respect in the same way as gross premiums written.

iv) Provision for unearned premiums from direct insurance and reinsurance premiums ceded

The provision for unearned gross premiums is based on the evaluation of the premiums written before the end of the year but for which
the risk period continues after the year end. This provision is calculated using the pro-rata temporis method applied to each contract in
force.

v) Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, the Group evaluates the adequacy of liabilities arising from insurance contracts and investment contracts with
discretionary participating features. The evaluation of the adequacy of responsibilities is made based on the projection of future cash
flows associated with each contract, discounted at market interest rate without risk. This evaluation is done product by product or
aggregate of products when the risks are similar or managed jointly. Any deficiency, if exists, is recorded in the Group's results as
determined.

AC. INSURANCE OR REINSURANCE INTERMEDIATION SERVICES

The Banco Comercial Portugués and Banco ActivoBank are entities authorized by the 'Autoridade de Supervisdo de Seguros e Fundos
de Pensdes' (Portuguese Insurance Regulation) to practice the activity of insurance intermediation in the category of Online Insurance
Broker, in accordance with Article 8., Paragraph a), point i) of Decree-Law n. © 144/2006, of July 31, developing the activity of insurance
intermediation in life and non-life.

Within the insurance intermediation services, these banks perform the sale of insurance contracts. As compensation for services
rendered for insurance intermediation, they receive commissions for arranging contracts of insurance and investment contracts, which
are defined in the agreements / protocols established with the Insurance Companies.

Commissions received by insurance intermediation are recognised in accordance with the accrual accounting principle, so the
commissions which receipt occurs at different time period to which it relates are subject to registration as an amount receivable in
Other Assets".

AD. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

IFRS set forth a range of accounting treatments that requires that the Board of Directors, on the advice of the Executive Committee, to
apply judgments and to make estimates in deciding which treatment is most appropriate. The most significant of these accounting
estimates and judgments used in the accounting principles application are discussed in this section in order to improve understanding
of how their application affects the Group’s reported results and related disclosure.

Considering that in some cases there are several alternatives to the accounting treatment chosen by the Board of Directors, on the
advice of the Executive Committee, the Group’s reported results would differ if a different treatment was chosen. The Board of
Directors, on the advice of the Executive Committee, believes that the choices made are appropriate and that the financial statements
present the Group’s financial position and results fairly in all material relevant aspects.

The alternative outcomes discussed below are presented solely to assist the reader in understanding the financial statements and are
not intended to suggest that other alternatives or estimates would be more appropriate.
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i) Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment losses on a regularly basis, as described in note 1 c). The evaluation process
in determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded is subject to numerous estimates and judgments. The probability of
default, risk ratings, value of associated collaterals recovery rates and the estimation of both the amount and timing of future cash
flows received, among other things, are considered in making this evaluation.

Alternative methodologies and the use of different assumptions and estimates could result in a higher level of impairment losses
recognised with a consequent impact in Group's Income Statement.

ii) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant interpretations and estimates are required in determining
the total amount for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Different interpretations and estimates would result in a different level of income taxes, current
and deferred, recognised in the year.

This aspect assumes greater relevance for the purposes of the analysis of the recoverability of deferred taxes, in which the Group
considers projections of future taxable income based on a set of assumptions, including the estimate of income before tax,
adjustments to the taxable and the interpretation of the tax legislation. Thus, the recoverability of deferred tax assets depends on the
implementation of the Bank's Board of Directors, namely the ability to generate estimated taxable income and the interpretation of the
tax legislation.

The taxable profit or tax loss reported by the Bank or its subsidiaries located in Portugal can be corrected by the Portuguese tax
authorities within four years except in the case it has been made any deduction or used tax credit, when the expiration date is the
period of this right report. The Executive Committee believes that any corrections resulting mainly from differences in the
interpretation of tax law will not have material effect on the financial statements.

Regarding the activity in Portugal, the specific rules regarding the tax regime for credit impairment and guarantees for the tax periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 are not defined, since the reference to the Bank of Portugal Notice No. 3/95 was only applicable
until 31 December 2017 and the regime that will be effective as at 1 January 2018 has not yet been defined. In this context, the
Executive Committee is considering, for the purpose of calculating taxable income and the deferred tax recording with reference to 31
December 2017, that the impairment of the credit and guarantees recorded which is deductible for IRC purpose is limited to the
amount of the deductible provisions that would have been verified if the Bank of Portugal Notice No. 3/95 still remained in force.

In the projections of future taxable income, the Bank considered the future maintenance of the tax regime applicable to impairment of
loans and guarantees, based on the minimum limits applicable under Bank of Portugal Notice 3/95, which was in force in 2015
(pursuant to Regulatory Decree No. 19/2015 of 30 December), 2016 (pursuant to Regulatory Decree No. 5/2016 of 18 November) and
2017 (under the terms of Regulatory Decree n. 11/2017, of 28 December).

iii) Non-current assets held For sale (real estate) valuation

The properties registered in the portfolio of non-current assets held for sale are subject to periodic real estate valuations, carried out
by independent experts registered at the CMVM, from their registration and until their derecognition, to be carried out on a property by
property basis, according to the circumstances in which each property is and consistent with the disposal strategy. The preparation of
these evaluations involves the use of several assumptions. Different assumptions or changes occurred in them may affect the
recognised value of these assets.

iv) Pension and other employees’ benefits

Determining pension liabilities requires the use of assumptions and estimates, including the use of actuarial projections, estimated
returns on investment, and other factors, such as discount rate, pensions and salary growth rate, mortality table, that could impact the
cost and liability of the pension plan.

As defined by IAS 19, the discount rate used to update the responsibilities of the Bank's pension fund is based on an analysis performed

over the market yield regarding a bond issues universe — with high quality (low risk), different maturities (appropriate to the period of
liquidation of the fund's liabilities) and denominated in Euros - related to a diverse and representative range of issuers.
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v) Impairment of financial assets available for-sale

The Group determines that financial assets available for-sale are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decrease in
the fair value. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates
among other factors, the volatility in the prices of the financial assets. According to the Group's policies, 30% of depreciation in the fair
value of an equity instrument is considered a significant devaluation and the 1 year period is assumed to be a prolonged decrease in
the fair value below the acquisition cost.

In addition, valuations are generally obtained through market quotation or valuation models that may require assumptions or
judgment in making estimates of fair value.

Alternative methodologies and the use of different assumptions and estimates could result in a higher level of impairment losses
recognised with a consequent impact in profit and loss of the Group.

vi) Fair value of derivatives

Fair values are based on listed market prices if available, otherwise fair value is determined either by dealer price quotations (either for
that transaction or for similar instruments traded) or by pricing models, based on net present value of estimated future cash flows
which take into account market conditions for the underlying instruments, time value, yield curve and volatility factors. These pricing
models may require assumptions or judgments in estimating their fair values. Consequently, the use of a different model or of different
assumptions or judgments in applying a particular model could result in different results from the ones reported.

vii) Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 39 on classifying some of its non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant judgment.

In making this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount close to
maturity — it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale with its consequently fair value measure and not at the
amortization cost. The investments would therefore be measured at fair value instead of amortised cost. Held-to-maturity
investments are subject to impairment tests made by the Group. The use of different assumptions and estimates could have an impact
in profit and loss of the Group.

viii) Entities included in the consolidation perimeter

For the purposes of determining entities to include in the consolidation perimeter, the Group assess whether it is exposed to, or has
rights to, the variable returns from its involvement with the entity and it is able to take possession of those results through the power
it holds (de facto control). The decision if an entity needs to be consolidated by the Group requires the use of judgment, estimates and
assumptions to determine what extend the Group is exposed to the variable returns and its ability to use its power to affect those
returns. Different estimates and assumptions could lead the Group to a different scope of consolidation perimeter with a direct impact
in consolidated income.

ix) Goodwill impairment

The recoverable amount of the goodwill recorded in the Group's asset is assessed annually in the preparation of accounts with
reference to the end of the year or whenever there are indications of eventual loss of value. For this purpose, the carrying amount of
the business units of the Group for which goodwill has been recognised is compared with the respective recoverable amount. A
goodwill impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of the business unit exceeds the respective recoverable amount.

In the absence of an available market value, the recoverable amount is determined using cash flows predictions, applying a discount
rate that includes a risk premium appropriated to the business unit being tested. Determining the cash flows to discount and the
discount rate, involves judgment.

AE. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Bank analyses events occurring after the balance sheet date, that is, favorable and / or unfavorable events occurring between the
balance sheet date and the date the financial statements were authorized for issue. In this context, two types of events can be
identified:

i) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date (events after the balance sheet date that give rise to
adjustments); and

i) those that are indicative of the conditions that arose after the balance sheet date (events after the balance sheet date that do not
give rise to adjustments).

Events occurring after the date of the statement of financial position that are not considered as adjustable events, if significant, are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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2. NET INTEREST INCOME, NET GAINS ARISING FROM TRADING AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES AND FROM
FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

IFRS requires separate disclosure of net interest income and net gains arising from trading and hedging activities and from financial
assets available for sale, as presented in notes 3, 6 and 7. A particular business activity can generate impact in each of these captions,
whereby the disclosure requirement demonstrates the contribution of the different business activities for the net interest margin and
net gains from trading and hedging and from financial assets available for sale.

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016

Net interest income (note 3) 1,391,275 1,230,126
Net gains from trading and hedging assets (note 6) 45,346 101,827
Net gains from financial assets available for sale (note 7) 103,030 138,540
1,539,651 1,470,493

3. NET INTEREST INCOME

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Interest and similar income
Interest on loans 1,513,194 1,547,745
Interest on trading securities 4,915 6,447
Interest on other financial assets valued at fair value through profit or loss account 3,422 3,688
Interest on available for sale financial assets 230,045 199,404
Interest on held to maturity financial assets 19,231 9,983
Interest on hedging derivatives 92,488 96,627
Interest on derivatives associated to financial instruments through profit or loss account 15,865 17,176
Interest on deposits and other investments 35,050 28,927
1,914,210 1,909,997
Interest expense and similar charges
Interest on deposits and other resources (352,999) (388,905)
Interest on securities issued (78,847) (140,295)
Interest on subordinated debt
Hybrid instruments eligible as core tier 1 (CoCos) underwritten by the Portuguese State (6,343) (65,525)
Others (58,373) (57,091)
Interest on hedging derivatives (21,150) (16,637)
Interest on derivatives associated to financial instruments through profit or loss account (5,223) (11,418)
(522,935) (679,871)
1,391,275 1,230,126
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The balance Interest on loans includes the amount of Euros 45,514,000 (2016: Euros 42,672,000) related to commissions and other
gains accounted for in accordance with the effective interest method, as referred in the accounting policy described in note 1 m).

The balances Interest on securities issued and Interest on subordinated debt include the amount of Euros 42,250,000 (2016: Euros
66,052,000) related to commissions and other costs accounted for under the effective interest method, as referred in the accounting
policy described in note 1 m).

The balance Interest and similar income includes, the amount of Euros 116,339,000 (2016: Euros 135,047,000) related to interest
income arising from customers with signs of impairment (individual and collective analysis).

4. DIVIDENDS FROM EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016

Dividends from financial assets available for sale 1,750 7,709
Dividends from financial assets held for trading 4 5
1,754 7,714

The balance of Dividends from financial assets available for sale includes dividends and income from investment fund units received
during the year.

5. NET FEES AND COMMISSIONS INCOME

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Fees and commissions received
From guarantees 61,699 68,342
From commitments 4,465 3,816
From banking services 480,000 409,009
From insurance activity commissions 1,054 1,239
From securities operations 87,577 96,614
From management and maintenance of accounts 103,839 90,556
From fiduciary and trust activities 656 758
From other commissions 41,924 73,521
781,214 743,855
Fees and commissions paid

From guarantees received provided by third parties (5,885) (5,694)
From banking services (83,889) (69,257)
From insurance activity commissions (1,543) (1,137)
From securities operations (10,098) (12,031)
From other commissions (13,102) (11,902)
(114,517) (100,021)

666,697 643,834

The balance Fees and commissions received - From banking services includes the amount of Euros 78,108,000 (2016: Euros
76,705,000) related to insurance mediation commissions in Portugal, as referred in note 50 c).
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6. NET GAINS / (LOSSES) ARISING FROM TRADING AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Gains arising on trading and hedging activities
Foreign exchange activity 1,627,679 1,673,984
Transactions with financial instruments recognised at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading
Securities portfolio
Fixed income 8,625 9,423
Variable income 982 25,332
Certificates and structured securities issued 51,114 43,511
Derivatives associated to financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 30,383 40,110
Other financial instruments derivatives 377,901 449,526
Other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Other financial instruments 4,050 4,221
Repurchase of own issues 1,252 3,030
Hedging accounting
Hedging derivatives 113,120 146,924
Hedged items 8,168 123,233
Credit sales 14,167 39,395
Other operations 4,183 2,354
2,241,624 2,561,043
Losses arising on trading and hedging activities
Foreign exchange activity (1,555,219) (1,589,392)
Transactions with financial instruments recognised at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading
Securities portfolio
Fixed income (4,541) (8,670)
Variable income (881) (29,132)
Certificates and structured securities issued (124,426) (62,095)
Derivatives associated to financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (22,890) (33,390)
Other financial instruments derivatives (294,654) (413,502)
Other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Securities portfolio
Fixed income (4,329) (5,362)
Other financial instruments (9,825) (7,417)
Repurchase of own issues (372) 2,121)
Hedging accounting
Hedging derivatives (118,042) (235,401)
Hedged items (35,999) (23,518)
Credit sales (23,396) (46,450)
Other operations (1,704) (2,766)
(2,196,278) (2,459,216)
45,346 101,827
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During 2017, the balance Net gains arising from trading and hedging activities includes for Deposits from customers - Deposits at fair
value through profit and loss, a loss of Euros 499,000 (2016: gain of Euros 3,239,000) related to the fair value changes arising from
changes in own credit risk (spread), as referred in note 34.

This balance also includes for Debt securities at fair value through profit and loss, a gain of Euros 34,000 (2016: loss of Euros
1,368,000) as referred in note 35, and for derivatives liabilities associated to financial instruments a loss of Euros 29,000 (2016: gain of
Euros 597,000), related to the fair value changes arising from changes in own credit risk (spread).

During 2017, the caption Net gains / (losses) arising from trading and hedging activities - Hedging accounting includes a net gain of
Euros 868,000 as a result of the sale of available for sale financial assets subject to hedge accounting, which are offset in the caption
Net gains / (losses) arising from financial astes available for sale (note 7).

The caption Transactions with financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss - Other financial instruments
measured at fair value through profit and loss, did not present any material impact on differences in the initial recognition between fair
value and transaction price of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (IAS 39 paragraphs 43A and
AG76 and IFRS 7.28).

The result of repurchase of own issues is determined in accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1 d).

7. NET GAINS / (LOSSES) ARISING FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Gains arising from financial assets available for sale

Fixed income 86,701 37,304
Variable income 18,626 107,830
105,327 145,134

Losses arising from financial assets available for sale
Fixed income (2,179) (4,859)
Variable income (118) (1,735)
(2,297) (6,594)
103,030 138,540

During 2017, the balance Gains arising from financial assets available for sale - Fixed income - includes the amount of Euros
57,268,000 (2016: Euros 11,185,000) related to gains resulting from the sale of Portuguese Treasury bonds.

The balance Gains arising from financial assets available for sale - Variable income included, in 2016, the amount of Euros 96,204,000

(of which Euros 69,851,000 regards to Bank Millennium, S.A and Euros 26,353,000 to BCP) related to gains arising from the sale of the
investment held in Visa Europe occurred in June 2016.
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8. OTHER OPERATING INCOME / (COSTS)

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Operating income
Income from services 25,614 23,912
Cheques and others 12,497 13,307
Gains on leasing operations 6,379 8,943
Rents 2,363 2,462
Other operating income 19,164 16,041
66,017 64,665

Operating costs
Taxes (26,735) (22,393)
Donations and contributions (3,633) (4,262)
Contribution over the banking sector (31,037) (24,820)
Resolution Funds Contribution (8,490) (5,651)
Contribution for the Single Resolution Fund (18,246) (21,166)
Contributions to Deposit Guarantee Fund (23,551) (20,722)
Tax for the Polish banking sector (44,297) (39,781)
Extraordinary contributions - (1,615)
Losses on financial leasing operations (994) (338)
Other operating costs (19,640) (28,464)

(176,623) (169,212)

(110,606) (104,547)

The balance Contribution over the banking sector is estimated according to the terms of the Decree-Law no. 55-A/2010. The
determination of the amount payable is based on: (i) the annual average liabilities deducted by core capital (Tier 1) and supplementary
capital (Tier 2) and deposits covered by the Deposit Guarantee Fund, and (ii) notional amount of derivatives.

The balance Contribution to the Resolution Fund corresponds to the periodic contributions that must be paid to the Fund, as stipulated
in Decree-Law No 24/2013. The periodic contributions are determined by a base rate, established by the Bank of Portugal through
regulatory instruments, to be applied in each year and which may be adjusted to the credit institution’s risk profile on the basis of the
objective incidence of those contributions. The period contributions affect the liabilities of the credit institutions members of the Fund,
as per the article 10 of the referred Decree-Law, deducted from the liability elements that are part of the core capital and
supplementary and from the deposits covered by the Deposit Guarantee Fund.

The balance Contribution to the Single Resolution Fund (‘SRF’) corresponds to the Bank’s annual ex-ante contribution to support the
application of resolution measures at EU level. The SRF has been established by Regulation (EU) No 806/2014 (the “SRM Regulation”).
The SRF is financed from ex-ante contributions paid annually at individual level by all credit institutions within the Banking Union.
Contributions to the SRF take into account the annual target level as well as the size and the risk profile of institutions.

In calculating the ex-ante contributions, the SRF applies the methodology as set out in the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No
2015/63 and European Parliament and of the Council Regulation (EU) No 806/2014. The annual contribution to the Fund is based on
the institution's liabilities excluding own funds and covered deposits considering adjustments due to derivatives and intra group
liabilities and on a risk factor adjustment that depends on the risk profile of the institution.

In accordance with Article 67(4) of SRM Regulation and in accordance with the Intergovernmental Agreement on the transfer and

mutualisation of contributions to the SRF, the ex-ante contributions are collected by national resolution authorities and transferred to
the SRF by 30 June of each year.
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During 2017, the Group delivered the amount of Euros 18,246,000 (2016: Euros 21,166,000) to the Single Resolution Fund. The total
value of the contribution attributable to the Group amounted to Euros 21,466,000 (2016: Euros 24,901,000) and the Group opted to
constitute an irrevocable commitment, through a constitution of a bailment for this purpose, in the amount of Euros 3,220,000 (2016:
Euros 3,735,000), not having this component been recognised as a cost, as defined by the Single Resolution Council in accordance
with the methodology set out in Delegated Regulation (EU) No 2015/63 of the Commission of 21 October 2014 and with the
conditions laid down in the Implementing Regulation (EU) 2015/81 of the Council of 19 December 2014.

The balance Contribution to Deposit Guarantee Fund includes, in 2017 the amount of Euros 23,356,000 (2016: Euros 20,509,000)
regarding obligatory contributions made by Bank Millennium, S.A to Poland's Bank Guarantee Fund (BFG). It was introduced an
amendment to the BFG Act which changed the periodicity of calculation and payment of BFG contributions to the resolution fund
(Former prudential fee) from quarterly to yearly (as regards contribution to guarantee fund quarterly cycle of calculation has been
maintained). In addition, the methodology for calculating of both contributions has been changed, the final amounts of fees in 2017
are calculated and reported to each Polish bank by BFG. As a consequence, according to requirements of IFRIC 21, the Bank
Millennium, S.A. recognised on a one-off basis costs of the resolution fee (based on estimations), at the moment of recognition
obligation to pay the contribution i.e. at 1 January, having been made an adjustment to the final value reported during the first
semester of 2017.

The balance Extraordinary contributions referred in 2016 to the extraordinary contributions made by Bank Millennium S.A. to the
Banking Guarantee Fund for bankruptcy of banks in Poland and to the Distressed Mortgage Support Fund.

9. STAFF COSTS

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Remunerations 428,122 391,431
Mandatory social security charges
Post-employment benefits (note 49)
Service cost (16,391) (741)
Net interest cost / (income) in the liability coverage balance 4,536 4,502
Cost / (income) with early retirement programs and mutually agreed terminations 12,505 2,933
Collective Labour Agreement (39,997) (172,262)
(39,347) (165,568)
Other mandatory social security charges 109,089 97,713
69,742 (67,855)
Voluntary social security charges 8,225 15,994
Other staff costs 20,488 17,032
526,577 356,602

At the end of December 2016 it was concluded the revision of the Collective Labour Agreement (CLA), between the BCP Group and two
of the unions representing the group's employees, which introduced changes in the Social Security chapter and consequently in the
pension plan financed by the BCP Group Pension Fund, as described in accounting policy 1 w) and note 49. The negotiation with the "
Sindicato dos Bancérios do Norte" (SBN), which was also involved in the negotiations of the new CLA, was only concluded in April 2017
with publication in the “Boletim de Trabalho e Emprego”, with the effects of this new CLA recorded in the financial statements as at 31
December 2017, for SBN's associated employees.

Under the context of the amendments to the CLA, there were also changes in the benefit related to the seniority premium which was
replaced by the End of career premium (note 49). During the 2017, the impact of this change is a gain of Euros 4,856,000 (2016: Euros
19,245,000) and is reflected in Remunerations.
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The average number of employees by professional category, at service in the Group, is analysed as follows by category:

2017 2016

Portugal
Top Management 995 1,005
Intermediary Management 1,679 1,722
Specific/Technical functions 2,963 2,949
Other functions 1,655 1,746
7,292 7,422
Abroad 8,502 8,483
15,794 15,905

10. OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016

Rents and leases 96,276 99,539
Outsourcing and independent labour 77,022 76,377
Advertising 26,707 23,736
Communications 21,167 22,531
Maintenance and related services 17,130 18,887
Information technology services 18,432 18,546
Water, electricity and fuel 15,416 15,682
Advisory services 18,119 13,441
Transportation 7,850 8,002
Travel, hotel and representation costs 8,070 7,599
Legal expenses 6,462 6,285
Consumables 4,429 4,343
Insurance 4,324 4,261
Credit cards and mortgage 6,360 4,891
Training costs 2,019 1,144
Other specialised services 19,198 22,436
Other supplies and services 25,041 25,870
374,022 373,570

The balance Rents and lease includes the amount of Euros 78,956,000 (2016: Euros 82,957,000) related to rents paid regarding
buildings used by the Group as lessee.
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In accordance with accounting policy 1l), under 1AS 17, the Group has various operating leases for properties and vehicles. The
payments under these leases are recognised in the profit and loss during the life of the contract. The minimum future payments
relating to operating leases not revocable, by maturity, are as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Properties Vehicles Total Properties Vehicles Total
Until 1 year 80,533 209 80,742 86,339 502 86,841
1to 5 years 157,785 172 157,957 88,765 394 89,159
Over 5 years 44,126 - 44,126 13,503 - 13,503
282,444 381 282,825 188,607 896 189,503

The item Other specialised services includes fees for services rendered by the Statutory Auditor of the Group, currently in functions,
and by companies in its network as part of its statutory audit functions, as well as other services, is analysed as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Auditing services
Legal certification 1,934 1,977
Other assurance services 1,464 1,070
Other services 1,177 853
4,575 3,900
The Statutory Auditor was appointed on 28 April 2016, with effect from 2 May 2016.
11. AMORTIZATIONS AND DEPRECIATIONS
The amount of this account is comprised of:
(Thousands of euros)
2017 2016
Intangible assets amortizations (note 30):
Software 11,060 10,197
Other intangible assets 837 527
11,897 10,724
Other tangible assets depreciations (note 29):
Properties 19,417 19,443
Equipment
Computer equipment 9,572 7,469
Motor vehicles 4,233 4,287
Interior installations 2,050 1,793
Furniture 1,964 1,694
Security equipment 1,609 1,582
Machinery 644 691
Other equipment 2,196 2,141
41,685 39,100
53,582 49,824
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12. LOANS IMPAIRMENT

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Loans and advances to customers:

Impairment charge for the year 939,919 1,381,442
Reversals for the year (299,245) (230,658)
Recoveries of loans and interest charged-off (note 22) (16,966) (33,866)
623,708 1,116,918

Loans and advances to credit institutions:
Reversals for the year - (2
- (2
623,708 1,116,916

The balance Loans impairment records the variation of the estimate of incurred losses determined according with the evaluation of
objective evidence of impairment, as referred in accounting policy described in note 1 c).

13. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS IMPAIRMENT

The amount of this account is comprised of:
(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016

Impairment of financial assets available for sale
Charge for the year 63,421 274,741

The balance Impairment of financial assets available for sale - Charge for the period includes the impairment losses on shares and on
participation units held by the Group in the amount of Euros 63,401,000 (2016: Euros 235,557,000). This amount includes Euros
45,956,000 (2016: Euros 218,381,000) related to impairment losses on investments held in restructuring funds, as described in note
57.

14. OTHER PROVISIONS

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Provision for guarantees and other commitments (note 37)
Charge for the year 18,537 64,536
Reversals for the year (15,953) (8,644)
2,584 55,892
Other provisions for liabilities and charges (note 37)
Charge for the year 16,463 44,928
Reversals for the year (2,337) (12,433)
14,126 32,495
16,710 88,387
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15. SHARE OF PROFIT OF ASSOCIATES UNDER THE EQUITY METHOD

The main contributions of the investments accounted for under the equity method are analysed as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Banco Millennium Atlantico, S.A.
appropriation relating to the current year (*) 28,534 13,306
appropriation relating to the previous year (14) -
Effect of the application of IAS 29 (notes 26 and 59):
revaluation of the net non-monetary assets of the BMA (9,092) -
revaluation of the goodwill associated to the investment in BMA 20,417 -
11,325 -
39,845 13,306
Millenniumbcp Ageas Grupo Segurador, S.G.P.S., S.A. 35,413 26,036
Unicre - Instituicao Financeira de Crédito, S.A. 6,860 27,332
Banque BCP,S.AS. 3,515 2,981
SIBS,S.G.P.S,S.A. 3,268 11,723
Banque BCP (Luxembourg), S.A. 8 51
Other companies 2,728 (904)
91,637 80,525

(*) In 2016, the appropriation of the results of the BMA, through the application of the equity method, occurred from May 2016.

16. GAINS / (LOSSES) ARISING FROM SALES OF SUBSIDIARIES AND OTHER ASSETS

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Sale of 41.1% investment held in Nanium (3,821) -
Liquidation of Propaco related to the 52.7% of investment held 2) -
Sale of 3.7% investment held in Banque BCP, S.A (Luxembourg) - 465
Sale 0f 31.3% the investment in Quinta do Furdo - Sociedade
de Animacao Turistica e Agricola de Santana, Lda - (521)
Other assets 7,962 (6,221)
4,139 (6,277)

The caption Gains / (losses) arising from sales of subsidiaries and other assets - Other assets corresponds, namely, to the losses arising
from the sale of assets of the Group classified as non-current assets held for sale (note 27), as also the gains/ (losses) arising on sales

and revaluations of investment properties (note 28).
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17. INCOME / (LOSS) ARISING FROM DISCONTINUED OR DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

The amount of this account is comprised of:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Appropriated net income / (loss) before income taxes
Net income before income taxes of Banco Millennium Angola, S.A. - 41,934
Gains arising from the merger of Banco Millennium Angola, S.A. and Banco Privado Atlantico, S.A. - 7,330
Gains arising from the sale of Millennium bcp Gest&o de Activos
- Sociedade Gestora de Fundos de Investimento, S.A. 1,225 1,092
1,225 50,356
Taxes
Banco Millennium Angola, S.A. - (5,128)
1,225 45,228

Under the merger by incorporation of Banco Millennium Angola, S.A. with Banco Privado Atlantico, S.A, in April 2016, and in
accordance with the provisions of IFRS 5, this operation was considered as discontinued in March 2016, and the impact on results
presented in a separate line of the income statement named "Income / (loss) arising from discontinued operations". The financial
statements of Banco Millennium Angola, S.A. that have been incorporated in this caption, are detailed in note 58.

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The earnings per share are calculated as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Continuing operations
Net income / (loss) 288,332 100,587
Non-controlling interests (103,166) (103,511)
Appropriated net income / (loss) 185,166 (2,924)
Discontinued or discontinuing operations
Net income / (loss) 1,225 45,228
Non-controlling interests - (18,366)
Appropriated net income / (loss) 1,225 26,862
Adjusted net income / (loss) 186,391 23,938

Average number of shares

Basic earnings per share (Euros):

13,321,460,739

1,231,541,411

from continuing operations 0.014 (0.003)

from discontinued or discontinuing operations 0.000 0.022
0.014 0.019

Diluted earnings per share (Euros):

from continuing operations 0.014 (0.003)

from discontinued or discontinuing operations 0.000 0.022
0.014 0.019

The Bank's share capital, as at 31 December 2017, amounts to Euros 5,600,738,053.72 and is represented by 15,113,989,952
ordinary, book-entry and nominates shares, without nominal value, which is fully paid.

In December 2016 there were not considered in the calculation of diluted earnings per share, the qualifying hybrid instruments as
common equity tier 1 issued in June 2012 and subscribed fully by the State (CoCos), due to the negative net losses for the period (there
is no dilution effect). As referred in note 47, on 9 February 2017, BCP has reimbursed in advance to the Portuguese State, the
remaining amount of these instruments (Euros 700 million).

There were not identified another dilution effects of the earnings per share as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, so the diluted result is
equivalent to the basic result.

196



19. CASH AND DEPOSITS AT CENTRAL BANKS

This balance is analysed as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016

Cash 540,608 540,290
Central Banks

Bank of Portugal 939,852 433,534

Central Banks abroad 687,474 600,088

2,167,934 1,573,912

The balance Central Banks includes deposits at Central Banks of the countries where the Group operates in order to satisfy the legal
requirements to maintain a cash reserve calculated based on the value of deposits and other effective liabilities. According to the
European Central Bank System for Euro Zone, the cash reserve requirements establishes the maintenance of a deposit with the Central
Bank equivalent to 1% of the average value of deposits and other liabilities, during each reserve requirement period. The rate is
different for countries outside the Euro Zone.

20. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS REPAYABLE ON DEMAND

This balance is analysed as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016

Credit institutions in Portugal 8,394 659
Credit institutions abroad 160,389 232,152
Amounts due for collection 126,749 215,414
295,532 448,225

The balance Amounts due for collection represents essentially cheques due for collection on other financial institutions. These
balances are settled in the first days of the following month.

21. OTHER LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

This balance is analysed as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Other loans and advances to Central Banks abroad 50,114 12,461
Other loans and advances to credit institutions in Portugal
Very short-term applications 39,742 -
Loans 39,220 15,586
Other applications 10,328 4,801
89,290 20,387
Other loans and advances to credit institutions abroad
Very short-term applications 388,327 180,347
Short-term applications 262,339 548,564
Loans - 4
Other applications 274,837 294,439
925,503 1,023,354
1,064,907 1,056,202
Overdue loans - Over 90 days 661 499
1,065,568 1,056,701
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Under the scope of derivative financial instruments operations (IRS and CIRS) with institutional counterparties, and as defined in the
respective contracts ("Cash collateral"), the caption Other loans and advances to credit institutions includes the amounts detailed

below:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Other loans and advances to credit institutions in Portugal
Other applications 1,010 2,840
Other loans and advances to credit institutions abroad
Short-term applications 27,639 242,896
Other applications 269,284 275,180
297,933 520,916

These deposits are held by the counterparties and are given as collateral of the referred operations (IRS and CIRS), whose revaluation is

negative for the Bank.

This balance is analysed by the period to maturity, as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016

Up to 3 months 287,211 995,667
3 to 6 months 744,567 13,567
6 to 12 months 16,918 4,869
1to 5 years 6,872 42,099
Over 5 years 10,000 -
Undetermined - 499
1,065,568 1,056,701

22. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

This balance is analysed as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Public sector 853,393 1,041,191
Asset-backed loans 27,885,255 29,011,503
Other guaranteed loans 3,932,216 3,985,120
Unsecured loans 7,779,063 6,821,163
Foreign loans 1,852,420 2,099,860
Factoring operations 2,106,173 1,794,778
Finance leases 3,525,058 3,373,561
47,933,578 48,127,176
Overdue loans - less than 90 days 88,500 134,934
Overdue loans - Over 90 days 2,933,345 3,496,343
50,955,423 51,758,453
Impairment for credit risk (3,321,931) (3,740,851)
47,633,492 48,017,602
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As at 31 December 2017, the balance Loans and advances to customers includes the amount of Euros 12,146,649,000 (31 December
2016: Euros 12,027,960,000) regarding credits related to mortgage loans issued by the Group.

As referred in note 52, the Group, as part of the liquidity risk management, holds a pool of eligible assets that can serve as collateral in
funding operations with the European Central Bank and other Central Banks in countries where the Group operates, which include
loans and advances to customers.

As at 31 December 2017 and as referred in note 57, the Group performed a set of sales of loans and advances to customers for
Specialized Loan Funds in the amount of Euros 1,586,114,000 (31 December 2016: Euros: 1,586,114,000). During 2017, no credits have
been sold to these funds.

As referred in note 50, the Group provides loans and/or guarantees to qualifying shareholders holding individually or together with
their affiliates, 2% or more of the share capital, identified in the Board of Directors report and in note 40.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group granted credit to qualifying shareholders and entities controlled by them, in the amount of Euros
213,436,000 (31 December 2016: Euros 237,707,000), as referred in note 50 a). The amount of impairment recognised for these
contracts amounts to Euros 77,000 (31 December 2016: Euros 130,000).

The business conducted between the company and qualifying shareholders or natural or legal persons related to them, pursuant to
article 20 of the Securities Code, regardless of the amount, is always subject to appraisal and deliberation by the Board of Directors,
through a proposal by the Credit Committee and the Executive Committee, supported by an analysis and technical opinion issued by
the Internal Audit Division, and after a prior opinion has been obtained from the Audit Committee.

The analysis of loans and advances to customers, by type of credit, is as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Loans not represented by securities
Mortgage loans 23,307,977 23,952,257
Loans 13,766,728 13,689,736
Finance leases 3,525,058 3,373,561
Factoring operations 2,106,173 1,794,778
Current account credits 1,556,279 1,625,812
Overdrafts 1,456,141 1,339,874
Discounted bills 232,169 284,378

45,950,525 46,060,396

Loans represented by securities

Commercial paper 1,702,941 1,843,345
Bonds 280,112 223,435
1,983,053 2,066,780

47,933,578 48,127,176

Overdue loans - less than 90 days 88,500 134,934
Overdue loans - Over 90 days 2,933,345 3,496,343
50,955,423 51,758,453
Impairment for credit risk (3,321,931) (3,740,851)

47,633,492 48,017,602
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The analysis of loans and advances to customers, by maturity and by sector of activity, as at 31 December 2017, is as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017
Outstanding loans
Due within 1yearto Over Total Overdue
1 year 5 years 5 years Outstanding loans Total %
Agriculture and forestry 83,770 85,208 121,933 290,911 16,167 307,078 0.60%
Fisheries 7,647 14,990 7,707 30,344 237 30,581 0.06%
Mining 46,801 22,963 5,645 75,409 8,059 83,468 0.16%
Food, beverage
and tobacco 406,227 217,506 78,238 701,971 17,287 719,258 1.41%
Textiles 263,418 97,526 85,797 446,741 24,668 471,409 0.93%
Wood and cork 106,540 83,890 41,619 232,049 11,704 243,753 0.48%
Paper, printing
and publishing 137,597 42,439 46,919 226,955 5,915 232,870 0.46%
Chemicals 469,779 206,012 143,183 818,974 45,707 864,681 1.70%
Machinery, equipment
and basic metallurgical 577,905 402,079 190,651 1,170,635 62,540 1,233,175 2.42%
Electricity and gas 52,500 51,571 428,318 532,389 150 532,539 1.05%
Water 43,071 107,570 114,534 265,175 4,410 269,585 0.53%
Construction 802,563 278,120 707,968 1,788,651 616,806 2,405,457 4.72%
Retail business 641,116 319,037 294,334 1,254,487 84,765 1,339,252 2.63%
Wholesale business 1,241,500 575,687 186,806 2,003,993 128,818 2,132,811 4.19%
Restaurants and hotels 94,566 173,810 738,235 1,006,611 75,955 1,082,566 2.12%
Transports 449,414 473,383 383,534 1,306,331 31,780 1,338,111 2.63%
Post offices 2,651 1,896 81 4,628 381 5,009 0.01%
Telecommunications 101,052 151,880 68,419 321,351 6,490 327,841 0.64%
Services
Financial intermediation 461,156 423,951 1,048,733 1,933,840 298,984 2,232,824 4.38%
Real estate activities 322,251 334,323 645,482 1,302,056 357,905 1,659,961 3.26%
Consulting, scientific and
technical activities 1,279,466 570,563 379,585 2,229,614 217,534 2,447,148 4.80%
Administrative and support
services activities 243,651 201,178 85,256 530,085 29,603 559,688 1.10%
Public sector 95,623 447,957 447,731 991,311 312 991,623 1.95%
Education 38,157 25,431 69,813 133,401 2,642 136,043 0.27%
Health and collective
service activities 111,055 88,342 103,455 302,852 2,532 305,384 0.60%
Artistic, sports and
recreational activities 41,021 38,808 238,174 318,003 6,030 324,033 0.64%
Other services 170,760 104,857 50,183 325,800 261,021 586,821 1.15%
Consumer credit 1,111,151 1,508,862 793,285 3,413,298 381,412 3,794,710 7.45%
Mortgage credit 369,380 1,352,665 21,432,674 23,154,719 253,258 23,407,977 45.94%
Other domestic
activities 2 13 - 15 5,096 5,111 0.01%
Other international
activities 461,005 250,793 109,181 820,979 63,677 884,656 1.74%
10,232,795 8,653,310 29,047,473 47,933,578 3,021,845 50,955,423 100%
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The analysis of loans and advances to customers, by maturity and by sector of activity, as at 31 December 2016, is as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2016
Outstanding loans
Due within 1yearto Over Total Overdue
1 year 5 years 5 years Outstanding loans Total %
Agriculture and forestry 108,926 83,579 108,386 300,891 39,686 340,577 0.66%
Fisheries 7,038 15,999 18,364 41,401 11,981 53,382 0.10%
Mining 62,562 24,753 8,052 95,367 6,875 102,242 0.20%
Food, beverage
and tobacco 365,344 148,471 71,361 585,176 19,221 604,397 1.17%
Textiles 238,126 104,689 101,875 444,690 26,075 470,765 0.91%
Wood and cork 95,148 75,229 37,914 208,291 14,702 222,993 0.43%
Paper, printing
and publishing 70,701 75,111 52,141 197,953 10,010 207,963 0.40%
Chemicals 363,117 205,728 113,358 682,203 66,517 748,720 1.45%
Machinery, equipment
and basic metallurgical 468,225 345,115 184,444 997,784 63,945 1,061,729 2.05%
Electricity and gas 129,048 73,735 374,745 577,528 971 578,499 1.12%
Water 56,254 34,608 114,947 205,809 3,884 209,693 0.41%
Construction 937,900 282,397 812,991 2,033,288 826,013 2,859,301 5.52%
Retail business 623,863 291,102 237,644 1,152,609 120,173 1,272,782 2.46%
Wholesale business 1,022,257 526,029 215,238 1,763,524 153,696 1,917,220 3.70%
Restaurants and hotels 92,372 181,660 582,587 856,619 117,557 974,176 1.88%
Transports 419,444 517,356 482,739 1,419,539 72,317 1,491,856 2.88%
Post offices 2,965 2,853 51 5,869 471 6,340 0.01%
Telecommunications 94,241 112,614 65,741 272,596 106,998 379,594 0.73%
Services
Financial intermediation 1,256,275 1,062,314 1,176,613 3,495,202 565,769 4,060,971 7.85%
Real estate activities 294,076 288,054 559,104 1,141,234 344,475 1,485,709 2.87%
Consulting, scientific and
technical activities 448,582 189,895 213,138 851,615 42,432 894,047 1.73%
Administrative and support
services activities 184,782 179,336 95,493 459,611 38,371 497,982 0.96%
Public sector 150,003 150,417 439,440 739,860 979 740,839 1.43%
Education 32,948 14,670 74,968 122,586 3,388 125,974 0.24%
Health and collective
service activities 87,721 67,994 120,952 276,667 4,491 281,158 0.54%
Artistic, sports and
recreational activities 75,893 24,643 265,225 365,761 15,811 381,572 0.74%
Other services 159,650 397,386 62,521 619,557 16,304 635,861 1.23%
Consumer credit 979,162 1,801,945 737,839 3,518,946 538,843 4,057,789 7.84%
Mortgage credit 368,626 1,336,889 22,004,342 23,709,857 308,450 24,018,307 46.40%
Other domestic
activities 8 1 - 9 7,879 7,888 0.02%
Other international
activities 509,282 276,093 199,759 985,134 82,993 1,068,127 2.06%
9,704,539 8,890,665 29,531,972 48,127,176 3,631,277 51,758,453 100%
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The analysis of loans and advances to customers, by type of credit and by maturity, as at 31 December 2017, is as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017
Outstanding loans

Due within 1 year to Over Total Overdue
1 year 5 years 5years  Outstanding loans Total
Public sector 41,491 79,849 732,053 853,393 265 853,658
Asset-backed loans 1,790,993 3,011,766 23,082,496 27,885,255 1,502,718 29,387,973
Other guaranteed loans 1,571,652 1,371,367 989,197 3,932,216 335,606 4,267,822
Unsecured loans 4,343,298 1,852,701 1,583,064 7,779,063 888,057 8,667,120
Foreign loans 421,166 546,644 884,610 1,852,420 149,805 2,002,225
Factoring operations 1,548,343 512,249 45,581 2,106,173 23,892 2,130,065
Finance leases 515,852 1,278,734 1,730,472 3,525,058 121,502 3,646,560
10,232,795 8,653,310 29,047,473 47,933,578 3,021,845 50,955,423

The analysis of loans and advances to customers, by type of credit and by maturity, as at 31 December 2016, is as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2016
Outstanding loans

Due within 1 year to Over Total Overdue
1year 5 years 5years  Outstanding loans Total
Public sector 124,754 366,857 549,580 1,041,191 27 1,041,218
Asset-backed loans 1,862,811 3,343,083 23,805,609 29,011,503 1,832,217 30,843,720
Other guaranteed loans 1,678,537 1,336,693 969,890 3,985,120 443,626 4,428,746
Unsecured loans 3,806,214 1,619,086 1,395,863 6,821,163 1,053,539 7,874,702
Foreign loans 504,058 595,976 999,826 2,099,860 128,959 2,228,819
Factoring operations 1,304,834 445,597 44,347 1,794,778 23,588 1,818,366
Finance leases 423,331 1,183,373 1,766,857 3,373,561 149,321 3,522,882
9,704,539 8,890,665 29,531,972 48,127,176 3,631,277 51,758,453

The caption Loans and advances to customers includes the effect of traditional securitization transactions owned by Special Purpose
Entities (SPEs) consolidated following the application of IFRS 10, in accordance with accounting policy 1 b) and synthetic securitization.
The characterization of these operations is described in note 1 d) 6 ii).

TRADITIONAL SECURITIZATIONS

Securitization transactions engaged by the Group refer to mortgage loans and are set through specifically created SPE. As at 31
December 2017, the loans and advances referred to these traditional securitization transactions amounts to Euros 464,513,000 (31
December 2016: Euros 527,924,000) As referred in accounting policy 1 b), when the substance of the relationships with the SPEs
indicates that the Group holds control of its activities, the SPE are consolidated by the full method.

Magellan Mortgages No. 2

On 20 October 2003, the Group transferred a pool of mortgage loans owned by Banco Comercial Portugués, S.A. and by Banco de
Investimento Imobiliario, S.A. to the SPE “Magellan Mortgages No. 2 PLC”. Considering that, by having acquired the total subordinated
tranches, the Group holds the control of the referred assets, the SPE is consolidated in the Group’s Financial Statements, as established
in the accounting policy 1 b). As at 31 December 2017, the SPE's credit portfolio associated with this operation amounts to Euros
121,585,000, and the bonds issued with different subordination levels amount to Euros 107,780,000 (this amount excludes bonds
already acquired by the Group in the amount of Euros 13,536,000 and Euros 14,000,000 of the most subordinated tranche fully
acquired).
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Magellan Mortgages No. 3

On 24 June 2005, the Group transferred a pool of mortgage loans owned by Banco Comercial Portugués, S.A. to the SPE “Magellan
Mortgages No. 3 PLC”. Considering that, by having acquired part of the subordinated tranche, the Group holds the control of the
referred assets, the SPE is consolidated in the Group’s Financial Statements, as established in the accounting policy 1 b). As at 31
December 2017, the SPE's credit portfolio associated with this operation amounts to Euros 342,928,000, and bonds issued with
different subordination levels amount to Euros 230,231,000 (this amount excludes bonds already acquired by the Group in the amount
of Euros 111,647,000) and the most subordinated tranche amounts to Euros 44,000 (this amount excludes bonds already acquired by
the Group in the amount Euros 206,000).

SYNTHETIC SECURITIZATIONS
The Group has two operations in progress which form structures of synthetic securitization.
Caravela SME No. 3

Caravela SME No.3, which operation started on 28 June 2013, based on a medium and long term loans portfolio of current accounts
and authorized overdrafts granted by BCP, mainly to small and medium companies. The maturity date is 25 March of 2036 and as at 31
December 2017, the synthetic securitization "Caravela SME No.3" amounts to Euros 2,269,231,000. The fair value of swaps is recorded
in the amount of Euros 194,606,000 and the associated cost in 2017 amounts to Euros 17,708,000.

Caravela SME No. 4

Caravela SME No.4 is a similar operation, initiated on 5 June 2014, which portfolio contains car, real estate and equipment leasing
granted between the Bank and a group of clients that belong to the same segment (small and medium companies). The maturity date
is 21 September of 2043 and as at 31 December 2017, the synthetic securitization "Caravela SME No.4" amounts to Euros
1,144,979,000. The fair value of swaps is recorded at the amount of Euros 66,193,000 and their associated cost in 2017 amounts to
Euros 1,491,000.

In both operations, the Bank hired a Credit Default Swap (CDS) with a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), buying by this way the protection
for the total portfolio referred. Both cases, the synthetic securitizations, the same CDS, the risk of the respective portfolios were
divided in 3 classes: senior, mezzanine and equity. The mezzanine and part of the equity (20%) were placed in the market through an
SPV, and the subscription by investors, the Credit Linked Notes (CLNs). The Bank retained the senior risk and part of the equity
remaining (80%). The product of the CLNs issue was invested by the SPV in a deposit which total collateral the responsibilities in the
presence of the Bank, in accordance of the CDS.

These operations involve the Bank's reduced exposure to the risks associated with the credit granted, but it did not transfer to third
parties the majority of the rights and obligations arising from the credits included in them, thus not meeting the criteria set out in
paragraphs 16 and subsequent IAS 39 for derecognition.

The Group's credit portfolio, which includes further than loans and advances to customers, the guarantees granted and commitments
to third parties, split between loans with or without signs of impairment is analysed as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Total loans 55,497,146 56,594,498
Loans and advances to customers with signs of impairment
Individually significant
Gross amount 5,234,558 6,535,910
Impairment (2,520,686) (2,587,273)
2,713,872 3,948,637
Collective analysis
Gross amount 2,721,470 3,829,973
Impairment (806,351) (1,164,037)
1,915,119 2,665,936
Loans and advances to customers without signs of impairment 47,541,118 46,228,615
Impairment (IBNR) (125,769) (117,597)

52,044,340 52,725,591
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The total loan portfolio presented in the table above includes loans and advances to customers in the amount of Euros 50,955,423,000
(31 December 2016: Euros: 51,758,453,000) and guarantees granted and commitments to third parties balance (note 45), in the
amount of Euros 4,541,723,000 (31 December 2016: Euros 4,836,045,000).

The balances Impairment and Impairment (IBNR') were determined in accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1 c),
including the provision for guarantees and other commitments to third parties (note 37), in the amount of Euros 130,875,000 (31
December 2016: Euros 128,056,000).

The analysis of the exposure covered by collateral associated with loans and advances to customers' portfolio, considering its fair
value, is as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Loans and advances to customers with impairment
Individually significant
Securities and other financial assets 491,535 650,949
Residential real estate 372,675 498,915
Other real estate 1,196,156 1,385,860
Other guarantees 644,484 680,523
2,704,850 3,216,247
Collective analysis
Securities and other financial assets 21,456 23,271
Residential real estate 1,336,562 1,783,311
Other real estate 197,310 296,815
Other guarantees 76,546 107,704
1,631,874 2,211,101
Loans and advances to customers without impairment
Securities and other financial assets 2,029,452 2,178,216
Residential real estate 20,789,178 20,972,631
Other real estate 3,863,924 3,174,211
Other guarantees 3,824,188 3,725,116

30,506,742 30,050,174
34,843,466 35,477,522

The captions Other guarantees include debtors, assets subject to leasing transactions and personal guarantees, among others.
Considering the policy of risk management of the Group (note 52), the amounts presented do not include the fair value of the personal
guarantees provided by clients with lower risk rating. When considered, the fair value of the personal guarantees corresponds to the
guaranteed amount.

The Group is applying physical collaterals and financial guarantees as instruments to mitigate the credit risk. The physical collaterals
are mainly mortgages on residential buildings for the mortgage portfolio and other mortgages on other types of buildings related to
other types of loans. In order to reflect the market value, these collaterals are regularly reviewed based on independent and certified
valuation entities or through the application of revaluation coefficients that reflect the market trends for each specific type of building
and geographical area. The financial guarantees are reviewed based on the market value of the respective assets, when available, with
the subsequent application of haircuts that reflect the volatility of their prices. Considering the current real estate and financial
markets conditions, the Group continued to negotiate additional physical and financial collaterals with its customers.
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The balance Loans and advances to customers includes the following amounts related to finance leases contracts:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Amount of future minimum payments 3,956,596 3,810,114
Interest not yet due (431,538) (436,553)
Present value 3,525,058 3,373,561

The amount of future minimum payments of lease contracts, by maturity terms, is analysed as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016

Up to 1 year 846,943 752,119
1to 5 years 1,831,777 1,723,305
Over 5 years 1,277,876 1,334,690
3,956,596 3,810,114

The analysis of financial lease contracts, by type of client, is presented as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016

Individuals
Home 71,331 76,577
Consumer 31,269 25,712
Others 114,892 125,693
217,492 227,982

Companies
Equipment 1,673,106 1,499,569
Real estate 1,634,460 1,646,010
3,307,566 3,145,579
3,525,058 3,373,561

Regarding operational leasing, the Group does not present relevant contracts as leasor.
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The loan to customers' portfolio includes contracts that resulted in a formal restructuring with the customers and the consequent
establishment of a new funding to replace the previous. The restructuring may result in a reinforce of guarantees and / or liquidation of
part of the credit and involve an extension of maturities or a different interest rate. The analysis of the non-performing restructured

loans, by sector of activity, is as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Agriculture and forestry 8,464 23,330
Fisheries 2,019 12,996
Mining 13,338 140
Food, beverage and tobacco 1,020 1,326
Textiles 554 694
Wood and cork 2,977 2,832
Paper, printing and publishing 450 1,899
Chemicals 2,108 4,277
Machinery, equipment and basic metallurgical 17,755 16,156
Electricity and gas 431 270
Water 250 98
Construction 32,135 34,029
Retail business 95,818 8,529
Wholesale business 16,888 8,928
Restaurants and hotels 10,252 12,822
Transports 13,372 9,656
Post offices 30 28
Telecommunications 80,701 238
Services

Financial intermediation 495 452
Real estate activities 5,969 6,760
Consulting, scientific and technical activities 8,110 1,866
Administrative and support services activities 7,436 721
Public sector 41,070 746
Education 390 540
Health and collective service activities 89 54
Artistic, sports and recreational activities 381 399
Other services 1,546 1,626
Consumer credit 125,646 113,151
Mortgage credit 107,182 102,303
Other international activities 10,434 11,524
607,310 378,390

The restructured loans are subject to an impairment analysis resulting from the revaluation of expectation to meet new cash flows
inherent to the new contract terms, discounted at the original effective interest rate and considering new collaterals.

Regarding the restructured loans, the impairment associated to these operations amounts to Euros 169,912,000 (31 December 2016:

Euros 151,810,000).

The Group has implemented a process for marking operations restructured due to clients' financial difficulties. This marking is part of
the credit analysis process, being in charge of the respective decision-making bodies, according to the corresponding competencies,

established in the regulations in force.
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The information on operations restructured due to financial difficulties is available in the Group's information systems, having a
relevant role in the processes of credit analysis, in the marking of customers in default and in the process of determining impairment.
In particular:

- there are several default triggers related to restructurings due to financial difficulties (restructuring with loss of value, recidivism of
restructuring, unproductive credit, default on customers with restructured operations);

- in the process of individual impairment analysis, in addition to the existence of operations restructured due to financial difficulties, is
a reason for customer selection, the loss inherent to the change in the conditions resulting from the restructuring is determined;

- with regard to collective analysis, and the existence of such operations leads to the integration of the client into a subpopulation with
an aggravated impairment rate.

The demarcation of an operation can only take place at least 2 years after the date of marking, provided that a set of conditions exist
that allow to conclude by the improvement of the financial condition of the client.

As mentioned in note 52, as at 31 December 2017, the total restructured loans amount to Euros 4,382,262,000 (31 December 2016:
Euros 5,059,571,000).

The definition of Non Performing Loans for more than 90 days (NPL> 90) incorporates total credit (past due + outstanding) associated
with past due operations for more than 90 days. As at 31 December 2017, the amount calculated is Euros 4,526,765,000 (31 December
2016: Euros 5,384,717,000).

The definition of Non-Performing Exposure (NPE) is as follows:

a) Total exposure of defaulted customers;

b) Total exposure of customers with signs of impairment;

c) Total exposure of customers whose overdue operations for more than 90 days represents more than 20% of their total on-balance
sheet exposure;

d) Total exposure of non-retail customers with at least one overdue operation for more than 90 days;

e) Retail operations overdue for more than 90 days;

f) Operations restructured due to financial difficulties overdue for more than 30 days.

As at 31 December 2017, the NPE amounts to Euros 7,742,399,000 (31 December 2016: Euros 9,814,723,000), of which Euros
7,658,392,000 are associated to loans not represented by securities (31 December 2016: Euros 9,374,848,000) and Euros 84,007,000
associated to loans represented by securities (31 December 2016: Euros 439,875,000).

The changes occurred in impairment for credit risks are analysed as follows:

(Thousands of euros)

2017 2016
Balance on 1 January 3,740,851 3,468,084
Transfers resulting from changes in the Group's structure - (40,109)
Other transfers (33,187) 4,642
Impairment charge for the year 939,919 1,381,442
Reversals for the year (299,245) (230,658)
Loans charged-off (1,040,845) (806,403)
Exchange rate differences 14,438 (36,147)
Balance on 31 December 3,321,931 3,740,851

If the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period to its initial accounting and this decrease c